TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
October 29, 2015 — 1:30 o’clock p.m.
Classroom 6 - Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
Open Session — Assembly Rooms 1, 2, 3
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Board may take action on any of the items listed
below, unless the item is specifically labeled
“Informational Only”

Time

Agenda item Allotted Requestor
Call to Order 3 min. Standard
Approval of agenda
Public Comments — Announcement 3 min. Standard
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Closed Session portion of the Agenda. Per Board Policy 14-018,
members of the public may have three minutes, individually, to address the
Board of Directors.
Oral Announcement of ltems to be Discussed During Closed Session
(Authority: Government Code Section 54957.7)
Motion to go into Closed Session
Closed Session 2 Hours

a. Conference with Labor Negotiators
(Authority: Government Code Section 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator: Tim Moran
Employee organization: SEIU
Employee organization: UFCW

b. Hearings on Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or
Quality Assurance Committees
(Authority: Health & Safety Code, Section 32155)

c. Conference with Legal Counsel — Potential Litigation
(Authority Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (2 Matters)

d. Public Employee Performance Evaluation
Title: General Counsel
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957)

e. Reports Involving Trade Secrets
(Authority: Health and Safety Code, Section 32106)
Discussion Will Concern: Proposed new service or program
Date of Disclosure: October 29, 2015

Note: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the members of Tri-City Healthcare District regarding any item on this

Agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Administration Department located at 4002 Vista Way,

Oceanside, CA 92056 during normal business hours.

Note: If you have a disability, please notify us at 760-940-3347 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting

so that we may provide reasonable accommodations.




Agenda item

Time
Allotted

Requestor

f. Conference with Real Property Negotiators
Property: 4120 Waring Road
Agency Negotiators: Tim Moran, Wayne Knight
Negotiating Parties: RangeComm, LLC; Mainstreet Realty, LLC
Under negotiation: Terms of Sale

g. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation
(Authority Government Code Section 54956.9(d)1, (d)4

(1) Steven D. Stein v. Tri-City Healthcare District
Case No. 12-cv-02524BTM BGS

(2) Medical Acquisitions Company vs. TCHD
Case No: 2014-00009108
Case No. 2014-00022523

h. Approval of prior Closed Session Minutes

7 | Motion to go into Open Session

8 | Open Session

Open Session — Assembly Room 3 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion (Lower
Level) and Facilities Conference Room — 3:30 p.m.

9 | Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.1)

10 | Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance

3 min.

Standard

11 | Public Comments — Announcement

Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Board Agenda at the time the item is being considered by the Board of
Directors. Per Board Policy 14-018, members of the public may have three
minutes, individually, to address the Board of Directors.

NOTE: Members of the public may speak on any item not listed on the
Board Agenda, which falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors,
immediately prior to Board Communications.

2 min.

Standard

12 | Special Recognitions —

1) James C. Esch, M.D.

2) Terry A. Haas, M.D.

3) Jeffrey O. Leach, M.D.
4) Jon A. LelLevier, M.D.
5) Martin M. Nielsen, M.D.

15 min.

Chair

13 | Introduction of Xiangli Li, M.D. — North County Internal Medicine Group

5 min.

Chair/
W. Knight

14 | Report from TCHD Foundation

5 min.

Standard

15 | Report from Chief Executive Officer

10 min.

Standard

16 | Report from Chief Financial Officer

10 min.

Standard

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -2-

October 29, 2015



Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

17

New Business

a. Consideration to approve Primary Care Provider (PCP) Agreement

10 min.

J. Raimo/FOP

b. Consideration of appointment of Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Operating Officer as managers for Tri-City Real Estate Holding &
Management Company, LL.C

10 min.

W. Knight

18

Old Business - None

19

Chief of Staff
a. Consideration of October 2015 Credentialing Actions Involving the
Medical Staff — New Appointments Only

b. Medical Staff Credentials for October 2015 — Reappointments

5 min.

Standard

20

Consideration of Consent Calendar

(1) Board Committees
(1) All Committee Chairs will make an oral report to the Board
regarding items being recommended if listed as New
Business or pulled from Consent Calendar.
(2 ) All items listed were recommended by the Committee.
(3) Requested items to be pulled require a second.

A. Human Resources Committee
Director Kellett, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 0
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes)

B. Employee Fiduciary Retirement Subcommittee
Director Kellett, Subcommittee Chair
Open Community Seats — 0
No meeting held in October,2015

C. Community Healthcare Alliance Committee
Director Nygaard, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 2
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes

D. Finance, Operations & Planning Commiittee
Director Dagostino, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 0
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes)

1) Approval of an agreement with Rady Children’s Specialists
of San Diego for Retinopathy of Prematurity Testing for a term
of 12 months, beginning November 1, 2015 through October
31, 2016 for an annual cost of $31,020 and a total cost for the

term of $31,020.

2) Approval of an Emergency Department On Call Agreement

5 min.

Standard

HR Comm.

Emp. Fid.
Subcomm.

CHAC Comm.

FO&P Comm.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -3-

October 29, 2015



Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

oo

>Q ™o

a.

a.
b.

for Psychiatry with Dr. Ruchira Densert beginning November
1, 2015 through June 30, 2017 at a daily rate of $1,000 for an
annual cost of $243,000 for FY 2016, and $365,000for
FY2017, and a total cost for the term of $608,000.

3) Approval of an agreement with Macro Helix for Macro Helix
340B Architect Module for term of 60 months, for an annual
cost of $30,600 and a total cost for the term of $153,000.

E. Professional Affairs Committee
Director Dagostino, Committee Chair
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes.)

1. Patient Care Services

Administration of Vitamin K Aquamephyton Injection and
Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment to Newborns -
Standardized Procedure

. Administration of Pediatric Hepatitis B Vaccine and

Immunoglobulin (HBIG) to Newborns- Standardized
Procedure

. Advance Healthcare Directive- Policy
. Blood Glucose Newborn Monitoring- Standardized

Procedure

. Care of the Newborn- Standardized Procedure

Deceased Patient Care and Disposition Procedure

. Disaster Call Back List- Policy
. Hypoglycemia Management in the Adult Patient-

Standardized Procedure

Newborn Hypoglycemia During Transition to Extrauterine
Life for NICU- Standardized Procedure (DELETE)
Pneumococcal and Influenza Vaccine Screening and
Administration - Standardized Procedure

. Transporting Ventilator Patients- Procedure
. Universal Blood Saturation Screening for Critical

Congenital Heart Disease (CCHD) Standardized
Procedure

2) Administrative Policies & Procedures

Failure Mode and Effects Abnalysis (FMEA) 389
Solicitation and Distribution of Literature on District
Property 210 (DELETE)

3) Unit Specific

Environment of Care

Section 1 Safety Management
a. Risk Assessment Policy 1040

Section 3 Life Safety
a.

b.
c.

Exit Doors
Fire Plan- Code Red 3305
Fire Safety Hazards

PAC

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -4-

October 29, 2015



Time
Agenda Item Allotted | Requestor

Section 5 Hazardous Materials
a. Reporting Hazmat Incidents

Emergency Operations Procedures Manual
a. Authority to Implement the Disaster Plan for TCMC 4070

(DELETE)

b. Disaster Control Center Implementation Plan Emergency
Department Specific 4002 (DELETE)

c. Disaster Plan for Media Control 4007 (DELETE)

d. Disaster Plan rehab Area, Minor Care (Walking
Wounded) 4055 (DELETE)

e. Emergency removal of Patients Using Manual Carries:
Hospital Wide 4005 (DELETE)

f. General Information for Discharging Patients 4006
(DELETE)

g. Medical Staff Disaster Plan 4045 (DELETE)

h. Toxic External Air 4011 (DELETE)

Engineering
Section 1 General Administrative

a. Engineering Hours of Service- 1006

Section 4: Equipment
a. Utility Management Plan- 4003

Section 8: Emergency Preparedness
a. Code Green Policy- 8007

Infection Control
a. Blood borne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan- IC 10

Pharmacy
a. General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy

Rehabilitation Services

a. Supervision Requirements of Minors During Outpatient
Rehabilitation

b. Use of Encrypted Email for Outpatient Rehab Services

F. Governance & Legislative Committee Gov. & Leg.
Director Schallock, Committee Chair Comm.
Open Community Seats - 0

(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes.)

1) Rules & Requlations
a. Division of Neurosurgery

b. Division of Psychiatry
c. Division of General & Vascular Surgery

2) Approval of Board Policy 14-039—-Comprehensive Code of
Conduct

3) Approval of Board Policy 14-038 Liability Insurance
Requirements

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -5- October 29, 2015



Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

G. Audit & Compliance Committee
Director Finnila, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 0
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes.)

1) Approval of Administrative Policies & Procedures:
a. 8610-519 - Alternative Means of Communicating PHI in the
Designated Record Set

b. 8610-262 — Ethics in Provision of Services
c. 8610-294 - Legal Documents

(2) Minutes — Approval of
a) September 24, 2015 — Regular Board of Directors Meeting
b) September 17, 2015 — Special Board of Directors Meeting
c¢) October 13, 2015 - Special Board of Directors Meeting

(3) Meetings and Conferences — None

(4) Dues and Memberships

Audit, Comp.
& Ethics
Comm.

Standard

Standard

Standard

21

Discussion of Items Pulled from Consent Agenda

10 min.

Standard

22

Reports (Discussion by exception only)
(a) Dashboard - Included
(b) Construction Report — None
(c) Lease Report — (September, 2015)
(d) Reimbursement Disclosure Report — (September, 2015)
(e) Seminar/Conference Reports -
1) CHA Govemnance Forum — Chairman Schallock

0-5 min.

Standard

23

Legislative Update

5 min.

Standard

24

Comments by Members of the Public
NOTE: Per Board Policy 14-018, members of the public may have three (3)
minutes, individually, to address the Board

5-10
minutes

Standard

25

Additional Comments by Chief Executive Officer

5 min.

Standard

26

Board Communications (three minutes per Board member)

18 min.

Standard

27

Report from Chairperson

3 min.

Standard

Total Time Budgeted for Open Session
(Includes 10 minutes for recess to accommodate KOCT tape change)

2 hrs/
45 min.

28

Oral Announcement of ltems to be Discussed During Closed Session
(if Needed)

29

Motion to Return to Closed Session (If Needed)

30

Open Session

31

Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.1) — (If Needed)

32

Adjournment

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -6~

October 29, 2015



Xiangli Li, MBBS, MM, PhD

8 Witherspoon Street, Nutley, NJ 07110
Cell Fhone:  858.337-6549
Permanent resident of USA
SUMMARY:
Mature, patient and responsible Internal Medicine senior resident with enthusiasm in primary patient care.
Extensive knowledge and experience in medical diagnosis and patient care services in various settings, including inpatient
and outpatient clinics, private/state/ goverament owned hospital and clinics.

OBJECTIVE: To obtain a Full-time Internal Medicine Physician position in San Diego area

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Internship and Residency

Internal Medicine July 2012- present
Rutgers University New Jersey Medical School, Newark, NJ

As a senior resident, responsibilities included dircct patient care and supervising medical students and interns in the
intensive care unit, medical floor and clinics in University hospital, Hackensack Medical center, VA hospital Bast
Orange NJ and the North Hudson County Clinics.

Postdoctoral Fellow July 2008-June 2012
Division of Rheumatology, Allergy and Clinical immunology

University of California San Diego, School of Medicine, La Jolla, CA

Lead and coordinated research projects.

Research Associate Jan 2005-June 2008
Department of Immmmology and Microbial science

The Seripps Research Institute, La Jolla, CA

Lead and coordinate research prajects.

Residency and Clinical Fellowship Sept 1995- July 1998
Residency in Internal Medicine and Endocrinology clinical fellowship

Ruifin Hospital, Shanghai Second Medical University

Shanghai, China

PROFESSIONAL LICENSE
Physicians and Surgeons License in California, 2014 active

EDUCATION:

University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Aup 1998- Dec 2003
School of Public Health

Degree granted: PhD in Nutrition

Shanghai Second Medical University Aug 1995- July 1998
(Current Shanghai Jiro Tong University Medical school)

Shenghai, China

Degree granted: Master in Internal Medicine

Shanghat Railway Medical University Sept 1990-July 1995
(Current Medical School of Shanghai Tongji University)

Shanghai, China

Degree granted: Bachelor of Medicine in Medicine



CERTIFICATION

2011 USMLE Step 1: 232, March 29, 2011

2011 USMLE Step 2 C8: Passed (May 14, 2011)
2011 USMLE Step 2 CK: 240, August 2, 2011
2012 USMLE Step 3: 226, May 15, 2012

2014 BLS (Rutgers University, May 1,2014)
2014 ACLS (Rutgers University, May 1, 2014)
PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP

American College of Physicians (ACP) 2013-present

SELECTED ARTICLES:

Li X, Murmay, F, Koide N, Goldstone J, Chen J, Bertin S, Fu G, Weinstein LS, Chen M, Corr M, Eckmann L, Insel PA,
and Raz E. Divergent role of Gos in CD4 T cells on Th subset differentiation and their inflanimatory profile. Joutnal of
Clinical Investigation, 2012 Mar 1; 122(3):963-73

Lee 8, Li X, Kim JC, Lee J, Gonzalez-Navajas M, Rhez JH and Raz E. Type 1 IFN is required for maintaining Foxp3
expression and Treg function during T cell-mediated colitis. Gastroenterology 2012 Jul;143 (1):145-54

Li X, Makarov SS: Persistent activation of NF-kappa B controls an undifferentiated, invasive phenotype of primary
fibroblast-like synaviocytes in arthritic joints. Proc Natl Acad Sci U S A. 2006 Nov 14; 103 (46):17432-1.

LiT, Lange L, Li X, Susswein L, Bryant B, Malone R, Lange E, Huang 7T, Stafford D, Evans JP. Polymorphisms in the
VKORCT1 gene are strongly associated with warfarin dosage requirements in patients receiving anticoagulation. J Med
Genetics, 2006 Sep;43(9):740-4.

Li, X, Bradford B, Bunzendah! H, Thurman RG, Goyer $M, Makarov SS: CD14 mediates innate immune response to
anthropathogenic peptidoglycan-polysaccharide complex. Arthritis Research & Therapy; 2004 April:6(3):R273-81

Li X, Bradford BU, Wheeler MD, Stimpson SA, Piok HM, Brodie TA, Schwab JH, Thurman RG. Dietary glycine
prevents peptidoglycan polysaccharide-induced reactive artbritis in the rat: role for glycine-gated chloride channel.
Infection & Immunity, 2001 Sep: 69 (9):5883-91

AWARDS AND HONORS
NIH T32 training grant for Asthma and Allergic diseases, 2011-2012
Postdoctoral Fellowship awarded by Arthritis Foundation 2005-2008
A. Hughes Bryan Outstanding Doctoral Student Award, School of Public Health, UNC at Chapel Hill, 2003 ~ 2004
Travel Award by Arthritis Foundation, Arthritis Research Conference 2003
Scholarship awarded by Shanghai Second Medical University, 1996
“Excellent Graduate in Universities of Shanghai” honor awarded by Shanghai Higher Education Burean, 1995

REFERENCES
Available upon request



Tri-City Healthcare District Board of Directors
Tri-City Real Estate Holding and Management Company, LLC

Appointment and Ratification of New Managers

Background

Upon Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) Board of Director approval to form a limited liability
company to hold and manage real property, Tri-City Real Estate Holding and Management
Company LLC (the “Company” or LLC) was formed November 1, 2011. The LLC has two
“members” identified as: TCHD (99% interest) and Tri-City Hospital Foundation (1% interest).

The LLC Operating Agreement identified Larry Anderson, Casey Fatch and Alex Yu as the
initial “managers” of the LLC, with a vote of the majority of the managers required to take any
action. A majority of the members by affirmative vote or written consent may fill the vacancy of
any manager. In 2013, FOB recommended and the TCHD Board approved the appointment of
the Chief Financial Officer of TCHD (Steve Dietlin) to replace Alex Yu as manager of the LLC.
Two manger vacancies remain open, and it is recommended that the TCHD Board of Directors
appoint as new managers of the LLC: the Chief Executive Officer of TCHD (Tim Moran) to fill
the vacancy of Larry Anderson, and the Chief Operating Officer of TCHD (Kapua Conley) to fill
the vacancy of Casey Fatch. As a result, the following officers of TCHD will be managers of the

LLC: Chief Executive Officer (Tim Moran), Chief Operating Officer (Kapua Conley) and Chief
Financial Officer (Steve Dietlin).

Recommendation

It is recommended that TCHD appoint the Chief Executive Officer of TCHD (Tim Moran) to fill
the vacancy of Larry Anderson as manager of the LLC, and the Chief Operating Officer of
TCHD (Kapua Conley) to fill the vacancy of Casey Fatch as manager of the LLC. It is further
recommended that TCHD ratify the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer of TCHD (Steve
Dietlin) to replace Alex Yu as manager of the LLC.

Motion

[ move that the TCHD Board of Directors: (1) appoint the Chief Executive Officer of TCHD
(Tim Moran) and the Chief Operating Officer of TCHD (Kapua Conley) to serve as managers of

the Company, and (2) ratify the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer of TCHD (Steve
Dietlin) to serve as manager of the Company.

DOCS 116569-000022:2372785.2



WRITTEN CONSENT OF MEMBER
OF
TRI-CITY REAL ESTATE HOLDING AND MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
A California Limited Liability Company

The undersigned, being a member of Tri-City Real Estate Holding and Management
Company LLC, a California limited lability company (the “Company”), acting pursuant to the
California Limited Liability Company Act and the Operating Agreement of the Company,
hereby adopt the following resolutions and consent to the actions authorized thereby:

Appointment of Managers

WHEREAS, the following individuals were designated as the initial Managers of
the Company, and the following individuals have vacated their positions as
Managers of the Company: Larry Anderson, Casey Fatch and Alex Yu.

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Company to appoint the following
officers of the undersigned as new Managers of the Company: the Chief
Executive Officer of Tri-City Healthcare District (Tim Moran), the Chief
Operating Officer of Tri-City Healthcare District (Kapua Conley) and the Chief
Financial Officer of Tri-City Healthcare District (Steve Dietlin).

WHEREAS, the undersigned, in March 2013, appointed the following officer of

the undersigned as a new Manager of the Company: the Chief Financial Officer of
Tri-City Healthcare District (Steve Dietlin).

RESOLVED, that undersigned appoint the following officer of the undersigned as
new Managers of the Company, until their successors are appointed: the Chief
Executive Officer of Tri-City Healthcare District (Tim Moran), and the Chief
Operating Officer of Tri-City Healthcare District (Kapua Conley).

RESOLVED, that undersigned ratify the appointment of the following officer of
the undersigned as a new Manager of the Company, until his successor is duly

appointed: the Chief Financial Officer of Tri-City Healthcare District (Steve
Dietlin).

RESOLVED, that the new Managers have the authority to bind the Company as
set forth in the Operating Agreement of the Company.

Therefore, pursuant to the resolutions adopted hereby, the new Managers of the
Company shall be as follows:

Manager Chief Executive Officer (Tim Moran)
Manager Chief Operating Officer (Kapua Conley)
Manager Chief Financial Officer (Steve Dietlin)

DOCS 2375673 1



This Written Consent of Member may be executed in any number of facsimile, electronic
or original counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which, taken
together, shall constitute one and the same instrument

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Written Consent of
Member effective as of the date set forth below.

MEMBER:

Dated , 2015

Tri-City Healthcare District,
a California healthcare district

By:
Name: Tim Moran
Title: Chief Executive Officer

DOCS 2375673.1



e

I
i
=

‘fe)Tri-Ci.ty
Medical Center
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF INITIAL CREDENTIALS REPORT

e

- Octo_t:er 13, 20l5

—_
—— = =

INITIAL APPOINTMENTS (Effective Dates: 10/30,/2015- 09/30/2017)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. Verification of licensure, specific training, patient
care experience, interpersonal and communication skills, professionalism, current competence relating to
medical knowledge, has been verified and evaluated on all applicants recommended for initial appointment to
the medical staff. Based upon this information, the following physicians have met the basic requirements of
staff and are therefore recommended for appointment effective 10-30-15 through 09-30-2017:

¢ HENNINGER, Christopher S., DMD /Dentistry

° ni 1

Attachment A

INITIAL APPLICATION WITHDRAWAL: (Voluntary unless otherwise specified)
Medical Staff:

* MOASIS, Ghassan A., MD - Cardiothoracic Surgery
TEMPORARY PRIVILEGES: Medical Staff/Allied Health Professionals:

None

TEMPORARY MEDICAL STAFF MEMBERSHIP: Medical Staff:

None




== =

H |

—

(’g)) Tri-City
Medical Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 3

October 14, 2015

Attachment B

BIENNIAL REAPPOINTMENTS: (Effective Dates 11/01,/2015 - 10/31/2017)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. The following application was recommended for
reappointment to the medical staff office effective 11/1/2015 through 10/31/17, based upon practitioner
specific and comparative data profiles and reports demonstrating ongoing monitoring and evaluation,
activities reflecting level of professionalism, delivery of compassionate patient care, medical knowledge
based upon outcomes, interpersonal and communications skills, use of system resources, participation in
activities to improve care, blood utilization, medical records review, department specific monitoring
activities, health status and relevant results of clinical performance:

ADAMCZAK, Joanna E.. M.D./Maternal & Fetal Medicine/Provisional
AGUILAR TABO Lesly G., M.D./Neurol Provisional
NI, Ramin M.D./Pediatrics/Activ

BHASKER, Kala R., M.D./Family Medicine/Provisional
CASELE, Holly L., M.D./Maternal & Fetal Medicine/Provisional

ATANZARITE, Valerian A., M.D./Maternal & Fetal Medici Provisional
FAN nW., M.D./Teleradiology/Provisional

HALL, Andrew, M.D/Medicine/Affiliate
HALIM, Neil L., M.D./Family Medicine/Courtesy

ARDY, Tyrone M.D. rosur Activ
MANNIS, Steven H., M.D./Clinical Research Physician/Consultin
MELLGREN, Sally G., M.D./Ophtha 1 Cou

MITRUKA, Surindra N., M.D./Cardiothoracic Surgery/Provisignal
NURSE, Lesley A., M.D./Obstetrics & Gynecology /Active

ARK Id E., M.D./Pediatrics/Court

PASHMF H ad, M.D., PHD /Cardio Provisional
H - -A i iv
VARGAS, Michael J., M.D./Cardiologv/Activ

RESIGNATIONS: (Effective date 10/31/2015 unless otherwise noted)
Voluntary:

Mazur, Paul, MD Cardiothoracic Surgical
Mirpourian, Nabat, NP Cardiology
Mortin, Meli NP N l
Ostrov. A MFT P i
rikh. P P. MD
mfirescu-Alexander, MD Pulm

Page1of1

10



I
|

) Tri-Cit
‘ ) Medlc):';nl Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - Part 2 of 3
October 14 2015 "

— | |
—— _-_ ==

Attachment B

NON-REAPPOINTMENT RELATED STATUS MODIFICATIONS (Effective

Date: 10/30/2015, unless specified otherwise)

PRIVILEGE RELATED CHANGES

° isman, Bruce M.D./Otola 1

STAFF STATUS CHANGES
e Leach, Jeffrey 0. M.D./Internal Medicine/Affiliate

"



!I
L

Trl-Clt

Q

Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - Part 3 of 3

October 14, 2015

g -~
= — = —

r— e
o

PROCTORING RE

Bielawski, Anthony M.D.

Choi, James M.D.
Krueth, Stacy M.D.
Lau, Kenneth M.D.

McGraw, Charles M.D.

Waclawski, Richard M.D.

MENDATIONS (Effec ive 10

Emergency Medicine
Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology
Radiology

Anesthesiology

=

2015, unless othe

Attachment C

ecifie

]

12



I
W

(53, Tri-City
Medical Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE INITIAL CREDENTIALS REPORT

OctobeL 14, %015.,

s e ity ——
=

Attachment A

INITIAL APPOINTMENT TO THE ALLIED HEALTH PROFESSIONAL STAFF

The following practitioner has applied for Allied Health Professional status. Following review of the
practitioner’s files and all required documentation, the committee voted to recommend appointment to the
Allied Health Professional Staff with practice prerogatives as delineated on the privilege card with proctoring
for all privileges:

e SCHROLL, Kristy M., PA-C

INITIAL APPLICATION WITHDRAWAL: (Voluntary unless otherwise specified)
Allied Health Professionals:

e MCCRAY, Dana T., AuD
TEMPORARY PRIVILEGES: Allied Health Professionals:

13



‘@Tri-(:i.ty" S
Medical Center
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE REAPPOINTMENT CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 3
October 14, 2015

|

Attachment B
BIENNIAL REAPPRAISALS: (Effective Dates 11/01/2015 - 10/31/2017)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. The following application was recommended for
reappointment to the medical staff office effective 11/1/2015 through 10/31/17, based upon practitioner
specific and comparative data profiles and reports demonstrating ongoing monitoring and evaluation,
activities reflecting level of professionalism, delivery of compassionate patient care, medical knowledge
based upon outcomes, interpersonal and communications skills, use of system resources, participation in
activities to improve care, blood utilization, medical records review, department specific monitoring
activities, health status and relevant results of clinical performance:

* DEATRICK, Veronica N.P./Allied Health Professional Supervising Physician Manish Sheah, MD
e HICKS, Gayle E., PHD/Allied Health Professional Supervising hysician Kenneth Ott, MD

HD /Allie rvising Physi Ken
e WALLA Stephanie, PAC/Allied Health Professional Supervising i

]

RESIGNATIONS: (Effective date 10/31/2015 unless otherwise noted)

° Mirpourian, Nabat, NP/Allied Health Professional
®

Ostrov: Anna MFT/Allied Health Professional

Page1of1

14



e

| -

Tri-City

2
( Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE COMMITTEE - Part 3 of 3

October 14, 2015 B

g ——

s —

— e— —_— =
R — = —_ === —

P

OCTORING REC

Allen, Matthew PA-C
Chase, Nicole PA-C
Hermann, Linda PA-C
McQueen, Paula CNM
Rice, William PA-C

ENDATIONS (Effective 10/30/2015, unless otherwi

Allied Health Professional
Allied Health Professional
Allied Health Professional
Allied Health Professional
Allied Health Professional

Attachment C

ecifie

15



5102 ‘,€} 4890100

93JJILLLIOY) SBOIN0SY UBLUN|

“Ajsnowiueun palled Sem UojJoW ay| “uofow
8y} papuooss uosien Auuis) pue psaow ousy
Jojoauiqg ‘Bunesw L0z ‘L1 IsnbBny ay) jo ssynuiw

SeJNUIN Jo uonesyey

naj19y Jieyd ay) snoidde 0} uoijow e 10} pajjed }aj|ey Jieyd
-ojqnd 8y} JO s1aquisw WoJj sjuswWWod ayqnd
najiey ey Buipiebai ydeibeied ay) peal §aj9y J1eyd 8y} JO Siaquwisw Wolj SjUswwWoD ‘g
‘Ajsnowjueun pauIed Sem uoljow ay| "uopow
8y} papuU0Ias SISpuUBS UBMS) pPUB PSAOW |IBYONN
Joyoaliq -Bunsesw g0z ‘el 1890300 Jo epusbe
nojdy dieyn ay)} anoidde 0} uoljow e 10} pajied }Ba||ay Jreyd epuabe ay} jo |ercuddy 'z
‘wd
Raley Jieyd Ge:Z| e Japlo o) buasw sy} paj|ed yajiey Jieyd |plooLed ‘i
a|qisuodsay dn-mojjo4 uolssnosiq oido}
(s)uosiad uoloy
aouinp aof ;Juasqy Ssioquispyy
Jajqy uuind ‘jeleqsen saouel4 :;Juasaid sPYI0
009 ‘Meys-pieusag sjlisy)d
“yH Jo dA ‘Adenag Jayis3 ‘(IND ‘ZINyos uoleys ‘009D ‘Asjuo) endey {039 ‘uelop Wi Judsald siaquiapy Bunop-uopn

SISpUBS USMS) ‘Jejid JOPBAJeS ‘Uosie) eluibliy ‘UasiSIN Ul "1qQ ‘UBIPSYBAO pileH iq
‘BN 8US9) "1 ‘|IBYOHIN BINET 10J08IIQ ‘OUSY SLBWSS0Y Jojoalig ‘Najiey [WAD Jiey)

:Juasald siaquialy Bunop

14vdd

S10Z ‘€) 1990300
SUO0LO3AIA 40 QYvOo4g 3FHL 4O
FLLINNOD S30UNOSTH NVINNH

AILNIO TVIOIGIN ALID-IEL

16



G102 ‘,€1 489010

28))IWIWOY) S82JN0SaY UewnH

-abpaid e ubis

pue spiepuels SSIOONS SAND-1IL 0} Jwwod-a)

0) payse aJam saakojdws uoissSas Yoes Jo pus sy}
W sjusied 1oy buiy) Wybu ay) Buiop pue ‘(spenbie
suoyd ‘spenbie Jojeas)a ‘suoissaidw )siy)

92IAJ8S JaWOo)sNd Jo souepodwi ay) ‘1 3V ‘Buipunol
Anoy ‘spieogaiym jusijed ‘SdHVYOH U0 pasnoo}
yoiym suoissas Buiuiel) SqHvOH/eousuadxg

Jusiied 8y} U0 93)}IWIWIOD 8y} pajaliq os|e Jay)s3

‘ye)s ayj 0) s)nsai Aaains ay) Jno-jjol 0} Buiurel
pue s]00} AIESS828U 3y} YlIIM siapes| papirold

pue sjnsal Asaing diysisuped ashojdwg Asues
$Sald 8y} Uo pasnooj | uadal jsow ay| ‘bujuiel)
juswdojena diysiapea] ay} pajussalid Jay)s3

Ajanag Jayisg soido) uoneonp3 g Buiuies) meiney p
SIEIEINe)
Ju8)sisuod Aejs Ing Jeak ay) Jnoybnoly) sienjon|)
pue S)Jewyousq [eUOljEU UIYlM @ MO] ||eJBAO Ble
sajel Janouwin) gHOL lIeJ8A0 B uojun yoes Aq sejel
Jaaouln) [enuue pue junoopesy Aspen) ‘souew
Aiionag Jouisg Auapenb ay) psjussaud Joyoalig HH ‘19|qy uuInd SOLIBI HH MaINeY D
‘a)els
8y} Ul ainsuadl| Joj sinoy palinbal ay) Jo aouejeq
8y} Jo} spasu uoisiAIadns S19)I0M |BID0S PasuUa||
Z1INYOS UoJBYS 8y} Uo 93)ilwod sy} pajoug IND ‘ZYNYss uoleys Jepe uoisinadng °q
"passSNosIp '@ PoMBIAS] 819M Sa)el Uoljoe)SiieS aoualadxgy
najey Jieyd aakojdw3 -1e|id aousuadx] sopjoyaxels ayl Japjoyayels -pleoquseq q'0'g B
ssauisng MoN ‘9
SUON
ssauisng plI0 'S
a|qisuc ~ 3y dn-mojjo4
(sluo._ 4 uonoy uolss:._siqg oido)

17



§10Z ‘,EL 4890100

93))ILIWOY) S3DIN0S3Y UBWINH

najey Jieyn ‘w-d pg:g e bupgesw sy} paulnolpe najiey Jeyd Juswuinolpy "0l
nayey Jieyd G102 ‘01 JaqWIBAON Bunesw jxau Jo 8leq ‘6
nejiey J1eyd SUON SUOIBOIUNWWOY) SBIWIWOD '8
najey Jieyd ‘PoMmaInS) Sem cm_a Mlom ay uejd YoM '/
‘Bueaw Jxau 8y} 10} PaSIASJ Ajenuspyuod
pue pajqe} 8q pjnoys Adljod ay) paplosp sem J| GS-0198 Aol1od
pae|qe) | ebeiqian pasinal pasodold sy} passnosip 98)IWLIOD :
sem GG-0198 Adllod 8Ul 'GGH-0198 Adlj0d Pamainal 89RILIWOD 8Y L
‘A|Snowiueun paLLED SBM UOJJOW 8y| "uolow ay)
SUOIUN 8Y) Y)IM SIBJu0d | PBPUOISS 0USY J0J081IQ PUB PaAOW [[BYDHA 10303110
9 sjeaW YH Joye ‘lencidde 1o} s10}0811q JO pieogd 8y} 0} SUOISIASY
|eaoudde oy si010011Q yum £€4-0198 Adljod puss 0} UOHOW e 1o} p3|[ed weibold yo-swi pled
O pieog 0} Juas na||ey Jieyn -suoisinal pasodoid ay) o} paaibe £e-0198 Ad110d
aq 0] ££1-0198 Aollod pue ££-01 98 Aoljod pamainsl saiwwo) 8y |
‘Buneaw }xau 8y} Joj pasiAsl
pue pajqe} ag pjnoys Aoijod ay) paploap sem }| Aydosojiyd aoueseaddy pue ssaiq
pa|qe} ‘abeiqian pasinal pasodoud ay) passnosip 8a)IWWod Sl-0198 Adljod
sem GLi-0198 Adljod 9yl ‘Gly-0198 Adllod pamainal sapiwwo) ay L
‘Ajsnowiueun pauled Sem uoljow ay| °uolow ay}
SUOIUN BU) UM SISJUOD papuooas [|ayd)Ipy 1010811 pue paAow uosied Auuio
9 Sj190W NH Joye ‘leaocidde 1o} s10)03.1Qq JO pieog 8y} 0} SUOISIASI
{eaoidde 1oy si010811Q UM 80-0198 Adllod puaS 0} UOIOW E oj Paj[ED SSaUIpIB| PUE SIOUISqQY
10 pIeOg 0} JUSS no|I9y Jieyn ‘suoisinal pasodoud ay) o) paaibe 8070198 Aon0d
Aueneg sows3 |  oq 0} 80v-0498 Adllod Pue 801-0198 Aollod pamainel senuwiod eyl uopoy/uoissnosia Aoliod
"sanss| aaAojdwa 1o/g saoueaalb
ypum dn Buimoljoj pue Buljeap Joj ssaoso.d Juaino
8y} passNoOSIp 99)IWWO0 8y "SS82014 juswieal]
lieq aakojdwa pajussaidal-uou pue sasueaslb
Aldonag 1ay)s3 NIFS B YN uo snjejs Juaung paulejdxs Jayis3 ejeq ¥1-y43 /a0uenslo sy ‘o
a|qisuc-’ "3y dn-mojjo4
(s)juo._ 4 uonoy uolss. _siQg oido)

18



Employee Fiduciary Subcommittee
(No meeting held in
October, 2015)

19



so1nuiwy Futiaaw

ST0Z '8 4990120

99111 WWO) JJUELL||Y DIBDYIJLAHY AlIUPRWWOD) -IVHDI
aded|1

"SUOIPAII0D ou yIim panoidde Ajsnowueun
pue uosea|o 1619 Aq papuodas sem uonow 3y ‘sajnuiw bupssw S3LNNIW
ST0Z ‘0T Jequaldss ay) anoidde o3 pasuoow ousobeq wir 10309117 40 NOLLVOI4ILVY
SLNIWIDNNONNY
"3pew dJaMm SjusWwWod Jignd oN ¥ SINIJWWOD
1iand

‘panoidde
Ajshowiueun pue s)00.g |0le) Aq papuodas sem uoijow ay] ‘epusbe VAN3OV ONILIIW
G102 ‘8 1290100 3y} anoidde o) pauoiow ounsobeq wir 410308417 40 TVAOUddV
"99RIWWOD DVHD 343 03 ‘edjuloddy jeioAely peqgspie) YITWANW
‘Asuoy Ano ‘Jaquisw JYHD ISoMaU Y] pawodjam pieebAN ain( Jieyd M3IN INO0DT1IM

‘pdeebAN alnc
dieyd DYHD pue Jopauig Aq wdgg:zT Je Japlo 0} pajjed sem bunssw Y3QUO0 0L TIVO

9911w Sdueljy aJedyyesH AJlunwiwo) STOZ ‘8 42900 3yl

J19ISNOdSIA
(S)NOSu3d dN MOT104 NOLLDV NOISSNOSIA J1dOo1
‘opnues opueusd

‘zado Aaipny ‘uosiopuy uAjliel ‘UOS[BN Moer ‘apugoin eulD ‘ApSay uoq ‘Yoequazueyds Jaig ‘zaiad eleqleg :IN3SaV SyIgWaINn
Jojeulploo) JYHD ‘edies els) 110jeulpioo) JVHD ‘|lBMOQDN uesng :IN3S3Ud SHIHILO

00D ‘Meys-pieulag sjAeyd ‘00D ‘Asjuo) endey| ‘0WD B dA IS ‘Nauuag pineq

oAoliy esewoly ‘uewjsysy Alewssoy ‘Is)LIS4 Bwoy ‘AQnUH esoy el ap NojuUB ‘YD noT Alejy

‘uoo) sb.ep ‘ewsspa epur ‘Asuoy Ang ‘uoses)s) 1619 ‘pageH jAuieq ‘elalssy j01e) ‘s}ooug |oJe) ‘eznos JoOPIA "id
‘ounsobeq ssuwler Joadiq ‘pleebAN sinC uossadiiey) JYHD/101841Q Hoojeyds Aule ueuuiey) s10393.1q Jo pleog

| wooy Alquiassy §LOZ ‘8 1940120

S3LNNIN ONIL33N

(DVHD) 29n1wwo) aduelj|y aiesyjjesH Aunwiwo)

JouySIQ aJedyyjeaH Ano-iL

‘SUIGWIW ONLLOA-NON

:LN3STUd SUIIWIN

20



"anunuod suejd juswdojaaspal sndwe)

"Juswpedsp NDIN 3w
ul syuswisaosdwil splemo) ob fjim pasiel spund “1aqWISAON JoJ
19s S| ‘ejeb Jasieipuny uoepunod sJWJL ‘ezuesads3 sp sjieg

*seale mau ay) Joj pasodoud

S JeYM 23S UBD SIoUOP 0S U0os pa3a|dwiod aq pjnoys swood
dn ypouw jeyy Bunou ‘suoneacual AisalRQ pue Joge pue MDIN

"24n3n} ay3 ul Bupey aq |IIm AJUnWILIoD |edipaw

a3 sabusjjeyd Jo sadA} a3 Jo sAipadsiad onsiess e yIm
Aunwiwod ayy papiaold Juans ay) 1eyl pajou endey “senssi
Y1|esH |esoineyag pue siawoog-Aqeq buibe uo pasndoy bunsaw
3yl ",6¢ Joquisdas uo ppy uoissnasiq [Bued $,003INAS

‘lendsoy a3 pue wijeH pue JabebjeH 'siq usamiaq uoneIoge|jod

poob e sem afoid sy 334 pue oeqpasy poob Alaa
panisal sey ay jey) pajou endey ‘uoueyong slfjIM ‘soAeid 1IN
Jauioy BuLIN}esy [RIDISWIWOD UOISIAS|S) paseajas Ajuddal S,JIWDL

:Buimojjoy ay3 Buipnppul ‘sndoy Jo seale JuB.LIND SJ3JUd) |edIPBlN A1)
-11] Buipsebal dnoib ayy pajepdn Asjuc) endey 18010 suonessdQ JoIyd

T

9iepdn 00D

I19ISNOdSIY
(s)NOSHad

dN MOT104 NOLL)V

NOISSNOSIA

J1dOL

I wooy A|quiassy G10Z ‘g 1990300
S3ALNNIN ONILLI3IN

(2VH)) @anwwos asuel|y aiesyjjesH Ajlunwwon

Jousiq a1eayyeay ANO-L

21



*UOISSILILWIOY)
JUI0C 3Y3 JO |eALLIe uoos pajedipiue ayj Jo) buliedaid si HWDL

.>MEwUC3 uonisuen 0T1-ajdl

‘uoseas Ny buiwosdn ay) Jo uonedpiue

Ul MO|} 3Sea1oul 03 uoije)s apis-y ay3 Jo uoneisdo Jo sinoy
Buipuaixa pue ‘spaq ¥3 papssu dn 9314 03 Yjuow Y3 JO pud
3L 3e Y3 ay3 ul bum nHg Y3 Buusdo aq M DWDL 38yl pajou
endey ‘moyjj Juanjed pue spoyiaw buipeoj-Jo ‘uoneloqe]od
anoidwi 03 ‘peqsiie) pue apisuead) ‘eIsIA Ul [puuosiad Siy3
[e20] ypm Bunssw dn mojjo) puodss Jisy) pey Apusdal AD-uL

‘elUlOljED UISYINOS 0} pajedojal o) bupjoo| S| oym
‘ya|esy s,uswopn uo sndoj Buoais e yum ‘uenisAyd A6ojooup
jenusjod e Yyym MIIAISIUI [NJSSSI0NS Jalies ue pajou endey

‘SjuSLWIARY

pajpung pue ainpnJjselyur 11 ‘uonesbajug jediul) uo siseydwa
[eads Yum “quswiuoliAue ssedyjjesy Buibueyo-ans ayy

ul ss920NSs aJmny Joj DWDL Buluonisod Buipsebas uoissnosip ayy
pajejijioey dnouH uspwie) sy WOy JUBYNSUC) ¥ “Jaquisidss
ul aoejd %00] 122419y d1633e.]S S, uoneSIUIWPY pue pieod 3yl

o1

(3,uo))
3lvddn 00D

I19ISNOdSTY
(s)NOSuad

dN MOT104 NOLLDV

JIdOoL

| wooy Ajquiessy GL0Z ‘g 19403100
S3ALNNIN SNILI3IN

(OVHD) 99n1wwo) asuej||y alesyjesH AJunwiwo?)

Jo13sIq sesyyjeaH Ayo-uy

22



sor1nuiw FuileoIn STOC 8§ 19903120
2911IWWOD AU [{Y AIJEDYLJPAaH Ariunwword DV HD

28ed|v

‘sejiupug pue
%00.qjje4 212 MOU seale 9SO ay) Jey) buijou ‘eale Auno) YUON Y3l
Joj aledAe(] JInpy ue ojul bupjoo| paysebbns AqnuH esoy ef ap nojuep

“eq juswdinba 4yN JouLo)
a3 pajeuop pue spuny juelb papiroid osje sey JWIL "UOoIed0|
BISIA pue apisuead( mMau e puly Ajinyssadons dnoub sy padjpy
sey Wil ‘EjSIA pue apisuead) Ul sassauisng 4yN 9y3 JO ansop
3U3 JSA0 SuIBdUO0D Jaquisw Ayl JoYY AYIN Joulio) ssalppe

0} Apuabi|ip paxJom sey ueioly Wil OID Jey3 pajou pineq €

“IWDL 483U M 87 1B PIj[RlISuUl AQUDIDL SeM UORRWLIOUI
JusWjoIUB YIm pieoq)liq 3iqisia AlyblY v,/ Jequidsg
ybnoayy ST 4940100 Woy sunJ juswijoiul uadQ aledipaly T

"sjuapISa. PLISIP 0) Uoday [enuuy DWIL §TOZ 3y Jo Buljiew
pue uoneald ayj Joj Aemispun ApuaLnd ale suonjeledald T

:6uImoyjo) a3 Bunou
dnoub ayy pajepdn ‘fauuag pireq ‘1aoui0 Bunadlely JeIyD pue da ‘IS

31vadn OWO

I19ISNOdSIY
(s)NoOSu3ad

dN MOT104 NOLL)V

J1dOol

I wooy A|lquiassy 5102 ‘g 4840320
S3LNNIN ONILIIN
(DVH)) 29n1wwos) adueljy aiedyjjeaH Ajlunuiuo?)
JoLsIq ateoyyjeay A)D-1uL

23



ls
uonezijejidsoH aie) andy 4
yjealg JO SSauoYs ‘9
AuAoyY yim buliapisjur uled  °p
buiyieg o
punisssuel] pag 'q
uopejNquy ‘e
:ul syuswisaoldwi Buipnppu; ‘sainseaw awodN0 6
‘saje. uojssjwpe
-aJ [eydsoy aonpas Apeasb ued Jisia jeydsoy e buimo|oy aied
Y3|esH swoH Ajenb jeyj pajou sem | — sajed uoissipe-sy '8
2JeD) [euonisuel] YjesH swoH “/
Sa0IAIRS Wwiopad 03 YjiesH swoH AjD-1] Jo suoneoyiend -9
palILia0 aJedipaly 3q isnw Adusbe yjjesH swoH ayl
ai ue Aq uoneoyisd punogawoH 'q
aJed Buisinu payps JusSPIWLIBIU] ‘e
:uoneoyiienb jo syjuswaiinbay ‘g
Soply Uj|es SWOH payis) 4
SSDIAISS |eldoS |eoIpSiy - @
Adesay] uonednanp ‘p
Adesayy yoaads -2
Adeiay] jedisAyd °q
buisinN e
:Buipnjoul ‘paIsAod sIDIAIBS PIYINIS f
g Yed pue y yed — abesoncd aledipaly '€
uepisAyd J1vY3 AQ YjjesH swWoH 03 paulafal aie syusiied Moy 2
IWIL 03 diysuone|as s) pue MSIAIBAO Y3|esH SWoH T
‘papnpul
soido] “|eydsoy pue juaijed a3 03 anjeA s)i pue YljesH SWoH jnoge
dnoub ayj passaippe ‘yjjesH awoH AyD-141 Jo J0paulq ‘neapnll eouol | NOLLV.INISIUd
S NOas | 9n moTI04 NOLLOV J1dolL

| wooy Ajquiassy §L0g ‘g 48403120
S3LNNIN ONI1I3IN
(OVH)) 29n1WwwWos) asuel||y aiedyjjesH AjJlunwwod)
JoLs1Q a1eoyyjeay ANO-1i]

24




"nST 42qoP0 uo Aleiqy) |00YdS SIPPIW ASjleA 1e pey 2q 03
we.bo.id Juawydiug YInoA SYj uo uoneuwliojul papiacid ewsapa epur]

*13q0300 4O Yjuow 3ayy buunp weuboid ,3paid Inogqy
yeuws 399, s,061e4 Jjo\ INoge uonewojul papiaoid oAolly elewolx

@G C 4240120 U0 YleMm / uny s Buiwoadn ayj pue juswjjosul uado
1o} Buiedaud si sad1A1aS Y3jesH AJUNo) YHON eyl pajels Jajiila4 ewoy

‘PIsIq [ooydSs payiun peqsie)
ayj Joj suoqqu pad ,seol0y) AujjesH axel sjuspnis, ay buipuny 1oy
juswipedaq Bupsylely ay3 pue 11Buuag piAeq paxyuey) osje Alewssoy

*suolssas buiwoddn Jo sawiy pue

sajep Bunou JaAy e papinoid Alewssoy “papirold Apuauind swelbosd
Bnup pue joyodje ‘UYjjeay |ejusw uo Jndul pue 3oeqpasy o) SUOISSSS
uado jo sauas e bupnNpuod s| SHH 12yl palou uewjsydsy Alewssoy

SNOILLVOINNWKWOD
J3LLINWOD

*SU0IPa[qo ou YIM uoses|n)

1619 AQ papu02as sem Udiym ‘|emausl ay) Jos pauoijow ounsobeq
Wi "SsJeaA oM] JSYJoue Joj WLIS) S,BUIA RINET J2qUIBW Maual

0} uonow e pa3sanbal pieebAN aynr uosiadiiey) *STOT 40 Isnbny

U] paJdidxa sapIWwWoD DYHD aY3 40§ aw 0IAISS S,3UIA BIneT Jaquiajy

AJNYOVA
J3LLINWOD DVHO

-Ansnpul ay3 ul Juawansiyoe jeuondaoxe ue — Ajjeuoneu 9%/6 Jo bunel
uonoejsijes e paAaiyoe Yj|esH swoH AyD-11 1eyl pajou Asjuo) ende)

(,uo))
NOLLVIN3S3ud

I19ISNOdSIY
(s)NOS¥ad

dN MOT104 NOLL)V

J1dOL

| wooy Alquassy §1L0Z ‘8 1940190
S3ALNNIN ONIL3IN

(DVHI) 98)1wwon asueljly aJesyjjesH Alunwwo?)

1oU3sIg aJesyyjea AND-ul

25



| £
‘wdes: T Je paulnofpe sem bupssw ayl |  LNIWNANOCAY

WL 38 papiaoid aied jealb ay) pawuieal Ajiwey siy pue sy pue
panoidwi sousuadxe Jisy) 183ua) |eDIpSW AD-1iL e Jusied e swedaq

Jagqwisw Ajwey siy asuo jeyy bupou ‘seyupug sdduos yim pey Apusoal (a,uo0))

Ajiwey siy asuasuadxa |euossad e Aejaa 0] Juswow e 300} HageH |Alleq | SNOLLYDINNWKWOD
FALLINWOD

"JouUIsIQ B3 0) suoiNGUIUd SIy oy uapusiuliadng
1PUISI [0042S PaUIUN BISIA 3Y3 AQ ‘STOZ ‘8 420100 Jo Buluaas ayy
paJjouoy 34 [|Im Ophues opueud4 Jaquiaw jey) pajou elaulsH jole)

T nosisa. | 4n MOTI04 NOLLDV 51doL

Il wooy Ajquiassy §10¢ ‘g 1990300
S3LNNIN ONILI3IN
(DVH9) 9an1wwos) asuel||y aiesayjjeay Ajlunwwod
Jousiq aleayyjesy A)o-u L

26



aq ‘G10zZ ‘Gl 1aquiaydag jo sanuiw
oY) Jey} ‘papuodas ||y J0323lig
‘paeeBAN 10)0311q AQ paArow sem )|

NOILON
paijel alom sanulpy

G10Z ‘Gl Joquis)desg
JO sa)NuUIW JO uoneouney

-o1|gnd 8y} JO s1aquusl WOody
sjuswiwod Buiptebal ydeibeled
ay} peas oupsobeq 10308l

“Wwia)l 8y} JO UOIJeIapISUOD

S,99)}ILILLIOD 910)9q
olignd ay) 0} }said)ul JO
way Aue uo 2yqnd ay} Jo
slaquiaw AQ sjUBSWWO)

ounsobeq Joyalg

"G10Z ‘02 1990320 jo epuabe

ay) ydeaoe o3 panoidde A|showiueun
SEM }I pue ‘papuodas Ja)djuabul]
N ‘NBolI9M 1032311 Ag paAow sem )|
NOLLOW

epuaby jo jeacuddy -z

‘wd Lg:ZL Je JapJo 0} bunssw
ay) paj|eo ounsobe( 1030041

19pI0 0} D )

sSuoIsSnjauo)
/suolepuawWWoIdYy
uopay

suonepuUdAWWOIY

a|qisuodsay
SuUoISNjouU0Y) ‘suoissnasia

(s)uosiad

oidoj

suea)j
wi] ‘uojbuLleH 9AS)S ‘Zopusyy US|y ‘MeyS pleusag ajfuay) ‘euoso) jueld "ig ‘opJejuo) snosey ig

(oidoooug) ‘100y Apor ‘1oAswung suer ‘puoweiq
Aepy ‘owney Awaiap ‘seary Aey ‘BuoH uo] ‘znyoss uoleys ‘uosdwoy| ussjjo) ‘Pauuag piaeq ‘8400 wo |

SO2IMBS [BOIPOI ‘dA IS ‘WiBIUY sukep ‘00D ‘Asjuo) endey ‘04D ‘UIeIg aAS)S ‘0FO ‘UBJON Wil

‘J9)jojuabul] sauAepp
‘IzznoJey\ ole) ‘1ausosy uyor "Iq ‘pieebAN ainr Joaaig ‘NajIey HAD Joyaaq ‘ounysobeq sawer 1030811Q

Juasqy siaquiajy
juasaid siaylo
;Juasald

sloquajy Bunop-uoN

juasald SIaquiajy

6102 ‘02 1990300
sajnuIpy 99iwwo) Buluueld pue suonesadQ ‘asoueuly

193ua) [eslpaly A)1D-HL

27



G1L0Z ‘02 4890100

sbunesyy aspiwwo) Bujuueld pue suoneradQ ‘eoueuly

Asjuo) ende)y

suonesadQ ‘eoueuly ayj jeyy pasoidde
Ajsnowiueun sem }i pue ‘papuoodas

19||9y 1030341 ‘paAow paeeBAN 10323.1Q

NOILON

yuaned J/yzZ apinoid pjnom

sIy) paziseydwa aH -abesonod
AneiyoafAsd j1en-uQ juswpedaq
Aousbiaw3 10y [esodoud

ay) pajussald Asjuo) ende)y

‘an
‘Hesua eliyony e
abeltano) |1eD-u0 a3
10} Juswaalby ueldisAyd o

"020°LES Jo L)

8y} 10} 309 |ejo} B pue ‘0Z0‘LES
JO }S09 |enuue ue 1o} ‘9102

‘L€ 1990300 Butpus pue ‘GLOZ ‘L
Jaquiaaop Bujuuibaq ‘syjuow-gi
JO wia) e Joj Bunsay Ajunjewsald
jo Ayjedounay 10} obaig uesg

jo sysijerdadg s,ualpjiyd Apey
yIm Jusawaaibe ay) azuoyne
S10303l1q jo pieog QHOL

9y} Jey) pusawitiogal adIwuwo)
Buluuejd pue suoneiadQ ‘aoueulq
a3 Jey) panoudde Ajsnowiueun
SEM }I pue ‘papuodas 1ajdjusabul]
"N ‘poAOW 138}19Y 1032341q

‘pansua uoISsSNosi(] “eluloye)d

JO 8)e)s ay} Ag psjepuew si Bunss)
dOY jey) paulejdxs Jayunj ays
‘Bunsa) Ajunjewaud jo Ayredounsi
pue ‘NoOIN 8y} 10} S82IAIBS
uoneynsuod diwjeyydo spinoid

0} s)sifetoads s,uaip|iyo Apey yum
juswoaaibe [emaual e s| jesodoud

Bunsal 4Oy NOIN
10} Juswaalby s)sijenads

puoweig Alepy NOILOW sly} paulejdxa puoweiq Atepy s,uaipliyD Apey ‘q
‘paj|@oued
aq pjnom HBundsw Jaquiadag ay)
1By} pauILLIS)ap SeM ) ‘UoISSnosIp
awos JaYy ‘J1aqwadaq u) Bupesw
Buiuueld ® suonesadQ ‘aoueulq e S10¢
Buipjoy asnbai pjnom jey} Buipuad | ‘Gl Jequeds@ 104 e
soAljeniul pajedionue Aue ale a1ay) uoIssnosi(]
jooy Apor | Jayiaym ‘edouepuajje Ul 9SOy} WOl Bunasp Buiuue|d

ounsobe( 40108110

Josiape |ebaj Jad ‘pasinbais uoijow oN

wndui payoljos ounsobeq Jojoalqg

% suonjesadQ ‘eoueulq ‘e

ssauisng MaN ‘9

ssauisng pIO 'S

‘paysanba.
suolesyipow Aue Jnoyjim pasosdde

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suoisn|auo)
/suonepuUaWWOaY
uonay

SUOIJEPUAWIIOIY
suoisnjouo) ‘suoissnasiq

aido|

28



G102 ‘02 42qo100

sBunssyy saniwwo) Buiuueld pue suoneledQ ‘aoueul

asuadx3 buneisadp
anuaAay buneladp
ajeq 0O} Jea, |easiy
(spuesnouy ui siejjop) GL0Z
‘og Jaqusydag Buipus sjeloueuly
3y} pajuasald uipalg aA8lg

L1zr'e8 $
806'c8 $

uipaIg aAsls S|eldueuiq s
‘lenosdde aandwinsald “sA
“isenbail |Jeacidde 109|j01 0} paypa
aq dn-ajum ay} ul abeiquaA ay} jey)
papuswiwodal pseebAN 10)oaliq
"Juno2%e goyE 9y} uo swa)l
asay) buiseyoind sajeyijioe} pue
yuomsuieH eseqieg Aq papuawe ag 0} dn-ajup sesuadsip a|qibije o< Ie doen
os|e pjnom }j ‘ssoewseyd joenuod
'000°€S 1L $ JO wId) ayj 4o} Aue se |jlom se ‘wesbold goye
}S09 |e)0] B puk ‘009‘0€$ JO 150D [enuue | 8y} abeuewl pjnom 108)IYdlY 90ve
ue Joj ‘syjuow (9 JO WwLId)} e 10} d|JNPON XI}j9H oJoeypy ‘uonippe u| “Jesh
199)IYy2ly 90vE XiI9H O4oe|\ 10} XI|oH Jad 0zg'sy$ Jo sbuines e Jayjo
oloely Ypm juawaalbe ay) szuoyine pinom xijaH oJoeyy Bunuswaldwy
$1030al1q Jo pieog AHOL 243 ey '026°€.$ 401500 |enuue
pusawwosal 3dNpwwo) Buiuuejd pue ue pue ‘091 °9$ Jo 1s02 A|yjuow
suoneltadQ ‘@doueulq ay) yey) paroidde e 10} §q Anuag Buisn Ajuauing si
Ajsnowjueun sem }I pue ‘papuodas | HNDL 1ey) pauieidxs ayg "s|Npon
Jauaouy "i1g ‘pasowl }3ajjay 1o3aaa1qg 108)Y2lY g0YE XI|9H 0Joe 104 8INPO 108HYDIY
BUOH Lo | NOILOW | lesodoud sy) pajussaid 6uoH oy q0¥< XI|oH 01oep P
"000'809$

JO w83} 8y} J0j 3S09 [ejo} B pue ‘L10Z Ad
104 000°G9€$ Pue ‘91L0Z Ad 10} 000°EVZTS
JO }S09 |enuue ue 10} 000°‘L $ Jo ajeu Ajrep
e e ‘.L0Z ‘0 aunp Buipua pue ‘GLOg ‘I
JaquianopN Buiuulbaq ‘syjuow gZ Jo w.id}
e 10} ueldisAyd abesanod jjeo-uo a3

se “q°IN ‘Wasuaq eliyony ayj azuoyyne
si030aliq jo pieog QHOL @43 ey}
puswiwodsal I’Plwwo) Bujuue|d pue

‘pansua uoissnosi(]

‘asuadxa Ul 8seaioul Ou Yjm
‘‘eued Bugsixa ue o} ‘ueisAyd
Mau e Bulppe si dn-ajum sIyl ‘025
-01 /8# A21|0d HelS [eDIPSN yim
aouep1022k Ul ‘sadlInes Ajeloads
AeiyoAsd |je 10} abeionoo

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suoisnjouo)
/SUoIRPUBWWOIY
uonoy

suonEpUBWIIO0IY
SuUOoISNoU0) ‘suoISSNasIq

oidoj

[=2]
o~



G102 ‘02 4890120

sBunespy sapiuwo) Buluueld pue suopeledQ ‘souetii

‘suolsanb

)SE 0} SWOd|oM 8I19M slaquual
99ILIWIOY) INQ ‘A|JUO MBIABY

1o} a1am swia)l epuabe asay)
1ey; pauodali ounsobe( 10)0841g

UOHJBULIOJU| — UB|d YIOM I

Auo

Apapenp
‘J0Y3 pue yvallg3-gHOL e
S)SIA Juswpedaq
Aousblawg-oNDL e
sheq
jusned paysnipy-ONOL
suiogmap Buipnjox3
-|endsoH |ejoj-snsuad
Aileq abeloAy-ONDL  ©
9|geAI929Y SIUN0JDY
juaned ul sheq 1oN-ONOL
:sydeis
0'9% H/V 18N ul sheq ‘BAy A4
iy $ (suojjiw ur)
/v Wsned j1eN "BAy A4

1ea,) [edsij Ag

Y/V 19N ul sAeq 2 ¥/V Judned 18N

LSE'L valig3
AT 3043
006°22 $ asuadxg Bunessdp
099‘/2 ¢ snuanay Bunesadp
YJUopy Juaiing

900°L1 SUSIA 03
189 SETTEV [T
069°L sase) Aiabing
G/2'8¢ sAeq janed paisnipy
681 snsua) Ajeq ‘bay
QLAd = siojedipu] Aey— DWOL
02e’s $ vailg3d
9s9‘'L $ 3043

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suoisnjouo’
/SUOIJEPUBWIWOIY
uonoy

suoljepuswiwiosdy

suoisnjouo) ‘suoissnasiqq

oido])

o
o



—

G10Z ‘0z 12qo10 G sbunesyy sspiwwo) Buluueld pue suonesadQ ‘eoueury

2y} ul a1ed Jo AUBAljSp pue
Aouaioy)s ayy anoidwi o) paseab si
uonewuoul siyl -A1ebing ‘iojoauq
|e2Ipapy 8Y) Joy synsas AJapenb
ay) Bunosyes uoneuesaid fisbing
puoweig Aep JuI044amod e aaeb puoweiq Aiepy ‘10)081IQ |[EJIPSIN  ®

"sS|eloueul) pseoqyse(

eI OABIS 3y} pamalnal Ajjalq uljiei oAl pleoquyseq e
‘uonejuswsjdwi
1o} panaA Buiaqg saAneny|
indybBnoiy | Jusned jusaung ay) (Aiypuow-iq)
uo ‘uonejuasaid Juiodiomod apiis indybnoay
Aajuon endey -9]buis e papiroid Asjuo) endeyy / pieog pag Xauoly e

‘pasiel suonsanb
passalppe Z}Inyos uoseys

YUM ‘paNsud UOISSNISIP Joug (Apapenb)
ZNYSS UoIeYS "usAIb sem uonejuasaid |ewlo) ON J8jus) uoismju) e
"‘Hoday uononysuo)

3y} UOo pa)s|| SWa)l dY} JO MBIAIBAO (Apspenb)
Asjuo) endeyy Jaug e aaeb Asjuo) ende)y Hoday uononisuo) e

‘Bunesw 9102

Asenuep ayj 0} paaow aq pjnom
SWwa)l Ueld YIOAA 1oqwada(] ay)
Jey) poaibe sem )| ‘uone||aoued
Jo} paje|s mou ‘Bupssw Jaquiada
ay) 1e ajepdn 10} pajnpayos

swa)l asoy) Buipsebal ‘sioquisw
saiwwod woyy ndu; payolos
oufsobeq Jojoauq ‘suonejuasaid
a)epdn ue|d YIOAA 0} Joud

sSuoISNou0)
a|qisuodsay /suoljepuswiwiosdyy suolepuawWwWo23y oido)
(s)uosiad uonoy suoIsSNjau0?) ‘suoissnasiq




G102 ‘02 199010

sBunesyy sspiwwo) Buluueld pue suoneladQ ‘eoueul

wd pZ:1

je uoissag paso|) ojut ob o) panoidde
Ajsnowijueun sem }1 pue ‘papuod9s
Jajjaguabuly I ‘paAow J8]|d9) J03dalIqg

NOILOW

uoIssasg
paso|D ojul ob 0} UOIION “L L

jooy Apop

(£ /561G uonoes
9p0D JUBSWIUIBA0L))
uolIssas pasolo Buunp
passnosip aq 0} swa)l

JO JuBWadUNOUUY [BIO

01l

(suou)

sbBuluadp Ajlunwwo)

6

J1eyd

GLOZ /L J9quianoN

Bunssaw xau

0 9jeg

1eyD

SUON

sJagquiay\ @8I0
AQ sjuswiwon

‘payiuapl si
) se ‘passaippe Buieq si yoes jey)
paulno pue ‘sio0}oey) Bunpnguuoo
SNOJBWNU 0} 8NP JuBWAdUBAPE
jueoiubls aas 0} buibusjieyo
ag ued )i jey) paziseydwa
3YS ‘uojjen|eAs Jo seale
olyoads asay) ul Juswanosdwl
usaq sey aiay} Jey} papodal
pue ‘suonsanb o) pspuodsal Auep
ainpasold
INO-awi] yum asueldwo) e
SHe)S swi[-uQ asen isii{ e
awlj 1eAouIN| e
SWil Xo0|g e
:SMOJ|0}
SE ale uoljen|eAs 10} SouBW
aoueunopad ayj -wool bBupesado

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiag

sSuoISn|douo?)
/SUOEPUBWIWOIY
uopoy

suolepuUaWWOI3Y
suoISn|auo) ‘suoissnasiq

oaido])

32



G10Z ‘02 48qo}00

sBuneapy sapiwwoy Bujuueld pue suoneledQ ‘eoueul

wd $p:| pauinolpe Bunssy

juswuinolpy "g|

"spew Jodal oN

(1°286%S uonoses ‘@pod

Juswulanos) Ayuoyiny)

uoISSag paso|D

ul uaye} uonoe Aue Jo
uosiadneyd wouy poday /1

wd gp:|

je uoissag uadQ ojul o6 o) paroidde
Ajsnowtueun sem j| pue ‘papuodas
Jauaouy "Iq ‘paAouw }33)19)y J032341Qq
NOILOW

uoissag uadp ‘9L

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suoIsnjouo)
/suoepUBWIWIOIY
uopoy

suonepuUAWWOINY
suoisnjauo?) ‘suoissnasiq

oido)

o
o



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

R YOU

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: October 20, 2015
Rady Children’s Specialists Agreement for NICU ROP Testing

Type of Agreement Medical Directors | X | Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal — Same

Status of Agreement New Agreement X New Rates Rates
Vendor’s Name: Rady Children’s Specialists of San Diego
Area of Service: NICU - Retinopathy of Prematurity Testing
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, November 1, 2015 - Ending, October 31, 2016
Maximum Totals:

Monthly Cost Annual Cost Total Term Cost
$2,585 $31,020 $31,020

Description of Services/Supplies:
° Ophthalmic Consultation Services for NICU-Retinopathy of Prematurity Testing
. Requested increase of $385 (17.5%) per month, $4,620 per year

Document Submitted to Legal: X Yes No Not Applicable
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No Not Applicable
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No Not Applicable

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Mary Diamond, Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive
Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize the agreement with Rady Children’s Specialists of San Diego for Retinopathy of Prematurity

Testing for a term of 12-months, beginning November 1, 2015, and ending October 31, 2016, for an annual
cost of $ 31,020, and a total cost for the term of $ 31,020.

34



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: October 20, 2015
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates
Physician’s Name: Ruchira Densert, M.D.
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Psychiatry
Term of Agreement: 20 months, Beginning, November 1, 2015 — Ending, June 30, 2017
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
® New physician to existing panel. No increase in expense
Rate/Day | Days per Year | Annual Cost 20 month (Term) Cost
FY 2016: 243 $243,000 $243,000
$1,000
FY 2017: 365 $365,000 $365,000
Total: $608,000

Position Responsibilities:

e Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all psychiatry specialty services in accordance with Medical
Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: X | Yes No Not Applicable
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X | Yes No Not Applicable
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X | Yes No Not Applicable

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, MSS Manager; Kirkpatrick (Kapua) Conley,
Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize Ruchira Densert, MD, as ED On-Call Coverage Physician for a term of 20 months, beginning
November 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017, at a daily rate of $ 1,000 for an annual cost of $243,000 for
FY 2016, and $365,000 for FY 2017, and a total cost for the term of $608,000.

35



" ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

L You

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: October 20, 2015
PROPOSAL FOR: Macro Helix 340B Architect Module

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X | Other:
Renewal - Renewal — Same

Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates
Vendor’s Name: Macro Helix
Area of Service: Pharmacy
Term of Agreement: 60 months, Beginning, January 2016 — Ending, December 2020
Maximum Totals:

Monthly Cost Annual Cost Total Term Cost
$2,550 $30,600 $153,000

Description of Services/Supplies:

e TCMC currently utilizes Sentry DS; monthly cost = $6,160/month; annual cost = $73,920

e Macro Helix would offer $43,320 in savings per year

e The Macro Helix 3408 Architect would fully manage the 340B program for the hospital, and any
contract pharmacies (as applicable).

e The 3408 Architect hospital module would be capable of identifying and tracking all 340B eligible
dispenses, and would facilitate the purchase of these items on the 340B account.

e Full audit support would be included: policy and procedure templates, audit guides, support for an
actual audit, and annual mock audits provided by Macro Helix.

e Macro Helix offers a contract pharmacy module that would assist with building and implementing
contract pharmacy networks.

e The 340B Architect retail module would be able to identify all eligible scripts, assist with inventory
replenishment, and would be able to invoice the contract pharmacy, as well as provide audit

support, etc.
Document Submitted to Legal: X Yes No Not Applicable
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No Not Applicable
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No Not Applicable

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Tori Hong, Director of Pharmacy / Sharon Schultz, Chief
Nurse Executive / Steve Dietlin, Chief Financial Officer

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize the agreement with Macro Helix for Macro Helix 340B Architect Module for a term of 60 months,
for an annual cost of $30,600, and a total cost for the term of $153,000.

36



ounsobe
Joyoaliqg

-otignd
8y} JO siaquisl Wl sjuswwod buipiebal
ydeibeled ay) peas ouysobeq 1030811

‘wis) |y}

JO UONBISPISUOD S,89)ILULLIO0D

al1ojeq onqnd ay} 0}

}salaul Jo wayl Aue uo olqnd
8y} Jo siaqwiawl AQ SjuswIWo) ‘¢

ounsobeq
1030811

‘IIPYSNN Joyoang Aq pspuodss
pue ejiuui4 10}0a11q Agq apew sem
epuabe ayj anoidde o} uonop

"SUOljeolyIpowW 10 SUollippe oU a19m
a1ay) pue epuabe ay) pamainal dnotb ayj

epuaby Jo |jenolddy g

ounsobeq
Joyoang

‘| wooy A|qwassy ul "w-d G0:Z| Je Japlo
o) Buasw ay} pajjes ‘ounsobe(q Jojoaiqg

8piQ o1 11eD |

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suoljepusawiwioddy
Juonay dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

oido]

‘Meys-pJeussg sjAisy) ‘UOSUYOI SsWe "I ‘UBULIOAA B09S "IQ ‘B 8US9) "I :Juasqe sIaquiapy

"ZJSH Ualle)] pue BLBaN9) BIoUjed ‘IYsSor eAld ‘BUunoA aAsls ‘ 19||IN AusysS ‘Dsmoyosiy sy ‘1ebpsid uyor ‘ussnon
uIney ‘opJequo judy ‘saineq uoleys ‘ziny epuliely ‘we" AsueN ‘BuoH o] ‘AswoH-Aueuop Ausy ‘ddo] Auey ‘Ajejes jusned @ 16\ ysiy
110 ‘Alienp Joy Joyoaliq “iS ‘ybneueae) eiolepy ‘Auojeinbey pue Ajjenp Jo J0joallq ‘Uosiesld Iwer ‘[Bsuno)) [eiauas) ‘J00y Apor :juasald siayjo

‘dA IS/AND ‘ZINYoS uoleys pue dA -98x3 /009D ‘Aejuo) endey| ‘03D ‘Uelopy wi] :Juasald siequisy Buijop-uoN

"OpJE)UOD SNoJB “IQ PUE [[IBYOHN BINeT J0joalq ‘Bjluul4 euowey Jojoaliq ‘(Jiey)) ounsobeq wir 10)0011q  JUdSald SISqUID|

G102 'Sl 1840300

sa)nulpy uoissag uado

Bunesy 88} LW Silely [eUOISSaJ0id

lajua [esipay AND-u]

1ld4dvdd

37



GLSLO0L seIuIN Ovd

elans eoujed

‘lenocadde pieog

1o} pJemio} Bunow ss1oljod asay)
anoisdde 0} uonow ay} pepuooss
e|luul4 J0}0811q pue pasow
opJejuo) "Iq ‘pasesdaq sy

Jo ases|ay ay) uo Aajjod ay) Jo
uondaoxa ay} ypm panoidde asem
sainpsooid pue saoljod S92IAIBS

ale)d Jualled syl :NOILIV

'SInoY ¢ uiyum
salgeq 0} pasajsiuiwpe aq 0} ajeldoidde aq
0] palopisuod sem Bunsa) g syedaH ayt

*Ao1j0d siy} uo uoIsSNISIp ON

"‘pouad

siy} 104 [eydsoy ay) Inoybnouy jje Jenaq

S| 8jed sjje} apim-eydsoy ay) yey) pajou

Sem }I ‘JaAamoy :Juaplooe ue 0} palngupe aq
ueod siyl "G10g isnbny 10} aulpap e pamoys
suononysu| abieyasiq Adesay] uuepepp
J1A 9YL "99)Iwwod ay) 0} pajuasald sem

0} (91gH) ulingojbounwiwj
pue aunoep g snijedsH
dljeipad Jo uonjensiuiupy ‘¢
2.npaooid
pazipJepue)s - SUIOgMaN
0} Juswyuip dlwieyiydo
uAwoiyilug pue
uonoaluj uoifydawenby

M UIWEJA JO uohensiuiupy °|

:$9InNpPa%oid
pue sal21jod aie) jusned

sainpadsold
pue s3191j0d jo jeArosddy
3]qISSOd pue uoljeiapisuo)

uosiesid lwep ‘leuoneuwoju| Jaquwia)dag 10} pseoqysep sawoaino ay | pieoqyseq
sawooinQ Ajenyd ‘e
ssauisng MeN G
‘Gloc

Z1sH uaueyj

Jaquisydeg wody sajnuiw ay)
anoudde 0} uonow ay} papuooss
[IBUDUN 103931 pue paAow
ejluul4 J0}oaaI] “pauies saINUIN

'5L0¢C
‘11 Jaquisydag ay) Jo saynuiw ay) anosdde

0} uoiow e 1o} pajjes ounsobe(q 40811

'G10Z Joquieydag
JO sa)nuIW Jo uonjesiey v

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

SUOIEPUBWILIOIDY
juondy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oido]

38



[=2]

GLGLOL SONUIN DVd =

‘Konjod sIy) ul passalppe se sjun ay) ul
ayoud SiXAd B S| 819U} 1ey) paynuapl sem |

‘uonejaisdiayul Jadoud

10} payIpow Os|e SEM SIH}OIUWIEBOUOYD

uo abequaa ay| -Alessadau J| ‘ulogmau

e Jo} Buipasy a|)30q 8y} 10} papasu y|iw

JO JUNOWe 8y} Uo uolesyue|d e sem alayL

‘Buip1oda1 40 ‘9oue)sqgns ‘ulo} 0}

se sjuswalinbal ajels wouj Jdwexs pue aaly
ate Aay) ‘Aoijod ay) ul pajels se—siahme|
Aeyjiw Aw paltedaid saAijoaap pasueApe
3y} Je pajoallp Sem uonuaw |eadg

pue [eoo0o0wnaud "0l

aINpadoid pazipiepuels

-NOIN 104 8ji7 auLLvinenxy

0} uoiisuesj Buung
elwasA|bodAH uiogmaN ‘6

2.npadolid
pazipiepue)lg -jusiied
INpY 8y} ul Juswabeuepy
elwaodA|bodAH ‘g

foljod
-)sI7oeg ||eD Jejsesiq L

ainpasold -uolisodsig pue
ale) jusned pasesdtag ‘9

2Inpad0Id pazipiepuels
-UlogMBa 8y} Jo alen °g

ainpaosoud
pazipiepue)s -Buuoyuopy
UIOgMBN 8s0aN|S) poolgd ‘¥

Aa1j0d -aAnoaug
aledyjjesH aoueApy ‘¢

aJnpaosoid
pazipJepue)s -SulogmapN

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUOREPUIWILIOITY
juonody dn-mojjod

uoissnosiqg

oidoj




GLS10l seinulN Ovd

elsno) epuled

eJ19Ns) epujed

ellang) edujed

panow se parosdde alem D03
Joj Aoljod | uonoag 8yl :NOILOV

‘saloljod asay) anoidde o} uonow
ay) papuoaas ejiuul4 Joyalq
pue paAow [|8Ya)A 103o841IQ
‘|lenoidde pieog Joj pjemio)
Buinow aie pue paroidde

alam sainpaooid pue saioljod

aAjessiulWpyY 8yl :NOILOV

"M3IABJ Jaypuny 1oy no pajind
Buiaq si Aojjod siyl :NOILLOV

*Aonjod

aAnessiulwpe ue se ped uoye)ol|os ay) uay)
pue YH 0} 06 0} pasau yolym salIAlIOE uoiufn
ay) 0} sajejas )l se Aojjod siy) jo uoiesedas
By} UO UoISSNISIP Jolq B Sem alay |

‘Ao1j0d sIy} Uo uoIssnaIsip ON

1doa jeba] ayj Aq uoissnosip

Jayuny Joy Aojjod siyy ||ind o) paaibe
9910 8Y) ‘UOISSNISIP Jolq B JaYY
"Jauiwexs |esipaw 0} pabueyos aq 0} JOU0I0D
wud) ay) Jo} paysenbal [[BYoHIN Jojoanq

0)40]"
Aoljod Juswissassy Ysiy L

jusawabeuey Ajajes | UoIdS
ales JO JUBWUOIIAUT
oy199ds Jun

012 Auadoid
JoU}SIg Uo ainjessy Jo
uonnqu)siq pue uoneyolios g

68¢€ (V3IN4) sisAleuqy
S)09)3 pue Spo aJnjied |
sainpadoid
pue saldljod aAljelsiuiwupy

a.npasold
pazipiepue)s (QHOD)
aseas|(] HesH |e)uabuo)
|eonu) Joj Bulussidg

uoneinjesg poolg [esJaAluN ‘gL

aInpadold -sjusiied
10)ejuap burpodsuel] "z|

2JNpad0ld
— posesda Jo osesjoy "L |

2Inpadoid pazipJepue)s
- uojjessiuiuipy

pue Bulusalog

auIDoeA BZUBN|U|

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

SUONEPU3IWWOI3Y
juonoy dn-mojjod

uoissnasiq

oido|

40



GLGLOL SeINUIN OVd =

elang) eoujed

eliang) eoujed

elans) epuled

“B|luul4 1030811 Aq

papuo2as pue |[SYs)N J0)o3lIg
Aq panow se panosdde alem
[enuepy sainpasold suonesado
Aousbiawg ay) uo saljod

3y} Jo uonsiap 8yl :NOILIV

“eliuul4 Joyoanqg Aq

papuo0sas pue ||y 40)0841g
Aq panow se panroidde sem
fojod g uonoag 8yl :NOILLOVY

"eliuul4 Joyoang Aq

papuU02as pue ||ISYINN 10)08lIq
Aq panow se panoisdde aseom
saoljod ¢ uoidas 8y INOILOV

"lloydy Jopauig Aq
papuooas pue ejiuul4 J0j0a1q Aq

‘a3 su

jo saiyjod opoads yun sy} ojul pajelodiooul
uaaq aAeY Aay | ‘suonajop asam saloljod
9S8y} JO || Se SUOISSNISIP OU a1am a1ay |

‘Ao1j0d SIy} UO UOISSNOSIP OU SBM I3y |

‘'sAepemou asn ul ||1S S| duazuaq

Jl uoysanb e os|e sem a19y] ‘sesodind
Aoua)sisuod 1o} s1auolioeld YyeaH paliy
0] 411 8y} abueyo 0} }senbai e sem a1ay |

10} UONJBULLIOJU| [BIBUDS) '9
Soov
apIM |endson :sauie)
[enuep buisn swusiied
Jo jeaowas Aouabiowg g
GS0¥ (Papunop
Bunjiepn) ssed Jouly
‘ealy qeyaJ ue|d Jo)sesigd v
L00¥ 10u0)
eIpa|\ 40} ue|d J19isesid ‘€
Z00¥ oy1oads
Juswpedag Aousbiewg
uejd uonejuswsjdw|
J8)Ua)) |oNUO0) J18)sesIq 2
oLov
OWNOL 10} ue|d Jajsesig
ay) yuswajdwi 0} Auoyiny  °|
jenuey sainpalsold
suoesadQ Asuabiawg

SjuapIou|
yewzeH Buipoday |
s|ellaje\ SnopJiezeH G UOI}I3g

spiezeH Ajojes al4 ¢
GOEE PaY 9po -ue|d aid ‘¢
s100gq X3 L

Kyajeg aj11 ¢ uondasg

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suojjepuawiwodd)
Juonoy dn-mojjod

uoissnosiq

oido|




9

S1G10l ss)nuiN Ovd

ellonc) eouled

euans epued

eusny) epujed

el1ans) epujed

"opJejuo) id
AQ papuoodas pue paaow ejiuul
10)92.1g se panosdde sem Aojod
[oJu0D uonddju| YL NOILOV

‘Aoljod siy) snosdde 0y uonow

ay) pepuooas ejluul Jojoaiq
pue paAow [|BYoHN Jo)oallqg

¢ panoidde sem Bupsauibug

uo Aojjod g uonoas 8yl :NOILOV

‘Aonjod siy) anoadde o} uonow

ay) pepuooas ejuul4 J0jalg
pue paAow [jBYOHIN 10308

: panosdde sem Buussuibug

uo Aojjod  uooas ayl :NOILIV

"Ao1j0d sy} anosdde 0} uonow

3y} papuo9as ejiuul{ Jojoalq
pue paAow [|BYoHN Joyoauq

! panosdde sem Buusauibug

uo Aotjod | uonoas 8yl :NOILOV

Jey) 1oe} ay) se ||om se ‘ABojojsiy Jo anss|
8y} UO UonuUBW B OS|e Sem 19y ‘s|eusle|y
snopJezeH uo Aaljod ayj uo sy} 10} eyep
paje|al sI aJay) Jey) pauonuaw opJejuod “Ig

"Aj|10B} BY) Ul SOA[BA JB)em By} JO ISI| 8y}

sey Jaulag aAd)S ‘Juaung Jo sy ‘|eydsoy
ay) Jo ueld uswabeuew Ayjn ay) u |njdjay
aq M sIyl ‘sndwed sy} ul SOA|eA Jo)em ay)
[le jJo suoneoso| sy} bunybyybiy dew ssysew
e JO Uonealo ay) Uo UoISSNISIP B sem a1ay |

oL
Dl -ue|d |onuoD aunsodx3g

uaboyled sulogpoojg "L
jos3uoD uondadU|

L008 -Aaljod usai9 9poy L
ssaupasedaid
Aouabiaw] :g uonodag

€00y
-ue|d Juswabeuepy Aunn L
juawdinb3 : uonosag

9001 -9dIABeS
JO sunoH Buussuibug )
aAjjessiuIwpyY
|eJ3uas) | UoNIIS

Buiaauibuy

L LOY AV |euwld)X3 oIX0| '@
1234014

ue|d Jajsesi(q Jels [edIpsy "L
9001 sjuaijed buibieyosig

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SuolJEpUAWILIOIY
Juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

oidoj

42



(3]

L GLGLOL seINUIN OVd =

‘INd SO:1 e uoissas paso|d
ojui o6 0} panoidde Ajsnowiueun
oupsobe( SEM ]I pue papuodas OpJeuo)D "UOISSaS Paso|) ojul

Joyaung "1g ‘paAow uosuyor iq 06 0} uonow e 10} PaYySe ||IBY2MIN 1030811 uoISsag pPasolD ‘g

‘ueisAyd e jo aoussaid e 10} pasu sy) pue
salaAlep sHU-ybiy, Jo aieme ase SaAIMpIW

Jey) pajelayal osje ey ig bunuasaidal
"SOIIWIWOD) | Sem oym ‘I9|IN Aayg “jendsoy ay) e Aqeq

ajeudoisdde ayj 0} J9jo1 e SIaAljap a)impiw e awiy Auans dn—oeq

[I!M 8y usye) 8q 0) Spaau suoloe e se aAJas 0) Juasaud sAemje s| uedisAyd

Aue J| ‘ueyo Jenaied ay) mainsl e ‘Jun Aqeg/Jaylop 8y} ul Jey) payueo

os|e pue Aoljod ey} mainal osje |  salne uoseys ‘spmpiw e Aq suop Aiaalieop

['m e 1g ‘saampiw uo Adljod e uo asLe Aouabiowa |esipawl e ased

ay) Jnoge s99Ines yjeaH Ajuno) | ul ueroisAyd e Jo soussaid a8y} uo Ajsnolnaid

ounsobeq YUON O} Y|e} |Im el 4 1.y} 9NSS| UB SEM 3Jay| "UOISSNOSIP ajimpiul
Joyoang paje)s JaIIN AudyS INOILIY Jo a1do} ayy dn jybnouq ounsobeq J0)0841g uoISSNISIq SUMPIN 2

‘sa1o1j0d asay)
anoidde 0} uonow ayj papuodss

eliuul{ 10}08lI(] pue paAowl S92IAIBS qeyay wanedinp
[I9USNN Joyoaaiq ‘|enocsdde 1o} lrews3 paydAuoug jo esn ¢
pJeog 10} paemio} Buinow ase pue uone)jigeyay wanedinn
paAoidde aiam sainpaoosd pue Buunq sioul Jo
elaNng epujed soljod gqeysy ayl :NOILOY sjuswalinbay uoisiniadng °L

sadjAlag uoneyliqeyay

*foljod siyy
anoidde 0} uonjow ay) papuoodss
lIPY2N J03081IQ pue paAow

ejluul4 J0)oalI( : panoisdde sem £91104 so1A|01)09|F
elians) epujed Aoijod Aoewueyd ayl :NOILIOY pajesjuadsuod) pue [eJjauas) |
‘'sieah ¢ Aions Koeuneyd

JO peajsul Apeak pamainal 8q 0} Spaau
SSOUDAISUS)XD S)I JO asnedaq Adljod siy)

a|qisuodsay suoiEepuUaWWIOoIY
(s)uosiadg Juondy dn-mojjo4 uoissnasiq oidoj




61610} sSINuIN Ovd

ounsobeq
J0)o3lIg Nd $Z:2 1e pauinolpe Bunaayy yuswuwanolpy "1
ounsobeq "'SjUBWIWLIOYD) ON a9)ILIWoN ay)
JoyauQq JO SJaquIsj\ WOl sjuswwo) ‘L1
uoIssag
ounsobeq ‘U e)} SUOoIjoB OU dI9M dJay | paso|D Ul uaye] uonoy Auy
Joyaiq Jo uositadiieyn ay) Jo spoday "0}
ounsobeq ‘Wd S22
Joyoaug Je uoIssag uadQ 0} uinjal s/ ay | uoIssag uadp oy uwInNdY 6

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

SUOIIEPUBWWIOIdY
juonoy dn-mojjod

uoissnasiq

oido]|

oy
o



L ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

October 15™, 2015
CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures

1. Administration of Aquamephyton Injection
and Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment to
Newborns Standardized Procedure

2 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

2. Administration of Pediatric Hepatitis B
Vaccine and Immunoglobulin (HBIG) to
Newborns Standardized Procedure

2 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

3. Advance Health Care Directive Policy

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

NEW

Forward to BOD for approval

4. Blood Glucose Newborn Monitoring -
5

. Care of the Newborn Standardized
Procedure

practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

6. Deceased Patient Care and Disposition
Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

7. Disaster Call Back List Policy

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

8. Hypoglycemia Management In the Adult
Patient Standardized Procedure

2 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

9. Newborn Hypoglycemia During Transition
to Extrauterine Life

DELETE

Forward to BOD for approval

10.Pneumococcal and Influenza Vaccine
Screening and Administration
Standardized Procedure

2 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

11.Release of Deceased Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Pulled for further review

12. Transporting Ventilator Patients Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

13. Universal Blood Saturation Screening for
Critical Congenital Heart Disease (CCHD)
Standardized Procedure

2 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

Administrative Policies & Procedures

1. Failure Mode and Effects Analysis (FMEA)

3 year review,

389 practice change Forward to BOD for approval
2. Solicitation and Distribution of Literature on
District Property 210 DELETE Forward to BOD for approval

Unit Specific

Environment of Care

Section 1 Safety Management

1. Risk Assessment Policy 1040

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

Section 3 Life Safety

1. Exit Doors

NEW

Forward to BOD for approval

2. Fire Plan — Code Red 3305

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

Page 1




. ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
October 15", 2015
CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

Policies and Procedures Reason Recommendations
3. Fire Safety Hazards NEW Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions
Section 5 Hazardous Materials
1. Reporting Hazmat Incidents NEW Forward to BOD for approval
Emergency Operations Procedures Manual
1. Authority to Implement the Disaster Plan DELETE
for TCMC 4070 Forward to BOD for approval
2. Disaster Control Center Implementation DELETE
Plan Emergency Department Specific 4002 JULCICIEH A0 Rl AL
3. Disaster Plan for Media Control - 4007 DELETE Forward to BOD for approval
4. Disaster Plan Rehab Area, Minor Care DELETE
(Walking Wounded) 4055 Forward to BOD for approval
5. Emergency Removal of Patients Using DELETE
Manual Carries Hospital Wide 4005 R e OISOl
6. General Information for Discharging DELETE
Patients 4006 Forward to BOD for approval
7. Medical Staff Disaster Plan 4045 DELETE Forward to BOD for approval
8. Toxic External Air 4011 DELETE Forward to BOD for approval

Engineering

Section 1: General Administrative

1. Engineering Hours of Service - 1006

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

Section 4: Equipment

1. Utility Management Plan - 4003

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

Section 8: Emergency Preparedness

1. Code Green Policy - 8007

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

Infection Control

1. Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control

3 year review,

Forward to BOD for approval

Plan-1C 10 practice change with revisions
Pharmacy
1. General and Concentrated Electrolytes 3 year review,
Policy practice change Forward to BOD for approval

Rehabilitation Services

1. Supervision Requirements of Minors
During Outpatient Rehabilitation

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

2. Use of Encrypted Email for Outpatient
Rehab Services

NEW

Forward to BOD for approval

Page 2

46



)
‘c\) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

| STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: ADMINISTRATION OF VITAMIN K AQUAMERHYTON-INJECTION AND

A.

1.

ERYTHROMYCIN OPHTHALMIC OINTMENT TO NEWBORNS

POLICY:

Function: To provide guidelines for Women and Children’sNewborn Services (WGSWNS)
nurses administering AgquamephytenVitamin K and Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment to
newborns.
Circumstances:
a. Setting: Labor and Delivery, Newborn Nursery and Neonatal Intensive Care (NICU)
b. Requires that a Registered Nurse (RN) administer Vitamin K Aquamephyton and
Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment.
Consent:
a. The RN shall obtain verbal parental consent prior to administration of the Vitamin K
Aquamephyton injection and the Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment to the newborn.
i. If the parent or legal guardian declines the Vitamin K Aguamephyten injection and
Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment refer to documentation guidelines. In the
Medication Administration Record (MAR) this will be documented as “refusal”.
Documentation:
a. The newborn’s patient record
i. Refer to Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services (PCS) policy Medication
Administration-1.
ii. When administering medications or implementing orders from a
standardized procedure, the Registered Nurse shall enter the
medication/order mto the electronlc health record as a standardlzed
procedure !

1)

Not reqmred if a screening process trlggers the order
ii. Document given or “refused” in the MAR

1) If refused complete Refusal or Newborn Eye Prophylaxis and/or Refusal
of Vitamin K form(s), original to be kept with the patient chart and one
copy to be given to the parent or legal guardian and notify Pediatrician of
refusal(s).

B. PROCEDURE:
The RN will administer Vitamin K Aquamephyten 1 mg IM and Erythromycin Ophthalmic
Omtment to the newborn within two hours of blrth

1.

C. REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS PROVIDING INTERVENTIONS:

1. Current California RN license and working in Women'’s and Children’s Services/NICU.
2. Initial Evaluation: Orientation
3 Ongoing Evaluation: Annually
Clinical Department Nursing Pharmacy Medicai Professional
Deg:;:::nt Policies & of Executive and Int?:l:):l'i::‘li;:tl:;ary Executive Affairs gi?:;?o‘:;
Procedures | Pediatrics Committee | Therapeutics Committee Committee
6/05, 6/07; 9/09, | 6/07; 9/09; o 8/07;11/09; | 7/07; 12/09; 8/07; 12/09, 8/07; 2110, 1015 12";?; 3’073
5/11; 07/13 07/13, 04/15 7/13; 4/15 9/13, 05/15 09/13, 09/15 10/13, 09/15 6111013

47



Patient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Administration of Vitamin K Injection and Erythromycin Ophthalmic Qintment to Newborns
Page 2 of 2

D.

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

1. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
2. Review: Every two (2) years.

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

1. All Registered Nurses who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are
authorized to direct and perform the Administration of Vitamin K Aquamephyton Injection and
Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment to Newborns Standardized Procedure

RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1. PCS Medication Administration

48



PATIENT CARE SERVICESSTANDARDIZED PROCEDURE MANUAL

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. POLICY:
Function: To provide guidelines for the Women'’s and Childrer’'s-Newborn Services (WCSWNS)
Registered Nurse administering Pediatric Hepatitis B vaccine and Hepatitis B Immunoglobulin

(HBIG) (Hyper B SD®) to newborns.
Circumstances:

| 1.

a. Setting: Labor & Delivery-F

Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATION OF PEDIATRIC HEPATITIS B VACCINE AND
HEPATITIS B IMMUNOGLOBULIN (HBIG) (Hyper B SD®) TO
NEWBORNS

LBRP), Newborn Nursery, Mother—Baby, Neonatal Intenswe Care Umt (NICU)

b. Supervision: None required.

C. Requires that an RN complete administration Pediatric Hepatitis B vaccine and Hepatitis
B Immunoglobulin (HBIG) (Hyper B SD®) to newborns.

Consent:

a. The RN shall obtain verbal parental consent prior to administration of the Pediatric

Hepatitis B vaccine and/or Hepatitis B Immunoglobulin (HBIG) (Hyper B SD®) to the
newborn
Prior to giving consent, the parent or patient’s legal guardian shall receive written
information about Hepatitis B according to Tri City Medical Center (TCMC)

Patient Care Services Policy: Vaccination Administration. This will be

B. PROCEDURE:

documented in the Eelectronic Medical-Hhealth Rrecord (EMREHR) in the

education form.
If the parent or legal guardian declines the Pediatric Hepatitis B vaccination and
or HBIG (Hyper B SD®) injection, the RN shall contact the Pediatrician
immediately for those infants of mothers with positive or unknown Hepatitis B
results. Refer to G-2-6-d-forothernotification and documentation guidelines.
Document refusal {in the Medication Administration Record (MAR) this-will-be

1. When the mother is Hepatitis B Surface Antigen (HBsAg) @-(positive):
a. The RN will administer Pediatric Hepatitis B vaccine and HBIG (Hyper B SD®) seer
after birth (within 12 hours of birth), regardless of weight.
2. When the mother is Hepatitis B Surface Angtigen (HBsAg) @-(negative):
a. The RN will administer Pediatric Hepatitis B vaccine, within 12 hours of birth regardless
of weight, for infants going to the mother-baby unit.
b. Infants going to the NICU should be given Pediatric Hepatitis B vaccine;
i. By at-1—30 days of chronological age if medically stable, or
ii. aAt discharge if before 30 days of chronological age, and/or
4-ii.  tTransfer to the mother-baby unit prior to maternal/infant discharge.
3. When the mother’s Hepatitis B Surface Angtigen (HBsAg) status is unknown:
a. Give Pediatric Hepatitis B vaccine, soon after birth (within 12 hours of birth), regardless
of weight.
b. Obtain STAT Hepatitis B screen.
i. If maternal Hepatitis B Surface Antigen (HBsAg) status is determined to be
HBsAg positive, give HBIG (Hyper B SD®) as soon as possible. If the maternal
status is still unknown by discharge, give HBIG (Hyper B SD®) prior to discharge.
Clinical Nursing a ) isciolina Medical Professlonal
(e Polidesd | ExeoutNe | orfiistics | Tharapautics | | Commites » | Diecuive | Afars | Coatel
1%%:22221} é/:(ég:bgﬁ:; PRl osns | Q11913 06/11,09/13, 0ai5 | 09111013, 1015 | 06/11:10/13

L



| Patient Care ServicesStandardized-Procedure-Manual
Standardized Procedure: Administration of Pediatric Hepatitis B Vaccine and Hepatitis B Immunoglobulin(HBIG)(Hyper B SD®) to Newborns
Page 2 of 3

1) NICU infants < 2000g: if the mother's HBsAg result is not available within
12 hrs of birth, give HBIG (Hyper B S/D®) aAs sSoon aAs pPRossible

(ASAR}

2) NICU infants > 2000g: Administer HBIG (Hyper B S/D®) within 7 days if
the mother's HBsAg result is positive, or if maternal status remains
unknown by discharge give prior to discharge

4, The RN will administer Pediatric Hepatitis B vaccine and Hepatitis B Immunoglobulin (HBIG)
(Hyper B SD®) in accordance with the Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services Policies:
‘ a. Medication Administration (Reliey—\-}H
b. Vaccination Administration {(Reliey# 110}
5. Pediatric Hepatitis B vaccine dose is 5 - 10 mcg*/0.5 mL, administered intramuscularly. (*Note:
Hep B mcg dosage varies depending on manufacturer)
6. Hepatitis B Immunoglobulin (HBIG) (Hyper B SD®) dose is 0.5 mL, administered
intramuscularly at the opposite thigh from the vaccination site.
7. Documentation
a. The newborn's patient-record EHR
i. Refer to TCMC Patient Care Services Vaccinations Administration Policy.
b. Immunization Record
i. Document newborns receipt of immunization on the Immunization Record.
ii. The Immunization Record shall be given to the newborn's parent(s) upon
discharge of the newborn.
iii. If the parent declines the immunization after receiving the Vaccine Information
Sheet, document in the newborn’s-patient'srecord EHR. In the Medication
Administration Record (MAR) this will be documented as “refusal”.

1) Still give parent immunization record at discharge.
iv. Document tests, treatments, and physician notification in the-medical-record
EHR

V. 302
the—RNas—a—St&%a;@zed—PFeeedwe—e;de;When admmlstermg medlcatlons
or implementing orders from a standardized procedure, the Registered
Nurse shall enter the medication/order into the electronic health record as
a standardized procedure.
w1)  Not required if a screening process triggers the order.

C. REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
1. Current California RN license working in Women’s and Children’s Services/NICU.
2. Education: Registered Nurse

3. Initial Evaluation: Orientation

4, Ongoing Evaluation: Annually
D
1

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
Review: Every two (2) years.

2
E. CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
1. All Registered Nurses who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are
authorized to direct and perform Administration of Pediatric Hepatitis B Vaccine and Hepatitis B
Immunoglobulin (HBIG) (Hyper B SD®) to Newborns Standardized Procedure.

F. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Patient Care Services Policy: Vaccination Administration
2. Patient Care Services Policy: Medication Administration

G. REFERENCES:
| 1. Tschudy, M. & Archara, K (2012). The Harriet Lane Handbook (19" Ed.) Philadelphia, PA



| Patient Care ServicesStandardized-Procedure-Manual

Standardized Procedure: Administration of Pediatric Hepatitis B Vaccine and Hepatitis B Immunoglobulin(HBIG)(Hyper B SD®) to Newborns
Page 3 of 3

K. & Creehan, P. (20148). AHWONN: Perinatal Nursing. Philadelphia, PA
Immunization Action Coalition (2012). Guidance for Developing Admission Orders in Labor &

Delivery and Newborn Unit to Prevent Hepatitis B Virus Transmission. Retrieved July 30, 2013
from http://www.cdc.gov/immwr

W N
@ g
3.
UI
ml
o
>

51



@) Tri-City Heaith Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative-Policy- MarualPATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

12/91 SUBJECT: ADVANCE HEALTH CARE
DIRECTIVE

REVISION DATE: 2/92, 8/92, 11/96, 6/97, 10/00, 6/01, POLICY NUMBER: 8610-354

8/01, 5/03, 8/06, 01/10, 06/11

Administrative-Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  02/4408/15

Nurse Executive Council Approval: 06/1109/15
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 09/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 06/141410/15
Board of Directors Approval: 06/11

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To ensure that when a patient is admitted for care through Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) or

visits an outpatient setting, each patient's ability and right to participate in medical decision-

making is recognized and maximized. This policy reflects compliance with the Joint Commission

Standard-RI1-04-05-04-and the Federal Patient Self-determination LawAst and the California

Code.

a. Advanced directives prepared by military lawyers are exempt from State requirements as
to form, substance, or recording.

3. DEFINITIONS:

1.

2.

For purposes of this policy, the following terms shall be interpreted in accordance with their
respective definitions as set forth below.

Advance Directive or Advance Healthcare Directive — an individual healthcare instruction or a
Power of Attorney for Healthcare. [Probate Code Section 4605] Individual Healthcare Instruction
or Individual Instruction — A patient’s written or verbal direction concerning a healthcare decision.
[Probate Code Section 4623]

Medical Decision-Making - decisions regarding authorization for treatment, the withholding of
treatment or the withdrawal of treatment (including life-sustaining procedures) obtained from the
patient or, in the event of the patient becomes incompetent, from the patient's surrogate
decision-maker.

Life-Sustaining Procedure - any medical procedure or intervention, including the administration
of fluids and nutrition by artificial means, that when administered to a patient, will serve only to
prolong the process of dying or prolong a permanent unconscious condition.

Permanent Unconscious Condition - an incurable and irreversible condition that within
reasonable medical judgment renders the patient in an irreversible coma or a persistent
vegetative state.

Terminal Condition - an incurable or irreversible condition that without the administration of life-
sustaining treatment will within reasonable medical judgment result in death within a relatively
short time.

Agent or Surrogate Decision-Maker - someone who acts in the patient's stead (substitutes in

judgment for the patient) to determine what the patient would likely have decided if he/she were
able to decide for him/herself. This agent may be formally appointed (through the Health Care
Decisions Act or through conservatorship or guardianship proceedings) or, in the absence of a
formal appointment, may be informally authorized by virtue of a relationship with the patient (i.e.,
the patient’s next of kin or in the absence of next of kin, close friend).

Conscience Objection - objection to a particular course of treatment or care based on an
individual's moral ethical and/or religious beliefs or affiliations.

DNR (Do Not Resuscitate) Order — a physician's order to the effect that in the event of

52



| Administrative-Policy ManualPatient Care Services
Advance Health Care Directive, 8610-354

Page 2 of 8

10.

11.

respiratory or full cardiopulmonary arrest, re-cede-will-be-announced-overthe-public-address

system;-her-any-attempt-made-to-resuscitate-the-patientno basic or advanced life support will

be administered.

Pre-hospital DNR - This is a pre-hospitalization Do Not Resuscitate (DNR) or no-code request

from the patient, agent or surrogate decision maker to emergency medical service providers.

The request may be made on a completed, approved Emergency Medical Services Pre-hospital

DNR Form, an approved DNR medallion or bracelet, or a valid DNR order from the patient’s

medical record from a long term care facility where the patient resides.

a. If patient requests assistance initiating a Pre-hospital DNR enter a referral for
Social Services consult in the EHR.

POLST form — Physician Order for Life-Sustaining Treatment form means a request regarding

resuscitative measures that directs a healthcare provider regarding resuscitative and life-

sustaining measures.

a. If patient requests assistance initiating a POLST, enter a referral for Social
Services consult in the EHR.

C. POLICY:

1.

It is the policy of TCHD to recognize and respect patient self-determination. Patients are
encouraged to be active participants in decision-making regarding their care through education
and inquiry. It is hoped that such education and inquiry about advanced directives will, in turn,
motivate patients to communicate their preferences and values in that regard, in advance, to
their loved ones and to health care providers. Thereafter, the patient's expressed wishes will
guide surrogates/agents and health care providers in medical decision-making for the patient if
that patient becomes temporarily or permanently incompetent, or incapacitated.

Itis the policy of TCHD to treat a patient in accordance with a POLST form (See Patient Care
Services policy POLST).

As an institution, TCHD supports and encourages patient self-determination and, to the best of
its ability, acts in support of a patient's Advance Directive as long as the directive is within the
legal parameters of sanctioned medical practice. TCHD does not support the practice of
physician-assisted suicide. TCHD may decline to comply with an instruction or decision that
requires medically ineffective healthcare or healthcare contrary to generally accepted healthcare
standards.

If a patient arrives at TCHD Emergency Department experiencing respiratory or cardiac arrest
and this-the patient has with them a pre-hospital DNR form, an approved DNR medallion or
bracelet, or a valid DNR order from the long term care facility where the patient resides, no chest
compressions, assisted ventilations, intubation, defibrillation or cardiotonic medications are to be
initiated, unless the patient or surrogate decision maker instruct the staff to do otherwise. The
Emergency and Attending Physicians will be notified of the existence of the DNR request and a
copy of the form or request will be placed in the patient's medical record. Documentation to the
patient's medical record regarding patient’s DNR status will be completed.

Itis the right of any physician or health care provider to withdraw from care of a patient based on
the provider's own conscience or moral objection to a particular treatment, or withdrawal of
treatment, plan. If this occurs, it is the responsibility of the physician and/or the hospital staff to
assist that-the patient/family with identifying a new physician or health care provider. (See-Health

Inquiry and Documentatlon Regarding Advance Directive - As soon as reasonably possible
during the admission process, patient registration, Emergency Department patient registration or
nursing staff member will inquire of all patients, 18 years of age or older, whether or not the
patient has completed an Advance Directive for health care. If patient is-lacks capacity
incempetent-orincapacitated, the patient's surrogate decision maker/agent, will be asked during
every admission whether or not the patient has completed an Advance Directive for health care.
a. Review document for special requests.

The patient’s nurse will be responsible for accurately completing the Advance Directive screen in
the electronic healthmedical record (eMREHR), as part of the admission process.

53



Patient Care Services

Administrative-Policy Manuall
Advance Health Care Directive, 8610-354

Page 3 of 8
8.
9.

10.

11.

12.

13.
14.

15.

16.

A copy of the Advance Directive, if available, will be placed in the patient’s medical record.

If the Advance Directive is unavailable at the time of admission, reasonable efforts will be made

to obtain a current copy for the patient's medical record.

If a patient revises their Advance Directive during their hospital stay the following needs to occur:

a. Place revised, Advance Directive in the patient's medical record.

b. Update the eMREHR to reflect that the Advance Directive has been revised.

c. The revised Advance Directive will be scanned into the patient's eMREHR by the Medical
Records Department.

Upon readmission to an inpatient status and Advance Directive status of “Yes, on file TCMC” or

“Copy placed on paper chart”, the Medical Records department will locate the paper Advance

Directive and scan into the eMREHR and update Advance Directive Status to “Scanned into

eMREHR.”

If a patient decides to complete a formal, written Advance Directive document after admission,

but during their hospital stay, the staff member assisting the patient with the Advance Directive

information will have the responsibility of ensuring that a copy of the completed advanced
directive is placed in the patient’s medical record and that the Advance Directive screen in the
eMREHR is updated to reflect the change in Advance Directive status.

The patient may revoke an existing Advance Birestive-erallyDirective verbally, at any time.

Provide Patient Rights Information

a. As part of the admission process, the patient,-er if the patient lacks capamty;s
incompetent, the patient's surrogate decision-maker/agent, will be given written
information regarding an individual's rights to make decisions concerning medical care,
including the right to accept or refuse medical or surgical treatment, even if that treatment
is life-sustaining. Such information shall be consistent with that promulgated and/or
required by the California Department of Public Health. (“Your Right to Make Decisions
about Medical Treatment” is the brochure used to provide this information.)

b. If the patient lacks capacityis-inrcompetent at the time of admission, the required written
information about Advance Directives and patients’ rights to make decisions about
medical treatment will be provided to the family, significant other and/or surrogate
decision maker if applicable.

C. If, during his or her hospital stay, ar-incempetent patient who lacks capacity regains his
or her ability to understand advance directive and patient rights information, hospital staff
must provide the patient with this information as soon as practicably possible.

d. Patients or families may file a complaint with the California Department of Public Health,
Licensing and Certification District Office at 1-800-824-0613 concerning non-compliance
with their Advance Directive. Tri-City Healthcare District staff is to provide
patients/families with this number upon request or complaint. [42-C-F-R-489-102 (a}{4)}-

Provide Policy Information

a. At the time of admission, or thereafter, information about Advance Directives shall be
offered to each patient/agent and the offer of information shall be made a part of the
admissions records. Provisions of care shall never be conditional upon a patient's
completion of an Advance Directive.

b. Information, provided to patients and families includes:

&-i. Any limitations the Medical Center may have on honoring specific requests based
on conscience objection.

éii.  Any differences between Tri-City Healthcare District - conscience objection
policies and those that may be raised by individual physicians.

edii.  The legal authority, which supports the hospital’s conscience objections.

£iv.  The range of medical conditions or procedures affected by the conscience
objections.

Educate Patient and Surrogate Decision-Maker/Agent - To the extent the patient or his surrogate
decision-maker/agent requests additional information about Advance Directives, or TCHD's
policies regarding Advance Directives, such requests should be referred to the attending
physician, nurse, social worker, chaplain, patient representative, BieeEthics Committee or

54



| Administrative-Policy-ManualPatient Care Services
Advance Health Care Directive, 8610-354

Page 4 of 8

Administration as appropriate, depending upon the kind of information sought. Any such
inquiries or requests, and the answers or referrals offered in response, as well as any follow-up
action undertaken for such a referral, should be documented within the patient's medical record.

17. Educate Staff - In order to assure that questions from the patient and/or surrogate decision-
maker/agent regarding Advance Directives are appropriately referred and answered and, more
importantly, in order to assure that patient participation in medical decision-making is maximized,
and that care is provided consistent with patient values and directives (though not in any way
conditioned upon the existence of such directives), educational information about Advance
Directives and TCHD's policies will be provided (this may be in written form or through in service
education programs) to the medical, allied health professional and hospital staff during hospital
orientation.

18. Educate Community - In order to assure thatthe community served by Tri-City Healthcare
District is educated-abeutaware of advance directives,

educationshall-be-available-through
community-ferums-and/er-written materials made-are available at the Medical Center<{posted-or
ferdisFbution.

D. OUTPATIENT SETTINGS

Any patlent who comes to the hospltal for outpatlent
care will be presumed to desire full resuscntatlve efforts, in the event of an arrest. Outpatients will
not be asked if they have an advance directive, nor will information about advance directives be
offered to outpatients.

2. Excephons—te—the—gene;al—mle—
A patient who volunteers information about his or her advance directive, and provides a
copy of a valid advance directive or DNR at the time of outpatient care, may request that
outpatient staff honor his or her advance directive. Such requests will be honored.

ab. A patient who requests assistance in formulating an Advanced Directive will be
referred to appropriate resource.

b-c.  Outpatient surgery patients shall be treated as inpatients.

ed. Outpatient chemotherapy patients shall be treated as inpatients.

e Emergency department patients shall be treated as inpatients.

FE. FORMS/RELATED DOCUMENTS-REFERENCED THAT CAN BE LOCATED-ON-THE INTRANET:

1. Physician Order for Life-Sustaining Treatment form - Sample
2, Pre-Hospital Do Not Resuscitate (DNR) Form — ExSample
- YourRicht ToMake Decisi About Medical T

G-F. REFERENCES:
1. The Comprehensive Accreditation Manual, (2015), The Joint Commission Standard-Ne-
2 L . .

3. California Hospital Association Consent Manual — Advance Healthcare Directives 20152008

L “Your Right To Make MedicalD " beool

55



AdministrativeRolicy- ManualPatient Care Services
Advance Health Care Directive, 8610-354
Page 5 of 8

56



Adminisirative-PelisyManualPatient Care Services
Advance Health Care Directive, 8610-354
Page 6 of 8

Physician Orders for Life-Sustaining Treatment (POLST) Sample

HIPAA PERMITS DISCLOSURE OF POLST TO OTHER HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONALS AS NECESS_ARY

Physician Orders for Life-Sustaining Treatment (POLST)

First follow these orders, then contact | L@stName
physiclan. This Is a Physician Order Sheet
based on the person’s current medical condition First Middle Name
and wishes. Any section not completed Implies

full treatment for that section. Everyone shall be  Hate of Birth
FENf:fc?W§111,11,2%09) treated with dignity and respect.

Date Form Prepared

CARDIOPULMONARY RESUSCITATION (CPR):  Person has no pulse and is not breathing.

‘ Attempt Resuscitation/CPR Do Not Attempt Resuscitation/DNR (Allow Natural Death)
=1 (Section B: Full Treatment required)

When not in cardiopulmonary arrest, follow orders in B and C.

MEDICAL INTERVENTIONS: Person has pulse andfor is breathing.

Comfort Measures Only Use medication by any route, positioning, wound care and other measures to
relieve pain and suffering. Use oxygen, suction and manual treatment of alrway obstruction as needed for
comfort. Antibiotics only to promote comfort. Transfer if comfort needs cannot be met in current location.

Limited Additlonal Interventions Includes care described above. Use medical treatment,
antibiotics, and IV fluids as indicated. Do not intubate. May use non-invasive positive airway pressure.
Generally avoid intensive care.

() po Not Transfer to hospltal for medical interventions. Transfer if comfort neads cannot be met in current location.
D Full Treatment Includes care described above. Uss intubation, advanced airway interventions,

mechanical ventilation, and defibrillation/cardioversion as indicated. Transfer to hospital if indicated.
Includes intensive care.

Additional Orders:

:3| ARTIFICIALLY ADMINISTERED NUTRITION: Offer food by mouth if feasible and desired.
D No artificial nutrition by tube. D Defined trial period of artificial nutrition by tube.
Long-term artificial nuftrition by tube.
Additional Orders:
SIGNATURES AND SUMMARY OF MEDICAL CONDITION:

Discussed with:
Patient L__l Health Care Declslonmaker D Parant of Minor D Court Appolnted Conservator I:l Other

| Signature of Physiclan
| My signature below indicates to the best of my knowledge that these orders are conslstent with the person’s medical condmon
:| and prefarencas.
Print Physician Name Physlclan Phone Number Date
/| Physician Signature (required) Physician License #

1| Slgnature of Patlent, Decisionmaker, Parent of Minor or Conservator

By signing this form, the legally recognized decisionmaker acknowledges that this request regarding resuscitative measures is
:] consistent with the known desires of, and with the best interest of, the individual who is the subject of the form.

Signature (required) Name (print) Relationship (write self if patient)

Summary of Medical Condition

N e R L AR

SEND FORM WITH PERSON WHENEVER TRANSFERRED (033 DISCHARGED




| Administrative-Peliey- ManualPatient Care Services

Advance Health Care Directive, 8610-354

Page 7 of 8

HIPAA PERMITS DISCLOSURE OF POLST TO OTHER HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONALS AS NECESSARY

Patient Name (last, first, middie) Date of Birth :
M F

Patient Address
Contact Information . . U R i g
Health Care Decisionmaker Address Phone Number
Health Care Professional Preparing Form Preparer Title Phone Number Date Prepared

Directions for Health Care Professional
Completing POLST

» Must be completed by health care professional based on patient preferences and medical indications.

o POLST must be signed by a physiclan and the patient/decisionmaker to be valid. Verbal orders are acceptable with
follow-up signature by physician in accordance with facility/community policy.

¢  Certain medical conditions or medical treatments may prohibit a person from residing in a residential care facility for
the elderly.

» Use of original form is strongly encouraged. Photocopies and FAXes of signed POLST forms are legal and valid.
Using POLST

¢ Any incomplete section of POLST implies full treatment for that section.

Section A:

¢ No defibriliator (including automated external defibrillators) should be used on a person who has chosen “Do Not
Attempt Resuscitation.”

Section B:

¢ When comfort cannot be achieved in the current setting, the person, including someone with “Comfort Measures
Only,” should be transferred to a setting able to provide comfort (e.g., treatment of a hip fracture).
iV medication to enhance comfort may be appropriate for a person who has chosen “Comfort Measures Only.”
Non-invasive positive airway pressure includes continuous positive airway pressure (CPAP), bi-level positive airway
pressure (BiPAP), and bag valve mask (BVM) assisted respirations.

¢ Treatment of dehydration prolongs life. A person who desires IV fluids should indicate “Limited Interventions® or *Full
Treatment.”

Reviewing POLST
It is recommended that POLST be reviewed periodically. Review is recommended when:

¢ The person is transferred from one care sstting or care level to another, or
¢ There is a substantial change in the person's health status, or
« The person's treatment preferences change.

Modifying and Voiding POLST

o A person with capacity can, at any time, void the POLST form or change his/her mind about his/her treatment
preferences by executing a verbal or written advance directive or a new POLST form.,
¢ To void POLST, draw a line through Sections A through D and write “VOID" in large letters. Sigh and date this line.

¢ A health care decisionmaker may request to modify the orders based on the known desires of the individual or, if
unknown, the individual's best interests.

This form is approved by the California Emergency Medical Services Authority In cooperation with the statewide POLST Task Force.

For more information or a copy of the form, visit www.capolst.org

SEND FORM WITH PERSON WHENEVER TRANSFERRED OR DISCHARGED

58



| Administrative Poliey-ManualPatient Care Services
Advance Health Care Directive, 8610-354

Page 8 of 8
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
PRE-HOSPITAL DO NOT RESUSCITATE (DNR) FORM SAMPLE
1. requests limited emergency care as herein described.

(Print Name)

I'understand DNR means that if my heart stops beating or if I stop breathing, no medical procedure to restart breathing
or heart functioning will be instituted.

I'understand this decision will not prevent me from obtaining other emergency medical care by pre-hospital emergency
medical care personnel and/or medical care directed by a physician prior to my death.

Tunderstand I may revoke this directive at any time by destroying this form and removing any “DNR” medallions.

I give permission for this information to be given to the pre-hospital emergency care providers, doctors, nurses, or other
health personnel as necessary to implement this directive.

I hereby agree to the "Do Not Resuscitate" (DNR) order.

Patient/Surrogate Date

Surrogate’s Relationship to Patient

Witness Signature Print Name Date

I affirm this directive is the expressed wish of the patient/surrogate, is medically appropriate, and a copy of this form is
in the patient’s permanent medical record.

In the event of a cardiac or respiratory arrest, no chest compressions, assisted ventilation, intubation, defibrillation, or
cardiotonic medications are to be initiated.

Physician’s Signature Date
Print Name
Address Phone Number

THIS FORM WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED IF IT HAS BEEN AMENDED OR ALTERED IN ANY WAY.
PRE-HOSPITAL DNR REQUEST FORM White Copy: To be kept by patient
Approved by the San Diego Medical Society =~ Canary Copy: To be kept in Patient’s

P.O. Box 23581 permanent medical record

3702 Ruffin Rd Pink Copy: If authorized DNR
‘an Diego, CA 92193-3581 medallion desired, submit this form

619) 569-1334 with Medic Alert enrollment form to:

Medic Alert Foundation, Turlock, CA 95381

59



‘C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: BLOOD GLUCOSE NEWBORN MONITORING

I POLICY:

)>

A.  Function: To screen blood glucose (BG) levels in at-risk late preterm (36 0/7-36 6/7), and-at-
risk term or symptomatic term infants in order to correct or manage neonatal hypoglycemia.

B. Circumstances: Infants 36 0/7-36 6/7 weeks up to term, infants at high risk
1. Setting: Labor and Delivery (L&D), Transition Nursery and Mother Baby

C. Background: Neonatal glucose concentrations decrease after birth, to as low as 30 mg/dL
during the first 1 to 2 hours after birth, and then increase to higher concentrations, generally
above 45 mg/dL by 12 hours after birth.

D. See Patient Care Services (PCS) Glucose POC Testing using the Nova Stat Strip Blood
Glucose Meter Procedure for step by step instructions for blood glucose machine.

1. PROCEDURE:

A. Identify infants at risk and implement monitoring as appropriate.

1. Infants-thatare-at-risk-include-that-need-the POC BG is performed for theteh are-the
following at risk infants:

a. Infants of diabetic mothers (IDM)

b. Large for gestational age (LGA) infants (greater than or equal to 4 kg or 8lbs; 13
0z)

C. Small for gestational age (SGA) infants (less than or equal to 2.5 kg or 5 Ibs; 9
0z)

d. Late Preterm infants (36 0/7 to 36 6/7 weeks gestation-the gestational age that
would be kept in these areas versus transferring to NICU)

e. Post-term infants (greater than 42 weeks gestation)

f. Intrauterine Growth Restriction (IUGR) infants

2. Monitoring is based on hours of age and risk factors
B. Feed at risk infants by 1 hour of age

1. Utilize breastfeeding first and then if being formula fed do not give more than 10 mL at a
time in the first 24 hours of life.

C. Perform initial screen 30 minutes after the initial feeding by performing heel stick per PCS

Collection of Blood Specimen by Skin Puncture procedure.

| 1. If initial screen is less than 25 mg/dL-patient, call provider for orders to transfer to NICU
2. If initial screen 25 mg/dL- 45 mg/dL-feed and re-check in 1 hour.
3. If initial screen is greater than 45 monitor POC BG before feedings.

| D. Monitor at risk infants by performing the followings:

1. Symptomatic Infant: (irritability, tremors, jitteriness, exaggerated Moro reflex, high-
pitched cry, seizures, lethargy, floppiness, cyanosis, apnea, poor feeding) do the
following:

a. Perform a POC BG
b. Stat serum glucose
C. If POC BG less than 45 mg/dL, call provider for orders to transfer to NICU

2. IDM and LGA infants prior to each feed from 4 hours of age to 12 hours of age

3. Late Preterm infants (36 0/7-36 6/7 weeks gestation) or SGA prior to each feed from 4
hours of age to until 24 hours of age

4, Continue feeds every 2 to 3 hours and perform POC BG prior to every feed

Cl]nlcal Nurse i 2 > Medical Professional
|| Review | [Poficlees | Executve | GRCIEE | By | M Commites " | Bxecutve |~ afars | Joarier
| | NEW1214 03/15 04/15 05/15 05/15 09/15 09/15 10/15




Patient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Blood Glucose Newborn Monitoring

Page 2 of 2
a. POC BG less than 35 mg/dL
i. STAT serum glucose
ii. Call provider for orders to transfer to NICU
5. POC BG is greater than 35 mg/dL, but less than 45 mg/dL
a. Re-feed
b. Repeat POC BG prior to next feeding
C. If POC BG less than 45 call PROVIDER for further feeding and/or fluid orders
and continue to check blood sugar prior to next feed.
1. DOCUMENTATION:

Blood glucose resuilts in the electronic health record (EHR)

Patient assessment and response to feeding or interventions

Any complications or adverse side effects

Provider notification and follow-up orders for any critical lab value.

When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized procedure
the nurse shall enter the orders electronically unless a screening process triggers the
appropriate order(s).

aopLN=

V. REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. Current California RN license.

. Education: on hire

. Initial Evaluation: on hire

. Ongoing Evaluation: annually

B
C
D
DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
. Review: Every two (2) years.

B
VI.  CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. All healthcare providers in Women and Newborn Services who have successfully completed
requirements as outlined above are authorized to direct and perform.

VIl. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
A. PCS Glucose POC Testing using the Nova Stat Strip Blood Glucose Meter Procedure
B. PCS Collection of Blood Specimen by Skin Puncture procedure

VIll.  REFERENCES:
A. American Academy of Pediatrics. (2011). Postnatal Glucose Homeostasis in Late Preterm and
Term Infants. Pediatrics. 127(3): 575-579. Retrieved online from pediatrics.aapublications.org.

61



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California
PATIENT CARE SERVICESSTANDARDIZED PROCEDURES MANUAL
| STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: CARE OF THE NEWBORN

A. POLICY:
1. Function: To define the care and immediate treatment post-delivery for the newborn weighing
greater than or equal to 2000 grams that is equal to and are greater than 35 6/7 weeks
gestational age.

2. Circumstances:
a. Setting: EPR-LBRP-Labor and Delivery, Newborn Nursery, and Mother-Baby
b. Supervision: None required. Physician’s office/answering service will be notified of
delivery time and date.
c. Requires that an RN provide immediate care to administer medications, provide nutrition

and/or nutritional support, and to perform procedures, laboratory and diagnostic tests
that are considered to be routine care to the well born term or near term newborn infant.

| d. The WGSWomen and Newborn Services (WNS) RN must adhere to the policies of the
institution and must remain within the scope of practice as stated by the Nurse Practice Act
of the State of California.

B. PROCEDURE:
1. Newborns greater than or equal to 2000 grams and who are greater than 35 6/7 weeks
gestational age shall receive:
a. Prophylactic treatment of eyes (Erythromycin ophthalmic ointment) and medication to
normalize coagulation (Vitamin K) within 2 hours of delivery time.
i. Refer to Patient Care Services (PCS) standardized procedure (SP)
Administration of AguamephytonVitamin K Injection and Erythromycin Opthalmic
Ointment to the Newborns.
ii. Exception: Parents who refuse verbal consent
b. The newborn shall receive Hep B vaccine or Hep B vaccine/HBIG immunoglobulin
injection if indicated according to the mother's HBsAg status and within 12 hours of
delivery time.
i Refer to PCS SP: Administration of Pediatric Hepatitis B Vaccine and PCS-SR
Hepatitis B Immunoglobulin (Hbig) (Hyper B Sd®) to Newboms
ii. Exception: Parents who refuse verbal consent

2. Infant nutrition:
a. Breastfeeding
i. Initiate feedings as soon as possible but no longer than 2 hours following
delivery.
1) If cesarean delivery, as soon as possible (ASAP) when mother and infant
are reunited.
2) If mother and infant are separated for longer than 3 hours, initiate breast-
pumping
a) Refer to WGSWNS procedure: Breast Pumping and Milk Storage
3) Assess and attempt to feed every 2-3 hours and on demand
4) No supplementation of formula unless ordered by provider, requested by
mother or as per other procedures where supplementation is required.
a) Refer to PCS SP : : i
Extrauterine-Life-Blood Glucose Newborn Monitoring.
5) Obtain lactation consult as clinically indicated
Clinical Nursing tof nterdi < Medical Professlonal
Review | follcesa. | Executve | PECREC S | p e | " Commitse ” | Srecutive | Afirs | SO0
Newoans | 812113, | 8121113, 05/15 23, | 1112, 214, 0015 | 413 214, 1015 413;2114

62




| Patient Care ServicesStandardized Procedure-Manual
Standardized Procedure: Care of the Newborn

Page 2 of 4
a) Refer to WESWNS policy: Infant Feeding
b. Bottle-feeding
i. Offer bottle with formula of mother’s choice, 20 Kcal/ounce, by 3 hours of age
1) Assess feeding status every 3-4 hours, offer formula PRN and on
demand
2) Refer to WESWNS procedure: Bottle-Feeding
3. Procedures:
a. Newborn hearing screen.

AR Ensure hearing screen is ordered per RefertoWCSWNS policy: Hearing

Screening-Newborn and Infant
b. Obtain Total Serum Bilirubin at approximately 24 hours of age or sooner if baby
wsually appears to have jaundice.

i If greater than or equal to 95™ percentile (high risk zone) on Bhutani’s curve
(per hours of age) notify provider.

ii. Notify provider of Total Serum Bilirubin prior to discharge if he/she is not
already aware of the result and the baby will not be rounded on/seen again
by a pediatrician prior to discharge.

c. If infant Ceoombs positive, order CBC with manual differential, retic count, and

&e.

ef.

total serum bilirubin STAT and call provider with resultsat-12-hours-after-delivery.
i Contact physncnan |mmed|ately upon return of test results

All infants meeting criteria will have a car seat challenge performed prior to discharge as
per WGSWNS/Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) procedure: Car Seat Challenge
Test.

All infants meeting criteria will have neonatal abstinence scoring performed as per
WGSWNS/NICU procedure: Neonatal Abstinence Scoring.

All infants will have pulse oximetry done after 24 hours of life or prior to discharge per
PCS SP Universal Blood Saturation Screening for Critical Congenital Heart Disease
(CCHD).

4, Laboratory tests:

a.

Point of care glucose testing

i. Positiverisk-fastors-orsymploms-of-hypoglycemia

ii. Refer-Perform per to PCS Blood Glucose Newborn MonitoringSRP—Newbeorn
Hypoglycemia-During-Transition-to-Extrauterine-Life-Standardized Procedure

63



| Patient Care ServicesStandardized-Procedure-Manrual
Standardized Procedure: Care of the Newborn

Page 3 of 4

b. Toxicology
i. Obtain a urine specimen if mother has a positive toxicology screen, a positive
history of substance use, is suspected of substance use or with diagnosis, has
had less than or equal to three prenatal visits, or suspicion of placental abruption
1) If positive for cocaine, amphetamines and or opiates, lab will perform a
confirmation
ii. Obtain a urine specimen on all babies assigned to Neonatology
Cord blood screen (Direct Coombs and blood typing) ASAP
Newborn metabolic screen prior to discharge but at least 12-heurs-following-delivery24
hours following delivery.
i. Refer to PCS procedure: Newborn Screen, Collection of Specimen
e. If Mother is GBS positive and received no treatment or 1 dose only of antibiotics less
than 4 hours prior to delivery
i. Perform CBC with manual differential and blood culture on newborn between 6 -
12 hours of age
1) Notify provider of CBC with manual differential results if abnormal
a) Abnormal CBC for infant, at least one of the following:
i) WBC greater than 35,000 or less than 9,000
ii) ANC less than1500
iii)) Platelet Count less than< 120,000
Call provider immediately ifthe-motherof-the-baby-orfetus-exhibited-signs-offor
maternal/infant signs of chorioamnionitis/infection eherioamnietitis-or the following
symptoms prior to delivery.
a. Maternal temperature greater than or equal to 100.4 degrees Fahrenheit plus two or
more of the following:
i. Maternal tachycardia (greater than 100 bpm)
ii. Fetal tachycardia (greater than 160 bpm)
ii. Uterine tenderness
iv. Foul smelling amniotic fluid
V. Maternal leukocytosis (greater than 15,000 WBC)

oo

C. DOCUMENTATION:

oOr®

1.

2.

Document assessment, actions and provider notification/response in electronic medical-health
record (EHMR) as appropriate.

When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized procedure,
the Registered Nurse sShall enter the medication/order into the electronic health record
as Standardized Procedure

a. Not required if a screening process triggers the order.

Utilizing CPOE, select the Standardized Procedure (SP) power plan SP Newborn Admit.

Type in provider's name and select "Standardized Procedure" as the order communication type.
Initiate, sign and refresh Newborn Medications power plan prior to birth in order to readily
access medications in Pyxis.

Prior to administration of vaccines provide a copy of the Center for Disease Control (CDC)
Vaccine Information Statements (VIS) to the newborn's mother/legal guardian and document in
Cerner. Document the name and edition date of the VIS in the "comments" section of the e-mar
and in care plan.

Document administration and injection sites of medications on the Cerrer-Cerner electronic
Medication Administration Record (€MAR). Including: manufacturer, lot number and
expiration date for all vaccines administered.

64



| Patient Care ServicesStandardized-Procedure-Manua!
Standardized Procedure: Care of the Newborn

Page 4 of 4
8. Document administration of vaccine on the yellow California Immunization Record card. Give
this record to the mother/legal guardian with instructions to take the card with her/him to all
infant healthcare provider visits at discharge.
9. Document patient (mother/legal guardian) teaching in the education section of the EMREHR.
10. FeB-and-tTotal and-direst-serum bilirubin will be documented in the EMREHR.
11. Document newborn screen specimen collection in EMREHR.

12. Document newborn hearing screen in EMREHR.

13. Document car seat challenge, if appropriate, in EMREHR.

14. Document neonatal abstinence score, if appropriate in EMREHR
15. Document the universal blood saturation screening in the EMREHR.

D. REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
Current California RN license working in Women’s and Children’s Services.
Education: Registered Nurse

Initial Evaluation: Orientation

Ongoing Evaluation: Annual

pwb=

E. DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
1. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
2. Review: Every two (2) years.

F. CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
1. All Registered Nurses who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are
authorized to direct and perform “Care of the Newborn” Standardized Procedure.

G. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1. PCS Procedure: Newborn Screen, Collection of Specimen

2. PCS SP Administration of AquarmephytenVitamin K Injection and Erythromycin Ophthalmic
Ointment to Newborns

3. PCS SP Administration-of Rediatric Hepatitis-B-Vlaccine Administration of Hepatitis B Vaccine
and Immunoglobulin (HBIG) to Newborns Standardized Procedure

4, PCS SP Erythromycin Opthalmic Ointment to the Newborns

5. PCS SP Hepatitis B Immunogiobuiin (Hbig) (Hyper B Sd®) to Newbomns

6 PCS SP Newbern-Hypeglycemia-During Transitionto-Extrauterine LifeBlood Glucose
Newborn Monitoring

7. PCS SP: Universal Blood Saturation Screening for Critical Congenital Heart Disease (CCHD)

8. WGCSWNS Policy: Infant Feeding

9. WGCSWNS Procedure: Bottle-Feeding

10. WECSWNS procedure: Breast Pumping and Milk Storage

11. WESWNS/NICU Procedure: Car Seat Challenge Test

12. WGSWNS/NICU Procedure: Neonatal Abstinence Scoring

H. REFERENCES:

1. Thureen, Deacon, Hernandez, Hall. Assessment and care of the well newborn 2nd edition. St.
Louis, Missouri: Elsevier Saunders 2005. pp 91-92.
2. AWHONN Core curriculum for Maternal-Newborn Nursing 4™ edition. St Louis, Missouri:

Elsevier Saunders 2007. pp 427- 429.
3. Gilstrap, L.C. ed, et al. Guidelines for Perinatal Care, 7" Edition. AAP & ACOG 2012.



‘C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: DECEASED PATIENT CARE AND DISPOSITION
Purpose: To outline the nursing responsibilities for preparing the deceased for the morgue,
transporting to the morgue, and placement into a cooler compartment.
Equipment: Shrouding kit, morgue gurney, Chux for newborns, Maximal Barrier Protection (cap,
mask, gown, gloves and large drape)
A PROCEDURE:
1. If there will be Medical Examiner (ME) involvement, prepare body for viewing per ME

2.

10.

1.

guidelines.

After ensuring that there will be no ME involvement, remove all lines/equipment, tubes,

and valuables (give to family or put in safe) from the body. See Patient Care Services

(PCS) Policy - Patient Valuables, Liability and Control.

a. Tie a knot in lines you are unable to remove.

b. Place non-sterile dressing over wounds and discontinued invasive line sites and
tape firmly.

Close patient’'s eyes and place a pillow under their head for family viewing.

Ensure identification band is accurate and in place.

Accommodate family religious/culture preference requests if legal and safe.

a. Specifically ask if any family member wishes to view the deceased before placing

in post-mortem bag.

Deceased may stay in the room awaiting family member’s arrival, but if room

cannot be occupied for extended period other arrangements can be made.

Discuss with the Manager /Administrative Supervisor if there are concerns or

questions.

If corneal donation is a consideration, initiate the following within two hours of

pronouncement of death:

a. Close the eyes

b. Elevate the head (a pillow roll is acceptable)

C. Place a light ice pack over the closed eye lids immediately after death — crushed
ice cubes (equivalent of two ice cubes) in an exam glove is placed over the bridge
of the nose

After family viewing, obtain morgue packet.

a. Do not use chin straps or strings to bind the deceased patient’s chin, wrists or

ankles.

Affix Patient Identification Labels to three tags ensuring information is legible;

ensure information matches patient identification band.

For adults, place one tag around the big-great toe after verifying the name on the tag with

the patient’s hospital identification band. Place one tag on the outside of white post-

mortem bag tied to the zipper. Place one tag on a labeled hospital personal belongings
bag with the room number and name clearly visible.

a. If patient is contagious, attach a red biohazard tag to the zipper on the outside of
the post-mortem bag.

If there are dentures, put them in the mouth. If unable to do so, place in a labeled denture

cup and send home with family. If family refuses, keep with Release of Deceased form.

Place unclothed body into the white post-mortem bag with the head at the bottom of the

bag so after it is zipped, the zipper will be at the patient’s feet.

a. If family requests patient be clothed in his garments, this is allowed (mortuary to be
notified). If there is drainage, contain with a Chux.

Close the bag and zip up completely. The matching of the toe tag and tag on zipper will

identify the patient. The deceased is now ready for transport to the morgue.

b.

C.

b.

Department
Review

Clinicai Policles &
Procedures

Medical Executive
Committee

Nursing Executive
Council

Professional

Affairs Committee Board of Directors

3/03, 5/07, 6/09,
312

312, 8115 3/12, 09/15 3/12, 09/15 512, 10115 5/12




Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Deceased Patient Care and Disposition

Page 2 of 2

12

13.

14.
15.

a. Special covered gurney in morgue to be used for transport.

Obtain and sign for the morgue key from Private Branch Exchange (PBX) (office located

on lower level). Retrieve the special covered morgue transport gurney. Transport the

patient to the morgue on the covered gurney and place the deceased feet first into the

cooler compartment.

a. Leave special gurney in morgue when not in use. Use lower level of hospital for
transport as much as possible.

If all cooler compartments are full,

relibhe-PationtHesresanisive (5474858 0700
1600, Monday—Friday-er-notify the Administrative Supervisor by cell phone 760-644-

G9656—000-0700 weskends-and-helidays.
Return key back to PBX and sign the key back in.

Make one copy of the completed Release of Deceased to put in medical record. Take the
original report to the Administrative Supervisor or the Patient Representative.

B. FETAL DEATHS:

1.

Refer to Patient Care Services procedure Deceased Newborn/Stillborn, Care of.

B-C. FORMS/RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1.
2.

PCS Manual - Patient Valuables, Liability and Control
PCS Manual — Deceased Newborn Stillborn, Care of Procedure

67



(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES POLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 4/03 SUBJECT: Disaster Call Back List
REVISION DATE: 4/05, 5/09; 4/12 POLICY NUMBER: XI.G
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 04/1208/15
Nursing Executive Council: 04/1209/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 06/1210/15
Board of Directors Approval: 06/12
A. POLICY:
1. The Staffing Resource Center shall maintain an up-to-date Disaster Call Back List for the

inpatient nursing units and the Emergency Department.

a. A copy of the list shall be placed in the Disaster Call Back book which shall be kept in
the Staffing Resource Center.

i. Quarterly, a designated Staffing Resource Representative shall-will print runa

current employee Ilst for all inpatient units and the Emergency Department.

ii. Once the updated lists are printed, the phone lists shall be placed in the Disaster
Call Back Book. Old versions shall be discarded in the confidential bin.
2. Any Department that has several staffing changes prior to the quarterly update is
encouraged to send an updated phone list to the Staffing Resource Center.
2:3.  All other departments will be responsible for maintaining a disaster call back list and
communication process for their department.

68



‘c\)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICESSTANDARDIZED-PROCEDURE MANUAL

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: HYPOGLYCEMIA MANAGEMENT IN THE ADULT PATIENT
A. Function: Management of the adult patient with hypoglycemia.
B. Circumstances:

1. Setting: Tri-City Medical Center

B.C.

ASSESSMENTRPROCGEDURE:
A. Assess patient for hypoglycemia:
1. Blood glucose less than 70 mg/dL with or without symptoms
2. Early adrenergic symptoms may include pallor, diaphoresis, tachycardia, shakiness,
hunger, anxiety, irritability, headache, dizziness
3. Later neuroglycopenic symptoms may include confusion, slurred speech, irrational or

uncontroliable behavior, extreme fatigue, disorientation, loss of consciousness, seizures,
pupillary sluggishness, decreased response to noxious stimuli.

TREATMENT FOR DIABETIC PATIENT:
B-A. Treatment if the capillary-bloed-glucese point of care (POC) blood glucose is less than 70

mg/dL:

1. If patient is conscious and able to tolerate oral intake, give one 15 gram tube of glucose
gel.

2. If patient is NPO or unable to tolerate oral intake or has a decreased level of
consciousness, administer:

a. 30 mL of 50% Dextrose intravenously (1V) at a rate of 10mL per minute.
b. If no IV access, Glucagon 1 mg subcutaneously (SQ) or intramuscularly (IM)

3. Recheck eapillary-bloed-glueesePOC blood glucose 15 minutes after treatment. If still
less than 70 mg/dL.:

a. Repeat above treatment
b. Obtain serum blood glucose to verify that the treatment was effective.

4, Notify the attending physician immediately only if treatment is ineffective, otherwise notify
physician of hypoglycemic episode(s) prior to next dose of scheduled insulin or
hypoglycemic agent.

&B. Treatment of serum (lab draw) blood glucose if less than 70mg/dL:

1. Because serum blood glucose is resulted at least 40 minutes (or more) after the blood is
drawn, recheck with capillary-bleed-glucosePOC blood glucose prior to treatment. If less
than 70 mg/dL, treat as outlined above.

Iv. TREATMENT FOR NON-DIABETIC PATIENT AND OUTPATIENTS:
A. Treat if the POC blood glucose is less than 70 mg/dL:

1. If patient is conscious and able to tolerate oral intake, give one 15 gram tube of
glucose gel.

2. If patient is NPO or unable to tolerate oral intake or has a decreased level of
consciousness, administer:

a. 30 mL of 50% Dextrose intravenously (IV) at a rate of 10mL per minute.
b. If no IV access, Glucagon 1 mg subcutaneously (SQ) or intramuscularly (IM)

3. Recheck POC blood glucose 15 minutes after treatment. If still less than 70 mg/dL:

Clinical Nursing Diabetic Pharmacy Medical Professional

Department x 3 Interdisciplinary B ‘ Board of
| | _Review | procedures | Commitoe | Foree | Therapeutics | Commitiee | ecuie | Mk | pirctors
| 08/12 09/12, 4/15 09/12, 4115 05/15 11/12, 05/15 01/13, 09/15 %29’/11:; 10/15 02/13

69



| Patient Care ServicesStandardized-Procedures-Manual
Standardized Procedure: Hypoglycemia Management In the Adult Patient
Page 2 of 3

a. Notify provider for subsequent orders
b. Obtain serum blood glucose to verify that the treatment was effective.
4, Notify the attending physician immediately only if treatment is ineffective,

otherwise notify physician of hypoglycemic episode(s) prior to next dose of
scheduled insulin or hypoglycemic agent.
B:B. Treatment of serum (lab draw) blood glucose if less than 70mg/dL.:
1. Because serum blood glucose is resulted at least 40 minutes (or more) after the
blood is drawn, recheck with POC blood glucose prior to treatment. If less than 70
mg/dL, treat as outlined above.

TREATMENT FOR PREGNANT PATIENT:
A. Treat if the POC blood glucose is less than 60 mg/dL during all phases of pregnancy:

1. If patient is conscious and able to tolerate oral intake, give one 15 gram tube of
glucose gel.

2. If patient is NPO or unable to tolerate oral intake or has a decreased level of
consciousness, administer:

a. 30 mL of 50% Dextrose intravenously (V) at a rate of 10mL per minute.
b. If no IV access, Glucagon 1 mg subcutaneously (SQ) or intramuscularly (IM)

3. Recheck POC blood glucose 15 minutes after treatment. If still less than 60 mg/dL:
a. Repeat above treatment
b. Obtain serum blood glucose to verify that the treatment was effective.

4, Notify the-attending physician immediately only if treatment is ineffective,
otherwise notify physician of hypoglycemic episode(s) prior to next dose of
scheduled insulin or hypoglycemic agent.

EB. Treatment of serum (lab draw) blood glucose if less than 60 mg/dL.:

1. Because serum blood glucose is resulted at least 40 minutes (or more) after the
blood is drawn, recheck with POC blood glucose prior to treatment. If less than 60
mg/dL, treat as outlined above.

DOCUMENTATION:
A. Document the following:
1. Document patient symptoms, glucose values, treatments, and patient’s response to

treatment and physician notification in the medical record.

2. When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized
procedure, the Registered Nurse shall enter the medication/order into the electronic
health record as a standardized procedure.

3-a. Not required if a screening process triggers the order.
4:3. Document administration of medications on the Medication Administration Record

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS PROVIDING INTERVENTIONS:

A. Current California RN license.

B. Education and Training: Blood glucose analysis training using blood glucose monitoring device
including hypoglycemia management.

C. Initial Evaluation: Orientation

D. Ongoing Evaluation: Annual blood glucose monitoring device review with return demonstration
and hypoglycemia management.

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.

B. Review: Every two (2) years.

70



| Patient Care ServicesStandardized-Procedures-Manual
Standardized Procedure: Hypoglycemia Management In the Adult Patient
Page 30of 3

V.

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. All Registered Nurses (RNs) who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above
are authorized to direct and perform Hypoglycemia Management Standardized Procedure.

REFRENCE:

A. California Diabetes and Pregnancy Program Sweet Success: Guidelines for Care. 2012.
California Department of Public Health.

AB. Rule of 15 endorsed by the ADA and Mayo Clinic, Complete Nurses Guide to Diabetes Care,
second edition, ADA, 2009.

71



Oceanside, California

Retire Standardized Procedure-replace with
the Blood Glucose Newborn Monitoring
Standardized Procedure

Clinical Nursing ¥ Medical Professional
“Gomow’t | Poldsed | Execuive | Depenment | Fhamacyand | inedschlnan | guocuve | Aare | Bomdol
Procedures Council y Committee Commitee
8105, 8109 | o0sn2,0315 | 05112, 0315 05/15 05/12, 05/15 09/12, 09/15 b 1015 1012

72




Standardized Procedure Manual
Standardized Procedure: Newborn Hypoglycemia
Page 2 of 5

73



Standardized Procedure Manual
Standardized Procedure: Newborn Hypoglycemia
Page 30of 5

74



ulu

0£ ®&00N|B apISpaq Jeaday :¥s1y YBIH-UON

s

%

JJwQg - G} poaj en
19)9W JUBIDHE
epispaq jeadaa g asoon|b

10 ., peajsealg °

i Bunysa) Jayuny oN

| ¥ X |pjBut gy < 8509NID

anie ‘e
09 > ¥y

B uo asoan|b
jBIs meaq ‘L

A

H

Ip/Buw ulw gg Ul 8soon|b
AN QW IE9 T v > esoon|g |~ apispaq jeaday
\ F 3
. IWQZ - 1 po3}

. NOIN 0} J8jsues] BJNWLIO} 10 paayisealg
. onewojdwAs }siBojojeucan AjoN — = ¥

| 4 4 BN 4 7 | /6w yy — vA o.«mESM:Hm(I. #

/ _ _ - L 9s0on|H ¥
_ _ P ]

sj|nsal asoan|b
Amou pue swoydwiAs Jodal ‘qu 11eD

0¢ > asoon|b
10 qej yesda

paq

A

N

opewojdwAs
ssajun Bunsa) ,oypuny oN

: 1
\30_: JusIIp

e uo asoon}b jeadal g

A

as09n[b qe| Jels meiq

 |pfugpTesoony

r

o

7 980D

n|B sp1spag uuopag”
AP

T __ ip/Bwgg > asoonjb

| 1o/pue onewojdwAs

M_Emu»_ao&E
Jo aanseBbns swoydwAs/subys Buniqiyxz

4

[
| NHOSMAN XSIY HOIH-NON %

wiyob|y eiwadsf|bodAH ulogmaN

75

T_umEoE:Sm ssajun Bu
= [

¥ X |p/6w g < 9509NjH

A

13S9) Joyuny o&

sbBuipasy aiojaq usyl ¥
abe jJo sunoy z ¢
ebe joinoy | 'z

Alj3P JO SeINUIW 0F UIYIM °}
:9509n|6 apispaq wuoad

Pa]10J3u02 UonEedIp
Jo juejul Buipnjox3)
- NJOFMAN XS HOIH

elwadA|BodAY wiogman :¢

G jo t abed

0id pazipiepuels

|enue 9...,-5901d paZIpJepuels



_ Bunsa) sayunj oN T

76

. | p X 1p/Bw gy Z 8soonig

souljepk
Jod Bunssf anupuod
P Gp < 9soonj

._ mE
awies oo I

= 0} I9jsuel
PR NOIN 03 Jejsuei.

i > ‘ )siBojojeucanN A330

1

pd .

Ip/Bw
S 9s092n|6 apispaq

1o qej yeadad §)
" =

Aw
Iseauq passatdxa
10 B|NWIOS TWOE-0Z
juejul pasy ‘6G > SI ¥y

l9)oul Juasaylp
e uo asoonib jeadai

2 as0on|b qej Jeis
MeIp pue (i 19BIU0)

ﬁ

> omoo%\

ujw gg ul asoon|b
apispaq jeaday

Ip/Bw pp . 4

1

|WiQZ-S | paa} sjuejul paj ejnuLiod
BINULIOY JO YILSealq passaldxa
WSL-0) Juawelddns pue pasysealg |
:jueju) paygseaig i

i

- g @soon|9 |

|

1p/Bw

]

> onewoydwAisy 7

__ 7 onewojdwAs ssajun Bunsay oyuny 0214
A

7 ¥ x |p/Bbw mv < 8so0anjg) 7

ke 1
sbBugpaay a10jeq usyy, 'y
abe jo sinoy 2 '¢
abe jounoy | -z

0¢ > asoan|o

B

AIBAI9P}Q SSINUIL 0F UIYNM °L
apIspaq uuoyed

~

JlL3gvia Dm._._om._.zy
NOILVOIQIN 4O LNVANI

s

G Jo G abed

elwaoA|BodAH wogmap 8 214 pazipiepuels
|ENUBN 8J1+=-001d PzZIpIepue)S



‘c‘» Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: PNEUMOCOCCAL AND INFLUENZA VACCINE SCREENING AND
ADMINISTRATION

I POLICY:
A Function:

1. To provide guidelines to the Registered Nurse (RN) when administering
Pneumococcal and/or influenza Vaccine(s) to the appropriate patient(s) as indicated
per criteria set forth by the Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee and the Medical
Executive Committee.

2. To provide guidelines when a physician does not want the patient to receive the
vaccine(s).

B. Circumstances for Pneumococcal Vaccine:

1. Setting: Tri-City Medical Center

2. Supervision: None required

3. Exclusions: Immunization in Labor and Delivery and women currently pregnant will
be according to physician orders and not this standardized procedure

4, Patient indications:

a. Pneumococcal Vaccine Risk Assessment for all patients 6 years and older.
b. The Pneumococcal Vaccine should be given if any of the following indications
are met:
i. Age 65 or older and never received Pneumococcal vaccine or is
unsure
i Age 6 to 64 and have never been vaccinated-with:
1) Chronic cardiovascular disease
2) Chronic renal failure, or nephrotic syndrome
3) Chronic pulmonary disease
4) Diabetes mellitus
5) Sickle cell
6) Alcoholism
7) Cirrhosis
8) Chronic liver disease
9) Cerebrospinal fluid leaks
10)  Splenic dysfunction or absence
11)  Cochlear implants
12) Immunocompromised, including those with HIV infections,
leukemia, lymphoma, Hodgkin’s disease, multiple myeloma,
malignancy
13) Immunosuppressive therapy (including long term systemic
corticosteriods)
14)  Age 19 through 64 years who is a smoker or has asthma.
C. If the patient does not meet any of the above indications, patient is NOT at
high risk. Do not immunize.

5. The Pneumococcal Vaccine should NOT be routinely given without a physician’s

order if the patient:
a. Has a contraindication:
i. Less than 6 years of age
i, Had a previous reaction to the Pneumococcal vaccine
[ : Clinical Nurse Infection Pharmacy , Medical Professional
Department Interdisciplinary Board of
Review Pﬁ'g:!::?:r:s (I:E:r‘::::ittlx:e cgr‘:lrr:{giee Ther::guﬂcs Gommitee (:E:;(::lttltveee C:n?::{tfee Dlrectors
aoe, 15 | 2L 15| 421, 0715 07115 12,0715 | 112,015 | 212, 09115 1015 2012




| Patient Care ServicesStandardized-Procedure-Manual
Standardized Procedure: Pneumonia and Influenza Vaccine Screening and Administration

| Page20f3

ii. Age 6 — 18 and have received a conjugate vaccine within last 8 weeks

iv. Received a bone marrow transplant within the past 12 months
V. Is currently receiving a scheduled course of chemotherapy or radiation
therapy
b. Ordered not to have vaccine by physician
C. Refuses or advocate refuses

If no exclusion criteria identified, then immunize

Circumstances for Influenza Vaccine:

Setting: Tri-City Medical Center
Supervision: None required
Exclusions: Immunization in Labor and Delivery will be according to physician orders
and not this standardized procedure
Patient indications
a. Influenza Vaccine Risk Assessment for all patients 6 months of age and older:
b. The Influenza Vaccine should be given to patients admitted and/or discharged
during the normal flu season until the vaccine is no longer available, if any of
the following indications are met:
i. Age 6 months and older
ii. Women who will be pregnant during the influenza season (October
through March) NOTE: Influenza vaccine is not contraindicated at any
stage of pregnancy
iii. Women who are knowingly pregnant shall receive single-dose
preservative free vaccine (*Not to exceed 1mcg of Thimerosal per

0.5mL dose.) *
1) Pharmacy to provide single-dose syringe/vial for knowingly
pregnant women if available
iv. Influenza immunization history is unknown by patient or advocate
The Influenza Vaccine should NOT be given if the patient:
a. Has contraindication

i. Has allergy to eggs or reaction to prior influenza vaccine
(i.e.,anaphylactic allergic reaction)

ii. Had previeus-diagnosis of Guillian-Barre Syndrome within six (6)
weeks of vaccination (will be left up to the individual healthcare
provider to decide if recommended)

iii. Received bone marrow transplant within past 42-six (6) months

iv. Had a previous influenza immunization this flu season)
b. Ordered not to have vaccine by physician
c. Refuses or advocate refuses

If no exclusion criteria identified, then immunize

During the initial assessment, the RN will complete the Pneumococcal /Influenza Vaccination
Adult Immunization Assessment Screen in Cerner to determine whether or not the
vaccinations are indicated according to the following criteria:

If the patient meets any inclusion criteria and no exclusion criteria, the RN will inform
the patient/advocate that they are eligible for the vaccination(s), give the
patient/advocate the vaccination information sheet(s), and plan to administer the
vaccination(s).

If the RN is unsure of whether the patient is a candidate for the vaccine(s), the
physician should be contacted for specific orders.

Unless the physician has signed an order to withhold the Pneumococcal and/or Influenza

vaccine, remove the age appropriate dose assigned by pharmacy from the Pyxis Medication
station and administer the vaccine(s).

6.
C.
1.
2.
3.
4.
|
| s
|
| 6.
II. PROCEDURE:
A
1.
2.
B.
C.

For patients in the Emergency Department, the Pneumococcal and/or Influenza vaccine
should be administered at the time the physician order is received.

78



| Patient Care ServicesStandardized-Procedure-Manual
Standardized Procedure: Pneumonia and Influenza Vaccine Screening and Administration
| Page3of3

VL.

VII.

DOCUMENTATION:

A. Document the vaccine administration in the medical record.

B. Document vaccine lot number and site of administration.

C. Document that the Vaccination Information Sheet was given to the patient.

D. Document refusal of immunizations.

E. When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized

procedure, the Registered Nurse shall enter the medication/order into the electronic
health record

1. Not required if a screening process triggers the order

PATIENT EDUCATION:

A. If the patient meets inclusion criteria, the RN will review the Pneumococcal and Influenza
Vaccine Information sheet(s) with the patient and give the patient a copy.

B. For transfers to skilled nursing facilities and other hospitals, print and send a copy of the

Immunization Tab indicating vaccine(s) administered, with a copy of the Medical Record.

REQUIREMENTS FOR R.N. INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. Current California RN license
B. Initial evaluation: Orientation
C. Ongoing evaluation: Ongoing

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
B. Review: Every 2 years or review procedure per Hospital policy.

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. All RNs who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are authorized to
direct and perform Administration of Pneumococcal and/or Influenza Vaccine.

79



(C\J) Tri-City Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care Services
PROCEDURE: TRANSPORTING VENTILATOR PATIENTS
Purpose: Establish a standard of care for transporting continuous ventilator patients.

Supportive Data:

AARC Clinical Practice Guideline (RespirCare 2002), Intra-hospital transport of
Critically lil ventilated patients; 2005 Nov; Critical Care Medicine, Guidelines for the
inter- and intra-hospital transport of critically ill patients; 2004 Jan; Critical Care
Medicine. Egan’s Fundamentals of Respiratory Care, 2013, 10" edition, pgs 1038-
1039/

Equipment:

Manual resuscitator bag with reservoir, mask and PEEP attachment (if needed), pulse
oximeter, and cardiac monitor depending on patient’s condition. Full oxygen cylinder, gas
source in the area to which patient is being transported.

Suction source in the area to which patient is being transported.

Transport vent, if applicable.

A. PROCEDURE: Registered Nurses (RNs) and Respiratory Care Practitioners (RCP) competent to
care for ventilated patlents are authorlzed to perform th|s procedure kmensed#eeatrenal—Nurses

1. . Two people are required to transport a ventilator patient, a qualified RN and ar RCP.
2. The responsibilities of the RCP shall include:

a.
b.
c.

o

= SaQ -~

L 1]
.

k.

Ensure a resuscitator bag and mask-aremask is available.

Ensure adequate oxygen in cylinder for transport.

Attach a PEEP valve to the resuscitator bag or the transport vent if PEEP required is
greater than 5 cmH20.

Attach resuscitation bag or transport ventilator to the patient, ventilating patient at
previously noted rate and minute volume.

At destination, connect ventilator to gases and Power, if applicable. Ensure
ventilator is functioning properly and patient is being adequately ventilated.
Maintain airway security and patency.

Provide the RN with yeur-RCP pager number or cell phone number.

Document in the medical record.

Disconnect the ventilator air and oxygen hoses and electrical cord after the
patient is connected to the manual resuscitator.

Move the ventilator to the designated area.

Connect oxygen, air (if available), and electrical sources — must be connected
to red emergency power outlet.

3. The responsibilities of the RN shall include:

Oversee the transport.

Stay with the patient throughout the procedure unless a qualified RN is present
(i.e.: Interventional Radiology, Cardiac Cath Lab).

Monitor patient safety.

Document in the medical record

Professional
Reviiwe ¢ elEioRe | o Gmaie | Boltbnsl | meit s | TR | i
Committee
7/88,7/97,7/03, 4/04,
4/06, 6/09, 12/14 08/11, 12/14 08/11, 12/14 08/15 10/11, 09/15 11/11, 10/15 12/41

80



Patient Care Services

Transporting Ventilator Patients Procedure
Page 2 of 2

B. REQUIRED OBSERVATIONS AND DOCUMENTATIONS
1. RN and RCP to document the transport in the electronic medical-health record (EHR).
2, The RCP will chart the ventilator check in the electronic-medical-recordEHR. See




2
(C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICESSTANDARDIZED-PROCEDURES-MANUAL

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: UNIVERSAL BLOOD SATURATION SCREENING FOR CRITICAL
| CONGENITAL HEART DISEASE (CCHD)

A POLICY:

1.

To provide guidelines for universal blood saturation screening for all newborns who are

discharged from Tri-City Medical Center

a. The RN must adhere to the policies of the institution and remain within the scope of
practice as stated by the Nurse Practice Act of the State of California

Circumstances:

a. Setting: Labor & Delivery, Mother/Baby, Admission Nursery, and or Neonatal (NICU).

b. Supervision: None

C. Contraindications: None

Rationale: Pulse oximetry is a simple, non-invasive way to rule out CCHD in the newborn. In a

joint statement the American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) and American Heart Association

(AHA) state: “Routine pulse oximetry performed on asymptomatic newborns after 24 hours of

life, but before hospital discharge may detect CCHD. Routine pulse oximetry performed after 24

hours in hospitals with on-site pediatric cardiovascular services incurs very low cost and risk of

harm.”

Inclusion criteria for NICU: Screen is to be done when baby is not on oxygen for approximately

12 hours at the discretion of the neonatologist

Exclusions:

a. Aan infant that has had an Echocardiogram performed

b. Transferred to another facility prior to test (out born)
§-c. An inborn baby who died before screening performed

B. PROCEDURE:

1.

Give parent/significant other parent education sheet at the time of the test or when
parent/significant other available.

| 2. If the test is refused have parent read and sign Refusal form for Newborn Oxygen Saturation
Screening for CCHD, document the refusal in the electronic medical record (EMR) and notify
provider.

3. Gather supplies and or equipment needed to perform the test.

4, Pair the pulse oximetry screening with another standard of care screening performed at 24
hours of age, such as hearing screening. If early discharge is planned, screening should occur
as late as possible.

a. If baby discharged at less than 24 hours — perform the test as close to discharge as
possible
i. Pass: notify Pediatrician of result for further follow-up
ii. Fail: follow steps below for fail

5. Conduct the screening in a quiet area. If possible, have the parent available to quiet and soothe
the infant.

6. H-pessible;-Ceonduct the screening if possible while the infant is quiet, awake, and calm.

a. Do not attempt to perform pulse oximetry on an infant while he or she is sleeping, crying
or cold as oxygen saturations may be affected.

7. Use a clean pulse ox probe for each infant screened.

Clinical Nursing . Pharmacy & AT A Medlca} Professional |
Tevow | polcest | Emilie | oifiiianes | Toommeuies | "Eonliee | et | A | Dot
o612, 07713 | 0712 9713, e 05/15 05/15 0nz SaI13, oons | O2I0M3 1 /15 10113

82



| Patient Care ServicesStandardized-Procedure-Manual
Standardized Procedure: Universal Blood Saturation Screening for Critical Congenital

Page 2 of 3
8. Perform pulse oximetry on the right hand and one foot after 24 hours of age; measurements
should be taken in parallel or one after the other.
a. Premature infants should have the screening performed when medically appropriate.
b. In NICU the test will be performed at 24-48 hours of life unless an Echocardiogram is
performed or baby on oxygen within the last 12 hours at the discretion of the
neonatologist
9. Ensure all readings are accurate by using the pulse oximetry equipment confidence indicators.

a. Pass-If the oxygen saturation is greater than or equal to 95% in either extremity, with a
less than or equal to 3% difference between the two, the infant will “pass” the screening
test and no additional evaluation will be required unless signs or symptoms of
Congenital Heart Disease (CHD) are present.

b. Fail-If the pulse oximetry reading is less than 90% in either the hand or the foot, transfer
the infant to the NICU for further evaluation.

i. Immediately notify the Neonatologist in NICU and the infant’s physician should
be notified.
ii. Infectious and pulmonary pathology should be excluded.

10. Rescreen-If oxygen saturations are less than 95% in both the hand and foot or there is a greater
or equal to 3% difference between two measures separated by one hour transfer the infant to
the NICU
a. The infant’s physician should be notified.

the Registered Nurse (RN) shall enter the medication/order into the electronic health
record as a standardized procedure. .
a. Not required if a screening process triggers the order
414:12. Documentation:
a. Decument-the-eEducation given and verbalized to parent(s) or guardian(s);
b. Results of screening
i Ppulse oximetry reading; (preductal and postductal);
ii. lif parent or guardian refused the screening;
iiii. lif infant passed, failed;
iv. Hhad an Echocardiogram performed;
V. Ttransferred to NICU;

——Rrefusalforthe screen;
vi. Ffailure information to the parents;
: i 1
'E"'te' I.el:t_lens £ ind ’ |
a-c.  Pprovider notifications in the newborn’s electronic medical record.

1. Current California RN license.

C. REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

2 Initial Evaluation: Orientation
3 Ongoing Evaluation: Annually
3.

D. DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

1 Method: This standardized procedure was developed and approved through collaboration with
an authorized representative from Nursing Administration, Administration and Medical Staff.
2. Review: Every two Yyearsly

Er———hirsing-adminisiretion
b. :'l'ts'l.d'sleglpl"'a'?.I lagstase G.”ennmttee



| Patient Care ServicesStandardized-Procedure-Manual
Standardized Procedure: Universal Blood Saturation Screening for Critical Congenital

Page 3 of 3

d— Board of Directors

E. CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

| 1,

Women’s and NewbornGhildrer Services RNs

F. REFERENCES:

1.

2.

23.

Advances in Neonatal Care, (2012), A Nurse-Driven Algorithm to Screen Congenital Heart
Defects in Asymptomatic Newborns..—42;

American Academy of Pediatrics,(2012), Endorsement of Health and Human Services
Recommendation for Pulse Oximetry Screening for Critical Congenital Heart Disease |,
Pediatrics, 129, 190-192.

American Academy of Pediatrics, (2013), Oxygen Saturation Nomogram in Newborns
Screened for Critical Congemtal Heart Dlsease, 131, e 1803 1810

American Academy of Pedlatrlcs (2013), Strategles for Implementlng Screening for Critical
Congenital Heart Disease, Pediatrics, 128, e1259-e1267.

Advisory Committee on Heritable Disorders in Newborns and Children. (2010, October 15).
Letter to the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Retrieved April
25, 2011, from
www.hrsa.gov/heritabledisorderscommittee/correspondence/October15th2010letter.htm.
Congenital Heart Disease Screening Toolkit, A toolkit for Implementing Screening, 2™ edition,
Children’s Natlonal Medical Center, 2011.

99, 1-9.

Glidewell J, Grosse SD Lloyd- Puryear M, Howell RR. Strategles for Implementlng Screening for
Critical Congenital Heart Disease. Pediatrics. 2011; 128:e1-e8

84



(@O)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

ISSUE DATE: 8/04 SUBJECT: Failure Mode & Effects Analysis
(FMEA)

REVISION DATE: 7/06; 8/10 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-389

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval 09/15

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 44/4010/15

Board of Directors Approval: 12/10

A. PURPOSE:

1. To improve safety and reduce the risk of errors Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) selects

one high risk process and conducts a proactively high risk assessment-evaluate-and-address
I bilities | iontsafoby related healt .

POLICY:

1. TCHDT+H-Gity-Medical-Center{FCMC,) utilizes the Failure Mode and Effects Analysis (FMEA)

method. The Patient Safety Committee oversees the FMEA process.

2. Processes selected for FMEA application represent a high-risk or high-vulnerability area, utilizing
available information about sentinel events and other high risk and/or critical path issues known to
occur in health care institutions that provide similar care and services. This selection is based on:

a. Identified and/or suspected areas of patient safety improvement opportunities at TCHD -
Gity-Medieal-Genter, based on review of information sources available within the facility.

b. Information published periodically by the Joint Commission that identifies the most
frequently occurring types of sentinel events and patient safety risk factors.

c. Other recognized sources that identify high risk and high-occurring vulnerabilities, such as

the National Quality Forum’s Safe Practices for Better Healthcare, the Institute for Safe
Medication Practices (ISMP) information, Food and Drug Administration databases and
advisories.

e-d. New processes affecting patient care before they are implemented

3. At least one high-risk process is assessed every eighteen monthsarnually using the FMEA
methodology.

4, The Patient Safety Committee Quality Outeomes-Committee approves the prioritization of FMEA
initiation and reports to-the-Exesutive-Counsil, the Quality Assurance /Performance
Improvement/Patient-Safety (QA/PIRS) Committee, te-the-Medical-Executive-Committee-and to
the Professional Affairs Committee-ef-the-Board and then the Board of Directors.

5. Patient Safety Committee (PSC) recommends an interdisciplinary team and team leader to
implement the FMEA based on the scope of the project.

REFERENCE:
1. The Comprehensive Accreditation Manual Joint Commission (2015) — Leadership Standard
840405 ER1D

85



Section: District Operations

TRI-CITY HEA DELETE Policy 8610-210 -This was Solicitation and
made Board Policy #15-027 on the Distribution of Literature
. . .| approval of the Board of Directors on on District Property
Administ| g/24/2015,

Policy Number 210 Page 1 of 2

Formulation Date_4/83 Review Dates_11/94, 2/05 Revised Dates_5/88; 9/00: 2/03
Administrative Authority President/CEO Approval Dates
Reviewer__Human Resources Medical Staff Authority M.E.C. Approval Date_
Vice President Approval Date
Governing Body




TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

Administrative Policies

Section: District Operations

Subject: Solicitation and
Distribution of Literature
on District Property

Policy Number 210 Page 2 of 2

87



‘c‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Environment of Care Manual
Safety Management

SUBJECT: Risk Assessment Policy

ISSUE DATE: 11/87 POLICY NUMBER: 1040
REVIEW DATE(S): 01/90, 01/94, 06/08
REVISION DATE(S): 01/97, 07/00, 04/03, 10/05, 06/11

Department Approval Date(s): 09/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 09/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

8oard of Directors Approval Date(s):

A.

POLICY:

1. It is the policy of the Tri-City Healthcare District to conduct a Risk Assessment of the
healthcare environment to evaluate potential and existing hazards and recommend and
implement protective measures associated with various tasks performed in each area of
the hospital, off-site facilities and campus grounds.

PURPOSE:

1. The risk assessment is used to evaluate the impact of the environment of care on the
ability of the organization to perform clinical and business activities. The impact may
include disruption of normal functions or injury to individuals.

RESPONSIBILITY:

1. The Director of Safety/EOC Officer is responsible for managing the risk assessment
process. The responsibilities include:
a. Participating in the selection of Risk Assessment Team members.
b. Scheduling area assessments
c. Managing the documentation of the risk assessment process

PRACTICE:

1. A risk assessment of all existing programs will be conducted as part of the evaluation of
the EC programs.

2. The risk assessment will be reviewed periodically or as deemed necessary.

3. A risk assessment of all new services and of all areas undergoing major renovation,

alteration, or conversion will be conducted prior to occupancy and/or use.

88



Environment of Care Manual
Risk Assessment Policy
Page-2-of4

AG.

4. The risk assessment findings will be used to identify protective measures necessary for
ensuring personnel / occupant safety and serve as a data source for confirmation during
Hazard Surveillance/EOC tours.

5. The risk assessment will be submitted to the Environmental Health & Safety Committee
(EHSC) for review, updates and changes.

PURPOSE:

1. This procedure describes the actions required to initiate and conduct an initial risk
assessment and the actions required to re-evaluate a risk assessment as part of the
annual evaluation of the EC programs.

INITIAL RISK ASSESSMENT:
1. An initial risk assessment is required for all areas not having had a risk assessment
conducted within the last 3 years.
a. Aninitial risk assessment is required whenever a new building is constructed, the
organization purchases an existing building, or an area undergoes significant
renovation or conversion of use.

2. Each department or area requiring an initial risk assessment is evaluated using an
appropriate risk assessment form(s). (See Risk Assessment Tool)
3. The evaluator completes the form by identifying the risks related to the environment and

the activities conducted in the area. Each risk is scored using the numerical values:1-5

rating scale or color coded scale included in the form.

a. To determine the appropriate score for each identified risk, the reviewer will
consider information obtained through a physical tour of the facility, regulatory
inspections, historical incident reports, accident & injury statistics, previous
safety committee minutes, hazard surveillance reports, interviews with
department heads & staff members, as well as the current best demonstrated
practices.

4. The Director of Safety/EOC Officer is responsible for identifying an appropriate Risk
Assessment Team and scheduling the evaluation of the affected areas.

5. The completed risk assessment, including the sections on the form for recommended
protective measures required including but not limited to, training, personal protective
equipment, policies/procedures, and comments and changes will be presented to the
EHCSC for review and approval.

a. Should any situations that constitute immediate danger be discovered during the
course of the risk assessment process, they will be reported immediately to the
Director of Safety/EOC Officer and the appropriate department manager for
appropriate corrective action and resolution.

FORM(S);

1. Risk Assessment Scoring Grid
2. Risk Assessment Tool

REFERENCE(S):
1. The Joint Commission: EC 02.01.01 EP 1&3

89



Environment of Care Marual
Risk Assessment Policy
Page -3 -0of4

90



Environment of Care Manual
Risk Assessment Policy
Page-4-0of4

Risk Assessment Scoring Grid

Scoring Criteria
(color-coded)
A high-risk area with possible life threatening or
gk | disabling consequences, as well as some history of
G associated incidents with serious injury.
A high or significant risk area with possible life
41 5 threatening or disabling consequences and no history of
(i g } associated incidents with serious injury.
A moderate risk of minor injury or inconvenience to
3 patients, visitors, or staff.
(yellow)
A minimal risk of minor injury or inconvenience to
2 patients, visitors, or staff.
(green)
1 Virtually no risk of injury or inconvenience to any one.
(blue)

91



‘C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Environment of Care Manual

Life Safety Management
SUBJECT: Exit Doors
ISSUE DATE: NEW
REVIEW DATE(S):
REVISION DATE(S):
Department Approval Date(s): 08/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s):  09/15
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A POLICY:

1.

It is the policy of the Tri City Healthcare District to ensure that all designated exit doors
throughout the organization and off site buildings are free from obstruction and clear for access
by patients, staff or visitors in an emergency situation.

B. PROCEDURE:

1.

2.

3.

All designated exit doors (including stairwells) will not be locked at any time in the path of
egress.

All stairwells will not contain any items (with the exception of evacu-chairs) or be utilized for
storage at any time.

All exit stair doors and designated exit doors leading to outside the facility will be kept free from
obstructions and all panic bars will be maintained in working order. The exit doors are to be fully
functional and capable of opening to complete width.

All exit door vision panels (windows) will be maintained free from decorations, mirrors,
hangings, or any other type of obstruction.

Exit access corridors will maintain a minimum width of 44 inches or 36 inches where serving an
occupant load of less than 50 occupants.

Egress pathways outside of all exit doors will remain clear to the public way.

It is the duty of all TCMC staff members to ensure designated exit doors, corridors and
stairwells are kept free from obstructions which may hamper the safe exit of any staff, patients
or visitors from the facility. If any staff member observes an obstruction prohibiting a safe exit,
they are to immediately remove it or contact the department supervisor for assistance.

92



(C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Environment of Care Manual

Life Safety Management
SUBJECT: Fire Plan - Code Red
ISSUE DATE: 11/87 POLICY NUMBER: 3005
REVIEW DATE(S): 11/90, 11/93, 11/97, 4/06, 6/12
REVISION DATE(S): 11/94, 3/00, 4/03, 10/11, 4/13
Department Approval Date(s): 08/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 09/15
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A PURPOSE:

1. Tri-City Medical-GentersHealthcare District’s Code Red Policy will insure the protection of
patients, employees, visitors and property from fire, smoke and other products of combustion.

B. POLICY:

1. All employees will be familiar with Tri-City Medical-Center'sHealthcare District’s Fire Policy,
and when applicable, the Department Specific Fire Policy for the area in which they work. All
staff must know what to do in case of a fire, how to turr-ninitiate an alarm, the location of the
fire extinguishers and alarm pull stations in his or her department, and the operation of the fire
extinguishers.

a.

Employees must be familiar with the acronym RACE:

i. R: Rescue - remove anyone from immediate danger, closing fire and room
doors and calling out for assistance.
ii. A: Alarm - activate the nearest fire alarm (pull station) e~and netify-call

PBX operators by dialing "66" and notify them of the “Code Red”fire.
Outpatient-All off campus locations dial "911".

ii. C: Contain - close all remaining doors.-in-thefire-area.

iv. E: Extinguish - extinguish the fire if it can be done without endangering
yourself or others.

Supervisors are responsible for showing new employees the location of extinguishers

and hese—eabmetsalarm pull statlons en—the-fwstdurmg department orlentatlon day

PASS for extungwsher use:

acronym

i. P: PULL the pin

ii. A: AIM the nozzle at the base of the fire

iii. S SQUEEZE the handle

iv. S SWEEP back and forth across the base of the fire

C. PROCEDURE:
1. WHEN A FIRE ALARM SOUNDS:

a.

b.

C.

The hospital operator will announce on the overhead page system "Code Red" and give
location of the fire. Do Not call the operator to obtain information about the fire.

If you are away from your assigned area when the alarm sounds, stay where you are
and wait for further instructions from the overhead page system.

The hospital's Fire Response team will consist of designated personnel in Facilities
Services, Environmental Services and Security Services. Upon hearing the alarm, these
staff members are to stop their work and go immediately to the area indicated by the

93



Environment of Care Manual
Fire Plan — Code Red
Page 2 of 4

overhead page system.

d. The Senior Engineer will take immediate charge of the Fire Response Team. In his or
her absence, the Engineer on duty will take command. This team is subject to the
direction of the Administrator and/or City Fire Captain upon his or her arrival.

e. Patients are not to be evacuated from floors without the order of the Incident
Commander or designee. If it is apparent to the Department Director/or designee that
evacuation is absolutely necessary for patient safety, and if it is not possible to obtain
the authoritative order, he or she may elect to evacuate patients.

f. Engineering will clear the fire alarm after the fire is secured.

Clinical personnel on other units should remain at their stations. All other personnel
should remain in their work areas unless their assistance is requested.

h. The Hospital PBX Operator will announce on the overhead page system "Code Red All
Clear” when fire is secure.

2. CODE RED IN YOUR AREA:

a. AVOID PANIC: The greatest danger in most fires is panic. Do not alarm patients by
excited motions. Never shout "Fire!" Patients look to you for protection. Appear calm
and move with assurance.

b. Remove patients and other persons from immediate danger.

C. Go to the nearest fire alarm pull bex-station and “£pull the handleit to activate the
alarm=®,

d. Dial "66" to report "Code Red." Give location, size, extent of fire, and material burning, if
known. Facilities off campus dial "911".

e. Extinguish fire if possible - if it is safe, use a fire extinguisher to attempt to bring fire

under control. If fire is out of control, close doors to room/area and shut off oxygen if
possible. Move patients to the other side of the fire door away from the fire. Allow no one
except the fire department to enter.

f. Check for smoke and flames in other rooms then close all doors.

g. Stand by to assist as needed.

3. FIRE IN PATIENT'S ROOM:

a. Patient’s bed in flames: Remove the patient from bed to a safe place such as another
bed, chair or hallway. Depress the nurse call button in the bathroom for immediate
assistance. Do not take a smoldering bed out of the room.

b. Close the patient's room door once the patient is out.

C. Activate the fire alarm pull station nearest to the fire.

d. Call PBX Operator, dial "66". Give exact location of the fire, including the room number.

AREA NOT EVACUATED UNDER FIRE CONDITIONS:

a. Provide maximum protection:

i. Instruct people to stay in their rooms with the door closed.

ii. Reassure patients of their safety.

ii. Place a wet blanket or linens at the base of the doors of all occupied room to
prevent smoke from entering room.

b. If safe to do so 0oOne employee must remain in the corridor to assist fire department
upon their arrival.

5. EVACUATION: Always use stairs, never the elevator, during a fire.

a. If evacuation is ordered for an area, the following are methods to be used:
i. Blanket Carry
ii. Two Person Carry

b. Once a room has been evacuated, it should be marked "empty" by placing a pillow in
front of the door. Only firefighters may enter the room after that.

c. Remove Medical Records if possible.

d. Evacuation plans are posted throughout the facility. They include evacuation routes and

the location of alarms and firefighting equipment.
6. BE ALERT FOR FIRE HAZARDS:
a. Never prop open fire doors.



Environment of Care Manual

Fire Plan — Code Red

Page 3 of 4

Hallways must be kept clear at aII tlmes

Never place flammable Ilqwds or oxygen near an ignition source.

Do not use unapproved appliances - appliances brought from outside source must be
cleared by Facilities Management.

Good housekeeping is the best guarantee against fire. Do all you can to maintain order

and cleanliness in the interest of fire protection. Make it a habit to watch for fire hazards.

Do not allow stored items to obstruct sprinkler heads. (18" minimum clearance)
If you see or smell smoke, report it immediately for investigation. Early detection means
prompt extinguishing of fire.

DUTIES OF PERSONNEL

a.

b.
c.
d.

e.
f.
g.
h.
i

J-

Be completely familiar with the Fire Safety Program and your responsibilities—in-the

pregram:

Participate in all fire drills and practice sessions as required.

Attend all fire training classes when assigned.

Learn the fire alarm code and how to report a fire - Dial "66". Qutpatient-All off campus
locations dial "911".

Learn the locations of and how to operate the fire alarm bexes-pull stations and fire
extinguishers.

Be acquainted with panic control and evacuation procedures.

Observe the "No Smoking" rules. and-restricted-areas-

Never store flammable liquids in your desk or cabinet.

Report any defective wiring - such as frayed cords, loose or broken plugs, blown fuses,
etc.

Properly dispose of waste or rags used with cleaning solvents.

k————Do not use special-portable heating units. These units, particularly portable types

are not permitted anywhere on the hospital premises unless approved by
Engineering, No portable heaters are allowed in patient care areas. until-all-safety
fastors heave bosncorpliedwith
California Department of Corrections Rehabilitation Unit (CDCR) — 3 North South.
i. If necessary, fire response will be coordinated via CDCR staff for custody
patients evacuation.
Special Needs Unit — Behavioral Health Unit (BHU) due to special needs
population (Psychiatric patients) emergency exit doors are locked for patient
safety. BHU Department policy requires staff to have unit access keys with
them at all times for emergency evacuation. In addition, when the BHU unit
goes into a Code Red situation all electronic locks automatically “unlock”
as part of the fire systems and staff are instructed to control BHU patient
movement during emergent evacuation. All patient and staff will evacuate
through the large yard area on the North East corner of the unit. In addition,
if further evacuation is necessary they will continue with controlled
evacuation of patients via exit gate towards pulmonary rehab gym parking
area.
Switchboard personnel:
i. If the fire is in the area of the PBX office you would follow the steps
outlined in the general instructions section.
iii. If the fire is not threatening the PBX office you would initiate the
steps below:
1) Upon receipt of a call notifying PBX of a Code Red/Fire, or
when the fire alarm is activated, you will immediately:
a) Notify the Fire Department, giving the address and
location of the fire in the hospital.
b) Notify all personnel through the use of the public

95



Environment of Care Manual
Fire Plan — Code Red
Page 4 of 4

2)

3)

4)
5)

DRAFT

address system. Use the following code:
i) “Attention, Please — CODE RED and specific
location.” Repeat the page three (3) times.
Prepare the Switchboard for emergency operations only,
restricting calls.

Notify:

a) Director of Safety/EOC

b) Administrator On-call

c) Administrative Supervisor on duty

d) Security Manager or Lead

e) Director of Engineering

f) Emergency Department Charge Nurse
g) Other key personnel, as needed

Carry out administrative orders as directed.
If PBX system is inoperative, use the RED phones system or
cell phones.

Licensedindependent Practitioners, Allied Health Professionals,
Volunteers & Non Staff Personnel:

m-i.  Tri-City Healthcare District believes strongly in the principle of life
safety. The organization recognizes as a practical matter that
members of the medical staff/Allied Health Professionals and many
volunteers and students are not present much of the time and are
not likely to be a reliable resource during a fire response. Therefore,
the medical staff, volunteers, and students do not have a specific
defined role in the fire response plan. They are instructed to remain
in the area they are located at the time an alarm sounds and to
render assistance under the direction of the manager or employees
of the area as needs arise.

96



2
(C‘J) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Environment of Care Manual

Life Safety Management
SUBJECT: Fire Safety Hazards
ISSUE DATE: NEW
REVIEW DATE(S):
REVISION DATE(S):
Department Approval Date(s): 08/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s):  09/15
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):
A. POLICY:
1. Hazards that personnel shall recognize and correct, or cause to be corrected, or prevent from
existing, are as follows:

a. Careless Smoking - Be careful to observe all "No Smoking" rules and regulations. This
includes any product containing tobacco intended to be lit, burned, or heated to produce
smoke as well as any device used to smoke the tobacco, including but not limited to a
pipe, cigar, or cigarette, (including electronic cigarettes & vapor devices).

b. Exit Ways - Do not permit the obstruction of aisles, doorways, fire escapes or allow their
use as storage places.

c. Combustible Waste - All combustible waste shall be placed in all metal containers with
tight fitting covers; so that any fire occurring will be kept entirely within the container.
When materials capable of spontaneous ignition are stored, they shall be kept in
separate containers until safely disposed-of.

d. Fire Doors - The proper operation of fire doors is necessary to protect or isolate one
section of the building from another, thus providing protection to other areas and
persons within the building. Keep all fire doors properly closed, except those equipped to
close automatically. Fire doors wedged or propped open are of no value in preventing
the spread of fire.

e. Flammable Liquids - (Such as acetone, alcohol, benzeine, and ether) Limit the amount
on hand to a minimum working supply. If possible, keep in metal container. Where safety
cabinets or storage rooms are available, keep these materials in them and maintain the
door to such storage in the closed position. No smoking, open flame or sparking device
shall be allowed around flammable liquids or compressed gas. Oxygen and nitrous oxide
shall not be stored with flammable gases, such as cyclopropane and ethylene, or with
flammable liquids.

f. Electrical Hazards - Report promptly any frayed, broken or overheated electrical cords or
electrical equipment. Do not operate light switches, or connect or disconnect equipment
where any part of your body is in contact with metal fixtures or is in water. Specially built
equipment is in use in the operating and delivery rooms to eliminate electric sparks, and
to control static electricity.

g. Acids - All concentrated or corrosive acids must be handled with extreme care. Avoid
storing these materials on high shelves, or in locations where they are likely to be spilled
or the containers broken. Organic acids and inorganic acids shall not be stored together.
Any spillage shall be immediately diluted or neutralized and cleaned up.

h. Electric Heaters - These units, particularly the portable type, are not permitted anywhere

97



Environment of Care Manual
Fire Safety Hazards
Page 2 of 2

on the hospital premises unless approved by Engineering. No portable heaters are
allowed in patient care areas.

i. Heat generating devices or substances such as candles, toasters, toaster ovens, hot
plates, electric blankets, heating pads, propane fueled devices, strand lights and oil
lamps are not appropriate for the hospital environment and are not allowed on hospital
property. Persons who do not comply with these directions will be subject to the
disciplinary process.

B. AFFECTED AREAS/PERSONNEL:
1. Governmg Board Medlcal Staff AII Hospltal Employees Volunteers VendorsQ¥ERN+NG

C. REFERENCE(S):

1. The Joint Commission
2. NFPA
3 CA State Fire Marshall

98



(c\) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

Environment of Care Manual
Hazardous Material Management

SUBJECT: Reporting Hazmat Incidents

ISSUE DATE: NEW

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval Date(s): 09/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 09/15
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A POLICY:

1.

It is the policy of Tri City Healthcare District to implement processes for reporting and
investigating hazardous materials and waste spills and exposures.

B. RESPONSIBLE PARTIES:

oL

Employee that discovers the spill

Manager or Director of the area

Director of Safety/ Environment of Care (EOC)

Director of Risk Management

The Director of Safety/EOC will maintain and document information concerning hazardous
materials and waste spills and the Director of Employee Health will maintain information and
documentation on hazardous material and waste exposures within Tri City Healthcare District
owned or operated facilities.

C. PROCEDURES:

1.
2.

3.

All hazardous material and waste spill or exposures must be reported, even if no bodily harm or
property loss resulted, utilizing the RL Solutions QRR reporting system

The discovering employee is responsible for completing the report online immediately following
the event.

The manager or director is responsible for reviewing the report and performing an investigation
as needed within three business days.

The Director of Safety/EOC is responsible for final review of the spills and the Director of
Employee Health is responsible for final review of the exposures.

The Director of Safety/EOC is responsible for tracking, trending and analyzing the records of
spills

The Director of Safety/EOC will report the information, tracking and trending, and results of

investigations for spills and exposures quarterly to the Environmental Health and Safety
Committee.

99



DELETE- incorporated into
Purpose and Authority

@) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California
Emergency Preparedness Management

EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/03 SUBJECT: Authority to Implement the Disaster
Plan for TCMC

REVISION DATE: 11/05 POLICY NUMBER: 4070: Page 1 of 8
REVIEW DATE: 12/05

Department Approval Date(s): 07/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s):  08/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

100



101



102



103



DELETE- incorporated into
Emergency Operations Plan

(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California
Emergency Preparedness Management

EFFECTIVE DATE: 11/88 SUBJECT: Disaster Control Center
implementation Plan:
Emergency Department Specific

REVISION DATE: 1/94, 3/97, 6/03, 11/05 POLICY NUMBER: 4002 Page 1 of 2

CROSS REFERENCE:

REVIEW DATE: 11/91

Department Approval Date(s): 07/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 08/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

104



105



DELETE- incorporated into
Emergency Operations Plan

Section: Emergency Preparedness
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER Management
Safety Policies & Procedures Subject: Disaster Plan For
Media Control

Policy Number: 4007 Page 1 of 2
Department: Marketing & Public Relations EFFECTIVE: 10/88

REVISED: 9/93; 3/97; 5/00

Department Approval Date(s): 07/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s):  08/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

106



(@)) L ) DELETE- incorporated into
Tri-City Medical Center Scope of Response

Oceanside, California

Emergency Preparedness Management

EFFECTIVE: 10/88 SUBJECT: Disaster Plan: Rehab Area, Minor
Care (Walking Wounded)
REVISION DATE: 10/93; 3/97; 2/00; 11/02; POLICY NUMBER: 4055 Page 1 of 4
4/03; 10/05

REVIEW DATE: 10/91; 10/94

Department Approval Date(s): 07/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 08/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

107



108



D) DELETE- incorporated into
‘) Tri-City Medical Center | Emergency Operations Plan
Oceanside, California

Emergency Preparedness Management

EFFECTIVE DATE: 11/88 SUBJECT: Emergency Removal of Patients
Using Manual Carries:
Hospital Wide
REVISION DATE: 3/97, 6/00, 4/03, 12/05 POLICY NUMBER: 4005 Page 1 of 3
CROSS REFERENCE:

REVIEW DATE: 4/91, 4/94

Department Approval Date(s): 07/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 08/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

109



110



m



DELETE- incorporated into
Scalable Events

Section: Emergency Preparedness
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER Management

Subject: General Information For
Safety Policies & Procedures Discharging of Patients

Policy Number: 4006 Page 1 of 2
[Department:  Case Management EFFECTIVE: 5/87

REVISED: 11/93; 3/97; 5/00

Department Approval Date(s): 07/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 08/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

112



113



DELETE- incorporated into
Emergency Operations Plan

Section: Emergency Preparedness
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER Management
Safety Policies & Procedures Subject: Medical Staff Disaster
Plan

Policy Number: 4045 Page 1 of 2

Department: Medical Staff EFFECTIVE:
REVIEWED: 3/97
REVISED: 4/03; 10/05

Department Approval Date(s): 07/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 08/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

114



115



DELETE- No longer required

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
Safety Policies & Procedures

Section:

Subject:

Disaster Manual

Toxic External Air

Policy Number: 4011 Page 1 of 2

Department: Hospital Wide

EFFECTIVE: 11/87
REVISED: 10/93, 4/97, 6/00, 6/03, 12/05
REVIEWED: 11/90

Department Approval Date(s):
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s):
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

07/15
08/15
10/15

116



17



‘c‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

Subicet: Ensinecrinel £ Servi

SofebRelies—fRpaaadipee
Engineering Department eldes Plmalem 006 Poge Jg80

SUBJECT: Engineering Hours of Service

ISSUE DATE: 4/90 POLICY NUMBER: 1006
REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12

Department Approval Date(s): 08/15

Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 09/15

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE:

1. To define the normal hours of service of the Engineering Department and the procedure for
obtaining service outside those hours.

B. GENERAL INFORMATION:
1. Emergency Services are those engineering services needed to resolve problems or conditions

which pose a threat to patient or employee safety or which may significantly affect the ability of a
department or area to carry out an essential function.

C. POLICY:
1. The Engineering Department will be available to provide emergency service 24 hours a day, 7
days a week, including holidays.
2. The department will provide routine services and will respond to non-emergent requests for

services during its normal hours of services, as specified below.

D. HOURS OF SERVICE:
1. Emergency Service - 24 hours per day, 7 days a week.
a. Contact: Engineering Office at extension 7148. Monday through Friday 6806-16300730-
1600 hours.
i. Outside above hours, the Duty Engineer may be contacted through the
Engineering Office extension 7795 or by pager through the hospital operator.
2. Door key access: Call the Security Office at extension 3366.
3. Routine and—/Non-emergency Servnces and Pro;ects

-1630—eaetens+en—7—1-48 Submlt a work order on the Intranet

118



Engineering Manual
Engineering Hours of Service
Page 2 of 2

a. Contact: Director of Engineering, Monday through Friday, 0730-1600 at extension
#5587709.

b. Engineering-ManagerMaintenance Supervisor, Monday through Friday, 0730-1600 at
extension 7559.

C. Engineering-Central Plant Supervisor, Monday through Friday, 0730-1600 at extension
7120.

119



(C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
EQUIPMENT

Subieet: Utilitv M Pl

SUBJECT: Utility Management Plan

ISSUE DATE: 9/94 POLICY NUMBER: 4003
REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 2/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 5/09, 6/12, 6/15

Department Approval Date(s): 08/15

Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 09/15

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

3oard of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

1.

The Environment of Care and the range of patient care services provided to the patients served
by Tri-City Medisal-GenterHealthcare District (TCHD) present unique challenges. The specific
utility system risks of the environment are identified by conducting and maintaining a proactive
risk assessment. A Utility Systems Management Plan based on various risk criteria including
risks identified by outside sources such as, The Joint Commission (TJC) is used to eliminate or
reduce the probability of adverse patient outcomes.

The Utility Systems Management Plan describes the risk and daily management activities that
Fr-City-Medical-CenterTCHD has put in place to achieve the lowest potential for adverse impact
on the safety and health of patients, staff, and other people, coming to the organization’s
facilities. The management plan and the Utility Systems Management program are evaluated
annually to determine if they accurately describe the program and that the scope, objectives,
performance, and effectiveness of the program are appropriate.

The program is applied to the Fi-Gity-Medical-CenterTCHD and all outlying facilities operated
and or owned by Fi-Gity-Medical-CenterTCHD. The Utilities Management Plan and associated
policies extend to all inpatient and outpatient service line programs, ancillary services, support
services and all facilities including patient care and business occupancies of Tri-Gity-Healthcare
BistrietTCHD. The plan also affects all staff, volunteers, medical staff and associates including

contracted services of T+i-City-Medical-GenterTCHD.

RE PRINCIPLES:

1.

2.

Utility systems play a significant role in supporting complex medical equipment and in providing
an appropriate environment for provision of patient care services.

Orientation, education, and training of operators, users, and maintainers of utility systems is an
essential part of assuring safe effective care and treatment are rendered to persons receiving

120



Engineering Manual

Utility Management Plan

Page 2 of 9

3.

services.

Assessment of needs for continuing technical support of utility systems and design of
appropriate calibration, inspection, maintenance, and repair services is an essential part of
assuring that the systems are safe and reliable.

C. OBJECTIVES:

1.

Design, operate and maintain utility systems serving the buildings that house the healthcare
services of Tr-City-Medical-GenterTCHD to provide a safe, comfortable, appropriate
environment that supports patient care and business operations.

Perform recommended maintenance to maximize system service life and reliability.
Manage the Utility Systems Management program to assure compliance with The Joint
Commission requirements.

D. PROGRAM MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE:

1.

The Director of Engineering assures that an appropriate utility system maintenance program is
implemented. The Director of Engineering also collaborates with the Director of Safety/EOC to
develop reports of Utility Systems Management performance for presentation to the
Environmental Health and Safety Committee (EHSC) on a quarterly basis. The reports
summarize organizational experience, performance management and improvement activities,
and other utility systems issues.

The Hospital's Board of Directors receives regular reports of the activities of the Utility Systems
Management program from the EHSC. The Board of Directors reviews the reports and, as
appropriate, communicates concerns about identified issues back to the Director of Engineering
and appropriate clinical staff. The Board of Directors collaborates with the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and other senior managers to assure budget and staffing resources are available
to support the Utility Systems Management program.

The Hospital's Chief Operating Officer (COO) or designee receives regular reports of the
activities of the Utility Systems Management program. The COO or designee collaborates with
the Director of Engineering and other appropriate staff to address utility system issues and
concems. The COO or designee also collaborates with the Director of Engineering to develop a
budget and operational objectives for the program.

The facility maintenance technicians and selected outside service company staff schedule and
complete all calibration, inspection, and maintenance activities required to assure safe reliable
performance of utility systems in a timely manner. In addition, the technicians and service
company staff perform necessary repairs.

Individual staff members are responsible for being familiar with the risks inherent in their work
and present in their work environment. They are also responsible for implementing the
appropriate organizational, departmental, and job related procedures and controls required to
minimize the potential of adverse outcomes of care and workplace accidents.

E. PROCESSES OF THE UTILITY SYSTEMS PLAN:

1.

2.

UM.EC.01.01.01 EP8 — Plan for the Safe, Reliable, Effective Operation of Utility Systems
a. The Utility Systems Management Plan describes the procedures and controls in place to
minimize the potential that any patients, staff, and other individuals coming to the
facilities of Fr-Gity-Medical-CerterTCHD that may experience an adverse event while

being monitored, diagnosed, or treated with any type of medical equipment or being
housed in an environment supported by the utility systems of Fri-Gity-Medisal

CenterTCHD.
UM.EC.02.05.01 EP1 - Design and Installation of Utility Systems
a. The Director of Engineering works with qualified design professionals, project managers

and the intended end users of the space of Fri-Gity-Medisal-GenterTCHD to plan, design,

construct, and commission utility systems that meet codes and standards and the
operational needs of the patient care and business activities of Fri-Gity-Medical
GenterTCHD. The construction and commissioning procedures are designed to assure

121



Engineering Manual
Utility Management Plan
| Page3of9

compliance with codes and standards and to meet the specific needs of the occupants of
every space. In addition, the design process is intended to assure performance capability
meets current needs and sufficient additional capacity is available to manage unusual
demands and to help assure that future demands on utility systems can be met.
3. UM.EC.02.05.01 EP2 - Determining System Risks and Developing and Inventory of Utility
Systems and Equipment
a. All utility systems components and equipment are included in a program of planned
calibration, inspection, maintenance, and testing. The components and equipment are
inventoried at the time of installation and acceptance testing. The inventory is maintained
on an ongoing basis by the Plant Operations staff. The inventory includes utility system
equipment maintained by the Engineering and Maintenance staff and equipment
maintained by vendors.
4. UM.EC.02.05.01 EP3 — Maintenance Strategies
a. The Director of Engineering evaluates all utility system equipment to determine the
appropriate maintenance strategy for assuring safety and maximum useful life. The
Director of Engineering uses manufacturer recommendations, applicable codes and
standards, accreditation requirements, and local or reported field experience to
determine the appropriate maintenance strategy for assuring safety and maximizing
equipment availability and service life. The strategies may include fixed interval
inspections, variable interval inspections, preemptive maintenance, predictive
maintenance, and corrective maintenance.
8 UM.EC.02.05.01 EP4 — Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Intervals
a. The Director of Engineering uses manufacturer recommendations, applicable codes and
standards, accreditation requirements, and local or reported field experience to
determine the appropriate maintenance intervals for assuring safety and maximizing
equipment availability and service life.

b. A maintenance management system is used to schedule and track timely completion of
scheduled maintenance and service activities.
c. The Director of Engineering is responsible for assuring that the rate of timely completion

of scheduled maintenance and other service activities meets regulatory and accreditation
requirements.
6. UM.EC.02.05.01 EP5 — Management of Water Systems

a. The Director of Engineering and the Infection Preventionist are responsible for identifying
needs for procedures and controls to minimize the potential for the spread of infections
through or by the utility systems.

b. Each clinical care service and support service is evaluated to determine the potential for
hospital-acquired iliness. Each potential is further evaluated to determine what role
physical barriers and utility systems can play in contributing to or minimizing the potential.

C. The Director of Engineering and the Infection Preventionist are responsible for
developing procedures and controls to manage any identified potential for growth and/or
transmission of pathogenic organisms in the domestic hot water system, cooling tower
water, and other potential sources of waterborne pathogens.

d. The procedures may include periodic testing or treatment to control the risk and to inhibit
the growth and spread of waterborne pathogens.

7. UM.EC.02.05.01 EP6 — Management of Ventilation Systems

a. The Director of Engineering and the Infection Preventionist are responsible for designing
procedures and controls for monitoring the performance of air handling equipment. The
procedures and controls address maintenance of air flow rates, air pressure differentials
in critical areas, and managing the effectiveness of air filtration systems.

b. Air handling and filtration equipment designed to control airborne contaminants including
vapors, biological agents, dust, and fumes is monitored and maintained by Plant
Maintenance.

C. The performance of all new and altered air management systems is verified by a
qualified service provider. At a minimum flow rates and pressure relationships are

122



Engineering Manual

Utility Management Plan

| Page4of9

10.

11.

measured as part of the commissioning of all new building projects and major space
renovations.

Periodic measurements of air volume flow rates and pressure relationships are tested in
sensitive areas throughout the hospital. When the measured system performance cannot
be adjusted to meet code requirements or occupant needs, the Director of Engineering
and Infection Preventionist develops, when appropriate, a temporary Infection Control
Risk Management plan to minimize the potential impact of the deficient performance.

UM.EC.02.05.01 EP7 — Mapping of Utility Systems

a.

The Director of Engineering is responsible for maintaining up-to-date documentation of
the distribution of all utility systems. The documents include as-built and record drawings,
one line drawing'’s, valve charts, and similar documents. The documents include original
construction documentation and documentation of renovations, alterations, additions,
and modernizations. Hard copies of the documentation are maintained in the Plant
Operations department. Documents that are available in electronic format are maintained
on the Engineering Shared Drive.

UM.EC.02.05.01 EP8 - Labeling of Controls for System Shutdown and Recovery

a.

The Director of Engineering is responsible for assuring that current documents showing
the layout of utility systems and the locations of controls that must be activated to
implement a partial or complete shut-down of each utility system are available at all
times.

The documents must include the original layout of the systems and all modifications,
additions, and renovations that affect the process for implementing a partial or complete
shutdown of a system. The documents must include information that can be used to
identify specific controls. The controls must be identified by a label, numbered tag or
other device that corresponds to the information on the documents.

UM.EC.02.05.01 EP9 - 13 — Emergency Procedures

a.

The Director of Engineering and appropriate clinical caregivers collaborate to identify life-
critical medical equipment supported by the utility systems. Life-critical equipment is
defined as equipment, the failure or malfunction of which would cause immediate death
or irreversible harm to the patient dependent on the function of the equipment.

The Director of Engineering and the caregivers are responsible for developing
appropriate resources to manage the response to the disruption of the function of the
identified life-critical equipment. The resources are designed to minimize the probability
of an adverse outcome of care.

The resources must include but are not limited to information about the availability of
spare or alternate equipment, procedures for communication with staff responsible for
repair of the equipment, and specific emergency clinical procedures and the conditions
under which they are to be implemented.

Copies of applicable emergency procedures are included in the emergency operations
manual of each clinical department. Training addressing the medical equipment
emergency procedures is included in the department or job related orientation process.
All utility systems emergency procedures are reviewed annually.

UM.EC.02.05.03 EP1 - 6 and EC.02.05.07 EP1 - 10 — Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance
of Emergency Power Systems

a.

The Director of Engineering is responsible for identifying all emergency power sources
and for developing procedures and controls for inspection, maintenance, and testing to
assure maximum service life and reliability. Fri-City-Medisal-GenterTCHD uses battery-
powered lights, engine driven generators, and large UPS stored energy systems to
provide power for emergency lighting, operation of critical systems, and operation of
information systems equipment.

Each required battery powered emergency lighting device is tested for 30 seconds each
month and for 90 minutes annually.

The Emergency Power Supply Systems (EPSS) supply power for emergency exits,
patient ventilation, fire and life safety equipment, public safety, communications, data and

123



Engineering Manual

Utility Management Plan

| Page5o0f9

12.

13.

14.

15.

processes that if disrupted would have serious life safety or health consequences. Each
required EPSS system is tested in accordance with the code requirements for the class
of device.

The Director of Engineering is responsible for assuring that appropriate inspection,
maintenance, and testing of the essential electrical system is done. Each
motor/generator set serving the emergency power system is tested under connected load
conditions 12 times a year. All automatic transfer switches are tested as part of each
scheduled generator load test.

Testing parameters are recorded and evaluated by the Plant Operations staff. All
deficiencies are rectified immediately or a temporary secondary source of essential
electrical service is put in place to serve the needs to critical departments or services
until the primary system can be restored to full service.

If a failure during a planned test occurs, a full retest will be performed after appropriate
repairs are made and essential electrical system is functional again.

Each diesel engine powered motor/generator not loaded to 30% or more of its nameplate
capacity during connected load tests undergoes further evaluation to determine if the
exhaust gas temperature reaches or exceeds the manufacturer's recommended
temperature to prevent wet stacking. Each diesel engine failing to meet the temperature
recommendation will be exercised annually by connecting it to a dynamic load bank and
performing the three step test process specified by NFPA 99 and NFPA 110.

Batteries, fuel stored on site, controls, and other auxiliary emergency power equipment is
inspected, maintained, and tested as required. The Administrative Director of Facilities,
Engineering staff and contracted service providers are responsible for assuring the
reliability of each component part of the emergency power systems by performing all
required calibration, inspection, maintenance, and testing in a timely manner.

UM.EC.02.05.05 EP1 - Utility Systems Inventory and Initial Testing

a.

The Director of Engineering establishes and maintains a current, accurate, and separate
inventory of all utility systems equipment included in a program of planned inspection or

maintenance. The inventory includes equipment owned by Fri-Gity-Medical-CenterTCHD
and leased or rented equipment.

The Director of Engineering is responsible for implementation of the program of planned
inspection and maintenance. All utility systems equipment is tested for performance and
safety prior to use.

UM.EC.02.05.05 EP3 - Testing of Life Support Equipment

a.

The Director of Engineering assures that scheduled testing of all utility systems that play
a role in life support is performed in a timely manner. Reports of the completion rate of
scheduled inspection and maintenance are presented to the EHSC each quarter. If the
quarterly rate of completion falls below 95%, the Director of Engineering will also present
an analysis to determine what the cause of the problem is and make recommendations
for addressing it.

UM.EC.02.05.05 EP4 - Testing of Infection Control Support Equipment

a.

The Director of Engineering assures that scheduled testing of utility systems equipment
that supports critical infection control processes is performed in a timely manner. Reports
of the completion rate of scheduled inspection and maintenance are presented to the
EHSC each quarter. If the quarterly rate of completion falls below 95%, the Director of
Engineering will also present an analysis to determine what the cause of the problem is
and make recommendations for addressing it.

UM.EC.02.05.05 EP5 - Testing of Non-Life Support Equipment

a.

The Director of Engineering assures that scheduled testing of all non-life support
equipment is performed in a timely manner. Reports of the completion rate of scheduled
inspection and maintenance are presented to the EHSC each quarter. If the quarterly
rate of completion falls below 95%, the Facilities will also present an analysis to
determine what the cause of the problem is and make recommendations for addressing
it.

124



Engineering Manual
Utility Management Plan
| Page6of9

16. UM.EC.02.05.09 EP1 - Medical Gas System Testing
a. All medical gas systems are maintained and periodically tested to assure system
performance. All testing and inspection is done in accordance with the requirements of
the current edition of NFPA 99.
17. UM.EC.02.05.09 EP2 - Modifying / Repairing Medical Gas Systems
a. When a new medical gas system is installed or an existing system is breached for any
reason, the Director of Engineering coordinates certification of the system by a qualified
service provider. The certification testing is done in accordance with the requirements of
the current edition of NFPA 99. The Director of Engineering maintains a permanent
record of all certification testing.
18. UM.EC.02.05.09 EP3 - Labeling & Accessibility of Medical Gas Controls

a. The Director of Engineering is responsible for assuring that all medical gas system
control valves and monitoring stations are identified appropriately.
b. In addition, the Director of Engineering is responsible for assuring that each monitoring

station and valve is accessible. Accessibility is evaluated during scheduled
environmental tours. Deficiencies are reported to the appropriate manager for resolution.
19. EC.04.01.01 EP1 - 11 - The hospital monitors conditions in the environment

a. The Sr. Director of Risk Management coordinates the design and implementation of the
incident reporting and analysis process. The Director of Safety/EOC works with the Sr.
Director of Risk Management to design appropriate forms and procedures to document
and evaluate patient and visitor incidents, staff member incidents, and property damage
related to environmental conditions. Incident reports are completed by a witness or the
staff member to whom a patient or visitor incident is reported.

b. The completed reports are forwarded to the Sr. Director of Risk Management who in turn
works with appropriate staff to analyze and evaluate the reports. The results of the
evaluation are used to eliminate immediate problems in the environment.

C. In addition, the Sr. Director of Risk Management and the Director of Safety/EOC
collaborate to conduct an aggregate analysis of incident reports generated from
environmental conditions to determine if there are patterns of deficiencies in the
environment of staff behaviors that require action. The findings of such analysis are
reported to the EHSC and the Patient Safety Committee, as appropriate, as part of
quarterly Environmental Safety reports. The Director of Safety/EOC provides summary
information related to incidents to the CEO or designee and other leaders, including the
Board of Directors, as appropriate.

d. The Director of Safety/EOC coordinates the collection of information about environmental
safety and patient safety deficiencies and opportunities for improvement from all areas of
Fri-City-Medical-Center TCHD. Appropriate representatives from hospital administration,
clinical services, support services, and a representative from each of the six EC functions
use the information to analyze safety and environmental issues and to develop
recommendations for addressing them.

e. The EHSC and the Patient Safety Committee are responsible for identifying important
opportunities for improving environmental safety, for setting priorities for the identified
needs for improvement, and for monitoring the effectiveness of changes made to any of
the environment of care management programs.

f. The Director of Safety/EOC and the Environmental Health and Safety Committee and the
Patient safety Committee prepare a quarterly report to the leadership of Fri-Gity-Mediecal
CenterTCHD. The quarterly report summarizes key issues reported to the Committees
and their recommendations. The quarterly report is also used to communicate
information related to standards and regulatory compliance, program issues, objectives,
program performance, annual evaluations, and other information, as needed, to assure
leaders of management responsibilities have been carried out.

20. EC.04.01.01 EP15 - Every twelve months the hospital evaluates each Environment of Care

Management Plan including a review of the scope, objectives, performance, and

effectiveness of the program described by the plan.

125



Engineering Manual

Utility Management Plan

| Page7of9

21,

22.

23.

a. The Director of Safety/EOC coordinates the annual evaluation of the management plans
associated with each of the Environment of Care functions.
b. The annual evaluation examines the management plans to determine if they accurately

represent the management of environmental and patient safety risks. The review also
evaluates the operational resuits of each Environment of Care program to determine if
the scope, objectives, performance, and effectiveness of each program are acceptable.
The annual evaluation uses a variety of information sources. The sources include
aggregate analysis of environmental rounds and incident reports, benchmarking
programs, findings of external reviews or assessments by regulators, accrediting bodies,
insurers, and consultants, minutes of Safety Committee meetings, and analytical
summaries of other activities. The findings of the annual review are presented to the
EHSC by the end of the first quarter of the fiscal year. Each report presents a balanced
summary of an Environment of Care program for the preceding fiscal year. Each report
includes an action plan to address identified weaknesses.

C. In addition, the annual review incorporates appropriate elements of The Joint
Commission’s required Periodic Performance Review. Any deficiencies identified on an
annual basis will be immediately addressed by a plan for improvement. Effective
development and implementation of the plans for improvement will be monitored by the
Director of Safety/EOC.

d. The results of the annual evaluation are presented to the EHSC. The Committee reviews
and approves the reports. Actions and recommendations of the Committee are
documented in the minutes. The annual evaluation is distributed to the Chief Executive
Officer, organizational leaders, the Board of Directors, the Patient Safety Committee, and
others as appropriate. The manager of each Environment of Care program is responsible
for implementing the recommendations in the report as part of the performance
improvement process.

EC.04.01.03 EP1 - 3 - Analysis and actions regarding identified environmental issues

a. The EHSC receives reports of activities related to the environmental and patient safety
programs based on a quarterly reporting schedule. The Committee evaluates each report
to determine if there are needs for improvement. Each time a need for improvement is
identified; the Committee summarizes the issues as opportunities for improvement and
communicates them to the leadership of the hospital, the performance improvement
program, and the patient safety program.

EC.04.01.05 EP1 - 3 — Improving the Environment

a. When the leadership of the hospital, perfformance improvement, or patient safety concurs
with the EHSC recommendations for improvements to the environment of care
management programs, a team of appropriate staff is appointed to manage the
improvement project. The EHSC works with the team to identify the goals for
improvement, the timeline for the project, the steps in the project, and to establish
objective measures of improvement.

b. The EHSC also establishes a schedule for the team to report progress and results. All
final improvement reports are summarized as part of the annual review of the program
and presented to hospital, performance improvement, and patient safety leadership.

LD.03.01.01 EP6 & EP8; HR.01.04.01 EP1 and EC.03.01.01 EP1 — 3 — Orientation and

Ongoing Education and Training

a. Orientation and training addressing all subjects of the environment of care is provided to
each employee, volunteer, contract staff and to each new medical staff member at the
time of their employment or appointment.

b. In addition, all current employees, as well as volunteers, physicians, and students
participate in an annual update of the orientation program as deemed appropriate. The
update addresses changes the procedures and controls, laws and regulations, and the
state of the art of environmental safety.

C. The Human Resources Department with assistance from the Education Department
coordinates the general orientation program. New staff members are required to attend

126



Engineering Manual
Utility Management Plan
| Page8of9

the first general orientation program after their date of employment. The Human
Resources Department maintains attendance records for each new staff member
completing the general orientation program.

New staff members are also required to participate in orientation to the department
where they are assigned to work.

The departmental orientation addresses job related patient safety and environmental
risks and the procedures and controls in place to minimize or eliminate them during
routine daily operations.

The Director of Safety/EOC collaborates with the Environment of Care managers,
department heads, the Director of Performance Improvement, the Director of Infection
Control, and others as appropriate to develop content materials for general and job
related orientation and continuing education programs. The content and supporting
materials used for general and department-specific orientation and continuing education
programs are reviewed as part of the annual review of each Environment of Care
Program and revised as necessary.

The Director of Safety/EOC gathers data during environmental rounds and other
activities to determine the degree to which staff and licensed independent practitioners
are able to describe or demonstrate how job related physical risks are to be managed or
eliminated as part of daily work.

In addition the Director of Safety/EOC evaluates the degree to which staff and licensed
independent practitioners understand or can demonstrate the actions to be taken when
an environmental incident occurs and how to report environment of care risks or
incidents.

Information about staff and licensed independent practitioner knowledge and technical
skills related to managing or eliminating environment of care risks is reported to the
EHSC. When deficiencies are identified action is taken to improve orientation and
ongoing educational materials, methods, and retention of knowledge as appropriate.

F. AFFECTED PERSONNEL / AREAS:

1. GOVERNING BOARD; MEDICAL STAFF; ALL HOSPITAL EMPLOYEES; VOLUNTEERS;
VENDORS; CONTRACT SERVICES AND STAFF;

G. REFERENCES:
1. The Joint Commission

127



Engineering Manual
Utility Management Plan
| Page9of9

128



(C") Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

SUBJECT: Code Green Policy

ISSUE DATE: 8/91 POLICY NUMBER: 8007
REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 3/94, 3/97, 5/00, 5/03, 5/06, 5/09, 6/12

Department Approval Date(s): 08/15

Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 09/15

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE:

1. To establish guidelines to follow in the event of an oxygen system failure
B. POLICY:
1. The responsibility of providing emergency sources of oxygen in the event of a failure of the

normal oxygen supply system is coordinated between Engineering and Pulmonary Services
with the support of Security, Nursing, and notification by PBX. Department Directors will be
notified and further activation of the disaster call back tree will be implemented depending
upon the scope of the event and the available personnel. Documentation of the emergency
with all pertinent details and outcomes, including any adverse patient reactions, will be
completed by the above.

C. RESPONSIBILITY:
1. PULMONARY SERVICES is responsible for:

a.
b.

"o oo

Notifying the PBX operator (66) of Code Green and location

Providing patients with oxygen from portable tanks and manually ventilating them if
necessary in coordination with nursing

Initially activating the emergency H-cylinder back-up system for the affected area
Coordinating action plan with Engineering

Monitoring continued use and need for more H-cylinders

Communicating the situation to the Department Director and activating the Disaster Call
Back as necessary

2. ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT is responsible for:

a.
b.

Troubleshooting and repairing the oxygen system

Determining if designated valves need closing and for the proper actuation of the
appropriate valves

129



Engineering Manual

Code Green
Page 2 of 2

Coordinating action plan with Pulmonary Services
Aiding in the replenishment of H-cylinders
Notifying the oxygen supply company and arranging for additional oxygen
Communicating the situation to the Department Director and activating the Disaster Call
Back as necessary

URSING SERVICES is responsible for:
Notifying PBX (66) of O2 pressure alarm and location if Facilities is unaware.
Oversight of clinical issues; communicating patient oxygen needs to Respiratory Care
Practitioners (RCP)s
Assisting RCPs in providing E cylinders and/or manually bagging patients as necessary
Communicating the situation to the Department Director and activating the Disaster Call
Back as necessary

SECURITY is responsible for:

a Providing immediate response to affected area

b. Providing a spare walkie-talkie to the RCP Supervisor or Lead in that affected area

c

d

~o oo

oo Zz

oo

Assisting Engineering (back-up for night shift)
Communicating the situation to the Department Director and activating the Disaster Call
Back as necessary

PBX OPERATOR is responsible for:

a. Announcing CODE GREEN and LOCATION on the overhead paging system

b. Beeping the Pulmonary Supervisor/Lead Therapist, Engineering, and Nursing
Supervisor immediately upon notification of CODE GREEN with the message 2222

PROCEDURE:

1.

2.

3.

oo

(See-attachmentsforDeparment-Specific Procedures)
CODE GREEN and location is communicated by PBX Operator who pages Engineering,
Pulmonary and Nursing-Administrative Supervisor
Security and Pulmonary respond to affected area; Security provides walkie talkie to RCP
Supervisor/Lead
Once the Engineers have shut down the affected zone valves, the RCPs shall place the
emergency H-cylinder connector into an available wall outlet and slowly open the

cylinder valve to re-pressurize the zone. RGP—SHpeMse#I:&ad—er—RGFLassrgﬂed—te-aﬁeeted

RCP Supervisor communicates and coordinates action plan with Engineering via channel 1 on
walkie talkie

RCPs communicate with nursing in affected area to assure that patient O, needs are met
H-cylinders are monitored for usepressure levels; Engineering assists with additional H-
cylinders and vendor ordering if needed

CODE GREEN is deactivated with notification from Engineering that the system has been
charged to full operating pressure utilizing normal or alternate bulk oxygen sources.

LOCATIONS OF EMERGENCY CYLINDERS:

haorob=

Pavilion: Rooms 2778278 (2 oxygen H-cylinders in each room).

South Tower; 1 room on left in ILU - code 0106 (4 H-cylinders).

Middle Tower: Pulmonary 2 South — 1 H-cylinder

NICU: 1 Air H-cylinder and 1 oxygen H-cylinder in ABG lab.

1 North /Rehab: Dirty utility room — 2 oxygen H-cylinders.

Emergency Room: Dirty utility room — code 7720 - 3 oxygen H-cylinders.

130



(@’) Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Infection Control Policy Manual

ISSUE DATE: 9/01 SUBJECT: Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure
Control Plan
REVISION DATE: 9/02; 9/03; 9/04; 9/05; 10/06, POLICY NUMBER—1CA0
10/07; 10/08; 10/09; 10/10; 10/12
Infection Control Department Approval: 07/15
Infection Control Committee Approval: 16/20,142/1407/15
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 11/12,-05/1409/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 10/15
Board of Directors Approval: 11/12, 06/14

A INTRODUCTION:
1. Legal mandates and regulatory agencies such as the California code of Regulation Title 8,
Occupational Safety and Health Administration and the Centers of Disease Control and
Prevention have set standards and published guidelines for the implementation of the Bloodborne
Pathogen Exposure Control Plan.

B. PURPOSE:

1. The purpose of the Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan is to reduce occupational
exposure and transmission of Hepatitis B Virus (HBV), Hepatitis C Virus (HCV), Human
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) and other bloodborne pathogens. The second purpose is to satisfy
the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulations (29 CFR 1910.1030). Our
plan outlines the steps we take to protect our employees from the health hazards associated with
bloodborne pathogens and to provide appropriate treatment and counseling after an exposure.

C. SCOPE:
1. This plan applies to all inpatient and outpatient services of Tri-City Medical-CenterHealthcare
District (TCHD)

D. AVAILABILITY TO EMPLOYEES:
1. To help them with their efforts, our facility’s Bloodborne Exposure Control Plan is available to our
employees at any time. The policy can be accessed Gepies-are-kept in the Infection Control

Manual in-every-department-and located on the Intranet. Information is presented in the new
employee orientation and during annual reviews.

E. PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION:

1. Employee Health Services is responsible for the implementation, maintenance, and
administration of the Injury Prevention Program. In conjunction with the infection preventionist,
she/he will review and update the Exposure Control Plan at least annually and whenever
necessary to include new or modified tasks and procedures.

2, To assist the Director of Safety/-and Environment of Care (EOC)-Officer in carrying out their
duties, the Environmental Health and Safety (EHSC)-of-Care Committee and following specific
people will be contacted as needed.

a. Infection Preventionist
b. Employee Health

c. Staff Educator

d. Engineering

e. Human Resources

131



Infection Control Policy Manual
| Bloodbome Pathogen Exposure Control Plan —G-10

Page 2 of 17

f. Environmental Service Managers

Department Directors, Managers, and Supervisors are responsible for compliance in their

respective areas. They work directly with the Director of Safety/EOCEnvirormentof-Care

Offieer, the Infection Control Department, Education Department, Employee Health Nurse and

our employees to ensure that proper exposure control procedures are followed.

a. Managers will support activities that encourage the active involvement of employees in
education and safety programs. Managers will oversee employees so that initial training
and annual review of bloodborne pathogens are completed prior to annual job evaluations.

b. Registry and contract staff are oriented to the hospital's exposure control plan prior to
working.
c. Annually, managers will complete the template “Safer Work Practices” (see Appendix A)

with input from employees with respect to the procedures performed in their respective
work areas or departments related to safe work practices, engineered safety devices and
personal protective equipment (PPE).

d. Managers will counsel employees who do not use safe practices, PPE, and/or safety
devices.
e. Managers will review qQuality rReview rReports (RL Solutions) their employees

complete to document why they did not use an available safety device.

The Director/Manager of Education and Training Services has been selected to be the facility’s

Education/Training Coordinator. He/she is responsible for providing information and training to all

employees with potential for exposure to bloodborne pathogens including:

a. Developing and scheduling suitable education/training programs.

b. Periodically reviewing training programs with the Environment of Care Officer, Employee
Health, Infection Control, and Department Managers/Supervisors to include appropriate
new information.

C. Training records are maintained for three years and available for examination and copying
to our employees, as well as OSHA representatives. The records contain the following
information, dates of all training sessions, contents/summary of the training sessions, and
names and qualifications of the instructors as well as the names and job titles of
employees attending.

Materials Management and Environmental Services will provide all necessary personal protective

equipment (PPE), engineering controls (e.g., sharps containers and sharps safety devices),

labels, and red bags as required by the standard.

Products Standardization Committee has been identified as the multi-disciplinary group with

primary responsibility for introducing sharps safety products to Fri-City-Medical-CenterTCHD.

The committee will provide guidance in product selection, seeking to provide cost-effective safety

devices.

a. Review and selection Sharps Safety Products will follow established routes and include
input from non-managerial employees responsible for direct patient care who are
potentially exposed to contaminated sharps and injury. See Appendix B and C.

b. Product Selection will follow a hierarchy of risk (i.e. high-risk procedures and devices
targeted first). The committee will act on recommendations from Environment of Care or
Infection Control Committees related to health care injuries and need for alternative
product.

C. All products will be judged by specific criteria and selection will be guided by user
recommendations.

d. See Appendix D for a table of safety devices that have been adopted.

Employees who are determined to have occupational exposure to blood and other potentially

infectious materials (OPIM) must comply with the procedures and work practices deemed

appropriate. They are actively involved in reviewing and updating the exposure control plan with
respect to the procedures performed in the course of their work.

a. Our employees are expected to complete initial bloodborne pathogens training and annual
review.

b. They participate in updating the bloodborne pathogen standard with respect to the

procedures performed in their work area or department. “Safer Work Practices” (Appendix
132



Infection Control Policy Manual
| Bloodbome Pathogen Exposure Control Plan —G-49
Page 3 of 17

A).
C. Licensed healthcare professionals are required to complete a qQuality rReview rReport
| (RL Solutions) when they do not use available Sharps safety devices during the care of a
patient. The report will outline their determination of why using an engineering control
would have jeopardized the patient’s safety or the success of a medical, dental, or nursing
procedure.
d. Employees will participate in the trial and selection of new safety devices.
| 8. The Envirenment-of-Care-CommitteeEHSC will compile and trend the information gathered
above. August has been selected as the regular month for annual plan update.

a. Safety rounds are conducted on an annual or biannual (for patient care units or
departments) schedule.
b. Information from the annual “Safer Work Survey” is compiled by the Envirorment-ef-Care

OfficerDirector of Safety/EOC or designee and reported to Environment of Care,
Infection Control, and Products Standards Committees.

c. Risk, Legal and Regulatory Services forwards information from incident and Quality
| Review Reports to the Envirenmentof Care OfficerDirector of Safety/EOC as
appropriate.
d. The information will be used to update the Exposure Control Plan with respect to:

i Areas where engineering controls are currently employed.

ii. Areas where engineering controls can be updated.

ii. Areas currently not employing engineering controls, but where engineering
controls could be beneficial.

e. Area Safety Representatives will support safe work practices by participating in education
efforts and reporting concerns.
9. Employee Health, assisted by Work Partners, Emergency Department, and Infection Control, will

be responsible for ensuring that all medical actions required are performed and that appropriate
employee health and OSHA records are maintained. See the Employee Health Services policy
“Occupational Exposure to Blood/Body Fluid Secretions.”

a. Hepatitis B vaccination series is available at no cost and employees are encouraged to be
vaccinated. See the Employee Health Policy “Hepatitis B Vaccine Immunization Protocol.”
b. Exposure incidents are evaluated to determine if the case meets OSHA’s Record keeping

Requirements (29 CFR 1904) The malntenance of the OSHA Iog is an Employee Health
responsibility. ;

C. Medical records are maintained for each employee with occupational exposure in
accordance with 29 CFR 1910.20, “Access to Employee Exposure and Medical Records.”
These confidential records are kept in Employee Health for at least the duration of
employment plus 30 years and are provided upon request of the employee or to anyone
having written consent of the employee within 15 working days.

d. Employee Health identifies products involved in contaminated sharps injuries and reports
this information to Material Management so that the number of those devices ordered in
the previous year can be reported to the Envirenment-of- Gare-CommitteeEHSC.

e. Recommendations are made to the Product Standardization Committee- when a need for
a safety device or alternative product is detected.
f. Recommendations are made to service or department managers when issues related to

unsafe work practices are identified. Referrals are made to appropriate Medical Staff
Chairpersons.
g. Employee Health will present sharps Injury data specific to FGMG-TCHD at the Infection

Control Commlttee meetlng annually duﬂng—the—JeH-y—P-PD-seFeenmg-pFeg;am—Ihe

Felated—te—shans-mjunes—(l e. safety deV|ces work practlce changes or englneermg)

F. EXPOSURE DETERMINATION:
1. The State of California (Cal/OSHA) requires employers to perform an exposure determination

concerning which employees may incur occupational exposure to blood or other potentially
133



Infection Control Policy Manual
| Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan —G-140

Page 4 of 17

infectious materials (OPIM). The exposure determination is made without regard to the use of
personal protective equipment (i.e., employees are considered to be exposed even if they wear
personal protective equipment).

See Appendix E for a list of the job classifications in our facility where all or some employees
handle human blood and OPIM, which may result in possible exposure to bloodborne pathogens.
Since not all of the employees in these categories would be expected to incur exposure to blood
OPIM, examples of tasks/procedures that would cause these employees to have occupational
exposure are listed in Appendix E.

G. ENGINEERING CONTROLS:

1.

One of the key aspects to our Exposure Control Plan is the use of Engineering Controls to
eliminate or minimize employee exposure to bloodborne pathogens. On December 17, 1998 the
Cal/OSHA Standards Board adopted emergency regulation revisions to Title 8, Section 5193 to
meet mandates of Assembly Bill 1208. On January 2001, Federal OSHA was instructed to add
sharps safety to national requirements. The major purpose of the revisions is to increase
protection from sharps injuries by supplying employees with engineered sharps safety devices.
a. If available, needleless systems are required for withdrawal of body fluids after the initial
venous or arterial access is established administration of medications or fluids, and other
procedures with potential for exposure to a contaminated needle.

b. If needleless systems are not used then needles with engineered sharps injury protection
are required for withdrawal of body fluids, accessing a vein or artery, administration of
medication or fluids, and other procedures with potential for exposure to blood or OPIM.

C. Other sharp devices with potential for contamination with blood or body fluids (e.g.
scalpels, lancets, broken capillary tubes, and drills) are also required to have engineered
sharps protection.

d. Fr-City-Medical-GenterTCHD is exempt from implementation if at least one the following is
applicable.

i. The device is not available in the marketplace.

ii. A licensed healthcare professional directly involved in a patient’s care determines
that the use of the engineering control will jeopardize patient care or safety.

iii. An objective product evaluation has been completed indicating that the device is
not more effective in reducing sharps injuries than the device currently used by Fri-
Siy-tadical Cantar TCHD;

iv. There is a lack of sufficient information to determine whether a new device on the
market will effectively reduce the chances of a sharps injury and an objective
product evaluation is being conducted.

e. See the table on Appendix D for a review of the Sharps Safety Devices that have been
adopted.
f. Contaminated needles and other contaminated sharps are not sheared or broken. They

are not bent, recapped, or removed unless it can be demonstrated that there is no feasible

alternative. Recapping or needle removal is accomplished using a mechanical device or a

one-handed technique.

g. Containers for contaminated sharps are easily accessible to personnel and located as
close as is feasible to the area where sharps are used or can be reasonably anticipated to
be found.

i Contaminated reusable sharps are placed in appropriate containers immediately,
or as soon as possible, after use.

ii. Sharps containers have the following characteristics: rigid, puncture-resistant,
portable, if it is necessary to ensure easy access by user, color-coded and labeled
with a biohazard warning label, and leak-proof on the sides and bottom. These
containers lock when closed and do not reopen easily

iii. The sharps containers for single use items are disposable and are not opened,
emptied, or manually cleaned. In the event of a special circumstance when it
would be necessary to access the container, it would be reprocessed or
decontaminated.

134



Infection Control Policy Manual
| Bloodbome Pathogen Exposure Control Plan —G-40

Page 5 of 17

iv. The containers are maintained upright throughout use and are replaced as needed
when % full. A contract service is responsible for replacing containers as needed.
h. In addition to the engineering controls identified on these lists, the following engineering

controls are used throughout our facility.

i. Hand washing facilities and waterless hand cleansers are readily accessible to
employees with potential for exposure.

ii. Specimen containers are leak-proof. No special label/color coding is required for
intra-facility specimens as Standard Precautions are utilized in the handling of all
specimens and containers are recognizable as containing specimens.

idii. Secondary containers are used if the specimen could puncture primary container
or outside contamination.

H. WORK PRACTICE CONTROLS:

1.

In addition to engineering controls, our facility uses a number of Work Practice Controls to help

eliminate or minimize employee exposure to bloodborne pathogens.

a. Employees follow Standard Precautions with every patient. As a result, we treat all
human blood and the following other potentially infectious materials (OPIM) as if they are
known to be infectious for HBV, Hepatitis C Virus (HCV), HIV, and other bloodborne
pathogens
i. Semen
ii. Vaginal Secretions
iii. Peritoneal fluid

iv. Tissue and Organs
V. Amniotic fluid
Vi. Synovial fluid
vii. Pleural fluid
viii. Saliva with visible blood
iX. Pericardial fluid
X. Cerebrospinal fluid
b. Eating, drinking, smoking, applying cosmetics or lip balm and handling contact lenses is

prohibited in work areas where there is potential for exposure to bloodborne pathogens.

i. Food and drink is-are not kept in refrigerators, freezers, on countertops or in other
storage areas where blood or other potentially infectious materials are present.

ii. For example, eating and drinking is not allowed at nurses stations, in patient
rooms, on patient bedside tables, or other places where patients, specimens, or
dirty instruments/devices might have touched.

Mouth pipetting/suctioning of blood or other infectious materials is prohibited.

All procedures involving blood or other infectious materials are performed to minimize

splashing, spraying or other actions generating droplets of these materials.

e. Equipment, which becomes contaminated, is cleaned with a hospital-approved
disinfectant as soon as possible.

i. If shipping of equipment for repairs is required, the device will be cleaned or an
appropriate biohazard-warning label is attached to any contaminated equipment,
identifying the contaminated portions.

i. Information regarding the contamination is conveyed to all affected employees, the
equipment manufacturer, and the equipment service representative.

oo

l. PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT:

1.

The employee s 'last line of defense’ against bloodborne pathogens. Because of this, our facility
provides (at no cost to our employees) the Personal Protective Equipment that they need to
protect themselves against such exposure. See Appendix F for tasks/PPE suggested. This
equipment includes, but is not limited to:

a. Gloves
b. Fluid resistant gowns
c. Glove liners

135



Infection Control Policy Manual
| Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan —C-40

Page 6 of 17

Laboratory coats

Face shield
Resuscitation bags
Masks

Hoods

Safety glasses/goggles
Shoe covers
Mouthpieces

Pocket masks
Personal Protective Equipment is stocked on supply carts, Pyxis dispensing stations, or available
from Materials Management.

—FT T Sa~oa

a. Reusable PPE is cleaned, laundered, or decontaminated as needed. The hospital
provides laundry services for laboratory coats designated as PPE.
b. Single-use PPE (or equipment that cannot, for whatever reason, be decontaminated) is

disposed in the regular waste container. Only items saturated and/or dripping with blood
are disposed of in ‘red-bag’ trash.
Protective clothing (such as gowns and aprons) is worn whenever potential exposure to the body
is anticipated. See Appendix F.

a. Any garments penetrated by blood or other infectious materials are removed immediately
or as soon as feasible and all personal protective equipment is removed prior to leaving a
work area.

b. Surgical caps/hoods and/or shoe covers/boots are used in any instances where gross

contamination is anticipated (such as autopsies, deliveries, and orthopedic surgery).
Gloves are worn as outlined in Standard Precautions and Appendix F.

a. Hypoallergenic gloves, glove liners, and similar alternatives are readily available to
employees who are allergic to the gloves our facility normally uses.
b. Utility gloves are decontaminated for reuse. If they are cracked, peeling, torn or exhibit

other signs of deterioration they are discarded.
Masks and eye protection (such as goggles, face shields, etc.) are used whenever splashes or
sprays may generate droplets of infectious materials. See Standard and Transmission Based
Precautions and Appendix F.

J. ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES:
1.

N

Environmental Services p plays an important role in maintaining our facility in a clean and sanitary

condition and is an important part of our Bloodbormne Pathogens Compliance Program.

The Supervisor of Environmental Services is responsible for setting up our cleaning and

decontamination schedule and making sure it is carried out within our facility.

To facilitate this, we have set up a written schedule for cleaning and decontamination of the

various areas of the facility. See the Environmental Services Unit Specific Standards.

a. All employees are responsible for maintaining a clean work area, equipment, and have
hospital-approved disinfectants readily available to use on small spills. Environmental
Services is called for assistance as needed with larger spills or special cleaning.

b. All equipment and surfaces are cleaned and decontaminated after contact with blood or
other potentially infectious materials. Patient care equipment and devices are cleaned
between patients and after the completion of medical procedures. Work surfaces that
may have been contaminated are cleaned at the end of the work shift.

C. All pails, bins, cans and other receptacles intended for use are routinely inspected,
cleaned and decontaminated as soon as possible if visibly contaminated.

d. Potentially contaminated broken glassware is picked up using mechanical means (such as
dustpan and brush, tongs, forceps, etc.). Only broken glass is placed in a Sharps
Container.

All regulated waste is safely handled by staff accordmg to ZFGMGTCHD poI|C|es and
procedures. s
regulated waste is in accordance W|th Callfornla State and Iocal regulatlons See the
Environment of Care Manual (formerly Safety Manual) - Waste Management Plan section and

136




Infection Control Policy Manual
| Bloodbome Pathogen Exposure Control Plan —G-40
Page 7 of 17

{c10-4Infection Control Policy Waste Management.
a. See the Decision Table for Medical Waste in Appendix G

5. Environmental Services is responsible for the collection and handling of our facility's
contaminated waste until our outside contractors pick it up for off-site processing. Environmental
services aides hold the bags away from their bodies when removing use heavy gloves to protect
their hands from possible sharps injury and do not push down on trash in garbage containers.

6. Regulated waste is placed in containers that are closable, constructed to contain all contents, and
prevent leakage. They are labeled or color-coded (see Labels to follow) and closed prior to
removal to prevent spillage or protrusion of contents during handling.

7. All' used linen is presumed contaminated and placed in appropriate containers labeled 'soiled
linen'. All linen is handled as little as possible and is not sorted or rinsed where it is used. Plastic
bags are used to contain potential contaminants and these soiled linen bags are transported in
secondary containers to prevent leakage.

a. Employees who contact contaminated linen wear appropriate protective equipment
(gloves and gowns if soiling of clothes is possible).

b. Plastic soiled linen bags can be taken into a patient's room to contain used linen. These
bags are then placed in the hamper or directly in the soiled linen room.

C. Linen hampers lined with the plastic bags can also be used. When hampers are % full,
nursing staff will remove the bag, tie it off, and take it to the soiled linen room.

d. Environmental Services is responsible for the collection and handling of our facility's

contaminated waste until pick-up by our outside contractors for off-site processing.

K. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

8-1. Infection Control Manual: Hand Antisepsis 1G-8

9:2. Infection Control Manual: Standard and Transmission Based Precautions 1G.6

40:3. Environment of Care Manual: Hazardous Waste Management

4. Employee Health and WellnessServices Policyies1G.7-4+: Occupational Exposure to
Blood/Body Fluid Secretions

+5.  Employee Health and Wellness Policy:Administrative-Policy #404- Human-Reseurces— Injury
Prevention Program

2:6.  Environment of Care Manual: Hazardous Material and Waste Management and
Communication Plan

K. REFERENCES:

1. Cal OSHA BBP Standard §5193. Bloodborne Pathogens, Subchapter 7. General Industry Safety
Orders Group 16. Control of Hazardous Substances Article 109. Hazardous Substances and
Processes 1998.

2. Medical Waste Management Act, California Health and Safety Code, Sections 117600 — 118360
California Medical Waste Management Program Information Copy — January 2000
www.cadhs.gov

3. Grota, P. (Ed.). (2014) APIC Text of Infection Control and Epidemiology (4" ed).
Washington DC: Association for Professionals in Infection control and Epidemiology, Inc.

1999:1357 - 1366.

4.5. Siegel JD, Rhinehart E, Jackson M, Chiarello L, and the Healthcare Infection Control
Practices Advisory Committee, 2007 Guideline for Isolation Precautions: Preventing
Transmission of Infectious Agents in Healthcare Settings

http:/iwww.

cdc.gov/incidod/dhqp/pdf/isolation2007.pdf
nh =Na upation a¥a o-to-B in—AP

5-6.

137



Appendix A
TRI-CITY MEBICALCENTERHEALTHCARE DISTRICT

SAFER WORK SURVEY

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) estimates that between 100,000 and 1,000,000
sharps injuries occur each year. Various studies have estimated the risk of developing occupationally
acquired bloodborne pathogen infections: HCV (3% - 10%), HBV (2% - 40%), and HIV (0.3%) following
sharps exposure. The risk of transmission increases if a device visibly contaminated with blood causes the
percutaneous injury, is used to puncture the vascular system, or causes deep injury.

1. Safety Devices

Do you have suggestions for sharp devices with built in protection that would make your job safer?
Comments:

2. Safe Work Practices

Do you have suggestions for adoption of safer user actions? (Examples: neutral or safe zone for sharps,
second layer of gloves, and avoid handling dirty trays)
Comments:

3. Personal Protective Equipment

Do you have suggestions for use of personal protective equipment? (Examples: double gloving, heavy
leather gloves for trash handling, effective eye and face protection)
Comments:

138



| FCMGTCHD: Products Standardization Committee
Product Evaluation

1.

2
3
4.
5

Manufacturer of Product

Appendix B

Name of Product

Distributed by Sales Rep

Description of Use

. Will this device replace a high-risk device

(hollow-core, blood-filled, or capable of deep injury)? 1 Yes OO No
6. Product would be used? [0 House-wide [ Lab [ OR [ Specialty Unit
7. What items would this replace?
8. Cost Standard item cost
9. Has FGMGC-TCHD rejected the device in the past? [ Yes [0 No
10. Does the device have a passive safety mechanism? U Yes O No
11. Can the safety mechanism be activated with one hand? O Yes O No
12. Can the user tell when the safety mechanism has been activated? U Yes O No
13. Are minimal changes in technique and use required? U Yes O No
14. Is this product dependent on other products or items? U Yes O No
Identify:
15. Is the device compatible with products currently in use? U Yes O No
16. Does the system/device require a minimal number of parts? O Yes OO No
17. Is the product available in typical size ranges? O Yes OO No
18. Is the product on contract O Yes O No
19. Product rep available for 24hrs/day in-service? O Yes OO No
20. Does the manufacturer supply free trial products? U Yes [ No
21. Does the manufacturer have adequate supply capability? O Yes O No

APPROPRIATE FOR TRIALS []] REJECTED []

COMMENTS

139



Appendix C
TCMCTCHD: User Product Evaluation

Name Date
Dept/Unit
How would you rate this product compared to other similar products you have used?
CRITERIA BETTER SAME WORSE

Easy to open package

Ease of assembly

Ease of use

Comfortable feel for user

Length of time required for use

Activation of safety feature

Safety feature can’t be defeated

Has minimum failure rate and functions as intended

Good for use with different patients

Safe for healthcare workers

Safe for patients

Patients complaints

Doctors complaints

Easy to dispose

Compatible with other products

Will reduce the risk of injury

Reasonable number of parts

Available in the sizes you need

How many times did you use the product?

Would you recommend purchasing this device? [J Yes (O No
Is there another safety device you would rather use? O Yes O No
Specify:

Comments?

140



S00Z/0T pamalaal
1002/80

sypnpoud Ajajes uosuppiq
uoyag /m synpoad Ayajes
-uou uosupdIq uolag sdejdau
03 uoIId3Jas |1puUno) buisiny

‘sabueyd bojeied '0002/0T 0002/0T synpoJd uosuppiq uoylag Vv/N sabneb snouiea ‘jag 7-3 1-jes
yim si1a3ayied "A'I uosuyog Agisqng .
G00Z/0T pamalAad R uosuyor aoejdau sabneo s(qiecoibuy e
0002/0T | 0002/0T 0} uoid3|as juno) buisinN v/N snolea ‘spienboiny a1Asuf SMeIS AL v
S002/0T pamalnal
200¢2/1
1002/1 1002/1 1910on19 P1isiabuly
966T > 966T > | "apim-jeydsoy pazijiin spnpoid V/N joopuapua] 1S |99H j=oue poojg ‘¢
synpouad
X9H0d SWIS Jo uoidajes I Ogv |w-¢
S002/0T pamaiaau 100¢/S juswypedaq Ateuowind v/N I Dav jw-T S DAY T
‘juawaalbe
1eaA-g wnuwiulp “sabueyd pnpoad 11PUN0D
pue dwnd J104 sabueys jenyoeiiuo) siabeue|y suopeladp buisinn
‘pJepue)s se padnpoJiul sjielplenc §002/t AQ uonepuawwodal Buigny pue Wa1sAS "A'l SS9|3|paaN slely
/m sdwnd As|paly suely ‘S00Z/€ Wwa3sAs ssa|3|pasau ‘A'[ sHely V/N Bulgni ‘AT IV | AI SS?|3|p3aN T
saivQ
“vAl
SINIWWOD %3 NOILVINIWITdWI ¥asn NOLLVANIWWOI3Y | "IVAF W/KW 3DIA3A J14I03dS adA} 1onaodd

a xipuaddy

141



20/8 paaoidde piepuels Ajajes
S002/0T pamainal *s1onpoad A124es-uoN
10/40 10/40 2oeydad 03 synpoud uosupdig sabneb snowea ‘apiB-A194es
10/S0 10/S0 uoldag JO UOIID|2S
1002/60 | 10/60 > Atojeloge pue Buisinp
39S uondsy0d
Ada13ng Alajes-uou aoeiday poo|g 0|-Alajes tsuteindoep
03 synpoid uosupdig uolag
00o0¢ 666T > JO Uo309|as AlojelrogeT]
plens a|paaN uol
ainyound saxajd-olg ade|dal poo|q p10D) e
03 spPnpo.d UosUPPIQ Uop2g V/N poo|g asdi|p3 Joujeynooey, | OPUHAS/SIPSSN e
000z | 0002 > 40 uond3|3s Atojesoqer] EEEVRIEN =R
doy Jsuleinooep e
sdoj 1addojs 1aqqnu T
aoe|dau 03 synpotd uosupdiqg .
26671 > z661 > o1o5g 40 UOHD3(ES AJOJRIOqET v/N /M saqny Iaulelndoep | Uo103jjoD) poolg 9
S00Z/0T pamainad
panoidde piepueys Alajes , d
panoudde spiepuels 1onpold au2eA g SHEdsH
z00z/1e/8 pue 3ABUIS}E SB S3|pasu M UA
10/L0 10/L0 SWIS S)D0315/Spualiwioddy 2002 22d sbniqg apo) SBUIIAS pajji-21d
saivQq
“IVA3
SLIN3IWWO)) 3 NOILVINAWITdWT ¥asn) NOILVAN3IWWO0IIY | "“IVAZ W/ 3DIA3aQ DI4ID3dS 3adA} 1onaodd

a xipuaddy

142



SSad0e IendseA

pajueldwi
sa|paau Buiiod-uou UHws 10} 9|paau
80/t 80/€ | 104 Ajuo 3d1A3p Ajajes apiaoLd v/N pleg Buiod uoN ‘01
*3|qissod
uaym pasn saoiaep buydels
‘paidope saoipeud ylom ajes 3|paau aInns ‘g
sjad|eos
80/8 Pamalaay | T1002/60 Ajases euosIag 03 abueyd V/N sape|g A}9jeS euuosiad
zooz/€o PapUBLLIWIOII DIV ‘AdS “d3
171 S002/T1T pamainsy AB0j0jAD
z00Z/€0 | 100Z/10 | 8 ABojoiqomnly ut sapelq Aejes v/N lad|eas Ayajes euuositad todiess g
bewy
X Ul Jseijuo)
SobUMAS pa|jiJ-aid
s1onpoad uosuppPIg U0y sabneb snouea Hoj-Ajpjes SobulAS Jejnbay
1002/60 10/6 > 40 uoIPaas {Puno) buisiny V/N wa)sAS ssaja|paaN 03 1249y suoipaful AT *£Z
80/1T/¥ MeIp 103.Ip 104 S23IADP
ss920e D0§ Jan| ag 03 pabuey)
1T150/6/1T pamainay
100z w1 p3bueLd S32IA3P 43jSuei) Poo
*Sapls IASP 43) 1 poojg -ag
H{BW 03] S3IpPasau Jo asn ajeutll soBULIAC di1 oT_ton
03 Awo3ogalyd Ut pasn 19661 > |  966T > HAS ALAoT-enT ad V/N | poolq Jasuadstp poolq ajes-yiq
]
uonIaji0) poolg Xo1Aleles ad
1002/60 /a0IASp SS829Y Y0-4an dg Vv/N WDISAS SSaJo|poaN 295 | IDIASp 19jSubl] e
Ppnpoid uosuppiqg undwes auy] e
Buiob up 9661 > | UuoIDg JO UOIIBJES AlojelogeT] v/N sa|310d eipal J9eq 2INjjND poojq e

a xipuaddy

143



Appendix E

JOB CLASSIFICATIONS WHERE ‘ALL’ OR ‘SOME’ EMPLOYEES
HANDLE HUMAN BLOOD AND OTHER POTENTIALLY INFECTIOUS MATERIALS.

‘ALL’ EMPLOYEES

‘SOME’ EMPLOYEES (TASKS PERFORMED WITH RISK)

Administrative Coordinator
Advanced Care Technician

Biomedical Tech Mechanic | & ||

Cardiac Rehabilitation Coordinator

Certified Nursing Assistant

EEG Tech and EEG coordinator

EKG Tech

Environmental Service Aide and
Supervisor

Emergency Medical Technician

Employee Health Nurse
Occupational Health Nurses & Manager

Infection Control Specialist

Laboratory Assistant/Phlebotomist
Operations Manager

Clinical Laboratory Scientist
Histology Lab Tech

Licensed Vocational Nurse

Lift Team

Nurse Practitioner
Physicians Assistant

Occupational Therapist and Rehab Aid

OR Tech/Sterile Processing
Tech/Perioperative Aide/Surgical
Instrument Aide

Perfusionist

Phiebotomist

Physical Therapist

Physicians

Pulmonary Services Operations
Manager

Radiology Operations Manager & Tech

Registered Nurse

Rehabilitation Services Manager

Respiratory Care Practitioner |1, il & il

Security Officer

Wound Care Nurses

Case Managers/ Clinical Social Worker (during patient !

Clinical Dietician
Security Officer

144



Standard Precautions

Appendix F

Personal Protective Equipment Table

Exposed Body Parts

Contamination of Clothing

R =Required Hands Face Soiling Saturation  |Dripping
A = Available Gloves Face Shieldor |Cloth Gown | Water-proof [Shoe Covers
N/A = Not Applicable Mask & Goggles Gown
R|AINA[R|AINAIR]A[NA[RTA[NA[RT A NA

REMOVING, OPENING AND MANIPULATING OR ASSISTING WITH THE REMOVAL OF HOLLOW CORE BLOOD OR
BODY FLUID FILLED TUBES, NEEDLES OR CATHETERS

e Abdominal paracentesis catheter * * * *

e Angiograph catheter

e Bronchoscope (as above & to clean)

e Central venous catheter

e Chest tube/vent

e Endoscope (as above & to clean)

e Intravascular catheters

¢ Thoracentesis

o Urine catheter
ASSISTING WITH PROCEDURES
|Angiography * * N *
Bone marrow asp/bx * * * * *
Bronchoscopy (R/O-TB) * N95 . * *
[Bronchoscopy (R/O TB) . PAPR * * E
Central venous catheter insertion * * * * *
Chest tube/vent placement * * * * *
Childbirth * * * *
Endoscopy * * * * *

ntubation * * * * *

L.P. (holding R/O meningitis) * * * * *
Morgue Release * * . *
Proctosigmodoscopy * * * * *
Suture or stapling (within 3 ft. of wound) * * * * *
Assisting with Surgery *
Thoracentesis ass. * * * L *
SPECIMEN COLLECTION
ABG * * * * 3
Blood glucose test * * * * *
Clean catch urine specimen * * * * *
Dipstick urine test * * * * *
Gastric occult. blood test * * * * *
Nose/throat (R/O infection) * * * k *
Sputum for AFB or TB culture * N95 * * *
Stool * * * * *
Stool occult blood test * * * e *
Urine * * * * %*
Urine specific gravity * * * e *
\Vaginal or urethral * * * * *
Venipuncture for blood * * * * *
Wound or wound drainage * * * * *

145



Appendix F

R = Required
A = Available
{/A = Not Applicable

Exposed Body Parts

Contamination of Clothing

Hands

Face

Soiling

Saturation

|Dripping

Gloves

Face Shield,
Mask & Goggles

Cloth Gown

Water-proof
Gown

Shoe Covers

R A [NA

R|A|NA

R|A|NA

R{A[NA

R|A[NA

SPECIMEN PROCESSING

per
S.0

Lab
coat

CLINICAL TASKS

Ambu bag: usage

*

Bladder irrigation

*

Blood or blood products administration

Blood warmer

Cleaning used instruments

Urine catheter: insert

Colostomy irrigation

Condom catheter application

Contact lense care

Dressing change

Emerson pump: use

Endoscope / Bronchoscopy cleaning

Enema administration

Enteral feeding tube (insert or manipulate)

Fecal disimpaction

Fecal or gastric occult blood test

Foley cath insertion

Gastric lavage

Hemovac drains-manipulate, empty / DC

Injections

Intravenous catheter insertion

J-P drain care

Nasogastric tube insertion and DC

Neonatal suck evaluations (latex-free)

1st. Newborn bath

Normal Saline or Heparin lock irrigation

02 therapy w/ mucus membrane touch

Open suctioning of airway or airway tube

Oral care

Oral/nasal airway insertion or DC

Pleur-evac care

Postural drainage

Rectal tube insertion

Resp. Tx, cough inducing

Restraint placement

Seizing patient

Sputum Induction for AFB-or-tubersulosis

N95

Sputum Induction for AFB R/O tubercuiosis

*

PAPR

Total parenteral nutrition administration

*

Urine bag emptying

Vital signs and Weighing patients

Vound care (without irrigation)

(Wound irrigation Pulsevac Tx

146



Decision Table for Medical Waste

Appendix G

.' TypeofwaSte

' RedBag

 Regular Bag |

Sharps

Container |

Fluid bl-c-)od_, blood elements, vialsl of blood,
specimens for culture, used culture media, and
stock cultures.

X

Bloody body fluids or disposable drapes dripping
and/or saturated with bloody body fluids such as
CSF, synovial, pleural, pericardial, amniotic.

Bloody body fiuid filled containers from nursing
units, ED, PACU, outpatient areas not treated with
Premicide.

Materials used to clean up fiuid blood or bloody
body fluid spills that are dripping and/or
saturated.

Surgical specimens.

Wound dressings, bandages, and wrappings
dripping and/or saturated with blood.

Food waste such as soda cans, paper cups,
cutlery, including food or service items from
isolation rooms.

Empty urine and stool containers, empty
colostomy and urinary drainage bags, empty
bedpans, breathing circuits, surgical drapes.

Gastric washings, dialysate, vomitus, feces, urine,
diapers. Please empty in toilet.

Tracheal and bronchial secretions, sputum, IV
tubing without the needles.

Soiled but not dripping and/or saturated items
such as dressings, bandages, cotton balls,
peripads, chux, cotton swabs.

Suction Canisters, treated with solidifying agent.

Used gloves, aprons, masks, goggles, and
respirators.

Broken glass, guide wires.

Uncapped Needle/syringe units, needles, scalpels,
vials from live, or attenuated vaccines.

147



‘C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

POLICY PHARMACY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 4/12 SUBJECT: General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy
| REVISION DATE: PO NUMBER-8290-244

Department Approval Date(s): 7/15

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): 5/12, 07/15

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 6/12, 09/15

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 6/12

A PURPOSE:
1.

To provide an organization—wide drug safety policy to prevent medication errors associated with
concentrated electrolytes as recommended by the Institute for Safe Medication Practices (ISMP)
and The Joint Commission (TJC). These guidelines and procedures are to be followed by all
personnel involved in the intravenous administration of concentrated electrolytes.

This policy addresses the non-emergent prescribing, administration, dispensing, and storage of
intravenous electrolytes for maintenance and replacement supplementation. In addition, this
policy will address prescribing of hypotonic and hypertonic solutions

B. POLICY:
1.

There shall be safety measures in place to minimize the potential for medication errors regarding

the fellewing-ordering, preparation, labeling, distribution, administration, storage, and

monitoring of all intravenous electrolytes.:

a. Concentrated electrolyte solutions include, but are not limited to: potassium
chloride, potassium phosphate, potassium acetate, 3% sodium chloride, 23.4%
sodlum chlorlde, sodlum acetate and sod|um phosphate Petaselum—GMende—Petase}em

b. Thls pollcy shaII also encompass the safe use of aII other mtravenous electrolytes
including, but are not limited to: calcium chloride, calcium gluconate, magnesium
sulfate, sodium bicarbonate, and sterile water for injection.

Tri-City Medical Center maintains supplies of concentrated electrolytes in the Pharmacy

Department. Concentrated electrolytes will not be stocked in patient care areas.

a. 3% hypertonic saline shall not be stored in autematicautomated dispensing
machines (ADM) and shall be dispensed patient specific from the pharmacy one
bag at a time.

b. 23.4% hypertonic saline shall not be stored in an ADM and shall be dispensed
patient specific from the pharmacy. To prevent accidental infusion, pharmacy shall
dispense one VIAL at a time and shall never dilute further and/or dispensed in a bag
to prevent accidental infusion
i Can onlyMust be ordered and-administered by a neurologist or

neurosurgeon

C. Large volume (1000mimL or larger) sterile water for injection shall not be stored in
patient care areas and will not be dispensed without additives to avoid hemolysis

d. Exceptions:

i. Potassium chloride vials may be stored in perfusion carts only
ii. Pre-mixed mini-bags for electrolyte replacement pursuant to approved
protocol are available in automated dispensing machines (ADM). Different

strengths shall be separated to avoid look-a-like errors 148



Pharmacy Manual

General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy

Page 2 of 15

iiii. Magnesium sulfate vials, calcium chloride and/or calcium gluconate
vials/syringes are stored in emergency medication trays and automated
dispensing machines for emergency use only

The number of drug concentrations available at Tri-City Medical Center are standardized

whenever possible and limited to the minimum required to meet patient care needs.

All orders for concentrated electrolyte solutions must be entered electronically into

Cerner.

a. Exceptions: verbal/telephone orders followed by a written order will be accepted
during an emergency

When infusion of concentrated electrolytes are required for patient use, only commercially

prepared products (whenever possible), with patient-specific labeling, shall be dispensed.

Solution orders that require admixture (i.e. there is not a pre-mixed solution ready for

administration available) will be prepared by Pharmacy and delivered to the patient care

area of use on a per patient basis.

Route of electrolyte administration is dependent on the specific electrolyte, concentration,

and urgency. (Appendix lI: Dosing and Administration Guidelines)

All intravenous electrolytes shall be administered with an electronic infusion device (i.e.

Alaris Smart Pump) and will not be given via IV Push.

a. Exception: Calcium chloride may be administered via slow IV push in central line
during code blue only; calcium gluconate may be administered via slow IV push in

a large vein over 5 to 10 minutes; magnesium sulfate may be administered via slow

IV push not to exceed 150mg/min (may administer over 1 to 2 minutes in patients

with persistent pulseless VT or VF with known hypomagnesemia) and must be

diluted to a concentration < 20%

Hypertonic solutions MUST be administered via central line with an electronic infusion
device. If a central line is not available then, the largest patent vein should be utilized until
a central line is placed

C. PROCEDURE:

1.

Prescribing

a. Pharmacy shall require prescriber’s orders for maintenance electrolytes to specify the
name of the electrolyte, name of diluent, concentration, and infusion rate (e.g. D5 %2 NS
with 20 mEq KCl/liter at 20 mkmL per hour).

b. Pharmacy shall require prescriber’s orders for bolus electrolytes to specify the name of
the electrolyte, dose (in mEq, mmoL, or mg), concentration of electrolyte, administration
rate (dose/hour or mkmL/hour), and route of administration

C. For children less than or equal to 13 years of age, the prescriber’s order shall include
patient’s weight in kg, dose of electrolyte on a per kg basis, and volume of electrolyte to
be administered.

d. Dosing of electrolyte in obese patients (i.e. actual -weight > 130% IBW or BMi > 30 kg/m2)
should be based on an adjusted body weight when weight based dosing is
required.(Consult pharmacist for weight adjustment calculations).

e. Electrolyte replacement in patients that are asymptomatic should be treated with oral
supplement whenever possible if there is a functional gastrointestinal tract. EXCEPT IN
THE CASE OF MAGNESIUM. (Appendix IV: Selected Available Oral Electrolyte
Replacement Products

f. Pharmacy shall provide the prescriber W|th a select|on of standardlzed pFe-mmed
electrolyte solutions to order from i
Tri City Medical Center-Intravenous Electrolyte Administration Guide (Appendix I:
Selection of standardized pre-mixed-solutions available at TCMC).

g. In the event that one of the abeve-alternatives-standardized solutions cannot satisfy the
patient's needs, a pharmacist will contact the prescriber to assure that the requested
solution is clinically indicated. Only then will the solution be compounded.

149



Pharmacy Manual
General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy
Page 3 of 15

h. In the event of an order for a hypotonic or hypertonic solution, the order will be discussed
with prescriber to assure the solution is clinically indicated. it will be dispensed on a
patlent specific basis following dosing guidelines.

i. Serum osmolarity range 240-340 mOsm/L
1) Hypotonic solution-lower osmolarity than serum
2) Hypertonic solution-higher osmolarity than serum

ii. Sterile water for injection or 0.225% sodium chloride will not be dispensed
without additives in order to avoid hemolysis

2. Administration

a. Potassium Administration Guidelines:

i. Potassium shall not be administered IV push. It and-shall be administered
via a slow infusion, diluted with a suitable volume of solution.

ii. Potassium shall never be added to an infusing IV, as doing so results in the
pooling of potassium and a resultant bolus concentration of the drug being
administered.

iii. Patients with concomitant hypomagnesemia should have the magnesium
deficit corrected prior to potassium supplementation to prevent refractory
hypokalemia

iv. Administration of Potassium in Non-Critical Care setting:

1) Potassium Intermittent Infusions “Piggybacks”

a) Maximum infusion rate via peripheral line is 10 mEqg/hour.
Maximum infusion rate via central line is 20 mEq/hour and
must be on continuous ECG monitoring.

2) Potassium large volume continuous infusions (1000mimL or more)

a) Maximum concentration of potassium is 40 mEqg/liter of
solution with a maximum infusion rate of 10 mEg/hour (20
mEq/hour if the patient is on continuous ECG monitoring)

3) Doses up to 200mEq in 24 hours generally should not be exceeded.
V. Administration of Potassium in Critical Care setting
1) Maximum concentration and infusion rates are recommended as
listed above
2) Exceptions: Depending upon the estimated potassium deficiency and

the urgency of the situation [for example: severe hypokalemia
(potassium below 2.5 mEgq/L), cardiac arrhythmias, diabetic
ketoacidosis] rare patients require a concentration, dosage and/or
rate of administration which temporarily exceeds those guidelines
stated above.

a) Maximum concentration of potassium is 80 mEq/liter in a
critical care setting on continuous ECG monitoring.
b) Maximum rate of potassium infusion is established at 40mEq

per hour, which requires continuous ECG monitoring in critical
care settings. Doses up to 200mEq in 24 hours generally
should not be exceeded.

vi. Potassium level must be checked after administration of 60mEq potassium
prior to administration of additional potassium.
b. Potassium Phosphate and Sodium Phosphate Administration Guidelines:

i. Intravenous phosphate is potentially dangerous, since it can precipitate with
calcium and produce a variety of adverse effects including hypocalcemia,
renal failure, and potentially fatal arrhythmias
1) Phosphate solutions shall not be infused via the same IV catheter as

calcium containing solutions

ii. Potassium phosphate or sodium phosphate shall not be administered IV
push and shall be administered via a slow infusion, diluted with a suitable
volume of solution.

150



Pharmacy Manual

General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy

Page 4 of 15

In situations of hypophosphatemia requiring parenteral administration of
intravenous phosphate, it may be necessary to administer concentrated
solutions of potassium phosphate or sodium phosphate
1) The salt chosen depends on the patient’s serum sodium and
potassium levels
a) Potassium phosphate should not be used if serum potassium
GREATER than 4.5 mEg/L. Sodium phosphate should not be
used if serum sodium is GREATER than 145 mEq/L
b) If both potassium and phosphate replacement required,
subtract the mEq of potassium given as potassium phosphate
from total amount of potassium required (7 mmol of Potassium
phosphate = 10 mEq of potassium)
2) Maximum phosphate concentration for peripheral line administration
=7 mmol/100mimL (10 mEq of potassium/100mimL, if using
potassium phosphate)

3) Maximum phosphate concentration for central line administration =
15 mmol/100mimL (20 mEq of potassium/100mimL, if using potassium
phosphate)

4) Maximum infusion rate of phosphate 7 mmol/hr (10 mEqg/hr

potassium, if using potassium phosphate) via peripheral line or
central line without cardiac monitoring

5) Maximum infusion rate of phosphate up to 14 mmol/hr (20 mEq/hr
potassium, if using potassium phosphate) via central line with cardiac
monitoring in the Critical Care Setting

6) Potassium level must be checked after administration of 4060mEq
potassium (27 mmol phosphate) prior to administration of additional
potassium.

c. Sodium Chloride 3% Administration Guidelines:

iv.

vi.

vii.

Sodium chloride 3% is available in 500mimL bag (3g NaCl/100m!mL = 15g
NaCl/500mimL = 513 mEq NaCl/1000mimL = 1027 mOsm/1000 mimL)

Use of Hypertonic Saline (Sodium Chloride 3%) is primarily reserved for
patients for:

1) Treatment of increased intracranial pressure

2) Treatment of cerebral edema

3) Clinical signs of cerebral herniation

4) Treatment of acute and chronic euvolemic symptomatic hyponatremia

Central line preferred due to high osmolarity. For emergent situations,
peripheral (large bore vein with good blood flow) may be utilized
Usual Dosing:

1) Bolus: 100-250mimL over 15-20 minutes

2) Infusion: 5-150 mimL/hr (start at 5-30 mimL/hr)

a) Rate of correction should generally not exceed 10-12 mEq/L in
first 24 hours and 18 mEq/L in first 48 hours to prevent
osmotic demyelination syndrome

Bolus doses of hypertonic saline may only be prescribed by Neurology,
Neurosurgery, Critical Care or Pulmonary physicians and shall be reserved
for administration in critical care settings.
1) Exception: Any location in emergent situation with continuous
monitoring pending transfer to critical care area
Administration of hypertonic saline continuous infusions shall be reserved
for critical care areas and telemetry. Administration is not permitted on
acute care, L&D, and post-partum floors.
1) Exception: Any location in emergent situation with continuous
monitoring pending transfer to critical care or telemetry unit.
All orders require renewal by MD after every 500mimL administered
151



Pharmacy Manual
General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy
Page 5 of 15

viil. The provider will determine the overall sodium replacement goal, initial
sodium goal for the first four (4) hours of the intervention, and rate of
correction
1) The plasma sodium [Na+] should be raised at a rate of 1 to 2 mEq/L
per hour in patients with severe symptoms (seizures, coma, evidence
of brainstem dysfunction)

2) The plasma sodium [Na+] should be raised by no more than 10-12
mEq/L in 24 hours and no more than 18 mEq/L in 48 hours

3) The pharmacist shall have the ability to hold any hypertonic saline
infusion whereby the sodium [Na+] has increased by GREATER than
12 mEq/L in a 24 hour period OR GREATER than 18 mEg/L in a 48
hour period per pharmacy protocol

a) Exceptions: hypertonic saline infusions for cerebral edema,
herniation or any brain condition
4) The pharmacist must contact the prescriber immediately upon
holding of the hypertonic saline infusion and for further orders
ix. The pharmacist shall verify the indication for all hypertonic saline infusions
X. The pharmacist will verify the calculations regarding the dose and rate of the
infusion ordered by the provider via the following process:
1) Determine the overall sodium replacement goal and the initial sodium
replacement goal as documented by the Provider
2) Determine the actual serum sodium level of the patient

3) Calculate the total body sodium deficit by:
a) [0.6 for males or 0.5 for females] x Weight** (in kg) x (Desired
Na - Patient’s Na)
i) Note: For weight > 30% of ideal body weight (IBW), use
adjusted weight. Adjusted weight = 0.5 x (ABW-IBW) +
IBW up to maximum of 100 kg
4) Verify the replacement rate for the first 24 hours

a) [0.6 for males or 0.5 for females] x Desired increase in Serum
Na x kg = mEq sodium to be replaced
i) Note: Not to exceed an increase of 10-12 mEq/L in a 24

hour period or 18 mEq/L in 48 hours
b) 3% sodium chloride contains 513 mEq/L sodium and 513

mEq/L chloride
c) Volume of 3% sodium chloride to be infused = mEq
sodium to be replaced/(513) x 1000 = mbkmL/24 hours

d) Rate ( mkmL/hour) = total number of mLmL per 24 hours
5) See Appendix V for Quick Estimation for Asymptomatic Hyponatremia
6) See Appendix VI for Quick Estimation for Chronic Hyponatremia

xi. The order should be assessed periodically by the prescriber for continued
therapy (every 12 hours is recommended)
Xii. Recheck electrolytes (serum sodium, chloride, potassium, bicarbonate,

serum osmolarity) and clinical status every 2 to 4 hours, with a minimum of
every 4 hours

xiii. Precautions:

1) Severe neurologic complications may result from rapid changes in
serum sodium concentration and serum osmolality

2) Patients with a history of cirrhosis or alcoholism may be at increased
risk for osmotic demyelination syndrome with rapid sodium
correction

3) Rapid withdrawal of hypertonic saline infusion may result in rebound
cerebral edema

4) Plasma volume expansion may worsen pre-existing heart failure or

cause pulmonary edema
152



Pharmacy Manual
General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy
Page 6 of 15

5) Administration of hypertonic saline via peripheral line may result in
phlebitis and skin necrosis

3}
D. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
Maintenance Solutions Containing Potassium
Guidelines for Dosing & Administration of Electrolyte Replacement
Osmolarity of Selected 1V Fluids
Selected Available Oral Electrolyte Replacement Products
Quick Estimation for Asymptomatic Hyponatremia
Quick Estimation for Symptomatic Hyponatremia

onhwN=

153



Pharmacy Manual

General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy

Page 7 of 15
' Appendix|
| MAINTENANCE SOLUTIONS CONTAINING POTASSIUM
| Solution | KCI Volume Solution | KCI Volume
content content
(mEg/L) (mEq/L)
1/2NS 20 1000 mkmL D5 1/2 NS 10 1000 mtmL
NS 20 1000 mkmL D5 1/2 NS 20 1000 mtmL
NS 40 1000 mEmL D5 1/2 NS 30 1000 mtmL
D5W 20 1000 mkmL D5 1/2 NS 40 1000 mkmL
D5 NS 20 1000 mkmL
Multi-electrolyte MAINTENANCE SOLUTIONS
Solution Content Volume
Lactated Ringer's K 4 mEg/L, Na 130 mEg/L, Ca 3 mEg/L, C! | 1000 mtmL
Injection 109 mEg/L, Lactate 28 mEq/L
| Dextrose 5% in Dextrose 5%, K 24 mEq/L, Na 130 mEq/L, | 1000 mkmL
Lactated Ringer’s Ca 2.7 mEq/L, Cl 129 mEg/L, Lactate 28
Injection with 20 KC!| | mEg/L
l Dextrose 5% in Dextrose 5%, K 44 mEq/L, Na 130 mEg/L, | 1000 mkmL
Lactated Ringer’s Ca 2.7 mEqg/L, Cl 149 mEq/L, Lactate 28
with 40 KCI Injection | mEq/L

Solutions Available for BOLUS ADMINISTRATION*

Solution Electrolyte Content Route of
(all provided in D5W or Volum | Administratio
NS) e n

Calcium chloride 1 gram 100 Central only
10 mg/mimL mEmL
Calcium gluconate 1 gram 100 Peripheral or
10 mg/mimL mkmL | Central
Magnesium sulfate 1 gram 100 Peripheral or
10 mg/rmimL mkmL | Central
Magnesium sulfate 4 gram 100 Central only
40 mg/mimL mkmL
Potassium acetate 10 mEq potassium 100 Peripheral or
0.1 mEq/mimL mkmL | Central
Potassium acetate 20 mEq potassium 100 Central only
0.2 mEg/mimL mmL
Potassium chloride 10 mEq potassium 100 Peripheral or
0.1 mEqg/mimL mkmL | Central
Potassium chloride 10 mEq potassium 50 Central only
0.2 mEg/mimL mkmL
Potassium phosphate 7.5 mmol phosphate=11 mEq | 100 Peripheral or
0.1 mEg/mkmL potassium mkmL | Central
Potassium phosphate 15 mmol phosphate = 22 mEq | 250 Peripheral or
0.1 mEq/mimL potassium mkmL | Central
Potassium phosphate 30 mmol phosphate = 44 mEq | 500 Peripheral or
0.2 mEqg/mimL potassium mkmL | Central

154



Pharmacy Manual
General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy

Page 8 of 15
Sodium phosphate 7.5 mmol phosphate=10 mEq | 100 Peripheral or
0.1 mEg/mimL of sodium mkmL | Central
Sodium phosphate 15 mmol phosphate = 20 mEq | 250 Peripheral or
0.1 mEqg/mimL of sodium mkmL | Central
Sodium phosphate 30 mmol phosphate = 40 500 Peripheral or
0.2 mEqg/mimL mEq of sodium mkmL | Central

155



Pharmacy Manual
General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy
Page 9 of 15

Appendix-l—Guidelines for Dosing & Administration of Electrolyte Replacement
**This is meant to serve as a reference please see TCMC electrolyte replacement protocol **

Potassium Acetate and Potassium Chloride Bolus Dosing and Administration (IV)
Serum Level Adult Pediatric Infusion Hourly
Dose Dose Rate Maximum
3.0-3.5mEqg/L 10 mEq 0.2-0.3 Over 1 - 2 hours 10 mEq
mEg/kg/dose
2.5-3.0 mEq/L 20 -40 mEq 0.5 mEq/kg/dose* | Over 1 - 2 hours 20 mEqg*
<2.5 mEq/L 40 - 80 mEq 1 mEqg/kg/dose* Over 2- 4 hours 20 mEqg*

e Patients with renal insufficiency should receive less than or equal to 50 % of the dose.
e Check a magnesium level especially in patients with hypokalemia and hypocalcemia.
o Magnesium deficiency should be corrected to facilitate the correction of hypokalemia.

| Potassium Phosphate and Sodium Phosphate Bolus Dosing and
Administration (V)

|| Serum Phosphate Adult Dose Pediatric Dose Infusion Rate

Level
Mild, 2.3-2.7 mg/dL 7.5 mmolL 0.08 mmol/kg/dose | Over 2 hours

|| Moderate, 1.5-2.2 15 mmoL 0.16-0.24 Over 4-6 hours
mg/dL mmol/kg/dose

|| Severe, <1.5 mg/dL 30 mmoL 0.36 mmol/kg/dose Over 6 hours

e Equivalencies : 3mmol/mkmL phosphate = 285 mg/mtmL
4.4 mEq/mimL potassium = 170 mg/ mkmL
» Risk of calcium-phosphate precipitation when infused in the same |V catheter as solutions containing

Calcium!
Magnesium Sulfate Bolus Dosing and Administration (IV)
Serum Magnesium | Adult Dose | Pediatric Dose Infusion Hourly
Level Rate Maximum
Mild/ Moderate: 1-4 gram 25-50 mg/kg/dose Over 2-4 1 gram
1-1.5 mg/dL hours
Severe: <1 mg/dL 4-8 gram 50 mg/kg/dose Over 4-8 |1 gram
hours

* Equivalencies: 1gram Magnesium Sulfate-= 8.2 mEq magnesium
e Adult total dose should not exceed 12 gram over 12 hours

, ____ Calcium Dosing and Administration (IV)
Dosing Adult Dose Pediatric Dose
| Intermittent Mild: 1-2 gram over 30 -60 Calcium chloride:10-20
minutes mg/kg/dose

156



Pharmacy Manual
General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy
Page 10 of 15

Severe: 1 gram of Calcium Calcium gluconate: 50-100
chloride or 3 gram of calcium mg/kg/dose

gluconate over 10 minutes;
Administration: over 30 - 60

minutes
Continuous 500 mg - 1 gram/hour Calcium chloride: 5-10 mg/kg/hr
Infusion Calcium gluconate: 10 -20
(Severe mg/kg/hr

hypocalcemia)

Equivalencies: 1 gm calcium chloride = 13.6 mEq (elemental calcium)

1 gm calcium gluconate = 4.56 mEq (elemental calcium)
Corrected calcium for low albumin:[(4 - alb) x 0.8] + calcium level
Risk of calcium-phosphate precipitation when infused in the same IV catheter in solutions containing
phosphate!
Potential risk for cardiac arrhythmias associated with rapid calcium infusion.
Blood products preserved with citrate may cause hypocalcemia: Administer 1.35 mEq of calcium for each
100 mEtmL of blood transfused
Not for IM or SubQ administration (severe necrosis and sloughing may occur).
Avoid rapid administration (do not exceed 100mg/min except in emergency situations)
For intermittent IV infusion, infuse diluted solution over 1 hour or no greater than 45-90 mg/kg/hour
(0.6-1.2 mEqg/kg/hr); administration via central or deep preferred; do not use scalp, small hand or foot
veins for IV administration.
Monitor ECG if calcium is infused faster than 2.5 mEq/minute; stop the infusion if the patient
complains of pain or discomfort.
Warm solution to body temperature prior to administration.

Sodium Bicarbonate

* Metabolic acidosis: sodium bicarbonate dosage should be based on blood gases and pH measurements.
HCO; dose (mEQq) = 0.5 X weight (kg) X (24 — serum HCO, (mEg/L) ) or use following equations:

Pediatrics HCO; dose (mEq) = 0.3 X weight (kg) X base deficit (mEq/L)
Adults HCO; dose (mEq) = 0.2 X weight (kg) X base deficit (mEq/L)
KEYPOINT: Neonates & infants use 0.5 mEg/mimL solution-.
e Maximum rate of administration should not exceed 1 mEg/kg/hr. Rapid or excessive administration of

sodium bicarbonate may produce tetany -or cerebral edema/hemorrhage especially in infants.
* Recommendations for the addition of sodium bicarbonate to IV fluids:

1V stock Volume | Maximum Sodium Resultant
solution Bicarbonate Na +
Addition concentration
0.45 % NaCl | 500 37.5mEq( 0.75 152 mEq/L
mkmL vial)
0.45 % NaCl | 1000 75 mEq ( 1.5 vials) 162 mEqg/L
mkmL

157



Pharmacy Manual
General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy
Page 11 of 15

D5W 500 75 mEq ( 1.5 vials) 150 mEg/L
mEmL

D5W 1000 150 mEq ( 3 vials) 150 mEq/L
mEmL

D5 0.45% 500 37.5 mEq (0.75 152 mEqg/L

NaCl mEmL vials)

D5 0.45 % 1000 75 mEq (1.5 vials) 152 mEqg/L

NaCl mkmL

D10W 500 75 mEq (1.5 vials) 150 mEg/L
mEmL

D10W 1000 150 mEq (3 vials) 150 mEq/L
mEmL

Each vial/amp of sodium bicarb contains 50 meq of sodium

Addition of sodium bicarbonate to |V fluids should not result in a hypertonic solution.
e Sodium bicarbonate should not be added to 0.9 % sodium chloride containing solutions.
Exceptions: Preparation and dispensing of hypertonic sodium bicarbonate solutions require

discussion with prescriber and approval by Clinical Manager. Also see Sodium Chloride 3%
Administration Guidelines above.

158



Pharmacy Manual
General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy
Page 12 of 15

Appendixill:—Osmolarity of Selected IV Fluids

Ringers

Solution mOsm/liter

2= Normal Saline (0.45% NaCl) 154
Normal Saline (0.9% NaCl) _ 308
Dextrose 5% in Water 252
_Dgxtrose 10 % in Water 505
Dextrose 5% and 0.2% NaCl 321
Dextrose 5% and 0.45% NaCl 406
Dextrose 5% and 0.9 % NacCl 560
Dextrose 5% and 0.2% NacCl 36i
with 20 mEq KCI

Dextrose 5% and 0.45% NaCl 447
Wlth _20 r_nE_q KCI

Lactated Ringers 273
Dextrose 5% and Lactated 525

Consult with pharmacist and/or standard references for osmolarity of other solutions.
Sterile water for injection or 0.225% sodium chloride will not be dispensed without additives to avoid

hemolysis

159



Pharmacy Manual

General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy

Page 13 of 15

Appendix-1V-- Selected Available Oral Electrolyte Replacement Products

Phosphate Replacement PO™ Products

Formulation

mg
PO,

mmol PO,

mEq Na*

K-Phos
Neutral

250 8

13.1

1.1

Potassium Replacement Products (PO)

Comments

Formulation

—

Strengths

Potassium chloride
(Extended release
capsule)

10 mEq ER (Micro-K) .

Oral route preferred over IV

Do not crush extended release products
Need to correct hypomagnesemia in order to correct

potassium levels

Excess chloride salts may cause metabolic acidosis

Potassium chloride 20mEq/15sbmL e [Excess acetate salts may cause metabolic alkalosis
(Liquid) 40mEq/30 mbmL
Potassium chloride 25 mEq effervescent
(Effervescent table)
Calcium Replacement PO Products
Formulation Strength Route Elemental Calcium Elemental Calcium
(mEq/dL) (%)

Calcium acetate 667 mg LV. or Oral® 12.7 25
(Tablet) (169 mg Elemental)
Calcium 650 mg Oral® 20 40
carbonate 1250 mg/5mimL
(Tablet/Suspension
)

160



1

Pharmacy Manual

General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy

Page 14 of 15

IBWkg

Appendix-V:—Quick Estimation for Asymptomatic Hyponatremia

__40kg |

70kg

280 kg

Estimated
Rate of 3% to
correct Serum

Na
8mEq/L/24h
__(mbmL/hr)

13 mimL/br

23 mimI/hr

26 mimL/hr

161



Pharmacy Manual

General and Concentrated Electrolytes Policy

Page 15 of 15

Appendix-Vl—Quick Estimation for Symptomatic Hyponatremia

IBW kE 40 kg 50 kgr 60 kg 70 kg 280 kﬂ
Initial rate of | 80mdmlL/hr x 100 simI/hr x | 120mImI/hr x | 140mimL/br x | 160m¥mIL/hr x
3% NaCl to 2hrs 2hrs 2hrs 2hrs 2hrs

increase Naby | STAT Nalevel | STAT Nalevel | STAT Nalevel | STAT Nalevel | STAT Na level
approx 3-5 at 2 hours at 2 hours at 2 hours at 2 hours at 2 hours
mEq/L

If seizures do 80mimI./hr 100mimL/hr 120mlmL/hr 140pdmI./hr 160mimL/hr
not resolve

continue 3%
NacCl

Maintenance
rate (patient
not seizing)
for the 1st 24
hours

| Infusion to
TealmL/hr x 22
hrs

Serial Na levels
Q4h

| Infusion to
9mimI /hr x 22
hrs Serial Na
levels Q4h

| Infusion to
11mimL/hr x
22 hrs

Serial Na levels
Q4h

| Infusion to
13miml /hr x
22 hrs

Serial Na levels
Q4h

| Infusion to
15mimL/hr x
22hrs

Serial Na levels
Q4h

3% NaCl may be continued until serum Na >120.

162



(c‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

REHABILITATION SERVICES POLICY MANUAL

SUBJECT: Supervision Requirements of Minors During Outpatient Treatment

ISSUE DATE: 01/07

REVISION DATE(S): 01/09

Department Approval Date(s): 06/15
Department of Medicine Approval Date(s): n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 09/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

ISSUYE-DATE+16/07 SUBJIECTH—SUPERVISION

A. POLICY:

21.  Parent/Guardian shall accompany their minor child for all outpatient treatments until the child
reaches the age of 18 years. Parent/Guardian shall be present at the child’s session or remain
in the waiting area for the duration of the session. The level of parent participation depends on
the child’s age and prior agreement with the treating therapist.

2, Exceptions may be made to this rule with prior signed consent by the minor's parent authorizing
treatment in absence of the parents’ presence. This may apply to teenagers that are driving
themselves to their appointments (i.e. minor children age 16 and older). Other limited (single-
visit) exceptions may be considered for emergencies and would have to be arranged between
the parent and therapist for agreement on feasibility of the treatment session without the
parent’s presence at the facility.

163



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

REHABILITATION SERVICES POLICY MANUAL

SUBJECT: Use of Encrypted Email

ISSUE DATE: NEW

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval Date(s): 07/15
Department of Medicine Approval Date(s): n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 09/15
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PROCEDURE:
1. Outpatient Rehab services will utilize an encrypted email ID created by the Information

Technology Department.

2. A common email password will be provided to all front office staff so that they have access to the
secure email address.

a. The common email password will be changed when any current team member terminates
from duties relating to accessing the secure email account.

3. Upon Patient/Physician Office request for submission of orders, authorizations, etc. via email the

Front Office team member will forewarn the caller via a scripted message as follows:

a. “There is an inherent risk whenever information is shared electronically via an
unencrypted email format such as that from personal email accounts. By requesting to
send us your medical information by this means, you are accepting this risk”.

4, Our Front ofF ice WI|| then prowde the email address to the Indmdual/Offlce

5: OP Rehab team member accesses the secure ema|I folder to access the patient documents.
6

A confirmation email is sent back to the Patient/Physician Office upon receipt of the email to the
secure TCMC email address.

7. Front Office team member directs the documents received to the fax server for access by team
members completing the Scheduling and Registration process.
8. Front Office team member deletes the received email from the secure email folder.

164



G102 ‘9 4990100

-1- Buneayy saniwwo) aAne|siba] ® 95UBUISBA0Y)

suonenbay @ s8Ny LelIS [EsIpaN B

— ssauisng pIO 'S

[9SUN0Y) [elaudn

‘Bunaawl Jxau

ay) 0} yoeq Buug pue saipadold 1ouIsIq
uO SPOO0S) pue aunjess)i Jo uonngulsi
uoljeyoljos ‘salliAldY (ednljod

uo uomqiyold £Z0-S| Adljod pieog

0) uondwaxa Jeup 0} [9SunoY |eJauss)

‘rendsoy ayy Aq una pue |elidsoy

ay) 40 Njouaq ay} Joy aJe jey) sbuiyy Joy Aoijod ay) 0}
uondwaxa ue yeud 0) ajqissod aq pjnom y ji pauoysenb
320]|eYyoS uewuiey?) sailadold 191)sI] Uo Spoos) pue
ainjess)i] Jo uonnguisig uohe)iol|os ‘saliAndY [ednljod
uo uomqIyold £Z0-S1 Aaljod pseog o} psebas i

‘Kisnowiueun paaosdde asom
sejnujw 3y "sapiwiwio) aAne|sibo )p asueUIdA0S
5102 ‘I Jequiaydag ay) jo sajnuiw ay) el oy e "ig

ss)nuIp

‘paynes sa)nuip Aq papuogas pue ejiuuld 1030311 Aq paAow sem )| Joud jo uonesyney ‘v
‘epusaby sAepo} uo pajls|| Se Juswadsunouue olqnd
Ajuo uonew.oju) SJUBLULLIOY) J1|gnd 3y} PEd 20|[eyos uewdiey)d 3y} JO SIaqUUBW WOJ} SJUBWIWOYD) "§
‘Ajsnowueun passed uonjow ay| ‘uoljow
ay) papuodas yemoys "i1q 'pajuasaid se epuabe
‘panoidde epuaby | s./Aepoj anoidde 0} ejiuuly 10398410 Aq paAoWw SeM )| epuaby jo jeaoiddy ‘g
‘uBWIIBYD) 9BIIWIWOYD ‘HO0||leyos uewdieyd
Aq Js)ua) [eaipa AND-111 Je § wooy A|quassy
urw-d Qg:z1 1e Japlo 0} pajjieo sem Bupesw ayy uonoNposU/IBpPIO O] (18D L
a|qisuodsay dn-mojjo4
(s)uosiad uonoy uolssnasiq
Jaquiapy AJuNwLIo) ‘OjoWWB |V aquBapy Ajunwwo)) ‘uiay) axe|g ‘03D ‘UBJoy Wi aquspy Aunwiwo) YIMojs jned “iqg ‘juasqy

‘uosan| uIqoy ‘Jaquwayy pJeog ‘ounsobeq wir L10jeulploos) YEIS [BJIPay JOIUSS ‘uamog LS ‘JUB)SISSY SAIINJSXT ‘ue(|auuo( Ue

snoJepy "I Jaquispy ANunwiwo) ‘yoing ol ‘ousy ‘A SLe3s0oy 10j03Ji] ‘B|luul4 BUOLIRY J0J0aI(] ‘uosiadiieyD ‘YHoo|ieyos "M Ade

Jaquisiy Ajlunwwon) ‘Jakswung auep aquiaiy Ajunwwo)

‘Juasald sIPYl0

009 ‘meys-pleusag ajAiay) ‘00D ‘Aejuo) endey {|asuno’) [eiaus9 ‘19sol Baio :siaquiepy Bunop-uoN

Hels jo jaiy) ‘e sudg) uQg Uaquisly ueoisAyd ‘yemoys AlusH "ug Jaquiapy uedisAyd ‘oplejuo)

Juasald SIaquIdy

SL0Z ‘9 1940300
Jousiq atesyyfesy ANo-ug

sajnull Bunesyy asyIWWO, aAle|sIBa] )@ 9oURUIGAOL)

14vid

165



G102Z ‘9 48900

-z- Bunasiy sa)IWWO0) aANE|sIBaT ® 90UBUISAOS)

‘Ajuo uoneuwLIou|

-dnoib ay) Jo Bunsaw e buipuad paliaep
sem suonenbay @ ssiny YyesH pallly 8y} Jo uoissnosig

yieaH pally (e

800 JEIS [E9IPIN

‘Bunssw }xau 418y} Je

89))ILIWOoD ay) 0} psemuoy Jybnouq pue
uoljEeDIJLIB[D 10} UOISIAK] 9Y) 0] )oeq Juas
aq 0) suonejnbay P sajny Aneiyohsd

‘asuodsaJ 10} UOISIAI(] 8Y} 0} )oBq paliajal
aq suone|nbay g sajny AnelysAsd ay) paysebbns sem j

‘SplJepuelg SIND pue UOISSIWWOY JUIof LM

wJojuod saioljod oy} ainsua am ey pajsebbns semy
‘JuSLISSASSE Julel)sal 0) pajejad saloljod aAnessiuiwpe
[euonIppE O} pauaal 18so JN " Jnoy ay)

UIyIM, pasn aq Ueo Julelisal B Paljlued [9sunoy [elauss
‘pasn aq Ued Julelisal B 810j8q JNOY UB JIEM O} sey
ueoisAyd Buipuaye ayy Aym pauonsanb e|luuly J0)284QJ

*yoeq Jodas pue dn-mojjo} pjnom

INq [endsoy ay) je pawiopad ale S| D3 aAallsq Jou pip

ays pajels uamog S|\ " 1DJ J0} UOHISS 81Npasold syl
Ul 0uaJajal 8q pP|NoYs a3y} JI pauonsanb opieuo) ig

Aneiyohsd jo uoising (e

9040 Hels [edlpan

‘Bunasw 1xau 118y} Je 83} WWod

ay) o) pJemuoy Jybnoliqg pue uonesijueo
10} UOISIAI(] 3Y) 0) yoeq Juas aq

0] suonenbay B sa|ny As1abinsoinaN

uoyeoen
10} UOISIAI BY) 0) Yoeq pawdjal aq suolje|nbay
9 sa|ny A1abinsoinapN ay) papusuLL0IBl SEM )|

I1e2 uawpedaq
Aouabiawg 0) paje|al “x uondss pue q ydesbesedgns
“X| UOND3S Ul SBIDUSBISISUOIU| PBJoU OpJeuo) "I

'ssa| Aue S| ased

jo Ayjenb siayy Aldwi jou saop sjeIdossy Wi syl Jey)
pauiejdxa Jayuny a4 "paloiooid aq 0} aAeY Jey) Sased
JO JuNowWe Jie} B pue UoISIAIp 8y} Ul SuoabinsodnaN
SAI}OB JO JaquInu ||ews e aJe aJay) pauleldxs ey 1qg
‘6uno)o0.id 0) paje|al UOISSNISIP DAISUBIXD SEM a1aY |

"uoISIAIp AQ SBUBA sJEaA JO Jaquinu au) paje)s
uamog "SI "uonEdILIBD UIelqo o) (G-g) sJeak jo Jaquinu
8y} u soueleA 8y} Buipsebal pjay sem uoissnosig

‘passnasIp a1om
suone|nbay pue sajny A186INSOINBN JO UOISIAI] BY)
0] sjuswpuawe ‘Gunsaiu s Iuow )Se| Je UoISSNISIp Jod

Asabiunsounap jo uoisinig ()

14Vvad

e|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

dn-mojjo4
uonoy

uolssnosi(g

oido]

166



G102 ‘9 18q0)00

-¢- Bunes|y s2)WWOY BAIR|SIBaT @ 80UBUISA0S

19y0ed epuaby pieog

ul papnjoul pue epuabe pieog Jxau

uo Jeadde 0} Wa}l 1oNpuo’) Jo apodH
anisusyaldwo) — 6E0-1 1 Adljod pieog
papuswe aAoidde 0} s10)03.1Q jo pleog

ue|jsuuog ‘s 3y} 0} JUSS 8q O} UOHEPUBLLLIOIDY

‘pJeog ay) jo a3)IWwWod e 0] Uey) Jayjes pJeog

(IN} O} BWOD PINOYS SUOISIDAP |eloueul) Jofew (e jey)
paziseydws ejluul4 10}oaJ(J "UOISIOSpP JOJOBRJUO0D B Jou
‘uoisioap auo Bunoaye si jey) uoisioap [eipnfisenb e
0} saljdde abenbue| siy) paje)s |asuno) [ei1auas) ‘pieoqg
3y} o 9a]IWLWIOD B ue) Jayjel pieog ay) jo bunsaw

B e Sk Uyons ‘al) awes ay) Je uojeuwuojul swes sy}
Buiniedal ae siaquiapy pleog e jey) sajewnul abenbue)
ay) Jey) u1aouod passaldxe e|iuuld J0joalg "papnioul
sem uoneue|dxa J9jdwWIs B pue palajep sem SJoejuoo
aliedxs 0) pajejal abenbue| pajels [asuno) [eisuag)
‘Bunsawl s,|jucwl }se| e uoissnasip 0) dn-moj|o} uj

Jonpuo)n
}0 9poo anisuayasdwon — 6€0
-1 Aolj0d pJeog 0} Juswpuswe
JO UOISSNOSIP pue MajAsy "D

19yoed epusby pseog

ul papnjoul pue epuabe pieog jxsu

uo Jeadde 0} wa) ‘sioyaulqd Jo pleog
ay} jo saling 011 Adllod pieog
papuawe aAoidde o) si0)0a.41J Jo pieog

uejlauuoqg ‘s 8y} 0} JUas 8q 0} UOHEPUSILIOIDY

‘A|snowjueun
passed uonow ay| °‘uoiow ayj PapuoIIS yemoys
*1q -pojuasaid se ‘s10)90.1q Jo pieog ay) Jo sanpng

Zv0-vL Ao1j0d pleog 0} sjuswpuawe ayj jo jeaosdde
puswWWooal 0} ejluul4 10)9311q Aq PIAOW SBM )|

*190140) 9oueldwod

JaIyD ey} pue |asuno)) |esauan) jo Buuiy ay) Buipnjoul
‘siapew |eBaj uo Bupjew uoisioap Joy sanl|iqisuodsal
s,pJeog 8y} saquasap yaiym £zo-v | Adljod pieog
90U819)8] SS0ID 0) PapUSWE SEM SI0)0a.I(] JO pleog syl
J0 sanng — Z0-1L Ad1jod pieog pajels [9sunoy) [essuss
‘Bunesw s,yjuow Jsej Je uoissnosip 0) dn-mojjo} u|

s10)08.1Q
J0 pJeog 8y} Jo sanng — gv0
-y Aoljod pieog 0} Juawpuawe
JO UOISSNOSIP pue MaIARY g

‘Alaympiu 0] pajejas saloljod

118y} a1eys 0} Juasuod J1ay} aAIb SHON 1senbad |m ay
pajels B\ Ig "aJed jo Aljlenb o) sejejal )i ey 1oe) ay) 0}
anp 9aIWWO)) SJBYY |BUOISSDJ0Id BY) O) paliajal usaq
sey uoIssnasIp jo 21do) siy) pajels }20||eyos uewieyd
“2HIMPIN 3y} Jo JyBisiano sapiaosd oym pauonsanb
ouay Jojoauiqg "ueisAyd ay) jo uonelosip ay)

0} 19| s1 )l sieadde )1 pue Alajimpiw 10} BS)ID UOISN[OU!
Ileyap jou pip wiy o) papiroid uojew.oul ay) pajels

e 1g ‘Aaumpiw Joj eusjud Jiey) Buipsebal saolneg
yyeaH Alunod yuoN yim pasinbui ay Bunaaw s yjuow
)se| Je uoissnosip Jad paje)s Yels o jaiyd ‘e auso "ug

14vid

dn-mojjo4
uondvy

o|qisuodsay
{s)uosiad

uoissnosiq

oido |

167



610z ‘9 4990100

p- Bunesy 99)IWWOY BAlR|SIBaT @ 80UBUISA0S)

10 @1e01)111a0 JualInd e apiaoid Jsnw, peal 0} pasiAal
aqg | aul| "g °|| UoNOSs Ul paulejuod abeiqlan pajsabbns
g|iuul4 JOJ0BII(] "S|EuolISSajold UlEaH Pallly 2pnjoul

0) papuslue sem ge0-vL# Ad1j0d pJeog paje)s |asuno))
[eJouas) ‘BuileaW s,yjuowW }se| Je UOISSNOSIP Jad

sjuswaunbay asueInsu)

Anigen geo-vL Aoljod paeog
1O UOISSNOSIP pUB M3IADY g

‘Joyoed epuabe pieog ul papnjoul

pue epusbe pleog jxau uo Jeadde o)
wa) ‘papuswe se suonenbay B sany
A19Bing Jenosep @ |BJauas) Jo UoIsIAIg
ay) anoidde 0} s10)09117 jO pleogd

ue|jsuuoqg ‘s 8y} 0} JuSS 8 0) UOHEPUBWWOIDY

‘A)snowiueun passed uoljow

a8y ‘uonow 3y} Ppapuodads oudy Jojoali( ‘papuswe
pue pajuasaid se suone|nbay g sa|ny Aiabing
Je|nase/ pue [Biauac) Jo UOISIAIQ 3Y) jo [eaocsdde
puawwodal 0} opiejuo) “iq Ag paaow sem jj

-sBuipuly

Jay uo xoeq podas pinom Ing suonenbay g ssiny
asaU) jo AIOISIY 31 Mmouy JOU pIp 8ys pajels uamog
‘S| "UOISIAIP UMO 119y} JO suoleinbay @ sajny ayj ul
palos|yal aq pinoys sdeytad pue Je|ndSeA pue |elauss)
Jou a.e jey) suoabins Aq pawlopad ase seinpasoud
LN3 pue ABojoin 1ey) pajusawwod osfe opejuo)) "id

"3lpung ay) ulyum sased (| 0} sidjaJ pue sabajaud
pajpung, ale asay) paule|dxa uamog 113 ] "S|\ ‘S3SED Q|
Ajuo si Juswsasinbai Bunolooid ay) Joramoy sasnpasoud
ajesedas ¢ ale a1ay) Jey) pajusawwWod opleuod) ig

‘ua)ou)s aq

LON PInoys suonenbay ® sa|ny ay} jo Z| jo g abed uo
Jiabins oujeueq sepnjoul abelanod asnoesdiew ajedipul
0} uoljejuawndo(, abeiqiaa ay) 1no pajuiod e ug

A1abing Jenosep
pue |BJauac) JO UOISIAI] ‘|

suonenbay
'8 S9INY LeIS |edIpSN e

ssauisng MaN ‘9

‘Aisnowjueun

passed uojow ay| °uoljow 3y} papuosas

yemoys “1g °J1onpuo?) Jo apo) aAaisudayasdwon - 680
-pL# Aolj0d pleog 0} sjuawipuawe ay) jo jeaosdde
pusWWOo9al 0) opieuo) '1g Aq parow sem )|

‘salj|igel awos wod sjeoiyo aignd 10810.4d 0) uspum
s1 abenbue| ay) pajels [9sunod |elauss) - sauelonpl
ale Aoy} JI se aneyaq, abenbue| ay) 0} pajejal

Z# ydesbeued '} uonoas Buipsebal pjay sem uoissnosiq

14vid

e|qisuodsey
{s)uosiad

dn-mojjo4
uonoy

uolssnosiq

oidoj|

168



G102 ‘9 429000

-G Bunaaiy saNIWWO) aANE|SIBaT ® 90UBUISAOL)

uewuiey) ‘uieby ‘pieog syj 0) 06 sjuswpuawe
MEeAG JeIS [eoIpaly 8y} 8ousnbas jJeym uj o} se sulewsal
uonsanb ay) pajels e Iqg ‘| “1L '} uonoag o} prebal Y

‘paquosap suoljisod aaly)

ay) Joj Buiuue|d uoissadoNSs JO UOISSNISIP 1O} 93IWIWOD
ay) 0} yoeq awod Aaljod Buuueld uolssaaons s,pleog
ay) paysabbns Jasop "IN ‘|9SUN0) |BsBuag) pue 0D
‘03D 8y sepnjoul yolym sadly pleog sy} jey) Jejs |je Jo}
aoe|d uj Buluued uoissadons aq alay) paysabbns ejuul
Jojoanq “JeueyD ay] ul pasualayal-ssoso aq pinod
Aoljod ayy pue 48210 aAlINoaX3 Jaiy) ay) Joy buiuueid
uoISS300NS SaQUISap ZE0-L# Adljod pieogd pajels
[sunoy) |etauac) ‘sue|d UOISSIINS BAIJNDAXS O} Pajejdl
[~} "] uonoag uo uonedyed pajsanbal ejiuuly J0)osaQg

"SWEBUD MO 8U} YiM uonounfuod ul piemioy Jybnouq
8q p|nom pue $s8004d MO} JUSINOOP HE)S [edIpa
8y} ajesodiooul o) epuabe s Aepo) uo papnjoul Sem
Jauey) S,89)IWWO0Y 8U) PaJe)s }o0|[eyos uewiey)

Jajey) e|piuwo)
aAlje|siBaT] g 80UBUISA0S)
JO UOISSNOSIpP puB MaIASY ‘P

ue|jsuuoq ‘s

‘epuabe
ainn} e uo paoe|d aq o) ssas0.d
MO[} JUBWINDOOP Je)s [edIpa pasodold

ey ayy Aq pajind sem ssao04d MO} JUSWINDOP
yels [eoipapy pasodoud JO UOISSNISIP pue MaIADY

$59204d MOJ} JUSWNJOP
yels |eaips|y pasodold
JO UOISSNOSIP pUB MBIABY "D

uejauuoq ‘s
o= [}

19%0ed epusby

pJeog ul papnjou; pue epuabe pieog
1Xau uo Jeadde 0} WA) ‘SBPPWWOD
9AINOaX] |edIpa au) AqQ |eaosdde
Buipuad sjuawalinbay asueInsu|
Annger] — ge0- L Aaljod pieog
papuswe aaoidde 0) s10)0a41( JO pleog
ay) 0} Juas aq 0} UOIEPUSIWIOIDY

‘Aisnowueun passed uonow

3y -uonouw ay) papuosds opJejuos) ig ‘IPIWWo)
aAlNo3xg |esipa ay) Aq paaoidde uodn juabupuod
sjuawaainbay asueinsuj A)jiqel] Jeis |esipap
8¢0-v1 A2110d pieog 0} sjuswipuawe ay) jo jeaosdde
puawwosal o0} ejiuuld Jojoalig Aq parow sem )|

"@ouelnsul aonoesdiew Jisyl Japun ajmpiwl B J9A0D

os|e Aew ueioisAyd Buisiazadns e saw) uajo paule|dxa
uamog "SI "SSAIMPIW BPN|OUl S0P S|BUOISSS}0.d
U)leaH pal|ly PaJEls [9SUNO)) [BIBUSS) "SBAIMPIW

0) sal|dde Aaijod ay) ji pauonsanb ouay Jo}oaaqg
"u9nouls 8q LON PINOYS Yim, pJom ay) auo aul| “y ||
uol}0as Ul pajou opJejuos) iq “Jendsoy sy o} abelanod
Ajigey jo aouapins ajgeidasoe Jayjo J0 aduelnsul

14vad

a|qisuodsay
{s)uosied

dn-mojjo4
uonoy

uolssnasiq

oido |

169



G102 ‘9 499010

-9 Bunaapy asmwwo?) aAle|siBa ¥ 9oUBUIBA0SD

‘wrd gg:| Je buneaw ay) paulnolpe %o0}leyos ueulieyd

wawuinofpy ‘g1

‘wrd gg:ZL 1e ‘S JogLUBAoN
‘Aepsan | 104 pa|Npayos si Buisall Jxau s,89))1WWOD aY |

Bunesw xau
JO sl pue sjep ulUo] ||

"gaplwwod ay) uo sbuiuado ou Apusund ale asLy|

auopN — sbuiuadp Anunwwod ‘gL

*Ajuo uonewJoju|

‘g)ed )saJsjul Buioueuly Jamo| e aAI998.

pue [eydsoy ay) punole Buisnoy awoosul Moj JO JoLISIp
B WLIOJ pINOM JoUSI 8Y) utasaym Jousig Buioueuiy
asnjongselu| ay) se yons sjuswdojaasp aosueuly

0) sAem aAljeula)je UO pajusWIWOod Bliuul4 Joyald

SUOIIEDILUNWIWOY) S9)ILLWOYD 6

*Aluo uonewJoju|

"€} 19qUIBAON uo dOySHIOA
e |0y ||M pJeog 8y} pajou Osje ¥20|jeydS Uewuieyd

‘Buds ay) ul s1apey ) J1BY) MaIASS
(M Sea)IWWOo) pJeod || pajou X}o0|[eyds ueuiey)

‘2oualajal 4o} Joxoed Buneaw s,Aepo)
Ul papnjoul Ssem ue|d 3JOAA 8S)IWW0] 9L0CAd BUL

uejd Y40
93IWWO] 91 0CAL JO MBINSY '8

*Ajuo uonewJoju)

‘s|iiq Buiubis jo ssesoud
aU) Ul ||1S S| JOUIBA0L) 8y} pajrodal 320|[eyos uewuieyd

uone|siban
yauno buipsebal uoissnosiy /L

uejjsuuoq ‘s

ue|jsuuoqg ‘s

‘uoISSNIsIp

1oy epuabe )xau s29)1WWOYD

ay) uo paoe|d aq 0} Ad1j04 Buluueld
uolsseoang 030 Le-vL# Adllod pieog

"19)0ed epuabe pJeog

Ul papnjou; pue epuabe pseog Jxau

uo Jeadde 0} WAl ‘papuswe se Jaypeyn
ay) anoidde o} s10108.1(3 JO pieog

8U} 0} JUSS a( 0} UOIEPUSILLIOIDY

‘Ajsnowjueun passed uojow ay] -uoljow ay}
papuoIas opIeuO) *IJ °"UOISSNISIP 10} 33} IWIO0D
ayj 0} yoeq L£0-vL# Ad1jod pieog Bunq pue

‘[ -1 '] uonoas ui Aaijod Buluueld uoissasang 039
1£0-VL# A2110d pieog 93Ud1391-SS0ID 0) Jayueys
ay) puawe 0} ejiuuly 10)93.1iq Aq paAOLU SBM )|

‘passnosip Ajsnoiaaid ssasoud
MO} JUBWINDOP LB)S [EDIPSIA 3Y) Yim uoiounfuoo
Ul passalppe 8q pinom anss! SiY] pPale)s 320|[eyos

1dvad

o|qisuodsay
{s)uosiod

dn-mojjo4
uonoy

uolssnosig

oido |

170



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules & Regulations

Section: Medical Staff

Subject: Division of Neurosurgery

Pagg1 of 10

MEMBERSHIP

The Division of Neurosurgery consists of physicians who are Bboard Gcertified or are actively
progressing towards pursuing-certification by the American Board of Neurological Surgery and obtain
board certification within sixty (60) months of appointment to the Medical Staff (for physicians who were
granted such privileges on or after June 1, 1991 Yeffectiveretroactive-to-2000), or be able to demonstrate
comparable ability, training and experience.

FUNCTIONS OF THE DIVISION

The general functions of the Division of Neurosurgery shall include:

A. Conduct patient care review for the purpose of analyzing and evaluatingen the quality, safety and
appropriateness of care and treatment provided to patients within-the-hespital-by members of the
Division and develop criteria for use in the evaluation of patient care;-

B. Recommend to-the-Department-of Surgery-and-to the Medical Executive Committee guidelines
for the granting of clinical privileges and the performance of specified services within the
divisienhospital,-

C. Conduct, participate in and make recommendations regarding continuing medical education
programs pertinent to Division clinical practice;-

D. Review and evaluate dDivision member adherence to:

1. Medical Staff Ppolicies and Rprocedures;
2. Sound principles of clinical practice.

E. Submit written reperts-minutes to the Department-of-Surgery-the QA/PI/PS Committee and

Medical Executive Committee concerning:

1. Fhe-division’s-Division review and evaluation ef-activities, actions taken thereon, and the
results of such actions; anrd

2. Recommendations for maintaining and improving the quality and safety of care provided
in the hospital;-

3. Establish such committees or other mechanisms as are necessary and desirable to
perform properly the functions assigned to it, including proctoring;-

4, Take appropriate action when important problems in patient care, safety and clinical
performance or opportunities to improve patient care are identified;-

5. Recommend/Request Focused Professional Practice Evaluation as indicated for-Medical

Staff-members-(pursuant to Medical Staff Policy 8710-509);-

6. Appreval-ef-Approve On-Going Professional Practice Evaluation Indicators; and-

7. Formulate recommendations for Division Rrules and Rregulations reasonably necessary
for the proper discharge of its responsibilities subject to approval of the Bepartment-of

Surgery-andthe-Medical Executive Committee.

DIVISION MEETINGS

The Division of Neurosurgery shall meet ne-less-than-annually—erat the discretion of the divisien-eChief,
butat least annually. The dDivision will consider the findings from the ongoing monitoring and evaluation
of the quality, safety, and appropriateness of the care and treatment provided to patients. Minutes_shall
be transmitted to the ~QA/PI/PS Committee, and then to the Medical Executive
Committee.—Fhe-Division s-afend-he Jepartmen ingsta—raviey

> »
AHels-Feguiregaio-ananaine-llanarmant Maatinoae tn raviaw tha ranar

Twenty-five percent (25%) of the Active Division members, but not less than two (2) members, shall
constitute a quorum at any meeting.

| MedStaff Dept. R&R ~ Div. Of Neurosurgery — Revised: 1/03; 4/4; 12/05; 5/07, 06/08; 2/11; 5/13,_42/14 9/15

171



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules & Regulations

Section: Medical Staff

Subject: Division of Neurosurgery

Page 20f10

V.

VL.

DIVISION OFFICERS
The Chief of the Division of Neurosurgery shall-have-a-Ghief-who-shall be is a member of the Active
Medical Staff and shall be qualified by training, experience, and demonstrated ability in the clinical area

covered by the DivisionNeurosurgery.

The Division Chief shall be elected by-division-members-every year by the Active Stafi-Mmembers of the
Division_ who are eligible to vote. If there are-vacansies-ef-is a vacancy for any officer for any reason, the
Department Chairman shall designate a new effiser{s)Chief, or call a special election. The eChief shall
be elected by a simple majority of the members of the Division.

The Division Chief shall serve a one-year term, which coincides with the mMedical sStaff year unless
they-he/she resigns, isbe removed from office, or loses their-his/her mMedical sStaff membership or
clinical privileges in the thatdDivision. Division officers shall be eligible to succeed themselves.

DUTIES OF THE DIVISION CHIEFS

The Division Ghief;Chief shall assume the following responsibilities-ef-the-Bivision:

Be accountable for all professional and administrative activities of the Division;-

Continuing surveillance of the professional performance of all individuals who have delineated
clinical privileges in the Division;-

Assure that practitioners practice only within the scope of their privileges as defined within their
delineated privilege formeard;-

Recommend to the Department of Surgery and the Medical Executive Committee the criteria for
clinical privileges in the Division;-

Recommend clinical privileges for each member of the Division;-

Assure that the quality, safety and appropriateness of patient care provided within-the-division- by
members of the Division are monitored and evaluated; and

Other duties as desigrated-by-recommended from the Department of Surgery, QA/PI/PS
Committee or the Medical Executive Commiittee.

mm o O w»

®

CLASSIFICATIONS

The Division of Neurosurgery has established the following classifications of surgical privileges:
A. Physicians/Surgeons

Division of Neurosurgery members are expected to have training and/or experience and

competence on a level commensurate with that provided by specialty training, such as in the

broad field of internal medicine although not necessarily at the level of a sub-specialist. Such

physicians may act as consultants to others and may, in turn, be expected to request consultation

when:

1. Diagnosis and/or management remain in doubt over an unduly long period of time,
especially in the presence of a life threatening illness;

| Medstaff Dept. R&R - Div. Of Neurosurgery — Revised: 1/03; 4/4; 12/05; 5/07, 06/08; 2/11; 5/13;_12/44 9/15

172



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT | e MediealStal

Subject: Division of Neurosurgery
Rules & Regulations Page 3 of 10
2. Unexpected complications arise which are outside this level of competence;
3. Specialized treatment or procedures are contemplated with which they are not familiar.

A member of the Division of Neurosurgery may admit, consult or dictate histories and physicals in
the Rehabilitation Unit for the following diagnoses: spinal cord injury (non-ventilator dependent),
traumatic brain injury, CVA, neurological disorders, and orthopedic procedures.

B.  PhysicianAssistantSupervising Physicians

A Ph cian A Nt m on O

2-1. A supervising physician shall be available in person or by electronic communication at all

times when the physician assistant is caring for patients;-
3:2. A supervising physician shall delegate to a physician assistant only those tasks and

procedures consistent with the supervising physicians specialty or usual customary
practice and with the patient’s health and condition.

C. Physician Assistants
1. A Physician Assistant may only provide those medical services, which he/she is
competent to perform and which are consistent with the physician assistant’s education,
training and experience, and which are delegated in writing by a supervising physician
who is responsible for the patients cared for by that physician assistant:

2. A physician assistant may not admit or discharge patients:
3. The Physician Assistant must adhere to the Allied Health Practitioner (AHP) Rules &
Requlations.

| MedStaff Dept. R&R — Div. Of Neurosurgery — Revised: 1/03; 4/4; 12/05; 5/07, 06/08; 2/11; 5/13;_ 4214 9/15

173



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules & Regulations

Section: Medical Staff

Subject: Division of Neurosurgery

Page 4 of 10

VIL.

G:D. _Nurse Practitioners as Surgical First Assist

1. _The Nurse Practitioner is a Registered Nurse who is a nationally certified Perioperative Nurse <
(CNOR) through the Association of Peri-Operative Registered Nurses (AORN) or certified by
the State of California Board of Registered Nursing as a Nurse Practitioner and has
successfully completed an AORN-approved Registered Nurse First Assist (RNFA) course.

2. _The Nurse Practitioner practices under the supervision of the surgeon during the
preoperative, intraoperative, and postoperative phases of the perioperative experience.

3. The Nurse Practitioner functions under standardized procedures and must adhere to the

Allied Health Practitioner (AHP) Rules & Regulations.

INFHAL - APPOINTMENT & REAPPOINTMENT AND RENEWAL OF CLINICAL PRIVILEGES
A.

All privileges are accessible on the TCMC Intranet and a paper copy is maintained in the Medical

Staff Office.

scope of privileges requested. “Current competency” means documentation of activities within
the twenty-four (24) months preceding application, unless otherwise specified.

Neurosurgery-Privileges Requirements for Proctoring Reguirements for *,
Rrivilegesinitial Privileges- Q-2
Appointment YearsReappointmen
t (every 2 years
Admit patients FrainingSuccessful NAProctoring NAlncluded in the
Consultation, including via completion of an considered reappointment
telemedicine (F) ACGME- or AOA- complete upon requirements for the
History and physical accredited residency or | successful General
examination, including via fellowship in completion of Neurosurgery
telemedicine (F) Neurosurgery proctoring for the | Privileges
General
Neurosurgery
Privileges
GENERAL NEUROSURGERY PRIVILEGES, *
1. Successful Six (6) cases, at | All General
completion of an least two (2) Neurosurgery
Ablative surgery for epilepsy ACGME- or AQA- cases must be Privileges: Fifty (50)
Granialand-Intracranial accredited proctored for cases reflective of
procedures—nscludingshunts residency in each of the 3 the privileges
All types of craniotomies, neurological categories requested
craniectomies, and surgery. category-of
| reconstructive procedures J 2. Documentation of privileges

| MedStaff Dept. R&R — Div. Of Neurosurgery — Revised: 1/03; 4/4; 12/05; 5/07, 06/08; 2/11; 5/13,_12/44 9/15

174



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Section:

Medical Staff

Subject: Division of Neurosurgery
Rules & Regulations Page 5 of 10
Neurosurgery Privileges Requirements for Proctoring Requirements for
Privilegesinitial Privileges-Q-2

Appointment

yearsReappointmen
t (every 2 years)

(including microscopic) on the
skull, including surgery on the
brain, meninges, pituitary
gland, and cranial nerves and
including surgery for cranial
trauma and intracranial
vascular lesions

Arteriography and

angiography and complex
interventional cases*

Management of congenital
anomalies, such as
encephalocele, meningocele,

and myelomeningocele
Shunts (VP, ventriculoatrial,

ventriculopleural, subdural
peritoneal, and lumbar
subarachnoid/peritoneal [or
| other cavity])

Tracheostomy

Transsphenoidal procedures
for lesions of the sellar or

parasellar region,
fluid leak, or fracture

Ventricular shunt operation
for hydrocephalus, revision of
shunt operation,

and ventriculocisternostomy
Ventriculography

Correction costoclavicular
Compression and related
procedures

Discography and
intradiscal/percutaneous disc
treatments

Epidural steroid injections for

pain

| Implantables (intrathecal or |

| MedStaff Dept. R&R — Div. Of Neurosurgery — Revised: 1/03; 4/4; 12/05; 5/07, 06/08; 2/11; 5/13,.42/44 9/15

one-hundred (100)

ranted (cranial/

cases from the skull based;
previous twenty- spine; and/or
four (24) months nervous
representative of system).
the privileges
requested.
10 L 2years 2
‘442—5!6:*6 Ne
8 Ne
ilvears No

175



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules & Regulations

Section:

Subject:

Medical Staff
Division of Neurosurgery

Pagg 6 of 10

Neurosurgery-Privileges Requirements for
Initial Granti ;

Privilegesinitial

Appointment

Proctoring Requirements for
Required renewal-of

Privi! A

epidural infusion pumps with
tunneled catheter, spinal cord

stimulator)

Insertion of subarachnoid or
epidural catheter with
reservoir or pump for drug
infusion or cerebrospinal fluid
withdrawal
Intradiscal electrothermai
annuloplasty
Laminectomies,
laminotomies, and fixation
and reconstructive
procedures of the spine and
its contents, including
instrumentation
Lumbar puncture, cisternal

puncture, ventricular tap, and
subdural tap

Nucleoplasty
Percutaneous and

subcutaneous implantation of
neurostimulator electrodes
Posterior fossa-microvascular

decompression procedures
Radiofrequency
thermocoagulation ablation
| (RFTC)
Sacral fusion

Spinal cord surgery for
decompression of spinal cord
or spinal canal,
for intramedullary lesion,
intradural extramedullary
lesion, rhizotomy,
cordotomy, dorsal root entry
zone lesion, tethered spinal
cord, or other
congenital anomalies (e.q.,

diastematomyelia)

Myelography G dyears

| MedStaff Dept. R&R — Div. Of Neurosurgery — Revised: 1/03; 4/4; 12/05; 5/07, 06/08; 2/11; 5/13,_12/44 9/15

yearsReappointmen
t (every 2 years)

176



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules & Regulations

Section: Medical Staff
Subject: Division of Neurosurgery

Pagg7 of 10

Neurosurgery Privileges Requirementsfor Proctoring
Initial Granti ¢ Reguired

Privileges|nitial

Appointment

Reguirementsfor
rel_ae_wal-of

Privileges Q2
YyearsReappointmen
t (every 2 years)

Surgery for intervertebral disc
disease

_Gemplex—spme—preeedures 18/ 2 years 2

Autonomic Nervous Systems | 3--2years Ne
Surgery

Biopsy: nerve, muscle

Cranial nerve blocks — all

types
Peripheral nerve surgery B idyaars kls
primany-repairs-procedures,
including temporary and
permanent blocks,
decompressive procedures,
and reconstructive
procedures on the peripheral
nerves

Peripheral-Nerve Blocks dldyears
Femperary-and Permanent
Peripheral-Nerve Surgery- 1-1-2-years
Belayed-and-lmmediate
Nerve-Grafis
Selective blocks for pain,
chemo-denervation, stellate
ganglion blocks, intra-
muscular phenol Injections,
and nerve blocks
Sympathetic nervous system

&

&

KypheplastyVertebral Per MS Policy # 534 Per MS Policy #
augmentation 534

Per MS Policy # 534

Sedation: Per MS policy 517 Per MS policy

Per MS policy 517

| MedStaff Dept. R&R - Div. Of Neurosurgery — Revised: 1/03; 4/4; 12/05; 5/07, 06/08; 2/11; 5/13; 12/14 9/15

177



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT | ocem Medical Staf

Subject: Division of Neurosurgery
Rules & Regulations Page 8 of 10
HNeurosurgery-Privileges Requirements for Proctoring Requirements for *:
Privilegesinitial Privileges Q-2
Appointment yearsReappointmen
t (every 2 years)
Moderate 517
Laser privileges: Documentation of One (1) case for | Two (2) cases
e Argon completion of training each energy
for specific energy source
source(s) to be used.
Or, if training

completed greater than
two years prior to
privilege request,
submit case logs from
previous twenty-four
(24) months identifying
specific energy source
used.

| v, REAPPOINTMENT OF CLINICAL PRIVILEGES
Procedural privileges will be renewed if the minimum number of cases is met over a two-year
reappointment cycle. For practitioners who do not have sufficient activity/volume at TCMC to meet
reappointment requirements, documentation of activity from other practice locations may be accepted to
fulfill the requirements. If the minimum number of cases is not performed, the practitioner will be
required to undergo proctoring for all procedures that were not satisfied. The practitioner will have an
option to voluntarily relinquish his/her privileges for the unsatisfied procedure(s).

PROCTORING OF PRIVILEGES

| MedStaff Dept. R&R — Div. Of Neurosurgery — Revised: 1/03; 4/4; 12/05; 5/07, 06/08; 2/11; 5/13; 12/14 9/15

178



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT | °oo™  Medieal St

Subject: Division of Neurosurgery

Rules & Regulations

Page 90of10

Each new mMedical sStaff member granted initial privileges, or Medical Staff member requesting
additional surgisal-privileges shall be evaluated by a proctor ir-each-surgical-case-as indicated until his_or
her surgical-privilege status is established by a recommendation from the Divisien;-the-Department of
Surgery; to the Credentlals Commlttee and to the Medlcal Executive Commlttee with final approval by
the Board of Directors. - ;

Deparment:
A Al aActlve staﬁ-members of the DIVISIOn ef—Neu;esu;ger—wnl act as proctors—temenﬁer—quahty-ef

member—may monltor 50% of the required proctorlng Additional cases may be proctored as
recommended by the Division Chief, ard- It is the responsibility of the Division Chief to inform the

monitored-applicantmonitored member, whose proctoring is being continued; whether the
deficiencies noted are in: a) preoperative b) operative, c) surgical technique and/or, d)
postoperative care.

A-B. The member is responsible for arranging a proctor.

B:C. The new medical staff member shall select an appropriate member from the Neurosurgery
Division to proctor his/her operative case. He or she shall contact the monitor and inform him of
his plans for the case.

G:D.__In elective cases, all-sush-arrangements shall be made prior to schedullng— (i.e., the proctor shall
be designated at the time the case is scheduled
cases-)-In emergency cases, the monitor shall be contacted prlor to, and designated at, the time
of scheduling.

B:E. The new-medical-stafi-member shall have free choice of suitable consultants and assistants. The
proctor may assist the surgeon.

o HERPORTS CE PROCTORS

— — =

F. When the required number of cases has been proctored, the Division Chief must approve or
disapprove the release from proctoring or may extend the proctoring, based upon a review of the
proctor reports.

A-G. A repert-form shall be completed by the proctor, and should include comments on which-the
procter-will-address-the-patient's-preoperative workup, diagnosis, the-precedure-performed;-the
preoperative preparation, operative techniqgue, surgical judgment, postoperative care, overall
impression and a-recommendation (i.e., qualified, needs further observation, not qualified)._Blank
forms will be available from the Operating Room Supervisor and/or the Medical Staff Office.

B:H. Forms will be made up-by-available to the rew-medisal-staffmember admitting-scheduling the
patient-case for surgery and immediately forwarded to the proctor for completion. It is the
responsibility of the new medical-staf-member to notify the Operating Room Supervisor of the
proctor ef-for each case.

Gl The proctors report shall be confldentlal and shall be completed and returned to the Medlcal Staff

| MedStaff Dept. R&R - Div. Of Neurosurgery — Revised: 1/03; 4/4; 12/05; 5/07, 06/08; 2/11; 5/13_42/14 9/15

179



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT | >t MedealStal

Subject: Division of Neurosurgery

|LRules & Regulations Pagg 10 of 10

| Xi#-X. EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT CALL

Medical-Staff-Division Mmembers shall participate in the Emergency Department Call Roster or
consultation panel as determined by the Medical Staff. _-with-individual-scheduling-by-the-division-chief.
Referto-Poliey#520—The care provided by an on-call physician will not create an obligation to provide
further care._Refer to Medical Staff Policy and Procedure 8710-520.

Provisional er-Geurtesy-staff members may participate iron the Emergency Department Call panet
Roster at the discretion of the Chief of the Division-Chief-or-Department-Chair.

Approvals:
Division of Neurosurgery: 06/11/2015 -
Department of Surgery: 06/18/2015

Medical Executive Committee: 07/27/2015
Governance Committee:
Board of Directors:

| MedStaff Dept. R&R — Div. Of Neurosurgery — Revised: 1/03; 4/4; 12/05; 5/07, 06/08; 2/11; 5/13,32/44 9/15

180



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT Section:  Medical Staff

Rules and Regulations

Subject: Division of Psychiatry

Page 1 of 6 Pages

l\/.

MEMBERSHIP

A. The Division of Psychiatry consists of physicians who are certified or eligible (i.e., meet the
criteria to apply/become certified) by the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology and
possess the necessary skills to evaluate and manage complex psychiatric problems. Physicians
must become board certified within five (5) years of first appointment to the Medical Staff. The
Members of the Division of Psychiatry will diagnose and provide management of acute, chronic

and emergency medical conditions in psychiatry provided in the inpatient, emergency room and
outpatient settings.

B. Consultative services at the request of other staff physicians.

BASIC ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

A. Basic eligibility requirements for the Division of Psychiatry shall include provisions listed above,
as well as the following:

1. All members of the Division of Psychiatry shall have completed an accredited residency in
Psychiatry.

FUNCTIONS OF THE DIVISION

The general functions of the Division of Psychiatry, carried out through the medical staff members shall

include:

A. Conduct patient care review for the purpose of analyzing and evaluating the quality, safety and
appropriateness of care and treatment provided to patients by Division members and develop
criteria for use in the evaluation of patient care;

B. Recommend to the Medical Executive Committee guidelines for the granting of clinical privileges
to practitioners within the Division;

C. Conduct, participate in and make recommendations regarding Continuing Medical Education
(CME) programs in clinical practice;

D. Review and evaluate Division adherence to:

1. Medical Staff Policies and Procedures;
2. Sound principles of clinical practice;

E. Submit minutes to the QA/RHPS-QA/PI/PS Committee and the Medical Executive Committee

concerning: Division's review and evaluation of activities, actions taken thereon, and the results of

such action;

F. Make recommendations for maintaining and improving the quality of patient care and patient
safety provided in the hospital;

G. Recommend/Request Focused Professional Practice Evaluation as indicated for Medical Staff
members (pursuant to Medical Staff Policy 8710-509);

H

Establish such committees or other mechanisms as are necessary and desirable to perform
properly the functions assigned to it, including proctoring;

l. Take appropriate action when important problems in patient care, patient safety, and clinical
performance or opportunities to improve patient care are identified:

J. Formulate recommendations for Division rules and regulations reasonably necessary for the
proper discharge of its responsibilities subject to approval of the Medical Executive Committee;-
K. Approval of On-Going Professional Practice Evaluation Indicators

DIVISION MEETINGS:

A. The Division of Psychiatry shall meet no less than annually, or at the discretion of the Division
Chief. The functions of the Division are carried out through the Division’s medical staff members
and committees thereof, including the monitoring and evaluation of the quality and

MD Staff Dept R&R Div of Psychiatry 3/07, 06/08, 08/08, 12/09: 03/10; 3/12; 5/13; 6/14 181



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT Section:  Medical Staff

Subject: Division of Psychiatry
Rules and Regulations

" Page 2 of 6 Pages

appropriateness of the safety, care and treatment provided to patients. Reports shall be
l transmitted to the Department of Medicine and to the Medical Executive Committee;-
B. Twenty-five percent (25%) of the Active Division members, but not less than two members, shall
constitute a quorum at any meeting.

V. DIVISION OFFICERS
A. The Division shall have a Chief who shall be an Active Medical Staff member and a member of
[ the Psychiatry Division;
B. The Active members of the Division who are eligible to vote shall elect the Division Chief every
year. If there are vacancies of any officer for any reason, the Department Chairman shall
I designate a new officer(s), or call a special election;:
C. The Division Chief shall serve a one-year term, which coincides with the medical staff year unless
they resign, be removed from office, or lose their medical staff membership or clinical privileges in
| the Division. Division officers shall be eligible to succeed themselves;-
1. Duties of the Division Chief:
i Be accountable for all professional administrative activities of the Division;
i Continuing surveillance of the professional performance of all individuals who have
delineated clinical privileges in the Division;
iii Recommend to the Department of Medicine and the Medical Executive Committee
the criteria for clinical privileges in the Division:

iv Recommend clinical privileges for each medical staff member of the Division;
v Assure that practitioners practice only within the scope of their privileges as
| defined within their delineated privilege card;:
vi Assure that the quality, safety, and appropriateness of patient care provided by

Division members are monitored and evaluated through Ongoing Professional
| Practice Evaluation;-

vii Continuously assess and improve the quality and safety of care provided by
Division members;
viii Other duties as may be assigned, in accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws.

VL PRIVILEGES

A. Requests for privileges in the Division of Psychiatry shall be evaluated on the basis of the
member's education, training, experience, demonstrated professional competence and judgment,
clinical performance and the documented results of patient care and proctoring. Practitioners
practice only within the scope of their privileges as defined within the Division’s Rules and
Regulations. Recommendation for privileges is made to the Credentials Committee, and the
Medical Executive Committee;-

B. All members of the Division of Psychiatry are expected to have training and/or experience and
competence on a level commensurate with that provided by specialty training. Such physicians
may act as consultants to others and may, in turn, be expected to request consultation when:

1. Diagnosis and/or management remain in doubt over an unduly long period of time,
especially in the presence of a life threatening psychiatric illness:
2. Unexpected complications arise which are outside this level of competence;
3. Specialized treatment or procedures are contemplated with which they are not familiar.
Procedure Initial Proctoring Reappointment
Admit Training 3 H&Rs 4 every two years .
Consult Sither

MD Staff Dept R&R Div of Psychiatry 3/07, 06/08, 08/08, 12/09; 03/10; 3/12; 5/13: 6/14
182



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT Section:  Medical Staff

) Subject: Division of Psychiatry
Rules and Regulations

" Page 3 of 6 Pages

H&P ascases

the first six
(6) months

ViIl.  REAPPOINTMENT
Procedural privileges will be renewed if the minimum number of cases is met over a two-year
reappointment cycle. For practitioners who do not have sufficient activity/volume at TCMC to meet
reappointment requirements, documentation of activity from other practice locations may be accepted to
fulfill the requirements. If the minimum number of cases is not performed, the practitioner will be
required to undergo proctoring for all procedures that were not satisfied. The practitioner will have an
option to voluntarily relinquish his/her privileges for the unsatisfied procedure(s)

VIll.  PROCTORING:
A. Requirements:

21. _Supervision of the medical staff member by the proctor will include concurrent or
retrospective chart review. All Active members of the Division of Psychiatry will act as
proctors to monitor quality of performance of medical care of assigned privileges. An
associate of the new member may monitor 50% of the required proctoring. Additional
cases may be proctored as recommended by the Division Chief. A standardized
proctoring form will be used in the procedure.

IX. EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT CALL

A. Division members shall participate in the Emergency Department Call Roster or consultation
panel as determined by the medical staff. Please refer to Medical Staff Policy #8710-520.

B. The medical director, or designee, shall cover all emergency consultation needs for the medical
center, including emergency room coverage;-

C. Should there be insufficient numbers of Active members to provide Psychiatric coverage for the

Emergency Department the Division Chief may assign Provisional or Courtesy staff members to
participate in the Emergency Department call roster panel;:

D. If a call schedule is used, it is the responsibility of the staff member to participate on those days.

E. The on-call psychiatrist is responsible to the Emergency Department, for 24 hours commencing at
0700 hours;-

F. The Emergency Department shall determine which psychiatrist to call. Once contacted by the

Emergency Department, the psychiatrist is responsible to provide service in accordance with the
Medical Staff Rules and Regulations and Policies and Procedures;-

G. Emergency Department coverage does include inpatient medical consultation. If the physician is
on call for ER, then he/she is also on call throughout the facility;-

MD Staff Dept R&R Div of Psychiatry 3/07, 06/08, 08/08, 12/09; 03/10; 3/12; 5/13; 6/14
183



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT Section:  Medical Staff

Rules and Regulations

Subject: Division of Psychiatry

XL

XII.

XIV.

Page 4 of 6 Pages

H. If a dispute arises and a bona fide psychiatric emergency exists and the on-duty psychiatrist
chooses not to do the consultation, the Medical Director or his designee, or the Chief of
Psychiatry or his designee, will be contacted to provide the consultation.

CONSULTATIONS

A. A staff psychiatrist who has been contacted by the attending physician may provide inpatient
psychiatric consultations;-

B. It is the attending physician’s responsibility to contact the psychiatric consultant and arrange for
consultation;-

C. Itis not the responsibility of the nursing staff to obtain psychiatric consultation;-

D. The care of the patient is not automatically transferred to the consultant, but remains the
responsibility of the attending physician. The consultant and the attending physician shall agree
at what time that change of his responsibilities should occur::

E. Both the attending physician and psychiatrist transfer the primary care of a patient only upon
written order;-

F. Consultations shall be done in a timely manner, i.e., within 24 hours after contact between
physicians has been established, or by other arrangements by the respective physicians.

RESTRAINT OR SECLUSION

A. Refer to hospital Patient Care Services Policy

PEER REVIEW

A. The Psychiatric Division shall hold peer review meetings as needed, but at least annually. Only
staff psychiatrists shall be in attendance at the peer review meetings. This shall include all
members of the Division. Only Active members shall have voting privileges;-

B. The purpose of peer review is to provide a forum for discussion of the safe, quality of evidence-
based practice of psychiatry at Tri-City Medical Center;-

C. Reported violations of psychiatric staff and medical staff behavior, in regards to staff psychiatrists,
shall be reviewed. If there is reported conduct, ethical or clinical judgment issues, or non-
compliance with the Medical Staff Bylaws, recommendations and findings will be reported to the
Medical Executive Committee for review and action.;

D. All information and documents in peer review meetings are confidential and shall not be
discussed outside the meeting.

FREQUENCY OF VISITS

A. The attending member must write progress notes at least six days per week on all acute patients

in the hospital until the member designates transfer of the patient to a skilled nursing care level
(Medical Staff Rules & Regulations — 6/7 days).

CO-TREATMENT BY CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGISTS

A

Clinical psychologists, as Allied Health Professionals, may participate in providing co-treatment to
patients in the Behavioral Health Unit, Rehab Unit, and the acute hospital. Co-treatment is the
process which allows a clinical psychologist to work in collaboration with the hospital
interdisciplinary treatment team in providing clinical services to patients in Tri-City Medical
Center. In addition, the clinical psychologist may provide co-treatment to patients with other
attending members of the medical staff to patients admitted or treated at Tri-City Medical Center;-
Clinical co-treatment services will be limited to psychotherapy and psychological assessments.
Psychologists will be encouraged to participate in interdisciplinary treatment planning meetings;-

MD Staff Dept R&R Div of Psychiatry 3/07, 06/08, 08/08, 12/08: 03/10: 3/12: 5/13: 6/14

184



Rules and Regulations

ll

TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT Section:  Medical Staff

Subject: Division of Psychiatry

Page 5 of 6 Pages

XV.

XVI.

The attending psychiatrist will maintain all responsibilities and rights to admit, discharge and
medically treat and attend these patients. The writing of formal orders will be the responsibility of
the attending psychiatrist. Involuntarily detained patients, who are being seen by both a
psychiatrist and a psychologist in collaborative treatment, may be authorized for early release by
the treating psychologist, but only in consulitation with the psychiatrist, and the psychiatrist does
not object. If the psychologist and the psychiatrist disagree, the patient shall not be released
early, unless the Medical Director overrules the psychiatrist or psychologist opposing the release.
If the Medical Director happens to be the attending psychiatrist, then the Chief of the Division of
Psychiatry overrules and makes the final decision;-

The attending psychologist has the option of working with any attending psychiatrist or any other

attending physician who is a member of the Medical Staff at Tri-City Medical Center. If a

psychologist presents a patient for admission and does not request a specific psychiatrist, the

patient will be assigned the psychiatrist on emergency call at the time. Co-treatment with a

psychiatrist can only occur if the attending psychiatrist approves it

The attending psychologist and attending psychiatrist will work as a team in providing

psychotherapeutic treatment to the patient they are co-treating and will work together to arrange

the schedule of therapy sessions;-

1. The attending psychologist will be required to document each of the therapy visits in the
progress notes of the medical records;-

2. The attending psychiatrist must write progress notes on each patient at least six days per
week;-

3. The attending psychologist, as well as the attending psychiatrist, will be encouraged to
attend interdisciplinary team meetings on a weekly basis during the patient's hospital
stay;-

Each new psychologist will receive an orientation and introduction to Tri-City Medical Center and

the Behavioral Health Unit by the Medical Director. In addition, psychologists will undergo a

preceptorship during their first five co-treatment cases. A psychologist, who is an Allied Health

Professional in good standing, with consultation from the Medical Director, may serve as

preceptor.

RESTRAINT ASSESSMENT

Physicians, clinical psychologists or nurse practitioners credentialed by the medical staff may serve as
restraint evaluators and within one hour after the initiation of the behavior restraint or seclusion, must
evaluate the patient’s physical or psychological status in person. The supervising psychiatrist must work
with the Behavioral Unit staff and must report any death that occurred while a patient was in a behavior
restraint or in seclusion to CMS within one day of patient death.

MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPIST INTERN

A

Initial criteria: master's or doctoral degree in counseling psychology; current registration with the
California Board of Behavioral Sciences as an intern: six (6) months of related clinical experience:
current BLS certification;-

Proctoring: First five (5) cases;-

Privileges Scope: Co-treatment to patients in the Behavioral Health Unit, Acute Rehab Unit and
Acute Hospital under the supervision of an attending psychiatrist;-

Privileges:

1. Conducts individual and group therapy, and documents therapy sessions in the medical
record;

2. Develops treatment plans and documents them in the medical record;

MD Staff Dept R&R Div of Psychiatry 3/07, 06/08, 08/08, 12/09; 03/10; 3/12; 5/13; 6/14

185



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT Section:  Medical Staff

. Subject: Division of Psychiatry
Rules and Regulations

l Page 6 of 6 Pages

3. Completes discharge instructions;
4, Performs psychiatric assessments in the ED and other units throughout TCMC.

XVIl. NURSE PRACTITIONER

Nurse practitioner means a registered nurse who possesses additional preparation and skills in the care
of mental health patients. The nurse practitioner shall function under standardized procedures covering
the care delivered by the nurse practitioner. The nurse practitioner and his/her supervising physician,
who shall be a psychiatrist, will develop the standardized procedures, which are subject to the approval
of the Division of Psychiatry and other committees as designated by the Medical Staff.

APPROVALS:

Psychiatry Division: 06/26/2015 08/13/2015
Medicine Department: 06/26/2015.08/13/2015
Medical Executive Committee: 07/27/2015 08/24/2015
Governance Committee 08/04/2045 10/06/2015
Roard of Directors: 06/26/14

MD Staff Dept R&R Div of Psychiatry 3/07, 06/08, 08/08, 12/09; 03/10: 3/12; 5/13; 6/14

188



Section: Medical Staff

TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT Subject: Division of General and

Vascular Surgery
Rules and Regulations

Page 1 of 12

l. MEMBERSHIP
The Division of General and Vascular Surgery consists of physicians who are Board Certified or in the
first thirty-six (36) months of Board Eligibility and actively pursuing certification by the American Board of
Surgery, or able to demonstrate comparable ability, training and experience.

Il. FUNCTIONS OF THE DIVISION
The general functions of the Division of General and Vascular Surgery shall include:
A. Conduct patient care review for the purpose of analyzing and evaluating the quality, safety, and
appropriateness of care and treatment provided to patients by members of the Division and
develop criteria for use in the evaluation of patient care.

B. Recommend to the Medical Executive Committee guidelines for the granting of clinical privileges
and the performance of specified services within the hospital.
C. Conduct, participate in and make recommendations regarding continuing medical education
programs pertinent to Division clinical practice.
D. Review and evaluate Division member adherence to:
1. Medical Staff policies and procedures
2. Sound principles of clinical practice
E. Submit written minutes to the QA/PI Committee and Medical Executive Committee concerning:
1. Division review and evaluation of activities, actions taken thereon, and the results of such
actions; and
2, Recommendations for maintaining and improving the quality and safety of care provided
in the hospital.
F. Establish such committees or other mechanisms as are necessary and desirable to perform

properly the functions assigned to it, including proctoring.

Take appropriate action when important problems in patient care, patient safety, and clinical
performance or opportunities to improve patient care are identified

Recommend/Request Focused Professional Practice Evaluation as indicated (pursuant to
Medical Staff Policy 8710-509).

Approve On-Going Professional Practice Evaluation Indicators, and

Formulate recommendations for Division rules and regulations reasonably necessary for the
proper discharge of its responsibilities subject to approval of the Medical Executive Committee.

I O

o —

ll. DIVISION MEETINGS
The Division of General and Vascular Surgery shall meet at the discretion of the Chief, but at least
quarterly. The Division will consider the findings from the ongoing monitoring and evaluation of the
quality, safety, and appropriateness of the care and treatment provided to patients. Minutes shall be
transmitted to the QA/PI Committee, and then to the Medical Executive Committee.

Twenty-five percent (25%) of the Active Division members, but not less than two (2) members, shall
constitute a quorum at any meeting.

V. DIVISION OFFICERS
The Division shall have a Chief who shall be a member of the Active Medical Staff and shall be qualified
by training, experience, and demonstrated ability in at least one of the clinical areas covered by the
Division.
The Division Chief shall be elected every year by the Active Staff members of the Division who are
eligible to vote. If there is a vacancy for any reason, the Department Chairman shall designate a new
Chief, or call a special election. The Chief shall be elected by a simple majority of members of the
Division.
MedStaff Dept/Div R&R — GVS Division — Revised: 5/94; 4/02; 1/03; 8/05; 5/07; 9/07; 10/07; 6.08; 10/09; 11/12; 3/13; 5/14; 6/14; 7/14; 914: 3/15: 7/15
187



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules and Regulations

Section: Medical Staff

Division of General and
Vascular Surgery

Subject:

Page 2 of 12

The Division Chief shall serve a one-year term, which coincides with the Medical Staff year unless

he/she

resigns, is removed from office, or loses his/her Medical Staff membership or clinical privileges

in that Division. Division officers shall be eligible to succeed themselves.

V. DUTIES OF THE-DIVISION CHIEF

The Division Chief shall assume the following responsibilities:

A. Accountability for all professional and administrative activities of the Division.

B. Ongoing surveillance of the professional performance of all individuals who have delineated
clinical privileges in the Division.

C. Ensuring practitioners practice only within the scope of the privileges defined within their
delineated privilege form.

D. Recommendations to the Department of Surgery and the Medical Executive Committee the
criteria for clinical privileges in the Division.

E. Recommendations of clinical privileges for each member of the Division.

F. Ensuring that the quality, safety, and appropriateness of patient care provided by members of
the Division are monitored and evaluated; and

G. Other duties as recommended by the Department of Surgery or the Medical Executive
Committee.

VI. PRIVILEGES

A. All privileges are accessible on the TCMC Intranet and a paper copy is maintained in the
Medical Staff Office.

B. By virtue of appointment to the Medical Staff, all physicians are authorized to order diagnostic
and therapeutic tests, services, medications, treatments (including but not limited to respiratory
therapy, physical therapy, occupational therapy) unless otherwise indicated.

C. All practitioners applying for clinical privileges must demonstrate current competency for the
scope of privileges requested. “Current competency” means documentation of activities within
the twenty-four (24) months preceding application, unless otherwise specified.

D. Physician Assistants — In accordance with Department of Surgery rules and regulations.

E. Registered Nurse First Assist (RNFA) — In accordance with Department of Surgery rules and
regulations.

F. Forensic Outpatient Site-Specific Privileges — Privileges annotated with an (F) indicates

privileges that may be performed at either Tri-City Medical Center or the Forensic Outpatient
Clinic.

Privileges

Initial Appointment Proctoring Reappointment

(every 2 years)

Admit Patients

Consultation, including via
telemedicine (F)

Perform Medical History & Physical
Examination, including via
telemedicine (F)

Board certification, or in the
first 36 months of Board
eligibility and actively
pursuing certification by the
American Board of Surgery,
or demonstrated comparable
ability, training or experience.

Completion of
General
Surgery
proctoring
satisfies
proctoring for
these

N/A

e Arterial catheterization for
monitoring

Board eligibility and

privileges
BASIC GENERAL SURGERY
PRIVILEGES
¢ Anal canal biopsy (F) o Board certification, orin | Ten (10) Sixty (60) cases
e Anoscopy (F) the first 36 months of cases from this category

MedStaff Dept/Div R&R — GVS Division — Revised: 5/94; 4/02; 1/03; 8/05; 5/07; 9/07; 10/07; 6.08; 10/09; 11/12; 3/13; 5/14; 6/14;7/14;9/14; 3/15; 7/15

188



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules and Regulations

Section:

Subject:

Medical Staff

Division of General and
Vascular Surgery

Page 3 of 12

Privileges

Initial Appointment

Proctoring Reappointment

(every 2 years)

Basic advancement flaps:
rotational and myocutaneous
(excluding TRAM and micro-
vascular)

Biopsy / excision skin & soft
tissue lesions (F)

Central venous catheter
placement

Chemical destruction of anal
warts (F)

Cricothyroidotomy
Debridement of wound, soft
tissue infection

Excision of neuroma,
neurofibroma, neurilemoma
Excision of skin, soft tissue
neoplasm

I&D abscess (F)
Intraoperative Endoscopy,
concomitant to surgical
procedure

Minor laceration repair
Neurorrhaphy - Suture of Nerve
Paracentesis
Parathyroidectomy

Radical neck dissection,
modified

Right heart catheterization for
monitoring

Rigid proctoscopy (F)

Rubber band ligation of internal
hemorrhoids (F)

Sentinel lymph node biopsy
Sigmoidoscopy, includes rigid or
flexible

Thoracentesis
Thyroidectomy
Tracheostomy

Tube thoracostomy

Abdomen and Perineum Surgery:

Abdominal perineal resection
Abdominal wall repair, inguinal or
femoral hernia, laparoscopic
Adrenalectomy, open

Anal sphincterotomy

Anti-reflux procedures, open

actively pursuing
certification by the
American Board of
Surgery, or
demonstrated
comparable ability,
training or experience.

o One-hundred (100)
general surgery
procedures, reflective of
the scope of privileges
requested, during the
previous twenty-four (24)
months or demonstrate
successful completion of
an ACGME/AOQA-
accredited residency or
clinical fellowship within
the previous (24)
months.

MedStaff Dept/Div R&R - GVS Division — Revised: 5/94; 4/02; 1/03; 8/05; 5/07; 9/07; 10/07; 6.08; 10/09; 11/12; 3/13; 5/14; 6/14; 7/14; 9/14; 3/15: 7/15

189



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules and Regulations

Section:

Subject:

Medical Staff

Division of General and
Vascular Surgery

Page 4 of 12

Privileges

Initial Appointment

Proctoring Reappointment

(every 2 years)

Appendectomy, open or
laparoscopic
Cholecystectomy, open or
laparoscopic
Choledochoenteric anastamosis
Colostomy, closure
Colostomy, creation, open or
laparoscopic

Common bile duct exploration,
transcystic, open or laparoscopic
Diagnostic laparoscopy with or
without biopsy

Drainage of anorectal abscess
Drainage of intra-abdominal
abscess

Drainage of pseudocyst
Enterolysis

Esophageal diverticulectomy,
open

Esophagogastrectomy
Exploratory laparotomy
Fasciotomy

Gastrectomy, partial or total
Hemorrhoidectomy

Hernia, abdominal wall, to
include: femoral, inguinal,
incisional, lumbar, spigelian,
ventral, open or laparoscopic
Hernia, repair of diaphragmatic
or hiatal, open

lleostomy creation or closure
Intestine resection (small or
larger intestine), open or
laparoscopic

Liver biopsy, open or
laparoscopic
Lymphadenectomy

Lysis of adhesions, open or
laparoscopic

Pilonidal cystectomy

Repair of anorectal fistula
Repair of rectal prolapse
Splenectomy, open

Ulcer surgery, (Omental patch,
V&A, V&O, V&GJ, HSV, etc),
open

Vagus transection, for peptic
ulcer disease

MedStaff Dept/Div R&R — GVS Division — Revised: 5/94; 4/02; 1/03; 8/05; 5/07: 9/07; 10/07; 6.08; 10/09; 11/1 2; 3/13, 5114, 6/14; 7/14; 9/14; 3/15; 7/15

190



Section: Medical Staff
TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT Subject: Division of General and

Vascular Surgery
Rules and Regulations

Page 5 of 12

Privileges Initial Appointment Proctoring Reappointment
(every 2 years)

Breast Surgery:
Axillary dissection
Biopsy, incisional or excisional
Breast abscess, drainage of
Intraoperative needle localization
Intraoperative ultrasound
Mastectomy, partial
Mastectomy, total
Mastopexy

rogenital Surgery:
Bladder repair, incidental
Hydrocelectomy, incidental
Hysterectomy, incidental
Nephrectomy, incidental
Orchiectomy, incidental
Partial cystectomy, incidental
Salpingo-oophorectomy,
incidental or in an acute
abdominal emergency

e Ureteral repair, incidental

e Skin grafting

BASIC PERIPHERAL VASCULAR SURGERY PRIVILEGES

.......c........

e Amputation, digital Board certification by the One (1) case | Five (5) cases
e Amputation, foot American Board of Surgery,
e Amputation, knee, above or in the first 36 months of
e Amputation, knee, below Board eligibility, or can
e Ligation of perforating veins demonstrate comparable
(open or minimally invasive ability, training and
using laser or ablation using experience. Ten (10) cases
radiofrequency) within the previous twenty-
e Operations for venous four (24) months.

ulceration/split thickness skin
grafting (STSG)
e Sympathectomy - (Including
vascular ischemia)
e Vein ligation or stripping of
varicose veins/phiebectomy
Portal Decompression:
Mesocaval shunt
Portocaval shunt
e Splenorenal shunt
ADVANCED GENERAL SURGERY PRIVILEGES:
Advanced Breast Surgery: o Basic General Surgery Three (3) Ten (10) cases
Oncoplastic repair privileges which cases
effectively covers the
need for board
certification.

o For Oncoplastic Repair

MedStaff Dept/Div R&R — GVS Division — Revised: 5/94; 4/02; 1/03; 8/05; 5/07; 9/07; 10/07; 6.08; 10/09; 11/12; 3/13; 5/14; 6/14; 7/14; 9/14; 3/15; 7/15

191



Section: Medical Staff

TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT Subject: Division of General and
Vascular Surgery

Rules and Regulations

Page 6 of 12
Privileges Initial Appointment Proctoring Reappointment
(every 2 years)
privileges:
Documentation of ten
(10) CME credits relating
to oncoplastic repair
within the previous
twenty-four (24) months,
OR current oncoplastic
repair privileges at
another institution, OR
completion of a Breast
fellowship, OR ten (10)
cases performed during
residency training or
within the previous
twenty-four (24) months.

Advanced Laparoscopic:: e Basic General Surgery Three (3) Twenty-four (24)

e Adrenalectomy , laparoscopic privileges which cases from cases from this

e Antireflux/fundoplication effectively covers the this category | category
procedures (e.g. laparoscopic need for board
Nissen/Toupet), laparoscopic certification.

e Cholecystenteric anastomosis, e Forty (40) advanced
laparoscopic general and abdominal

e Choledochoenteric anastomosis, procedures during the
laparoscopic previous twenty-four (24)

Colostomy closure, laparoscopic months.
Esophageal procedures,
laparoscopic

o Gastric resection , laparoscopic
Hepatic resection , laparoscopic
Hernia repair, diaphragmatic or
hiatal, laparoscopic

e Pancreatic procedures,
laparoscopicSplenectomy,
laparoscopic

o Ulcer surgery (Omental patch,

V&A, V&O, V&GJ, HSV, etc),
laparoscopic

Advanced Abdominal:

e Esophagectomy, including e Basic General Surgery One (1) case | Two (2) cases
thoracoabdominal approach privileges which from this from this category
Hepatic lobectomy, open effectively covers the category
Hepaticoenterostomy need for board
Pancreatic procedures, open or certification.
laparoscopic e Two (2)advanced

abdominal procedures
during the previous
twenty-four (24) months.

MedStaff Dept/Div R&R — GVS Division - Revised: 5/94; 4/02; 1/03; 8/05; 5/07; 9/07; 10/07; 6.08; 10/09; 11/12: 3/1 3;5/14; 6/14; 7114, 9/14; 3/15; 7/15
192



Rules and Regulations

TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Section:

Subject:

Medical Staff

Division of General and
Vascular Surgery

Page 7 of 12

Privileges

Initial Appointment

Proctoring

Reappointment
(every 2 years)

Advanced Head & Neck Surgery:

Basic General Surgery

Two (2) cases

Ten (10) cases

or infrageniculate artery
Femoral to femoral bypass
Femoral to infrageniculate
bypass

Femoral to popliteal bypass
Repair of aortic branches

Repair of iliac, femoral, popliteal,
or mesenteric aneurysm

Repair of infra or suprarenal
aortic aneurysm

Repair of upper extremity vessel
Retroperitoneal exposure for
spine vertebral body procedures,
includes incidental vascular
procedures®

Upper and lower extremity deep
or superficial vein procedures
Upper or lower extremity fistula,
autogenous or artificial
placement of central venous

mortality data and
operative reports.)

*If only Retroperitoneal
exposure for spine
vertebral body
procedures privilege is
requested,
documentation of five (5)
cases within the previous
twenty-four (24) months
and documentation of
current privileges in
vascular or trauma
surgery at a healthcare
facility. All other
privileges in the category
must be crossed out.

e Parotid gland privileges which from this from this
e Salivary glands & ducts effectively covers the category category
e Thymectomy need for board
certification.
e Twenty (20) advanced
head and neck
procedures during the
previous twenty-four (24)
months.
ADVANCED PERIPHERAL VASCULAR SURGERY:
 Aortic, aorto-iliac, aorto-femoral | e Basic General Peripheral | e Five (5) e Twenty (20)
bypass Vascular Surgery cases from vascular cases
o Axillary-femoral bypass privileges which this from this
o Bypass of upper extremity vessel effectively covers the category category
e Carotid — Subclavian bypass need for board o *I|fonly ¢ *If only
o Celiac/superior mesenteric axis certification. Retroperito Retroperitoneal
endarterectomy, repair or bypass | Forty (40) vascular cases neal exposure for
e Embolectomy or thrombectomy within the previous exposure spine vertebral
e Endarterectomy, carotid twenty-four (24) months for spine body
Endarterectomy or bypass, (With application, submit vertebral procedures
vertebral list of major procedures body granted, five
e Endarterectomy, repair or done in two (2) years procedures | (5)cases and
bypass, renal artery preceding application. privilege is documentation
e Exploration, repair, Include indications, requested, of current
thrombectomy, or embolectomy results, morbidity and two (2) privileges in
of abdominal aorta, iliac, femoral cases vascular or

trauma surgery
at a healthcare
facility. Ali
other privileges
in the category
must be
crossed out.

MedStaff Dept/Div R&R — GVS Division — Revised: 5/94; 4/02; 1/03; 8/05; 5/07; 9/07; 10/07; 6.08; 10/09; 11/12; 3/13; 5/14; 6/14; 7/1 4;9/14; 3/15; 7/15

193



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules and Regulations

Section:

Subject:

Medical Staff

Division of General and
Vascular Surgery

Page 8 of 12
Privileges Initial Appointment Proctoring Reappointment
(every 2 years)

catheter placement

SPECIAL PRIVILEGES:

Bariatric Surgery: e Completion of General Three (3) Fifteen (15)

e Roux en Y gastric bypass, open Surgery residency Bariatric cases within
and laparoscopic program. cases_and the previous

e Sleeve gastrectomy, open and e Privileges to perform Three (3) twenty-four
laparoscopic Basic and Advanced Bariatric EGD (24) months

e Adjustable gastric banding, open Abdominal surgery and Cases Participatatie
and laparoscopic advanced laparoscopy. AATCMG's

* Revisional metabolic and e Completion of a Bariatric Bariatrie
bariatric surgery, open and and Metabolic Surgery Gem.mq.ttee
aparoscopic fellowship, or Minimally as-evidenced

g_Bl_Ilopancreatlc dlver_S|on, with or Invasive fellowship with by .
without duodenal switch, open documentation of rotation compliance
aBnd_ Iapalé)sgoplq in Bariatrics and the with-Medical

* Bariatric Endoscopy performance of a Staf-poliey

minimum of five (5) cases 8710-672:

within the previous
twenty-four (24) months,
or case logs documenting
the performance of a
minimum of fifteen (15)
bariatric cases and (10)
Bariatric Endoscopy
cases within the previous
twenty-four (24) months.
+—Commitmentio
Ea' t.lellp.ate; R G.lll'lg S I
y-with-Medical Staff
poliey-8710-572.
e Documentation t
indicate malpractice
coverage includes
bariatric surgery.

Colonoscopy

Completion of an ACGME
accredited training program
in General Surgery or Colon
and Rectal surgery within the
previous twenty four (24)
months. If training was
completed greater than
twenty four (24) months ago,
documentation of a refresher
training course in lower
endoscopy or documentation
of fifty (60) cases within the

Two (2) cases
if training was
completed
within the
previous
twenty-four
(24) months
prior to
granting of
privileges or if
training was
completed

Ten (10) cases

MedStaff Dept/Div R&R — GVS Division — Revised: 5/94; 4/02; 1/03; 8/05; 5/07; 9/07: 10/07; 6.08; 10/09; 11/12; 3/13; 5/14; 6/14; 7/14; 914 3/15: 7/15

194



Rules and Regulations

TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Section:

Subject:

Medical Staff

Division of General and
Vascular Surgery

Page 9 of 12

Privileges

Initial Appointment

Proctoring

Reappointment
(every 2 years)

previous twenty-four (24)
months is required.

more than
twenty-four
months prior
to granting
privileges and
documentatio
n of fifty (50)
cases was
provided,

Seven (7)
cases if
training was
completed
greater than
twenty-four
(24) months
prior to
granting of
privileges and
documentatio
nofa
refresher
course was
provided.

Upper endoscopy (EGD) —
intraoperative/as integral part of
operation (i.e., Heller myotomy,
gastric bypass), or as preoperative
evaluation or as follow-up for
specific operative procedures

Initial: Completion of an
ACGME-accredited training
program in General Surgery
or Colon and Rectal Surgery
within the previous twenty-
four (24) months. If training
was completed greater than
twenty-four (24) months ago,
documentation of a refresher
training course in upper
endoscopy or documentation
of fifty (50) cases within the
previous twenty-four (24)
months is required.

Two (2) cases
if training was
completed
within the
previous
twenty-four
(24) months
prior to
granting of
privileges or if
training was
completed
more than
twenty-four
months prior
to granting
privileges and
documentatio
n of fifty (50)
cases was
provided.

Seven (7)

Seven (7) cases
within the

previous twenty-
four (24) months

MedStaff Dept/Div R&R — GVS Division — Revised: 5/94; 4/02; 1/03; 8/05; 5/07; 9/07; 10/07; 6.08; 10/09; 11/12; 3/13: 5/14; 6/14; 7/14; 9/14; 3/15; 7/15

195



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules and Regulations

Section:

Subject:

Medical Staff

Division of General and
Vascular Surgery

Page 10 of 12

Privileges Initial Appointment Proctoring Reappointment
(every 2 years)
cases if
training was
completed
greater than
twenty-four
(24) months
prior to
granting of
privileges and
documentatio
n of refresher
course was
provided.
Endovenous Ablative Therapy Documentation of completion | Three (3) Five (5) cases
of product-sponsored cases
training, which included the
performance/interpretation of
twenty (20) endovenous
ablative therapy procedures
Endovascular Repair of Aortic Per policy 8710-503 Per policy Per policy 8710-
Aneurysms 8710-503 503
Fluoroscopy Per policies 8710-528 and Per policies Per policies
8710-528A 8710-528 and | 8710-528 and
8710-528A 8710-528A

KTP Laser

Documentation of completion
of training for specific energy
source(s) to be used. Or, if
training completed greater
than two years prior to
privilege request, submit
case logs from previous 24
months identifying specific
energy source used.

Two (2) cases | Two (2) cases

Moderate Sedation Per policy 8710-517 Per policy Per policy 8710-
8710-517 517

Robotic Surgery — (da Vinci) Per policy 8710-563 Per policy Per policy 8710-

e Multiple Port 8710-563 563

e Single Port

e Assist in robotic surgery

Transoral Esophagogastric 1. Completion of ACGME Three (3) Six (6) cases

Fundoplication (TIF) accredited residency cases

program and possess
board certification or
board eligibility in
Surgery; and

2. Documentation of
completion of product-
sponsored training

MedStaff Dept/Div R&R ~ GVS Division — Revised: 5/94; 4/02; 1/03; 8/05; 5/07; 9/07; 10/07; 6.08; 10/09; 11/12: 3/13; 5/14; 6/14; 7/14; 9/14; 3/15; 7115

196



Rules and Regulations

Section: Medical Staff

TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT Subject: Division of General and

Vascular Surgery

Page 11 of 12

Privileges

Initial Appointment Proctoring Reappointment
(every 2 years)

course, or have
performed at least five
(5) TIF procedures in the
previous twelve (12)
months

Placement of Vagal Nerve 1. Basic General Surgery Two (2) cases | Five (5) cases
Stimulator

privileges which
effectively covers the
need for board
certification.

2. Documentation of
performing five (5) vagal
nerve stimulator cases in
the previous twenty-four
(24) months

3. Must have Carotid
Endarterectomy
privileges.

vVil. R
A

EQUI

REMENTS FOR REAPPOINTMENT
Active certification by the Division of General Vascular Surgery or demonstration of comparable

ability, training and experience shall satisfy the requirements for receiving cognitive privileges for

all categories as well as for admitting privileges to Tri-City Medical Center.

Procedural privileges will be renewed if the minimum number of cases is met over a two-year
reappointment cycle. For practitioners who do not have sufficient activity/volume at TCMC to
meet reappointment requirements, documentation of activity from other practice locations may
be accepted to fulfill the requirements. If the minimum number of cases is not performed, the
physician will be required to undergo proctoring for all procedures that were not satisfied. The
physician will have an option to voluntarily relinquish his/her privileges for the unsatisfied
procedure(s).

VIl.  PROCTORING OF PRIVILEGES
A.

D.

Each Medical Staff member granted initial privileges, or Medical Staff member requesting
additional privileges shall be evaluated by a proctor as indicated, until his or her privilege status
is established by a recommendation from the Division Chief to the Credential Committee and to
the Medical Executive Committee, with final approval by the Board of Directors.

All Active members of the Division will act as proctors. Additional cases may be proctored as
recommended by the Division Chief. It is the responsibility of the Division Chief to inform the
monitored member whose proctoring is being continued whether the deficiencies noted are in:
a) preoperative b) operative, c) surgical technique and/or, d) postoperative care.

THE MONITOR MUST BE PRESENT IN THE OPERATING ROOM FOR A SUFFICIENT
PERIOD OF TIME TO ASSURE HIMSELF/HERSELF OF THE APPLICANT MEMBER'S
COMPETENCE, OR MAY REVIEW THE CASE DOCUMENTATION (I.E. H&P, OP NOTE, OR

VIDEO) ENTIRELY TO ASSURE HIMSELF/HERSELF OF THE SURGEON’S COMPETENCE.

In elective cases, arrangements shall be made prior to scheduling (i.e., the proctor shall be
designated at the time the case is scheduled).

MedStaff Dept/Div R&R —~ GVS Division — Revised: 5/94; 4/02; 1/03; 8/05; 5/07; 9/07; 10/07; 6.08; 10/09; 11/12; 3/13: 5/14; 6/14;7114; 9/14; 3115, 7/15

197



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules and Regulations

Section: Medical Staff

Subject: Division of General and
Vascular Surgery

Page 12 of 12

The member shall have free choice of suitable consultants and assistants. The proctor may
assist the surgeon.

When the required number of cases has been proctored, the Division Chief must approve or
disapprove the release from proctoring or may extend the proctoring, based upon a review of the
proctor reports.

A form shall be completed by the proctor, and should include comments on preoperative workup,
diagnosis, preoperative preparation, operative technique, surgical judgment, postoperative care,
overall impression and recommendation (i.e., qualified, needs further observation, not qualified).
Blank forms will be available from the Operating Room Supervisor and/or the Medical Staff
Office.

Forms will be made available to the member scheduling the case for surgery and immediately
forwarded to the proctor for completion. It is the responsibility of the new member to notify the
Operating Room Supervisor of the proctor for each case.

The proctor's report shall be confidential and shall be completed and returned to the Medical
Staff Office.

IX. EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT CALL:

A

APPROVALS:

Division members shall participate in the Emergency Department Call Roster or consultation
panel as determined by the Medical Staff. Refer to Medical Staff Policy and Procedure 8710-
520.

Itis the policy of the Emergency Department that when a patient indicates that a staff member
has previously treated him or her, that member will be given the opportunity to provide further
care.

The member of the Division will then determine whether to provide further care to an emergency
room patient based upon the circumstances of the case. If a member declines, the on-call
physician will provide any necessary emergency special care.

The care provided by an on-call physician should be completed with regard to the particular
problem that the physician was called to treat. The care provided by an on-call physician will not
create an obligation to provide further care.

Provisional or Courtesy staff may participate in the Emergency Call panel at the discretion of the
Division Chief or Department Chair.

General & Vascular Surgery Division: 6/44+2045_9/10/2015
Surgery Department: 06/18/2045_10/1/2015

Medical Executive Committee: 86/22/2045

Governance Committee: 07072045 10/6/2015

Board of Directors: 07/30/2015

MedStaff Dept/Div R&R — GVS Division — Revised: 5/94; 4/02; 1/03; 8/05; 5/07; 9/07; 10/07; 6.08; 10/09; 11/12; 3/13; 5/14; 6/14; 7/14; 9/14; 3/15; 7/15

198



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

BOARD POLICY #14-039

POLICY TITLE: Comprehensive Code of Conduct

The following is the Board-approved Code of Conduct for District Board Meetings:

L

II.

PURPOSES AND GOALS OF CODE OF CONDUCT.

Effective leadership requires the Board to foster effective communication throughout the
organization. Effective communication is necessary to encourage the delivery of safe,
high quality care, as well as compliance with ethical and legal imperatives. Effective
communication occurs best in an atmosphere of mutual respect, in which patients,
physicians, hospital staff and members of the public, as well as members of the Board,
feel valued and free to express themselves. Effective communication requires thorough
preparation for meetings, adherence to approved procedures for the conduct of meetings,
including compliance with time limits and courteous conduct during debate and
discussion.  Effective communication requires an atmosphere free from threats,

intimidation, abusive behavior, violence, harassment, and other dangerous or disorderly
conduct.

The Board believes that at a minimum, its members must behave as if they are fiduciaries
who are expected to honor the same duties of loyalty and care expected of their peers

who serve on the boards of non-profit hospitals. Board members should act
professionally at all times.

This Code of Conduct is intended to describe: (1) minimum expectations for conduct at,
and surrounding Board meetings; (2) how Board members are provided the resources
needed for effective, informed governance; (3) rules for ensuring the faimess of
proceedings; and to (4) prescribe consequences for misconduct which does not contribute
to effective leadership of TCMC, including making Board members ineligible for receipt
of discretionary perquisites of office within the jurisdiction of the Board.

MINIMUM EXPECTATIONS FOR CONDUCT OF BOARD MEETINGS

1. Once the Board has a quorum, the meeting should immediately

commence. Time periods announced by the Chair for recesses shall be
strictly observed.

2. For each agenda item on which there is anticipated action, at the
discretion of the Chair or upon request by any Board member,
consideration may commence with a staff presentation or other report or
public comments, or with a motion and a second. Board discussion shall

be permitted following any presentation or public comments, except
that:

DOCS 2330453.2

1%



DOCS 23304532

any Board member who must abstain from participation in a matter
because of a legal conflict of interest shall ask the Chair for

permission to announce the conflict prior to consideration of the
item; and

any Board member who has had any ex-parre-contaets-discussions
or received information prior to the meeting with respect to an
agenda item which will affecting—the substantial legal rights of a
party appearing before the Board such as regarding credentialing
of a health care provider. proposed imposition of sanctions on a
Board member. or another es-a-quasi-judicial matter, shall, prior to
consideration of the item, ask the Chair for permission to describe
the nature of those contacts. Disclosing such inforination helps
ensure so-that-the-party—may-evaluate-the potential-partialityand
appearance—offairness of—-the Board—member’s—participation—in
deeisionmnakingregarding-that-matter_Board decisions by ensuring
that, to the extent possible, all involved have the same information
regarding the matter. In case of doubt, a Board member shall err

on the side of disclosingdiselosure-of the-ex-parrecontacts relevant
information obtained outside of the meeting. including who

provided the information and in what circumstances.

If the requestor for an item is listed as “Standard,” any member
may make the first motion. If the anticipated action is based on a
recommendation from a Board committee, the first motion should
normally be made by the Chair of that committee. If a particular
member is listed as the requestor for the item, the first motion on
the item should normally be made by that member.

[f there is no motion on an action item, or if a motion is made and there
is no second, the Chair should move to the next agenda item without
further comment from the Board members.

For each agenda item that has received a motion and a second, the Chair
should ask each member in turn as to whether that member wishes to
address the motion, starting with the maker of the motion.

Each member will be recognized by the Chair and shall be allotted up to
3 minutes to speak to the motion, once recognized. Time for questions
and answers addressed by a member to staff or to other Board members
is included in the three minutes, unless the Chair grants an exception.
Members who anticipate that this time will be insufficient shall,
whenever feasible: (1) submit written statements at any time; (2) submit
written questions to the Chair and CEO at least 48 hours in advance of a
regular meeting when feasible (see II, B, above); or (3) request
additional time. Only the member who has been recognized may speak
on the motion during that time. Once a member is recognized, a

-2

289



timekeeper selected by the Chair will start the three-minute clock upon
the direction of the Chair. A person other than the Chair shall operate
the time clock under the direction of the Chair. Upon expiration of the
allotted time, the timekeeper shall notify the Chair by word or sign.
Time limits are to be consistently and strictly enforced.

6. When the member’s three-minute time allotment has concluded, the
Chair should immediately recognize the next member in tum to
determine if he/she wishes to speak. When recognized, the member
should start speaking and the prior speaker shall promptly yield the floor

7. Once the Chair has offered each member the opportunity to be heard, the
Chair may offer a second round of comments. The Chair should again
offer each member a three-minute opportunity to speak.

8. Unless recognized by the Chair, Board members shall not address
members of the public who come forward to speak, and should not enter
into a dialogue or debate. Members of the public shall be recognized to
speak in accordance with Board Policy No. 10-018.

9. Agenda materials are intended to provide answers to as many questions
as possible regarding agenda items, prior to the Board meetings. Board
members are expected to review the agenda materials thoroughly, prior
to the Board meetings, and to timely request additional information or
clarification in advance whenever feasible—generally prior to any
regular meeting. Questions from Board members at the meetings
should be for the purposes of seeking clarification and/or additional
information regarding particular agenda items and/or agenda materials.

10.  Board members should be courteous and respectful of all meeting
participants, including the Chair. Board members shall comply with the

legitimate orders of the Chair regarding the orderly conduct of the
business before the Board.

11.  Conduct while attending Board meetings and other meetings and events
related to the Board and Board committees, and while engaged in other
Board-related business, which is unsafe, disruptive or which constitutes
threats, intimidation, abusive behavior, violence, harassment, and other
dangerous or disorderly conduct, willful disturbance of the meeting or
which otherwise violates Penal Code section 403 is prohibited. Board
members shall comply with, and are subject to the District Harassment
policy, which is set forth in Exhibit “A” to this Policy.

12. Board members and other persons shall comply with all applicable Board
Policies pertaining to the conduct of board meetings, including but not
limited to Board Policy #07-010 (Board Meeting Agenda Development,
Efficiency of and Time Limits for Board Meetings) #07-22

-3-
DOCS 2330453 2

283



13.

(Maintenance of Confidentiality) and Board Policy 10-018 (Public
Comments at the Tri-City Healthcare District Board of Directors
Meetings/Committee Meetings).

Board Members should attend every Board Meeting and remain for the
entirety of each meeting, including returning to the meeting after
exclusion from closed session or any portion thereof. The Board Chair
shall make an oral announcement of any departure from the meeting and
the reason, if available.

III. BREACHES OF ORDER AT MEETINGS; SANCTIONS.

The Board has a right to make and enforce rules to ensure the conduct of the public’s
business in an efficient and orderly manner, and without disruption by members of the
public or members of the Board. At the same time, the public and Board members shall

be free to criticize the policies, procedures, programs and services of the organization,
and the acts and omissions of the Board.

Notwithstanding any other policy of the Board, violations of this policy during a Board
meeting may be enforced, as follows:

1.

DOCS 2330453 2

The Chair shall call to order, by name, any person who is in violation of
any of the rules of conduct established under this policy, and Board
Policy No. 10-018, which is committed in the immediate view and
presence of the Board. The Chair shall request that person refrain from
any further violation, warmn that a repetition may violate Penal Code
section 403 and result in removal from the meeting, and may specifically
state that any further violation may constitute contempt of the Board.

If the person repeats the violation or proceeds to violate any other
provision of this policy in the immediate view and presence of the Board
(such as by refusing to yield the floor or otherwise disrupting
proceedings), the Chair may call a recess of the meeting, stating that the
reason for the delay is due to the misconduct of the Board member or
other person. If following such recess, the Board member or other
person persists in willfully interrupting the meeting such that order
cannot be restored, the Chair, with the concurrence of the Board, shall
order the disruptive Board member or other person removed from the
meeting room by District security personnel, or, as to Board members,
may request a motion under paragraph 3. If removal of a Board member
is ordered, the Board member shall be entitled to adjourn to attend the
balance of the meeting by telephone at the meeting location or other
location consistent with the Brown Act, notwithstanding the provisions
of any other Board policy.

In the alternative, if a Board member repeats the violation or proceeds to
violate any other provision of this policy in the immediate view and

-4.

263



DOCS 23304532

presence of the Board, or, following a return from recess of the meeting
if called, the Chair may call for a motion holding the Board member in
contempt. Such a motion shall take precedence over any other motion,
and shall describe the action or actions constituting the violation of this
policy. If such a motion is made and seconded, each board member
shall have an opportunity to discuss the motion in accordance with this
policy. If the motion is passed, the Board member shall be advised by
the Chair that he or she has been held in contempt. A second motion
may then be made to prescribe the sanction or sanctions to be imposed,

which may include, but shall not be limited to, one or more of the
following:

A statement of censure, identifying the misconduct;

Removal of the offending Board member from membership on one
or more Board committees, or, if chair of any committee, removal
from that position, for a specified period, or if no period is
specified, until the annual election of Board officers;

Removal of the offending Board member from holding any Board
office currently held;

Removal of the offending Board member from the meeting room
and offering the member the right to adjourn to attend the balance
of the meeting by telephone at the meeting location or another
location consistent with the Brown Act (notwithstanding the
provisions of any other Board policy) ; provided that the offending
Board member may also be required to attend one or more future
meetings by teleconference;

A determination that no compensation shall be earned by the
offending Board member for attendance at the meeting at which
the contempt occurred;

A determination that the offending Board member shall not be
provided any defense or indemnity in any civil actions or
proceedings arising out of or related to the member’s misconduct
or the agenda items whose consideration was wilfully disrupted or

prejudicially delayed by the misconduct, based upon the Board
member’s actual malice;

Rendering the offending Board member ineligible to receive any
advances or reimbursement of expenses to attend future
conferences or meetings otherwise permitted under Board Policy
#07-020 (except those previously-approved for which expenses
have been incurred prior to the time of the finding of contempt),

283



for a period of time or subject to conditions specified in the
motion;

Referral of the matter to the County Criminal Grand Jury pursuant
to Government Code section 3060.

Referral of the matter to the Fair Political Practices Commission or
other prosecuting authority with jurisdiction over the matter.

Following the outcome of a motion for sanctions, the Chair shall direct
that the order of the Board be carried out by security, the Chief
Executive Officer, and/or General Counsel, as appropriate.

In the event violations of this Policy occur in a closed session, the Chair
may suspend the closed session and return to open session for the
purpose of commencing the enforcement process contemplated by this

section. All proceedings under this section III shall occur in open
session.

IV.  VIOLATIONS OF BOARD POLICIES OUTSIDE OF BOARD MEETINGS.

1.

Board members shall not act on behalf of, nor represent themselves as

speaking on behalf of, the Board without the Board’s express
authorization.

When a violation of a Board policy by a member of the Board is alleged
to have occurred outside of a Board meeting, the Chair or any member
of the Board may request that an item be placed on the agenda to
consider what sanctions may be appropriate, if any. In such instances,
evidence of the misconduct shall be presented by the requesting
member. The Board member accused of misconduct shall have an

opportunity to present evidence and respond to the allegations made.
Formal rules of evidence shall not apply.

After consideration of the evidence presented, the Board may take such
actions as it may deem appropriate, including but not limited to those
described in section III of this policy, other than paragraph IIl(e) .

V. AUTHORITY OF ADMINISTRATION TO PROVIDE FOR SECURITY.

DOCS 2330453.2

l.

The District Administration is authorized and directed to develop and
implement policies and procedures designed, engage employees or
contractors to provide security, consistent with applicable law, to
promote a secure and orderly environment for Directors, employees,
staff, and members of the public. These policies and procedures will
include a process for notifying the District Administration in the event

that any person feels that he or she has been subjected to conduct which
violates this Policy.

-6-

204



2.

The District Administration is authorized and directed to take lawful and

appropriate action and to pursue lawful and appropriate remedies against
any person found to have violated this Policy.

VI. BOARD ORIENTATION AND TRAINING

DOCS 2330453.2

1.

4.

Every Board member shall participate in an orientation and training to
be offered by Tri-City Healthcare District within 60 days of election, re-
election to office, or assuming office, as a condition to receiving
compensation or allowance of expenses.

The required orientation and training shall be offered at times and places
convenient to the Board member.

The orientation and training shall include:

A tour of the facilities owned or operated by Tri-City Healthcare
District

An explanation of Board policies, procedures, committee structure
and bylaws, and delivery of a copy of the current Board policies,

procedures and bylaws

Briefings delivered by members of the management team

regarding:

1. Health care finance

ii. District financial management and budgeting practices

iil. Compliance laws and regulations, including conflict of

interest rules under State and Federal law and the
accreditation process

iv. Areas of health care and specialties offered

V. Medical staff organizations and relationship with the
hospital

Vi. Nursing policies, staffing and practices

vii.  The roles and responsibilities of each department
viii.  Legal responsibilities of Board members

This orientation and training shall supplement the training required by
law under AB 1234.

208



Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 1/13/10
Approved by the Board of Directors: 1/28/10
Reviewed by Gov/Leg Committee: 4/13/11
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/28/11
Reviewed by Gov/Leg Committee: 9/14/11
Approved by the Board of Directors: 9/29/11
Reviewed by Gov/Leg Committee: 4/11/12
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/26/12
Approved by the Board of Directors: 5/31/12
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 6/04/13
Approved by the Board of Directors: 6/27/13
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/01/14
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/24/14

DOCS 23304532

285



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

BOARD POLICY #14-038

POLICY TITLE: Medical Staff Liability Insurance Requirements (Joint Policy with

L

IL.

MEC)

PURPOSE:

A.

To require professional liability insurance or approved form of financial security.

POLICY:

A.

Consistent with —AstieleVHl-ef-the Tri-City Healthcare District Bylaws and

Artiele IV Seetion4-5-Hg)-ef the Tri-City Medical Center Medical Staff Bylaws,
Rules and Regulations, every Practitioner on the medical staff-er-with-privileges
to—attend—patients—at—Tri-City—Medical Center, and every Allied Health
Professional, must, &S—a—eeﬂde&—e{;he}dﬂw—%aﬁf—membeﬁlﬁp—ei—aﬁeﬂdmg

privileges;-either carry professmnal liability insurance with an insurance company
admitted to transact business in California in limits of not less than one million
dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence or claim/three million dollars
(83,000,000.00) annual aggregate, or furnish an approved form of equivalent
financial security as described below in Subsection 3.

1. The Medical Executive Committee may, without the need to obtain the
approval of the Staff, modify the foregoing limits from time to time as
may be appropriate to meet the needs of the Hospital and the medical
staff and to reflect developments in the insurance industry, with the
approval of the Board of Directors.

Each insured Practitioner or Allied Health Professional must eause-provide a
current certificate of insurance or other acceptable evidence of liability coverage
to be furnished to the Hospital. The certificate or other evidence of liability

coverage must specify the expiration date of the policy and the amount of
insurance.

1. If the insurance policy or other coverage is restricted in any manner, the
Practitioner or Allied Health Professional must furnish a copy of such
restrictions to the Hospital.

2. The Practitioner or Allied Health Professional shall not perform at the
Hospital any procedure excluded from the insurance policy or other
coverage. The Practitioner or Allied Health Professional shall
immediately notify the Hospital if the Practitioner’s or Allied Health
Professional’s insurance or equivalent coverage expires, is reduced

207



below the limits then in effect at the Hospital, or is canceled or
terminated.

C. For purposes of this policy, an “approved form of equivalent financial security”
means either:

1. Insurance coverage that is written by or issued in connection with the
Practitioner’s or Allied Health Professional’s membership in a
cooperative, as defined in Section 1280.7 of the California Insurance
Code; or successor legislation with minimum coverage conforming to
the then applicable requirements; or

2. Insurance coverage from an irrevocable trust established by an
incorporated professional group to insure its members against damages
and defense costs arising out of malpractice claims or litigation, and
which has been actuarially determined to meet minimum coverage
requirements then applicable.

3. Self insurance coverage established by an incorporated professional
group or other entity to insure the Practitioner or Allied Health
Professional against damages and defense costs arising out of
malpractice claims or litigation and which has been actuarially
determined to meet minimum coverage requirements then applicable.

D. These “approved” forms of equivalent security shall be subject to review and
approval by the Medical Executive Committee and Board of Directors.

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Commiittee: 1/13/10
Approved by the Board of Directors: 1/28/10
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/01/14
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/24/14
Reviewed by the MEC:

Addressed by the Gov/Leg Commiittee:
Approved by the MEC:

Approved by the Board of Directors:

DOCS 116569-000004/2354456.2

208



GL0Z ‘Gl 48qo0

99)IWWOD SoIYIT 9 doueldwoD YpnvE

uoIljeluloju] yjjesH pajos)odd JO suoijediunwiwio) aA1a39y
0} s}senbay jusied — 615-0198 Aollod paje)s uosdwoy | ‘s

® S9I0I0d SANELSIUILIPY
JO uoISsSNosIp pue mainay (v

ssauisng MaN G

uejjauuoq s\

paynes senuiy

‘A|showiueun

pessed uopjow ay] -pajuasaid se Hunsaw G102 ‘22
Jaquia)dag ay} jo saynujw ay) anosdde o) Zuemyos 1N
Aq papuodas pue )}20jjeyss 1030aiiqg Aq parow sem j}|

G102 ‘2z Jequeydes
— §8)nuiw JO uonesley v

"SJUBWIWOD 21|gnd ou a1em a1ay |

wia)l 8Y) JO UONeIapISUoD
s,@8)jIWwo) alogaq algnd
8} 0} }sadul Jo Wa)l Aue uo
slaquiaw aapiWwwod pue aignd
ay) Jo siaquisw Aq SjuBWIWOD ¢

ue|jouuoq ‘s

‘panoidde epuaby

‘Kjsnowiueun passed uonow
ay)] -pajuasaid se epuabe ay) anoidde 0} Zyemyds "IN
Aq papuo2as pue )20jjeyos 10)0aliq Aq parow sem )|

epuaby Jo jenoiddy

o

“ejluul4 uosiaditeyn Aq Jejua) |esipsy AiD-1] Je € wooy
Alquassy Ul ‘W'e 0g:g 1e JapIo 0} pajieo sem Bunssw sy

19pI0 0} BD L

suoisnjouo)

a|qisuodsay /suonepuawwosay uoissnasiq
(s)uosiad uonoy
JaquIa|\ JelS |edipay ‘euolo) yueld “iq juasqy
JaoiO Aoenud pue WIH ‘Spi0oay jedipaly Jo Jooaiq ‘uosdwoy] uaa|jo) ‘Sonewloju)
[e2IUI}D puUB uoneanpd jo Jojoallq ‘ddo] Ayie)y Juelsissy 9ANIaXT ‘uejduUO( U] {|aSUnoy) [BJBUSY) ‘J0di0RY duelq :Juasalid si9ylo

Alunwwo) ‘Ziremyos a11sa Laquispy AJlunwiwo) ‘Weljiimzyi4 ukiyie)y) Ldaquisiy Ajlunwwo) ‘dieys uopeg 1aquisiy
Aunwwo) ‘Buiwing Moep {jayoly eineT Jojoaliq Hoojjeyos "M AueT Jojoaaq {(JieyD) ejiuul{ euowey Jojoaliq Juasald siaquiapy

0909 ‘Meys-piewsag sjluayd ‘009 ‘As|uod endey) ((030) uelop wi] {(O4D) ulpelq ansls  :siaquisly Buop-uonN

Joquisy

‘W 'e pgi0)-we 0¢:8
€ wooy Ajquiassy
G102 ‘Gl 120300
s9plwwo) saIg 2 adueldwo) Ypny
Jouajjest  Apo-uj



GLOZ ‘Sl 48qo0

9a)IUWOD SAYIT @ SouBldWOD HPNT

uejjauuoq S\

1eyoed epuabe ul papnjoul
pue epuabe pieog uo
Jeadde 0} way pajuasaid
Se SaJIAI3S JO UOISIAOId

ut soIyy3 — ¢9¢-0198

K104 anoadde o) s1030841Qg
JO pieog ay) 0} Juas

2( 0} uojjepuaWWodIY

‘Aisnowiueun passed uoyjow ayj °uopow

9y} papuodas wel||Imz3i4 ‘S| “pajuasaid se sadiAleg
JO UoIsInOIg Ul SOIY)T ~ 292-0198 A21j0d jo |eroidde
puawiwoosal 0} [|aY23IN 10)oallq Aq paAowl sem )|

*A10)0a.ip Juaned ayj jo 1no 1do Jo ui }do o) sjuaned smoje
1ey) Aoljod ajeiedss e ul sajnJ JoUIS ale-aiay) paulejdxa
[asuno) [esauas) -Bunaylep Jo Jojoallq a8y} 0} pajoalip ale
salinbul eipaw e pautejdxa ddo) ‘S| ‘elpaw ayj 0} paje|al
uonsanb e o} asuodsai uj “psjepdn Ajdwis a1am sadualajal
-SS0I0 pue Judjuod U sabueyd Jofew ou aiom a1ay)
pauie|dxe ays ‘mainal Jeak-g s)i 10} pajuasald S| S9IIAISS
JO UoIsinoId Ul SOy -Z92-0198 Adljod pajels ddo] ‘s

S80IAISS JO UOISINOI]
ul solylg - ¢9¢-0198 ¢

uejjsuuoq ‘s

19)oed epuabe pieog

ul papnjoul pue epuabe
pieog uo teadde o0} wayl
‘popuawe pue pajuasaid
Se suoles0 ajeusdy
jJe 10 sueay aAneuIdY
Aq (IHd) uoneuwuoyuj
UljeaH poajd9djoid

Jo suonesunwwo)
9A1929Y 0} s)sanbay
jusijed - 615-0198
Aoijod anoudde 03 si0)2941(
Jo pieog ayj o) Juas

aq 0} UOHEPUBIWIWIOIY

*Aisnowueun passed uopjow a3y “uoljow ay} papuodss
dieys "IN ‘popuswe pue pajuasaid se suoles0]
—8jeulal|y je 10 sueay aAneusd)|y Aq (IJHd) uoljewoju|
ylleaH p93)2930.d JO SUOIEIIUNWWOY) dAIBI9Y

0} s)sanbay Juaned — 61.6-0198 A31j0d jo jeaosdde
puawWIWodal o0} [|IaY23IN J03d3allq Aq paaowl Sem )|

‘pajsabbns alam sabueyo jeonewwelb Jourpy
"Jaquinu suoyd JO SSalppe sjeuld)e ue je

uoleuloul |Hd 418y} aA1e9a1 0} Ajljige ay) Juaied ay) saalb
Aldwis suoneoso] ajeula)y 1e Jo suespy aaneusayy Aq (JHd)

sSuoleos0 sjeuwIs)|y

Je 1O Suealy aAleuss))y

Aq (JHd) uoneuuoyu

YjjeaH pajo9jo.id

JO suofeounwwon

aA1908Y 0] s)sanbay
Juaned —615-0198 I

sainpasoid

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosioq

suoiIsnjouo’)
/suoiepuaWWOod9y
uondy

uoissnasiq




GL0zZ ‘Sl 48qo100 € 9)IWWOoY SoIY1g B doueldwo) ‘Upny

ayy wiopad o} swepy ssopy | Jauped ur abueyo e apnjoul 0} JIpnY 91L0ZAd 2y3 waopad 7 J
Y3IM uoisualxa Jeak auo 0} SWwepy SSO YHM uoisualxa J1eak auo e ajenobau _
uaIg I e ajenjobau o3 ulppalg "IN | 03 uILiqg "IN dzloYyjne o) Buiwwing " Aq paaow sem j| 7

'$%00Qq 8y} Uo sahs Jo

195 ysaly e apinoid 0} sieak /-G Aians Jeuped Buibeuew auy |
ul uone)ol e 86EIN0OUS SWL JSOW Jey} pawlyuod ueig N
-gonoe.d 1s8q JO }sa18)ul 8y} Ul sJeuped ajejol o} juepoduwi
SI Jl SNUNUOD O] 9JOM SWepYy SSO JI ey} Juawaaibe

Ul 91oM SI9qUISW 930D "SWEPY SSO YIM Buinuuod
snsion ssao0id 44y ue jo sabejueapesip pue sabejueape
ay) Buipsebal uoiSSNISIP SAISUBIXS peY 3a)IWWIOD 3y |

131} 1X8U 8y} Ul SWlj 9SOy} SB ||9m SEe INoj

B1q, 8y} Buipnjoul 19pISUCD ABW S3PIIWIOD SU} Jey) SuLll sy}
pue ssa20id 44y ay) paureidxs sy "aseyd Buiuueld ay) pue
yJom pjaiy 0} Joud uoisioap siy} aew o} juepodwl si 1 pue
J10}IpNe JUSWaje]s [BIDUBUI} MBU B JSPISUOD 0} JoU IO Jayjdaym
JopISUod 0} SPaauU 8d}IWWO9 3y} pauleidxs uipalg N

PNy JUSWSJE]S [elouBUl 910CAd
ay} uuopad o0} swuly Jo suondo 8y} Je 00| 0} Ajunyuoddo sy _”

a9 wwod ay) aAlb o} epuabe s,Aepoj uo pade|d sem JIpny Upny Juswalels _d
Juswiale)S [elouBUl4 9L0ZA @Y} pajels e|luuly uossadiieyd leoueuld 9L0ZAd (9 |
‘19xoed ) . m -
epuabe ul papn|oul pue _
epuabe pieog uo seadde weggg e

0} wayl ‘pepuswe pue | bussw ayj ysj uosdwoy| ussjjog ‘S pue ddoy Ayey sy
pajuasaid se sjuswnoaoq
|eba] - ¥62-0198 ‘Aisnowjueun passed

Konjod enoadde 0} s1030a41q | UOROW BY] ‘uoljoW dYj PapuOIIS dieys "IN ‘pepusawe
JO pieog ayj 0} Juas pue pajuasaid se sjuswnao( |ebe v62-0198 Adljod jo
ue|j@uuoq s\ 8¢ 0) UolepUAWIWIOIY jeaocadde puawwosal o) zuemyds "IN Aq parow sem )|

‘pa)sabbns
alom suo1}09.109 Bunjew.o} pue [ealjewwelb Jouly

‘Aj@jeudoidde panles

SJE By} SJUSWNOOP By} SBAI9AI JoulsIQ 8y) pue adeld ul

wisiueyoaw Bulusaios e s| 818y} ainsud 0} seusodqns pue _

sjuswysiuies) ‘sjuiejdwo) ‘suowwng g uoRdas o) Sle|sl sjuawnao( _
¥62-0198 £21|0d 0} SUONEILIPOLL Ulew 3y} paiels ddoy "sw | |eba7 - ¥62-01L98 '€




GL0Z ‘Gl 49q0100

%4

99IWWOY SoIyYlg g soueldwo) ‘Upnyg

*Ajuo uoneulIoju|

uo Joedwi ue aq APy JIIM 313y} pue asealoul 0} H/V ul sAep
ay} J1oadxa saop ay JaASMOY ‘Yjuow 3y} Jo pud ay}.Aq aiow
MOUY [IM am paje)s ufjiaig I "uonejuswaldwi | 18qo}o0
ay] souIs 0} @D} uo ajepdn jaug e pajsanbel Butwwnd "1

suonediunwuwo) aajiwwo)d ¢l

"G10Z ‘6l JOqWIBAON
1o} pajnpayas st Bupeaw
JXau s,83IWIWIOD 3Y]L

'GL0Z ‘61 JOQWIBAON UO p[dy &g [iim
Buneaw Jxau s,89))IWWOY 83U} PaJe]S E|luul4 uosladiiey)

Bunes|y 1xaN Jo 8jeq "L}

"uolssas
poaso|d Ul Usye) sem uopoe ou papodal eluutd uosiadiieyd

(126615 uonoss

‘ap0D JUBWUIBA0L) AjLoyiny)

UOISSaS Paso|D Ul uaye)} uonoe
Aue uo uosiadiieyn wolj uoday 0l

"aA0Qe pa)s|| Se aouepus)e
YIM "We pE:0L 18 uoissas uado 0} pauIn}el 9SO Y |

uoissag uadp 6

‘Aisnowueun passed uoyjow ay |
"Wre gg:6 Je uolssas paso|d ojut ob o3 [|ayonw 1o03daalq
Aq papuo29as pue-weljjimzii] ‘SN Aq paAow Sem )|

uoissas paso|o ojuj ob 0) UCRON '8

‘uonebi| [enuajod Jo siojew om) pue

SOINUIW UOISSSS Paso)o Jo |enoidde papnjoul yolym UoIssas
pasojo Buunp passnosip aq 0} epuabe ay) uo pajst| SWa)|
3] JO JUSWAOUNOUUE [BJO UB Spew e|iuul4 uosiadiiey)

(2°266%S uondes
9P0?) JUBWIUIBA0D)) UOISSOS
paso|D Buunp passnasiq aq

0} swa)| Jo Juswasunouuy |eiQ °/

HeymeN ‘9
/ddo) "y

‘uoIssnasip 104 bunssw
JaqUIaAON 3y} 0} yoeq
ybnouq aq o) buisieipuny
10} (JHd) uonewlogu] Yyjesy
pajo9joid Jo ainsojasiq
pue asn — 625-0198 Ad1j0d

‘Buneaw ay) o} PaYIAUL aq [|IM LEYMSN

uss "I J9o1o Juswdojers( JoIyD UoiepuNo4 pue yjuow
1XOU 990D Y} 0} Yoeq awod o} Apeals aq jim Aoijod

aY) s109dxa aYs paje]s |asunoy) |elauss) “9a)ILLIWIOD By}

JO SWISdU09 8Y) JO SWOS JNO Yysn)j 0} Jepio ul epuabe s Aepo)
woyj pajind usaq sey GzG-01.98 A21l0d Paje)s ejiuuld Jojoaiid

Buisiespuny

1o} (JHd) uonewuou) yyesy

pajosjoid JO ainsojasi]
pue asn — GzG-0L98 |

:ainpaooid
g Aotjod aAnessiuWpY
0} sjuswpuswy

Jo uoissnasiq pue mainay (v

ssouisng pI0_ ‘9

1auped ul abueyo
€ apnjdul 0} JIpnY 91L0ZAd

‘(s)ieupned Buibeuew jenusjod
ay}) Buimaiaialul ut }salslul ue passaldxa sajilwod ay|

-Ajsnowueun passed uonow ay| -uoyow
a3} papuodas zuemyss "IN “9o13oeid Jseq uo paseq




S10Z ‘Gl 4940100 g SSIIWWIOD SOIY1T '8 SouBNdWOD PPNYG

‘wre of:01 1e bunssw ay) pauinolpe ejuui4 uosiadiieyn juswuwinolpy ‘g1

"MOJ} YSeo




Fe

RJIVArNcCeE

AUDIT, ETHICS AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

October 15th, 2015

Administrative Policies & Procedures

Recommendations

1. ALTERNATIVE MEANS OF
COMMUNICATING PROTECTED
HEALTH INFORMATION (PHI)
(PATIENT REQUESTS TO
RECEIVE COMMUNICATIONS
OF PROTECTED HEALTH
INFORMATION (PHI) BY
ALTERNATIVE MEANS OR AT
ALTERNATE LOCATIONS)

8610-519

Revision

Forward to BOD for
approval
with revisions

2. Ethics in Provision of Services

8610-262

3 year review, revised

Forward to BOD for
approval

3. Legal Documents

8610-294

3 year review, revised

Forward to BOD for
approval
with revisions

4. Use and Disclosure of Protected
Health (PHI) Information for
Fundraising

8610-525

3 year review, revised

Pulled for further
review

214



@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

ISSUE DATE: 03/03 SUBJECT: ALTERNAHVE-MEANS OE
COMMUNICATING PROTECTED
HEALTHINFORMATION-(PHI}
PATIENT REQUESTS TO RECEIVE
COMMUNICATIONS OF
PROTECTED HEALTH
INFORMATION (PHI) BY
ALTERNATIVE MEANS OR AT
ALTERNATE LOCATIONS

REVISION DATE: 03/06; 02/09 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-519

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 02/0809/15

CperationsTeam -Cormmitiee-Anproval 200

Prefeseional ifele-Commifec-Lppravals D240g

Audit, Ethics and Compliance Committee Approval 10/15

Board of Directors Approval: 03/09

A. PURPOSE:

1. To set guidelines for accommodating reasonable requests by Tri-City Healthcare District
(TCHD) patients to receive communications ofin-accerdance with-federalregulationsfor
providing-alternative-means-of-communicating protected health information (PHI) by alternative

| means or at alternate locations-with-Fri-City Healthcare-District{TCHD)-patients.
B. DEFINITIONS:

1. Protected Health Information (PHI): Individually identifiable health information
transmitted or maintained in electronic form that is created or received by TCHD AND
a. Relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an

individual; OR
b. Relates to the provision of health care to an individual; OR
c. Relates to the past, present, or future payment, AND
d. Identifies the individual OR with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to
believe the information can be used to identify the individual.
C. POLICY:

1. TCHD will permit patients to request and TCHD will accommodate reasonable requests by
patients to receive confidential communications by alternative means or at alternative
locations.

2. Patient requests for confidential communications by alternative means or at alternative
locations must be made in writing as described in this Policy.

D. PROCEDURES:

1. TCHD will previdepermit patients with-an-oppertunity-to request that confidential
communications of PHI by alternative means or alternative locations which-Aliernative
means may include:

a.

Alternative phone numbers. (For example, a patient may wish to designate a specific
phone number for communications).

215



Administrative Policy Manual
Patient Requests to Receive Communications of Protected Health Information (PHI) by Alternative Means or at Alternate Locations

Page 2 of 4
b. Alternative addresses;-such-as-a-business-address. (For example, a patient who does
not want his or her family to know about a medical condition may request that
communications be directed to his or her workplace address instead of a home
address).
C. By closed envelope instead of postcard.
2. TCHD determines the reasonableness of the request based on the administrative

difficulty of complying. TCHD may not require an explanation from the patient as to the

basis for the request as a condition of providing communications on a confidential basis.
3. Requests for alternative communications made after registration must be submitted in writing to

the Registration Manager. Termination of the request will require submitting a separate signed

form.

4, At the time of registration or at the point of entry, patients or their representatives will be asked if
they wish to receive communications by alternative means or at alternative locations.

a. Those that do request alternative means of communication must complete and sign the
Request for Restriction on the Manner/Method of Confidential Communications form.

b. When wishing to terminate the requestagreement, the Termination of Special Restriction
form must be completed and signed.

C. Registration staff will complete the appropriate fields in Cerner and Affinity upon receipt
of request.

d. Both forms, upon completion, are to be forwarded to Medical Records/Health Information
for inclusion in patient’s record.

5. Requests for special communications after the visit date can be directed to the Privacy Officer,

who will mail the form to the requesting individual.

a. Upon receipt, the information will be forwarded to the Registration Manager for input in to
both Cernerempass and Affinity.
b. Upon completion, forms will be forwarded to Medical Records/Health Information for
inclusion in the patient’s record.
6. TCHD may condition the provision of reasonable accommodation on, if and when

appropriate, information as to how payment, if any, will be handled and specification of
an alternative addresses or other method of contact.

E.  REFERENCES:
1. 45 CFR Section 164.522(b)(1)

F. FORMS:

1. Request for Restriction on the Manner/Method of Confidential Communication

216



Administrative Policy Manual
Patient Requests to Receive Communications of Protected Health Information (PHI) by Alternative Means or at Alternate Locations
Page 3 of 4

Name: Date:
(Last) (First) M

Address:

Telephone Number:

Date of birth: Social Security #:

(Optional)
You may request to receive confidential communications of your protected health information (PHI) by
alternative means or at alternative addresses. For example, you may not want your appointment notices or
your bill to go to your home.

We may not ask you the reason for your request. We will accommodate all reasonable requests.
If you make a special request, you must give us an alternative address or other method of contacting you.
Please specify how or where you wish to be contacted by marking the box and recording the detailed

| information. []

Address:

Phone Number:

Signature of patient or representative:

If representative, give relationship:

For more information about your privacy rights, see the “Notice of Privacy Practices” on our website at tri-
citymed.org or in the Medical Records/Health Information Department or by sending a written request to our
Privacy Officer.

If you believe your privacy rights have been violated, you may file a complaint with the Medical Center or
with the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services. All complaints must be submitted in
writing. You will not be penalized for filing a complaint.

| To file a complaint with the Tri-City Healthcare DistrictMedieal-Center, contact our Privacy Officer at:
Tri-City Medical Center
4002 Vista Way
Oceanside, CA 92056
Attn: Privacy Officer
Values Line (800) 273-8452

217



Patient Requests to Receive Communications of Protected Health Information (PHI) by Alternative Means or at Alternate Locations

Administrative Policy Manual
Page 4 of 4

REQUEST FOR RESTRICTION ON THE
MANNER/METHOD OF CONFIDENTIAL

COMMUNICATIONS
I @ Tri-City Medical Center
4002 Vista Way

Oceanside, California 92056

218



@) Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

ISSUE DATE: 7/97 SUBJECT: ETHICS IN PROVISION OF SERVICES

REVISION DATE: 4/00; 5/02; 12/02, 12/03, 6/09, 05/12 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-262

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 10/1209/15
Audit, Ethics and Compliance Committee Approval:

Professionalbiifairs Cormmitee-Laproval: 2
Board of Directors Approval: 12/12

A. PURPOSE:

1. Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) recognizes its responsibility to create a workplace culture
based on ethical principles and to use those principles as a guide in determining how best to
serve the needs of its patients and the community it serves. TCHD relies on its mission, values
and philosophy statement, strategic plan, Code of Conduct, Compliance Plan and other guiding
documents to provide a consistent, ethical framework for its business services and patient care
operations.

B. DEFINITIONS:

Ethical Tenet Right Responsibility

Beneficence Accountability To respectful care Advocacy

Autonomy To Self-determination (To Privacy/Confidentiality) Informed consent

Veracity Patient teaching To truthful information Informed consent

Justice To Equal consideration for treatment Collaboration to meet
needs alternative
choices

Fidelity To deliver the care that is indicated/ordered Competency/

Credentialing/
Appropriate services

C. POLICY:

1. It is the basic responsibility of employees, medical staff and others to work cooperatively. To
provide optimum patient care, proper functioning of the healthcare team, and efficient
management of business. Employees will conduct themselves utilizing the tenets included in the
TCHD Mission and Value statements and Code of Conduct in the performance of their duties and
their interactions with others. It is also the expectation that employees will fully demonstrate and
model the Professional Code of Ethics established by their professional organization or licensing
body.

2. Supply contracts are approved or rejected based on best-value practices and the potential for
conflict of interest.

3. TCHD is committed to truth in advertising.

4, Patients with emergencies are treated without regard for ability to pay. The rights of all patients
are valued without regard to race, color, creed/religion, sex, and national origin/ancestry.
5. Services are provided in a considerate and respectful manner, with regard to privacy and age

specific needs allowing for expressions of personal values and beliefs as long as these do not
jeopardize the safety or well being of others.

6. Billing practices have been developed so that customers are billed only for those services and
care provided; bills include dates of service and itemized charges. Billing is based on appropriate
regulatory and other accepted standards.

7. Media policies and procedures have been established to ensure that patient rights and privacy
are protected. At no time will any member of news media be allowed to obtain any type of

219



Administrative Policy Manual
Ethics in Provision of Services — 8610-262
Page 2 of 2

information (verbal or written), without prior authorization from the Director of Marketing and
Communications.

8. The hospital's code of ethical business and professional behavior protects the integrity of clinical
decision making, regardless of how the hospital compensates or shares financial risk with its
leaders, managers, clinical staffs and licensed independent practitioners.

D. REFERENCES:

1. Administrative Policy Manual: Accounting of Disclosures of Protected Health Information
(PHI) #8610-528
Administrative Policy Manual: Advance Health Care Directive #8610-354
Administrative Policy Manual: Patient Complaints & Grievances #8610-318
Administrative Policy Manual: Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information:
Records #8610-515
Code of Conduct
Patient Care Services Policy Manual: Patient Rights & Responsibilities #8610-302
7. Physician Referral Service Protocol
4-8. Code of Ethics on the TCMC Intranet

el

P o
i

220



@)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

ISSUE DATE: 08/11 SUBJECT: Legal Documents
| REVISION DATE: 10/14 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-294

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 144/1409/15

Audit, Ethics and Compliance Committee Approval 10/15

Eecniive-Counelllporevals BEM

Prefesslonal-bifnies-CommiteeLpprevals 09/11

Board of Directors Approval: 09/11

A PURPOSE:

1.

| 2.
3.

4.

This policy enables Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) to comply with procedural deadlines for
responding to lkegal dBocuments, by ensuring TCHD is sufficiently informed of legal proceedings
against it. This policy identifies the proper protocols for service of lkegal dBocuments for (TCHD)
and its employees.

Employees who improperly handle lkegal dBocuments could disadvantage TCHD in legal
proceedings and may be subject to discipline for violating this policy.

Except as provided herein, TCHD employees must not accept legal documents on behalf
of TCHD or any TCHD employee, physician, or independent contractor.

All inquiries regarding this policy shall be directed to Risk Management.

SUMMONS, COMPLAINTS, GARNISHMENTS AND SUBPOENAS:

c1.

DEFINITIONS

2—:a. Summons a Ikegal Ddocument that notlfles an |nd|V|duaI or entlty that a Iawsmt has
commenced and the individual or entity must respond.

b. Civil-Complaint — a lkegal Bdocument that sets forth the claims in a lawsuit and relief
sought.

3.c. Garnishment — an order issued by a court declaring that money or property (usually
wages) be seized to pay a debt.

4.d. Subpoena — an order issued by a court or attorney for the production of records,
documents, or tangible things, or for the appearance of a person at a Deposition or in
court.

§-e. Deposition — a proceeding in which an individual provides out of-court testimony under
oath.

6-f. Service — the process of delivering klegal Bdocuments.

#4g. Process Server — an individual who Serves klegal dBocuments upon a person or entity.

ACCEPTING SERVICE OF SUMMONS, COMPLAINTS, GARNISHMENTS AND SUBPOENAS

a Process Servers seeklng to serve Iegal documents wﬂlsheuld be dlrected flrst to
Securlty et e sparkmentiew

at—TC-HD—Once Securlty is present Rlsk Management shall accept any Summons,
Complaint, Garnishment or Subpoena from a Process Server on behalf of TCHD or
any TCHD board officer or clerk of the board in his or her official capacity (such as

221



Administrative Policy Manual — District Operations
Legal Documents, 8610-294
| Page2of3

| ‘“Board Secretary”), including Subpoenas directed to “Persons Most
Knowledgeable” or “Persons Most Qualified” at TCHD.
i Risk Management will forward Subpoenas for medical records and patient
bills to the Medical Records Department.
iii. Risk Management will forward Subpoenas for employee records to Human
Resources.
iil. Risk Management will forward Garnishments and Subpoenas for payroll
documents to the Payroll Department.
c. Risk Management shall not accept any Summons, Complaint, Garnishment or
Subpoena on behalf of the Medical Staff, including Medical Board Subpoenas for
credentialing.

d. Risk Management shall not accept any Summons, Complaint, Garnishment or
Subpoena on behalf of the Tri-City Hospital Foundation.

e. Under no circumstances are Process Servers allowed onto patient care floors or
into patient care areas for the purpose of serving Legal Documents.

f. In keeping with other TCHD privacy policies, TCHD employees must not provide

information about other employees, physicians or independent contractors to
Process Servers. This includes information about the employees’, physicians’, or
independent contractors’ shifts, department of employment, home address, home,
cellular or office telephone number, or TCHD email address.

8.g. A Process Server who attempts service of a Summons, Complaint, Garnishment or
Subpoena against an employee, physician, or independent contractor, or a
Subpoena that requires the appearance of an employee, physician, or independent
contractor, shall be informed of TCHD’s policy against the acceptance of such
documents, asked to leave the premises, and escorted from the premises by
Security if he or she refuses to leave voluntarily.

B-.C. OTHER CLAIMS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATIONS:

1. It is the responsibility of any person making a claim for money or damages that is not a
Summons, Complaint, Garnishment or Subpoena, such as claims presented on TCHD’s
board-approved claim form, any other standard claim form, in a letter, or in any other
document, to present such claim to the Board Clerk, Secretary of the Board or Chair of the
Board per California Government Code Section 915.

a. Any other TCHD employee who receives a claim for money or damages that is not a
Summons, Complaint, Garnishment or Subpoena, such as claims presented on
TCHD’s board-approved claim form, any other standard claim form, in a letter, or in
any other document, shall forward such claim to Risk Management only. Risk
Management shall follow the Government Code in addressing the claim.

2. As provided in Board Policy 44-026 10-026, only the office of the CEO may accept requests
for public records.

D. REFERENCES:
1. California Government Code Section 915
3-2. Board of Directors Policy #10-026 — Request For Inspection of Public Records Policy

222



Administrative Policy Manual — District Operations
Legal Documents, 8610-294
| Page3of3

223



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

September 24, 2015 - 1:30 o’clock p.m.
Assembly Room 1 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at the

location noted above at Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, California at
1:30 p.m. on September 24, 2015.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director James Dagostino, DPT, PT
Director Ramona Finnila

Director Cyril F. Kellett, MD
Director Laura E. Mitchell

Director Julie Nygaard

Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry Schallock

Also present were:

Greg Moser, General Legal Counsel

Tim Moran, Chief Executive Officer

Kapua Conley, Chief Operating Officer

Steve Dietlin, Chief Financial Officer

Esther Beverly, VP/Human Resources

Cheryle Bernard-Shaw, Chief Compliance Officer
Dr. Gene Ma, Chief of Staff

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Richard Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1. The Board Chairman, Director Schallock, called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. in

Assembly Room 1 of the Eugene L. Geil Pavilion at Tri-City Medical Center with
attendance as listed above.

2. Approval of Agenda

Chairman Schallock stated agenda item 6. g. (1) Steven D. Stein vs. Tri-City
Healthcare District is being pulled from the closed session and items 20 1). D. 8.
Approval of an agreement with Federal Heath Sign Company for the construction of
an Electronic Digital Media Display Pylon Sign for a total cost not to exceed
$380,000, contingent upon final approval by the City of Oceanside and 20 4. G. 1) c.

Policy 8610-525 — Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PH!) for
Fundraising have been pulled.

Director Dagostino called for a Point of Order requesting clarification if the two open
session items are pulled for discussion or pulled to be sent back to the respective

committees. Chairman Schallock stated both items will be sent back to the respective
committee.



it was moved by Director Dagostino to approve the agenda as amended.
Director Kellett seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Public Comments — Announcement

Chairman Schallock read the Public Comments section listed on the September 24,
2015 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda.

There were no public comments.
Oral Announcement of ltems to be discussed during Closed Session

Chairman Schallock deferred this item to the Board's General Counsel. General
Counsel, Mr. Greg Moser made an oral announcement of the items listed on the
September 24, 2015 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed
during Closed Session which included Conference with Labor Negotiators; three
Reports Involving Trade Secrets; Conference with Legal Counsel regarding one
matters of Potential Litigation; Hearings on Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or
Quality Assurance Committees; Conference with Legal Counsel regarding one matter
of Existing Litigation and Approval of Closed Session Minutes.

Motion to go into Closed Session

It was moved by Director Dagostino and seconded by Director Kellett to go into
Closed Session. The motion passed unanimously (7-0).

The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 1:35 p.m.

At 3:37 p.m. in Assembly Rooms 1, 2 and 3, Chairman Schallock announced that the
Board was back in Open Session.

The following Board members were present:

Director James Dagostino, DPT, PT
Director Ramona Finnila

Director Cyril F. Kellett, MD
Director Laura E. Mitchell

Director Julie Nygaard

Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry W. Schallock

Also present were:

Greg, General Legal Counsel

Tim Moran, Chief Executive Officer

Kapua Conley, Chief Operations Officer

Steve Dietlin, Chief Financial Officer

Sharon Schultz, RN, Chief Nurse Executive
Esther Beverly, VP, Human Resources

Cheryle Bernard-Shaw, Chief Compliance Officer
Dr. Gene Ma, Chief of Staff

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 2- September 24, 2015



Richard Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

9. Chairman Schallock stated no action was taken in closed session, however the Board
will be returning to closed session at the conclusion of this meeting to conduct
unfinished business.

10. Director Reno led the Pledge of Allegiance.
Chairman Schallock noted the following items were pulled from the agenda:

» 6 g. (Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation)
(1) Steven D. Stein vs. Tri-City Healthcare District;

» 20 (1) D. 8. Approval of an agreement with Federal Heath Sign Company for
the construction of an Electronic Digital Media Display Pylon Sign for a total
cost not to exceed $380,000, contingent upon final approval by the City of
Oceanside; and

» 20(1)G. 1)c. 8610-525 — Use and Disclosure of Protected Health
Information (PHI) for Fundraising.

11. Chairman Schallock read the Public Comments section of the Agenda, noting
members of the public may speak immediately following Agenda Item Number 24.

Chairman Schallock asked that speakers be concise and adhere to the three-minute
rule.

12. Special Recognitions:
(1) Lucky 13 Triple Crown Champion Presentation

Chairman Schallock stated the Lucky 13 are the individuals who ran in the Carlsbad
Half Marathon, La Jolla Half Marathon and America’s Finest City Half Marathon,
thereby achieving the Triple Crown.

Ms. Tina Knight, one of the Lucky 13 members read a touching letter from a fellow
team member that reflected how grateful the team felt for the life changing fitness
experience provided to them by Tri-City. Ms. Knight and fellow team members
presented a plaque to Mr. Moran and Tri-City to express their appreciation. A plaque
was also presented to Mr. David Bennett and the Marketing Team for their support.

Ms. Knight introduced Mr. Paul Carey, the team’s coach, counselor, motivator and
leader.

Mr. Carey stated he is the Coordinator for the Lucky 13 and wished to take this
opportunity to thank Mr. Moran, Mr. David Bennett and the entire Marketing Team for
their support. Mr. Carey stated he has never been so proud to work for a company
and so proud of what he does. He stated it was an honor and a privilege to change
the lives of so many people.

No action was taken.
13. Community Update
1) Emergency Preparedness Update — Kevin McQueen

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 3- September 24, 2015



Mr. Kevin McQueen, Director of Safety and Environment of Care stated the objective
of today’s presentation is to provide information to the TCHD Board of Directors and
the public on TCHD's preparedness and capabilities to manage or assist with internal
and external disaster/emergency events and secondly, to update the TCHD Board of
Directors and public on Emergency Management activities and operational plans. Mr.
McQueen explained that both the Joint Commission and California Department of
Public Health require Emergency Management Planning in healthcare facilities to
ensure that hospitals have a comprehensive plan that describes how it will respond to
emergencies in its community or in the facility that would affect the delivery of medical
services. Mr. McQueen reviewed examples of External Events such as mass-
casualty, terrorist event and wild fires as well as Internal Events such as a fire within
the facility, an active shooter or loss of power.

Mr. McQueen explained the TCHD Emergency Operations Plan addresses the four
phases of Emergency management including:

1. Preparedness
2. Response
3. Mitigation
4. Recovery

In addition the TCHD Emergency Operations Plan addresses the annual Hazard
Vulnerability Analysis (HVA) and looks at situations that would pose a threat to Tri-
City or impact us from the outside.

Mr. McQueen reviewed some of the activities the hospital takes to assure readiness
and identify resources used in an emergency situation which include staff training,
practice exercises and collaboration with local agencies. Mr. McQueen provided
examples of the TCMC Emergency Management Inventory that is available in the
event of a disaster situation which includes but is not limited to decontamination
shower/tents, portable power generators, HEPA filtration system, cots, portable water
heaters, pharmaceuticals and medical supplies.

Mr. McQueen explained the Federal Government provides funds to the county of San
Diego that are disbursed to the hospitals depending on size and need. He stated the
money is used to offset some of the costs of doing disaster preparedness. Mr.
McQueen stated TCMC has purchased “Meals Ready to Eat” and have an enormous
supple of water that is essential is almost every major disaster that will enable the
hospital to hold its own for 72-96 hours.

Mr. McQueen spoke regarding the 2014 Wild Fires and the statewide event in
preparing for EBOLA. Mr. McQueen also reported that in 2015 we had a partial
system failure with our landline phones, however we had a multitude of
communication devices in place, i.e. radios, cell phones. He noted two additional
drills are planned for October and November.

Mr. McQueen stated TCMC also participates with San Diego Regional Disaster
planning process which includes:

» Annex D — Multi-Casualty
» Annex P — Emergency Plan for Terrorism

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 4- September 24, 2015



With regard to communication, Mr. McQueen stated the ability to get communication
out to our staff has improved tremendously.

Lastly, Mr. McQueen explained the activities that the hospital implements to return to
normal operations after an emergency incident which include the following:

- Memos of Understanding with vendors to resupply critical care equipment and
supplies within 24 hours;

- Set up alternative means to meet essential building utility needs (back-up
generators, alternative communications, possible alternative care sites); and

- Complete after action reports to identify opportunities for improvement that are
shared with the Hospital Association of San Diego & Imperial County to adopt
best practices by all area hospitals.

Directors asked a multitude of questions that Mr. McQueen responded to.

Chairman Schallock stated that he is a member of the Medical Reserve Response
Corp. and many times when they do training in San Diego, Mr. McQueen is there. He
expressed his appreciation to Mr. McQueen for taking his time, often on Saturdays to
be a part of this.

No action taken.
14, Report from TCHD Auxiliary — Sandy Tucker, President

Ms. Sandy Tucker reported as of the end of August, volunteers have contributed
52,488 hours. She noted our advocate volunteers are giving out the new Patient
Handbook which they requested as they greet everyone who comes into the hospital.

Ms. Tucker stated Pet Therapy will begin a new program on October 1% where new
patients can request a visit from a dog. She noted the Pet Therapy Team will have
someone available every day of the week.

Ms. Tucker reported on other events as follows:

» The Annual Tails on the Trails will be held on May 21, 2016, in partnership
with the Foundation.

> October 8" the Auxiliary will host the San Diego & Imperial Council of Hospital
Volunteers from 10-11:30 a.m. in which Mr. Tucker will speak on the HAVES
award. In addition, Mr. Richard Hart, Chair of the CA Hospital Association
(Volunteers) will present disaster planning for California hospitals.

Ms. Tucker explained the Telecare Department is made up of 19 volunteers who call
patients who have been discharged or community members who are alone and
assure them that someone cares. She stated she is hoping that the new brochure
will generate more participation in this area.

Director Finnila suggested Ms. Tucker reach out to the City's program “We Are Not
Alone”.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 5- September 24, 2015



15.

16.

No action was taken.
Report from Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Tim Moran, Chief Executive Officer stated he was extremely pleased to have the
opportunity to participate with the Board and physician leaders in a recent meeting to
talk about some of the challenges that we face. He stated he got a feeling of unity
and purpose and would like to keep that theme going forward.

Mr. Moran stated three things we are focusing on in connection with that include the
following:

1. Information Technology needs for the future;

2. Clinical integration - fundamentally creating ways of communicating together
across the continuum of care for our patients and

3. Bundled payments which will be a huge shift in how we do business.

With regard to seismic requirements, Mr. Moran reported the architects have finalized
the seismic workaround of what we will need to do for addressing the seismic issues
we have.

Mr. Moran reported work groups have been organized and have started working on
the Campus Development Plan

Mr. Moran stated quality care and patient safety are always foremost in our minds
and he invited Ms. Sharon Schultz, CNE to share some good news of some
recognitions we have received.

Ms. Schultz stated that in the U.S. News, 2016 Edition of Best Hospitals, Tri-City
Medical Center was the only hospital in San Diego County that has won four awards:
1) Get with the Guidelines for Heart Failure, 2) Get with the Guidelines for Stroke, 3)
The Mission Lifeline for our Heart Attack Receiving Center and 4) the Stroke Honor
Roll.

Mr. Moran thanked Director Reno for bringing this news article to our attention.

Ms. Schultz also reported that an envelope was received from a group of 3™ grade
students who have been studying about how to be helpful in the community. The
students chose to make cheerful cards for patients who might need a cheerful word to
help lift their spirits. Ms. Schultz stated the cards are very cute and thoughtful and will
be given to our patients to put a smile on our patient’s faces.

No action was taken.
Report from Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Steve Dietlin reported on the two months of FY 2016 ended August 31, 2015 as
follows:

» Net Operating Revenue — $56.242
» Operating Expense — $55,521

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 6- September 24, 2015



17.

» EROE - $1,474
» EBITDA -$3,863

Other Key Indicators for the current year driving those results included the following:

Average Daily Census — 184
Adjusted Patient Days — 18,663
Surgery OP Cases — 512

IP Surgery Cases - 636
Deliveries — 429

ED Visits — 11,532

VVVVYYV

Mr. Dietlin also reported on the current month as follows:

> Operating Revenue - $27,829

> Operating Expense - $27,557

> Net Patient Accounts Receivable $41.6
» Days in Net Accounts Receivable — 46.2

Mr. Dietlin stated Days in Net A/R are the lowest that we have seen in quite some
time, however, he expects that number to increase over the next couple of months
with the implementation of ICD 10 which is occurring on October 1%. Mr. Dietlin
stated he believes the district is adequately prepared and there has been a multitude
of education and dual coding, etc., however we still anticipate that there may be
payment delays associated with that which may not necessarily impact revenue but
the stream of payments may be somewhat delayed.

Mr. Dietlin also presented graphs which reflected trends in Net Days in Patient
Accounts Receivable, Average Daily Census excluding Newborns, Adjusted Patient
Days, and Emergency Department Visits.

Mr. Dietlin stated that once a year we have a financial statement audit in which
independent auditors come in and audit the financial statement results that we are
reporting internally. He stated for FY15 that audit is wrapping up and the draft report
was brought to the Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee on Tuesday and the
committee recommended that it come forward to the Board. Mr. Dietlin stated there
were no proposed adjustments or material weaknesses identified and we received an
unmodified opinion which are all good things for the District.

Director Dagostino expressed his appreciation to Mr. Dietlin for steering our financial
ship. Mr. Dietlin stated the financial results are the result of everyone's work in the

hospital and it takes physicians, patients and the 2100 staff and the work of the
Board.

Chairman Schallock echoed Director Dagostino’s comments and noted the first two
months of financials are impressive as well and everyone should be commended. Mr.

Dietlin noted the importance of flexing down and managing expenses with drops in
volume.

No action was taken.

New Business

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 7- September 24, 2015



a. Consideration of the FY2015 Audit

Mr. Dietlin stated Moss Adams is our independent Auditor and Mr. Devon Wiens,
partner on the job is here today to give an update on the audit process.

Mr. Wiens stated the auditors completed their internal quality control review which
consists of making sure all of our documentation is signed off and issued the
financial statements about an hour ago pending acceptance by the Board. Mr.
Wiens provided a summary of the highlights that were presented to the Audit,
Compliance & Ethics Committee on Tuesday. He explained Moss Adams is an
an independent party that expresses an opinion that the financial statements are
free of material error. Mr. Wiens stated there were no audit adjustments this year
and no uncorrected misstatements or past adjustments. He further explained that
there were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal controls.
Mr. Wiens stated Mr. Dietlin and his team took responsibility for drafting the notes
and disclosures that you see in the financial statements and the auditors had very
few changes to the actual financial statement which is the way it should be for a
public organization such as ours. Mr. Wiens noted one change in the report from
last year relates to a bill that was written by the state controller and is a reiteration
of procedures and policies that are in their professional standards and are
embedded in the accounting principles that the district is following and is just
affirmation that the Auditors complied with that particular rule.

Director Reno commented that the audit report was very well done. She
expressed her appreciation to Mr. Dietlin and his team. Director Reno questioned

if this audit encompasses an internal audit. Mr. Wiens clarified that this is strictly
an external audit.

Director Finnila stated we have some very strict internal controls and thanks to
Mr. Dietlin and his team and our new Compliance Officer they take a very critical
look at how our systems are working with each other. Director Finnila also
expressed her appreciation to Ms. Charlene Carty and Ms. Anh Nguyen of our
Finance Department who work closely with Moss Adams in the audit process.

Director Finnila stated the Audit Committee had the opportunity to ask Mr. Wiens
any critical questions regarding the audit and processes in the absence of staff
and our staff passed with flying colors

Lastly, Director Finnila stated the audit committee minutes which are available at
the back table provide a detailed analysis of what was looked at by the auditors.
She stated it was a collaborative effort on behalf of staff and Moss Adams.

it was moved by Director Finnila that the TCHD Board of Directors accept
the Fiscal Year 2015 Audit as recommended by the Audit, Compliance &
Ethics Committee. Director Dagostino seconded the motion

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell,
Nygaard, Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 8- September 24, 2015



17. b. Consideration to appoint Mr. Jack Cumming to a second two-year term on the Audit
Compliance & Ethics Committee

it was moved by Director Finnila that the Tri-City Healthcare District Board of
Directors appoint Mr. Jack Cumming to an additional two year term on the
Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee as recommended by the Committee.
Director Dagostino seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

18. Old Business — None

19. Chief of Staff

a. Consideration of September 2015 Credentialing Actions involving the Medical
Staff as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee at their meeting on
September 21, 2015.

it was moved by Director Dagostino to approve the September 2015
Credentialing Actions involving the Medical Staff as recommended by
the Medical Executive Committee at their meeting on September 21,
2015. Director Kellett seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

b. Consideration of September 2015 Recredentialing Actions involving the Medical
Staff as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee at their meeting on
September 21, 2015.

It was moved by Director Dagostino to approve the September 2015
Recredentialing Actions involving the Medical Staff as recommended by the
Medical Executive Committee at their meeting on September 21, 2015.
Director Finnila seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard
Reno and Schallock

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 9- September 24, 2015



20.

21.

NOES: Directors: None
ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

Consent Calendar

It was moved by Director Nygaard to approve the Consent Agenda. Director
Dagostino seconded the motion.

It was moved by Director Reno to pull items 20 (1) D. 1) Approval of an
agreement with ABC-10/KGTV for a monthly cost of $12,508 for a term of 12
months beginning July 1, 2015 through June 30, 205 for an annual cost of
$150,000 and 20 (1) D. 2) Approval of an agreement with the San Diego
Business Journal for a monthly cost of $8,333 for a term of 12 months
beginning July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 for an annual cost of $100,000.

The vote on the motion minus the items pulied was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

The vote on the main motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

Discussion of items pulled from Consent Agenda

Director Reno who pulled item 20 (1) D. 1) Approval of an agreement with ABC-
10/KGTYV for a monthly cost of $12,508 for a term of 12 months beginning July 1, 2015
through June 30, 205 for an annual cost of $150,000 questioned if this is an additional
television agreement. Mr. David Bennett explained he has added ABC due to the fact
that NBC lost their Direct TV license so the coverage for NBC is greatly reduced and he
replaced NBC with ABC for a lower amount.

Director Reno who pulled item 20 (1) D. 2) Approval of an agreement with the San Diego
Business Journal for a monthly cost of $8,333 for a term of 12 months beginning July 1,
2015 through June 30, 2016 for an annual cost of $100,000 questioned how many
issues we get for the $100,000. Mr. Bennett stated it is a weekly magazine that has a
distribution in San Diego of approximately 40,000 actual papers and close to 30,000
website ads. Mr. Bennett stated the journal comes out once a week and Tri-City has a
half a page every other weekend in their magazine. Mr. Bennett added the Journal also
assists us with interviews for any type of article we want to put into the magazine.

it was moved by Director Reno to approve items 20 (1) D. 1) Approval of an
agreement with ABC-10/KGTV for a monthly cost of $12,508 for a term of 12
months beginning July 1, 2015 through June 30, 205 for an annual cost of

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 10- September 24, 2015



22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

$150,000 and 20 (1) D. 2) Approval of an agreement with the San Diego
Business Journal for a monthly cost of $8,333 for a term of 12 months
beginning July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 for an annual cost of $100,000.
Director Nygaard seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

Reports (Discussion by exception only)

Chairman Schallock reported he attended the CHA Governance Forum in Sacramento
yesterday and will have a written report at the next meeting. Chairman Schallock
commented that two major topics of discussion at the forum related to the unresolved
issue of free standing Emergency Rooms and the fact that Behavioral Health
continues to be a statewide issue.

Director Dagostino commented that San Clemente hospital is owned by a larger
institution and is not a free standing hospital and it was the institution that made the
decision to close that hospital.

Legislative Update

Chairman Schallock stated the legislature is out of session and many bills that were
healthcare related have gone to the second year of the calendar.

Comments by members of the Public
Chairman Schallock recognized Ms. Kimberly Stone.

Ms. Stone gave a brief update on the senior fitness issue. She stated TCMC is now in a
position to transfer the ownership equipment of the Nifty after Fifty sites to the City of
Vista and the City of Oceanside. Ms. Stone explained that the City of Vista has agreed
to accept the equipment and install in their community center. However, the City of
Oceanside has a lack of funding and is not able to allow us to place any equipment
there. Ms. Stone stated a second choice was the Club 55 however there is also a lack
of funding available to rehabilitate that building. She stated efforts will continue with
hopes of a resolution soon.

Chairman Schallock recognized Ms. Cindy Bravo, OB Tech in Mother Baby Unit and
member of member of the Union. Ms. Bravo spoke regarding top executive salaries.
She respectfully requested that Administration and the Board work collaboratively with
the union to make safety and quality patient care our top priority.

Additional Comments by Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Moran did not have any additional comments.

Board Communications

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 11- September 24, 2015



27.

28.

Director Nygaard did not have any comments.

Director Mitchell did not have any comments.

Director Reno read a statement of praise relative to the retirement of Dr. Martin Nielsen
and suggested that he be honored with a plaque for his dedication and years of service.

Director Kellett reiterated Mr. Moran’s comments related to the Leadership Conference

with the Medical Staff. He stated it worked out exceedingly well and was extremely
beneficial.

Director Kellett expressed his appreciation to Mr. Dietlin for his incredible job as Chief
Financial Officer and another clean audit.

Director Finnila commented briefly on Mr. Moran’s topics of discussion at the

Leadership Conference that included IT integration, bundled payments and clinical
integration.

Director Finnila stated that the Medical Staff and all who work at Tri-City put patient
care as their number one priority. She noted we are moving forward within a budget
with goals and objectives and continually strive to be better.

Director Dagostino reiterated the comments by others on the Leadership Conference

with the physicians, stating it was an eye opening experience that seemed to be greatly
appreciated by all in attendance.

Report from Chairperson

Chairman Schallock echoed Director Reno’s comments related to Dr. Nielsen.
Chairman Schallock stated we also have several other outstanding physicians retiring

at the end of the month including Dr. Jon LelLevier, Dr. Jeffrey Leach, Dr. James Esch
and Dr. Terry Haas.

Chairman Schallock commented on the Special Meeting that was held recently with the
Medical Staff Leadership which was attended by over 60 physicians, Administrative
Staff and the Board. He stated it was a truly enlightening experience and a fruitful day.

Chairman Schallock reported on Initiative Prop 30 related to MediCal reimbursement.
He stated it is on the 2016 ballot to make those increases permanent.

Chairman Schallock recognized Director Nygaard who was appointed as the Chair of
the Finance Committee for ACHD this year. Chairman Schallock also noted Director
Laura Mitchell is on ACHD's Education Committee and he is pleased we have Board
members serving on these ACHD committees as they can bring back helpful
information to the full Board.

Lastly, Chairman Schallock stated Saturday is Prescription Take Back Day which is a
national program with selected drop off sites for unwanted prescriptions. He
encouraged the community to drop off their outdated prescriptions beginning at 10:00
a.m. in the Tri-City parking lot.

Oral Announcement of Items to be Discussion in Closed Session

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 12- September 24, 2015



Chairman Schallock reported the Board would be returning to Closed Session to
complete unfinished closed session business.

29. Motion to return to Closed Session.
Chairman Schallock adjourned the meeting to closed session at 5:00 p.m.
30. Open Session

At 6:34 p.m. Chairman Schallock reported the Board was back in open session. All
Board members were present.

31. Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session.
Chairperson Schallock reported no action was taken in closed session.

32. There being no further business Chairman Schallock adjourned the meeting at 6:35
p.m.

Larry Schallock, Chairman
ATTEST:

Ramona Finnila, Secretary

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 13- September 24, 2015



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

September 17, 2015 — 3:00 o’clock p.m.
Assembly Rooms 2&3 - Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at the
location noted above at 4002 Vista Way at 3:00 p.m. on September 17, 2015.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director Ramona Finnila
Director Cyril F. Kellett, MD
Director Laura E. Mitchell
Director Julie Nygaard
Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry Schallock

Absent was Director Jim Dagostino, DPT, PT

Also present were:

Tim Moran, Chief Executive Officer
Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer
Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive
David Bennett, Chief Marketing Officer
Esther Beverly, Vice President/Human Resources
Wayne Knight, SVP, Medical Affairs

Glen Newhart, Vice President/Foundation
Gene Ma, M.D., Chief of Staff

Greg Moser, General Legal Counsel

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Rick Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1.

The Board Chairman, Director Schallock, called the meeting to order at 3:12 p.m. in
Assembly Rooms 2&3 of the Eugene L. Geil Pavilion at Tri-City Medical Center with
attendance as listed above. Director Schallock led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Approval of the Agenda

It was moved by Director Nygaard to approve the agenda as presented. Director
Finnila seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously (6-0-0-1) with
Director Dagostino absent.

Public Comments — Announcement

Chairman Schallock read the Public Comments section listed on the Board Agenda.
There were no public comments.

Oral Announcement of ltems to be discussed during Closed Session

224



Chairman Schallock deferred this item to the Board’s General Counsel. General
Counsel, Mr. Root made an oral announcement of items listed on the September 17,
2015 Special Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed during Closed Session
which included one (1) Report Involving Trade Secrets, one matter of Potential Litigation
and Conference with Labor Negotiators.

5. Motion to go into Closed Session

It was moved by Director Finnila and seconded by Director Kellett to go into
Closed Session. The motion passed unanimously (6-0-0-1).

6. Chairman Schallock adjourned the meeting to Closed Session at 3:15 p.m.

7. The Board returned to Open Session at 5:25 p.m. All Board members were present with
the exception of Director Dagostino.

8. Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session.
Chairperson Schallock reported no action had been taken in Closed Session.
10. New Business

a. Consideration of amendments to 2013 Revolver and Term Loan Agreements
authorized by Resolution No 762

It was moved by Director Finnila to approve the amendments to the Credit
and Security Agreements with MidCap in substantially the form presented
to us today, as recommended by the Chief Financial Officer. Director
Nygaard seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard, Reno and
Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: Dagostino

11. There being no further business, Chairman Schallock adjourned the meeting at 5:30
p.m.

Larry W. Schallock

Chairman
ATTEST:

Ramona Finnila
Secretary

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -2- September 17, 2015
225



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

October 13, 2015 - 6:00 o’clock p.m.
Assembly Room 3 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at the
location noted above at 4002 Vista Way at 6:00 p.m. on October 13, 2015.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director Jim Dagostino, DPT, PT
Director Ramona Finnila
Director Cyril F. Kellett, MD
Director Laura E. Mitchell
Director Julie Nygaard

Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry Schallock

Also present were:

Tim Moran, Chief Executive Officer

Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer

Kapua Conley, Chief Operations Officer

Cheryle Bernard-Shaw, Chief Compliance Officer
Gene Ma, M.D., Chief of Staff Elect

Jody Root, General Legal Counsel

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Rick Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1. The Board Chairman, Director Schallock, called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. in
Assembly Room 3 of the Eugene L. Geil Pavilion at Tri-City Medical Center with
attendance as listed above. Director Schallock led the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Approval of the Agenda

it was moved by Director Nygaard to approve the agenda as presented. Director
Kellett seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously (7-0).

3. Public Comments — Announcement

Chairman Schallock read the Public Comments section listed on the Board Agenda.
There were no public comments.

4, Oral Announcement of Items to be discussed during Closed Session

Chairman Schallock deferred this item to the Board’s General Counsel. General
Counsel, Mr. Root made an oral announcement of items listed on the October 13, 2015
Special Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed during Closed Session
which included one matter of Potential Litigation, one Report Involving Trade Secrets
and Hearings on Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or Quality Assurance
Committees.

226



10.

11.

Motion to go into Closed Session

It was moved by Director Dagostino and seconded by Director Finnila to go into
Closed Session. The motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Chairman Schallock adjourned the meeting to Closed Session at 6:05 p.m.
The Board returned to Open Session at 9:15 p.m. All Board members were present.
Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session.
Chairperson Schallock reported no action had been taken in Closed Session.
New Business
a. Consider Affiliation with Health System
It was moved by Director Kellett that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the
CEO, with input from General Counsel, to execute an Affiliation Agreement with
The Regents of the University of California on behalf of University of California
San Diego Health System and School of Medicine consistent with the attached
terms. Director Dagostino seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell,

Nygaard, Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None
ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

There being no further business, Chairman Schallock adjourned the meeting at 9:20
p.m.

Larry W. Schallock
Chairman

ATTEST:

Ramona Finnila
Secretary

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -2- October 13, 2015

227



T 98ed - s@Jusadx] Japjoyayeis

TD91A3 vDGIAs €OSTAS TOSIAY TOGTAd bO-#IAd €D-PIAd ZO-vIAd TOUHTA4 | |

| - 3 00 | | (09oIAs vOSIA4 ED'SIAY ZDSIAS TD'GIAS VD-PTAS EOBIAS TOBTAI TOVTAS
i o1 | oo |
o7 | | oz |
6T |
| 34 oF ov |
|
1 E 3 TE .
m vE oF ve ov . 0a _
f a5 og _
{ |
ao | oot |
oL 66 1
¥ ot vir | B0 = e ot
o | (%4 b ;
| L 28 g
VR ag 06 [ % |
% |
|

a1ey 1ancuiny asaAojdwg Asejunjonul & | aley Jonouinyg aakojdwz Asejunjon

(w21 Wod}) ;51 € = dj3ueated (€1 W0y} L2 = afijuediog

{s'0-) 8'1L = ueoly {Z'1-) 6719 = uesiy
dnB ) op ey, 186 | op jeym
juoweBeBuzy uooejsnes
9'€g uawadesuy
1L ‘uolnoeysies
66L ‘diyssauned {1 woy) 82 = sjauedlod

(0'1-) L'99 = ueepy
Juawabebuz + uonoesies,

$3J02G UB3Al 4106 |BUOnEeN
w.dwyssoupey

uopoERISHES soAojdwsy o9
NOA sos I133u3) [EdIPaN AYD-LE &

VD HIOVIH 3DONVAAY

228



¢ 99ed - s@uauadx3 sapjoyayels

4% w4 s o o 5 e o> ot 20 o8 )
DG R P LA G Ty o o o o
- “ °

: _.
[ S . =ik P
8 | oz

T ET nll,i\\“u._. <r T +T __
_ c A [ ot

TE 3 _
}% | 09
| o8
' oot

NueY 2HUINDG —f—  OT-6 PRIOISG wmtpmm

(0T-0) |1eMdsoH 30 Suney |jesdan0

SWYSAS 1 SIIPIACIH 3I0IY)|DIH JO JUSLISSISSY JIUINSUOY) [DYASOH

(24098 xog dol) SIHVIH

229



Jojiuow 0] anunuo)
ue|d uoRIY

|
Jojuow o) w:c_ucou._
ue|d UonIY

D@> A

FAVD HLOIVIH dIADNVAAY

¢ a8ed - sawo2nQ Aljenp

P . = =2 » T M - 0 Z o w P = =2 » T = 0 Z o v
[£- T {1 S = c o Q 2]
& £ 5 2 7 2 5573 2 23356 £ 323 5 &332 33
S i e S S LU L LY

%SL |

%08

%58

§m_

%S6

%001

131398
19910 |ENASOH - - =—  UBSN YD = - =  UBIN --=ee-ne- T-J1A _

sixejAydoid 31A

[1:] [£°] 1) a 2]

& £E 5 2 % & &3 8% 2 2 3 & £ 5§ 2 %3 ¥ & 35 8§ 2 3 3 _

_ [ [y _- - g = = - = = - = - |

O & 5 &6 v &R R R E R ERE R RESREEREERERLL O G G |

' %06 |

%C6

%v6 |

[

%96

uQseas Wﬁwm_

0y att Juunp siqepreae Ajuo eleq m&OOﬂ_

]

183129 I
10518} [BNASOH - - ==  UBIA YD = - =  UBIA ~-veemene Z- NN ——

UOIIBZIUNWIW] BZUIN|IU|

(SD) piooipai '@ AB2PIW Jof s1aqua)
Q@@bﬁmﬁm@_ﬁ_ @&@@Mv SRINSECIA] ®IBD) &@ SS®0Jdd|

230



= o0l

Jojluow 0} aNUUO)
uejd uondy

|
&_
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

Jojuow 0} anujuo)
uejd uonay

10}lUOW 0} ANURUO)

ue|d/uooy

p aded - sawonQ Ayenp

r . = = » 2 WM - © 2 0o w P o = =2 » T m - 9 Z o v
© @ D = - 13
& £ m 2 B 2 = Ed 28 2 38 & £ 5 & B 2 = 5 8 2 2 s _
u . - - [ [y z — : — -
o5 B 6 &6 -G E R EBE R R &R EEERE&RER RGBS B C _
%08
%58
%06 _
|
%56 |
...................................................................................................................................................... %00T |
| dJa318g
|

[ 1984e) [ENASOH - - ==  UBBN Y = - =  UBDA] -werremen v-aAA

wieiSowoN 10 1030301d Aq SUIOLIUOIA JUNOD 13]918|d / Sa8esod yum H4N SuinRaay siuaned 31N

P _ = 2 »p T W - 0D Z 0 v P = 2 »p T T - O Z o w
= = [ T ) (=] m o [~ Y} [ T 1] (=] (2l
£ £5 ¥ 8§ g3 58 & 3gEE5 T2 §e3 8 8 82
- I S~ S S I I - T o o T
S h B oL L e E REE EERER E RE R R R R R GG GEDGE
| %58
|
| %06
|
_l.-I..I..'I.‘ gmm
|
_ ................. %001
- J3ueg

19848 [BNdSOH - - —  UBIW YD — - =  UBIN -oreeeee €-31IA

Adesay] dejiang uopen3e0d3UY YIM SIUdled 1A

0,
o8 %00T

‘ 1agsey jeydsoy - - —

g - £ » ¥ o < o Z o v P - ¥ p»p 2 m - o =z w
| = = I3 5] i) W iy Q ) = = c ) o o b

# £ 52 % 8 & 358 % 238 & &5 <2 F 8 538 2 23 _

L e e g S O iy e O Y L
G e 6 e G e e H ERE R REE R B RE R R RBRE BB BE B D _
| %sL |
_ %08 |
| |
7 %58 _
_ %06 _
_ %66 |
_
|

sixejAydoid 31A NI

231



Action Plan

Continue to monitor

-
7
[}
e
(1]
[
w
=
=
Vi
y C
I =
.0 EE
=N .
1%}
4 |
S
L 4
w
A
o [l
a.n
< 3
S B
Y o
O I
> .
a
m E
g
£
=i
4 3
b
-
‘t .
:
.
“?
3

B

i ST-8ny
STnf

§T-Unf
ST-AIy
§T-1dy
ST-leW
ST-934

qT-uef
#1-33Q

P1-AON

v1-130

p1-das
pT-8ny
FI-Ine

p1-ung

v1-Aey

y1-1dy

P1-994
p1-uer
€1-30
€T-A0N

1 €10

; | ¢1-das

vi-ley |

| 100%
95%
 o0%
85%
80%

Action Plan

Continue to monitor

Hospital Acquired Potentially Preventable VTE

J:

i

({:

i

N
5 {:
2 L
2 E
: P
| %
.
5 ;
s b
§ {:
: P
| |
- C
Il H
: 1
: !
3

o {:
S h
!

{:

L

K

EE 8888
Vi N N

c
A
o.

c
52
>

(9
<

—
<)
=
£
S
E
o
et
)
3
c
£
c
o
)

sT-dny
STn(

ST-unf

ST-hei
ST-dy
ST-1e
S1-984
ST-uef

t1-38Q
PT-AON
¥1-190

1-das
p1-8ny
pI-ing

pr-ung
p1-Aep
pr-1dy
v1-1e
v1-q34
p1-uer

€1-33(
ET-AON
€110
€1-dag

Aspirin at Arrival

-+ = CAMean — -- Hospital Target

-~ Mean

oP-4

| 100%

Quality Outcomes - Page 5

232



Action Plan

| Continue to monitor

Median Time to ECG

Hospital Target

fod
T
L]
2
<
o
|
I
pT-un(
<
o -hely
2 vl
: p1-1dy
pT-1ew
u
2 ¥1-934
o

p1-uer
£1-23
£1-AON
£1-190
€1-dag
8 Vi [w)

SaIuI

Action Plan

Continue to monitor

Median Time from ED Arrival to ED Departure for Admitted ED Patients

- = CAMean — - . Hospital Targel

.-« Mean

£D-1b

Action Plan

Continue to monitor

§T-8ny
STAnS
sT-ung
sT-Aey
§T-4dy
§1-1ep
§7-934
ST-uer
#1-33Q
1-AON
$1-190
p1-dag
y1-gny
vTnr
pT-ung
v1-Aen
pT-1dy
pT-1e
1-494
p1-uef
€7-39Q
€1-hON
€110
€1-dag

saInupn

Median Time from Admit Decision to ED Departure Time for Admitted ED Patients

-« = CAMean - -- Hospital Target

--- Mean

ED-2b

200

150
00
S0

o)

§1-8ny
ST

sT-ung
ST-AR
STdy |
ST’
5§1-094
ST-uef
¥1-23Q
PT-AON

Quality Outcomes - Page 6

#1-120
1-das
vy |
vring

pl-unf
1-Aen
y1-1dy
vi-ten
v1-g24
¥1-uer
£1-230
E1-AON
£1-190
€1-das

saynuIy

233



b=
s
n- —
: s
5 = C
(-5 o E
re 1, : E
o - !
: = < :
(5 - E w
=% O : E :
© K= : :
=8 C - : _
-l 2 : | o
° 2 :
Lo E | :
: R
2 P
g | — I
| §T-ny
o R .
. sT-any "
__ -ung
_ : | STAne i
-8ny
ST g . - o r\
. SI-
| st I : |
| - gT-hep ” g
; -un | I
I 5T I SI'JdV = o :ﬂ
- m | . 1-q94 £
: ST-1RN 3 ; :
l oo g a I 3 § = sT1-uer g
. 4 | ;
) V IR Q. H - : % >
= - ST T I 4 & . t‘
Lt g‘O I qa:] g,b E g‘[‘uer Ll‘-. g Tu.
- & ST- S 5 | : ‘ = |
& E = | #1980 4 V d
=y = | sruer | B 3 i ] -
'l: § : J8Q E : ! e g
D e : o 5 ° :
o e | | oy wo |l :
Y : ¥T-nON L Lo s s
2 I tird % i I p1-dag 2
— -0 o] : : :
=] I 288} 8 o o : e
] I ) o : N, : I
|: e ] ° ol ne & i pr-ung
. i (]
5 B : v | e :
< . 128 g m -
= IR S | o i %
| B : > c 5 ady
@ . a . Ay ‘® B "
g | | o 4 5 i | vl S Me 1B
2 | s Ny 1wty | B "
(o] . | m
= e : vT-he i N E =
| = {01 praen E
I £ :
1 | o : '\ c I pT-uer
E : * W i : | b4 = 5
p1-1e : : ; .
5 | d < ) :
: voed | B A / -
g 2 | v qg’ s {i I " :
‘s B pT-uey = /i o o
E 5 c i . | stron |
= | €1-98Q & ' :
| | : ) €110
i : €1-AON $ : I d [
e \ : |
w : €1 —
E I - | i RE883828R%
-t
I E[AdBS 8 8 8 8 2 o | iEe
. sanui | N
8 3
) sanuIy

234



g 98ed - saw02InQ Ayjend

ST-8ny
STHnS
st-ung
ST-Aely
§T-1dy
ST
§1-934
ST-uer
v1-320
pT-AON |
$1-10
p1-09s
p1-8ny
pring
1-ung
v1-Aey
pT-1dy
pT-1e
p1-q24
y1-ver

|
_
|
_
ﬁ
|

Jojuow 03 aNURUO)

19818 1eddSOH - - =—  UBIN VD = - =  UBIA] -oreeneee £€2-d0O

BALlIL O salnuitu UIyIAA uonielasdialul ued [¢]
uejq uody [EALLIY (3 JO S3INUIL S UILIM UOREIDIAISIU URIS (YA J

€1-32Q

ET-AON

£1-190

£1-das

%0
%02
%0t
%09
%08
%001

1D peay paniaaay oym syusied 24041 JFeyLIOWaH 10 3}0.IS JWBYIS| BINIY J0) SHNSIY UBIS [HIAl JO 1) peay

Jojyuow 0} w:czcou_ 3 1odiel |eRdSOH - - —  URBN V) — - —  UBJA ---reveme Zz do

Uejd: UoRay. {1LOM1) usas 3ujag aiosog 1481 1usped

%8

235



H

Adjjod uad asea punom pazipiepuels
10§ suejdiamod Jo uonejuawsiduw)
SSE[) PUNOM

NY ApeaA Auojepuew yum anujuo)
SM3IARY 35BD) NdVH YUm anunuo)d
3|gqeptoaeun

'SA 3|qQeptoAy SI NdVH 1 aulwial1sp
01 j001 Yyum dnouBsiom paireas)
(Anyowaja) Ja)ye |DpOW) suUN

||e uo suoidweyd PUNoAA 7§ UN|S Aseatdu}

uejd uoiIY

JOJUOW 0} 3NURUOY

ueld uonay

6 28ed - sawolnQ Aljlenp

r E M - o Z 0o v > - T »
©® o) =] ] c - = Q
2% 3 8 £ 25 & £ 5 2 %
= -t = = [ - e — e = o = [~
[T I, T TN ¥ -9 F N O Hoob

198181 1BUASOH - » =  UB3N YD = + =  UBBIA +ereereen

sAed 1d 000T 43d 93y S|jed apim [endsoy

ey sfied

236



0T 99ed - sawonnQ Aljenp

's1s1xa seiq paguojosd awos

ueaw 3ayj jo apIs awes Ay uo |
ale mouJ e uj spujod (40w J0) g

‘annessu
10 aAlisod Jayye sswo21no
uo 10343 ue aney ade|d
Ul S2INP3J0IJ SISIXS pUJl Y

*(8uiseasdap
Jo) Suiseasoul Ajjenunuod
aJe mod e uj syulod (aiow Jo) XIS _

‘|o43u02 Jo Ino Ajssoud si (ased
SIYy3 Ul umoys omy) sjdwes auQ

_ ‘ueaw ayl
| wouy (1oN) suoneiaap piepuels _
€ uey} aJows s| yuod auQ

‘uealwl 3y} Wouy suoleIA3p piepuels € Ajjensn si 1 "AJoisiy
elep 3yl UaAIF  Jeuriou,, paIapIsUOd 1S st eyl Anjenb Jo |aA3) 1saysiy aya st (Nwi joauo) Jaddn) 10N |eudsoy

"an|ea |en)oe ay) s) a1ey |eyidsoy

‘pa123||02 e1ep ay1 Uo paseq 10adxa ued am anjea agesane ays sl uean |endsoH

uvepelInIcIDIU] MRYY) [0JUeD

k
b
«
»

A~

AN
.,,u(.__ /, ?m

.

UBSW VD - - -

00 eudsoy  — — -
djey (eydsoH

uea [eudsoy -

puagdoy \\

237



%910 %191~ %V0'9 %CC'T %01 %'l %0L°0 %0 %66'T %E6'T %Iv°0 %CE'T- %EE'T STAd
%LT°0 %L6'T %990 %0C°C %EQ'E 9TAd
2apng ( - iy : o P a2 0 0 da any

anuaAvy SunesadQ 2101 J0 % IJ0YI AHIL

Z€18 (tL15) vI8'TS EVES 762% 0LES 86TS 7€9% 9559 895$ 495y (8res) 89¢S STAd
ar1s 959'T$ 781% Z19% 798% 9TAd
adpnd.d t B dy B (o p =T 0 O da any

(sesuadx3 san0 anuaAay ss22x3) spuesnoyl uj ¢ 3043 HIL

001-SZ 88 L'€8 878 98 €78 0LL S'6L 911 S°6L 6LL 18 T'LL '8 STA4
001-S/ L8 126 868 9'€8 9TA4
_ e ———— . e

{d/v) 31geAed syunoddy ul sheq JNDL

uny A_IN ady e qa4 uef Jaq AONT 10 ETS

¢S-8p 6'LY [ 4°14 6’6y 0’18 9'0s 9’08 0'1s 6’8V o6y 6'8Y S'8Y 8'8Y €9 STAd
¢S-8Y o'9v LSy LSy L'9% 9TAd
R T S T 311 A T .
(4/v) 3jqealaday sunoldy ul sheq DL

120D W/o

UOREWIeLU] [RI9URU]Y)

493U [edIPBAN A1D-14] N V

JAVD HLIVAH JaDNVAQAY

238



£'GES 7'92$ 8LTS YETS r'9TS 661 s 6'81S 8'81$ 66TS Y4 LL2s STAd
T'9€$ V'EES L'0€S 9TAd

AON TP o T
(1paJ 10 aur SUIAJOARY 3|qe|IBAY + YSED) SUOIIIAl Ul $ ApInbI GHIL

0Tt 8'1T LLT 15T €S'T SP'T [4) vl (I A [4} 091 SS'T STAd
() ST'C 96T 88’1 9TAd

[zt JUeUsA0)’

gea LI UB[NLL d3aWIL  AONWLLT POWIL  dSS[NLL Snywil TN
uoNlE[NJ[EY) JUBUBA0Y 38eJ3A0) 281eyD paxid GHOL

JeNINLLE

v6'S 97’9 68'S (T9 819 69°'S 68'S 879 6€9 60'9 109 68'S £6°S STAd
09 £0'9 16'S S0'9 €19 9TAS
Ifa8pngiain’ | QLA i s T
] W/

pag paidnaag paisnipy Jad (Juajeainb3 awiL-|In4) 314 Pled JNDL

%8T°S %8Y'C %y 0T %9L°S %85'S %ve’9 %YE'S %169 %LL9 %Zy'9 %LE'S %SL € %8E'9 STAd

%06’V %229 %06t %ES'9 %07'L 9TAd

fIe8pngdlA dlA e uep 9@ TTAoN | PO ~ dag STLL i L
anuaay SunesadQ |e101 0 % vallgl aHOL

W/9
vOT'vS veLs 9ET'ES 0Z9°1S 16S'T$ 759'1S 867'1S €86'TS 968'1S 888'TS 9s¥'TS 886$ 19L'1S STAd
mo.m\q.m - EVE'SS €CTS LSE'TS L18TS 9v0°es 9TAd
TJedpngalA  aiax |7 ung Tuer | 99a AON 0 S Y R T

W/2 W/2

MO o

JAVYD HLIVIH ADNVYVAAY



€1 98ed - ymodn
TS swes . Jemea :Jeah Joud 03 paiedwiod IdUBWI0NIJ
PET _ ST 11 | X4 6 8 Tt L €T 48 (0] ¢ £ ot STAd
=5 T -
alA
It | L 9 1 91 L 6 1 [4 8 6 01 9 STAd
7 -
alLA
61¢ _ 0¢ 6T 6l 1z ET 6t |4 8T e [44 6 STAd

3@> HO

3¥vO HIOVIH Q3IDNVAQY

SWRIOA

240



vT 98ed - ymmouo

awesg FESET] 11234 Joud 0) pasedwol dueWION3d

0'T6T _ L'6LT S'18T €981 0'881 8661 €'€0C 6'L8T '681 9's61 1’9617 0's6l 8'06T STAd
VA5 vEsT T 6€8T
Sny 1nr
(2av) snsua) Ajleq a8esany - |endsoH

SEl L'TT 6El 134 S'T¢ €81 V9t 9'sT 181 L'6T 8t 43 STAd

6/L1 SLT 691 96T ST €81 161 8¢ [4114 | X4 5°9¢ 13 T4 STAS
- ST

(Dav) snsua) Ajleq adeuany - YyjeaH |esoiaeyag Juanedu|

v o 6E LE Ev EE LE 6v 1% [43 19 Sy STAd

(saniwanx3 1amo) sased A1a8uns Juswade|day julor Jofen

241



ST a8ed - ymouo

19'1T 99'1T S9'1 €9'1 91 €9°1 89'1T 8S'T 9S'T 8S'T 85T €9'T LEN STAd

€91 09’1 €97 991 9TAd

(anuanay di/anuanay |e101) Jo1de4 paisnipy JNDL

1X44 _ €1 9 Ot [4) ] [41 4" [4) 01 0T 6 ] STAd

vs | T S 3 ¥ ST 1 8 12 T 4 9 2 STA4
LT A Baglsa i 9TAd

S6T 1z £Z [£2 43 8 ST T L1 6T 4 61 91 STAS
e 3 e s EC 9TAd

sauaAIaQ

242



edical Center

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Building Operating Leases

Month Ending September 30, 2015
I

ECrR Y@) {l_’}

Base
Rate
per Sq. Total Rent per LeaseTerm
Lessor Sgq. Ft. Ft. current month Beginning Ending |Services & Location Cost Center
Creek View Medicai Assoc
1926 Via Centre Dr. Suite A PCP Ciinic Vista
Vista, CA 92081 Approx 1926 Via Centre Drive, Ste A
V#81981 6,200 $2.50 |(a) $ 18,600.00 02/01/15]  10/31/18|Vista, CA 7090
7760 - 90.65%
Tri-City Weliness, LLC 7597 - 4.86%
6250 El Camino Real Weilness Center 7777 - 4.49%
Carlsbad, CA 92009 Approx 6250 El Camino Real 9520 - 77.25%
V#80388 87,000 $4.08 |(a) $ 239,250.00 07/01/13]|  06/30/28|Carisbad, CA 92009 7893 - 12.53%
GCO
3621 Vista Way Performance Improvement
Oceanside, CA 92056 3927 Waring Road, Ste.D
#v81473 1,583| $1.50 [(a) $ 3,398.15 01/01/13 12/31/15|Oceanside, Ca 92056 8756
Golden Eagle Mgmt
2775 Via De La Valle, Ste 200 Vacant Buiiding
Del Mar, CA 92014 3861 Mission Ave, Ste B25
V#81553 4,307] $0.95 |(a) $ 5,964.82 05/01/13]  04/30/16|Oceanside, CA 92054 9551
investors Property Mgmt. Group
cl/o Levitt Family Trust OP Physlcai Therapy, OP OT & OP
2181 El Camino Real, Ste. 206 Speech Therapy 7772 - 76%
Oceanside, Ca 92054 2124 E. El Camino Real, Ste.100 7792 - 12%
V#81028 5214 | $1.65 |[(a) $ 9,126.93 09/01/12}  08/31/17|Oceanside, Ca 92054 7782 - 12%
Melrose Plaza Complex, LP
c/o Five K Management, Inc.
P O Box 2522 Outpatient Behaviorai Heaith
La Jolta, CA 92038 510 West Vista Way
V#43849 7,247 | $1.22 [(a) $ 10,101.01 07/01/11 07/01/16|Vista, Ca 92083 7320
OPS Enterprises, LLC Chemotherapy/infusion Oncology
3617 Vista Way, Bldg. 5 Office
2anside, Ca 92056 3617 Vista Way, Bidg.5

1250 4,760 | $3.55 |(a) $ 22,900.00 10/01/12 10/01/22|Oceanside, Ca 92056 7086
 wugeway/Bradford CA LP
DBA: Vista Town Center
PO Box 19068 Vacant Buiiding
irvine, CA 92663 510 Hacienda Drive Suite 108-A
V#81503 3,307 | $1.10 [(a) $ 4,936.59 10/28/13|  03/03/18|Vista, CA 92081 9550
Tri City Real Estate Hoiding &
Management Company, LLC Vacant Medical Office Building
4002 Vista Way 4120 Waring Rd 8462
Oceanside, Ca 92056 6,123 | $1.37 $ 7,958.99 12/19/11 12/18/16{Oceanside, Ca 92056 Until operational
Tri City Real Estate Hoiding &
Management Company, LLC Vacant Bank Building Property
4002 Vista Way 4000 Vista Way 8462
Oceanside, Ca 92056 4,295 $3.13 $ 12,725.68 01/01/12 12/31/16|Oceanside, Ca 92056 Until operational

Total $ 334,962.17

(a) Total Rent includes Base Rent plus property taxes, association fees, Insurance, CAM expenses, etc.

C:\Users\donnellant\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Qutlook\74BUMEJ9\Sep 2015 Finance Leases-Board

243



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

€ Tiicity Medical Center < YOU

Education & Travel Expense
Month Ending September 30, 2015

Cost Centers Description Invoice # Amount Vendor # Attendees
8340 DIETICIAN BOOK 80315 207.70 77946  KELLI GECEWICZ
8390 ICAAC 2015 CONF 90115 825.00 82350 MANUEL ESCOBAR
8390 NPP CONFERENCE 90315 353.17 10894 LAURA BALL
8510 NOTARY CLASS 71715 464.93 28765 SYLVIA E. GALLEGOS
8620 HEALTHCARE COMPLIANCE CONF 83115 2,922.88 81163 LAURA MITCHELL
8710 ACDIS CONFERENCE 62415 1,323.32 82505 QUOCTRAN
8720 HQI CONFERENCE 82415 450.00 14365 SHARON SCHULTZ
8723 DECISION MAKING 82615 185.00 80739 SCOTT LIVINGSTONE
8740 CHEMO ADMIN REC 91015 139.00 79898 MICHAEL CINI
8740 ACLS RENEWAL 91015 150.00 80037 MELISSA P. MENDOZA
8740 ACLS RENEWAL 90215 150.00 80055 MARIA EVANGELISTA
8740 ACLS RENEWAL 91015 150.00 80155 SHAUNNA HILL
8740 ACLS RENEWAL 82015 150.00 80156 CHRYSTALLE BECHTOLD
8740 ACLS RENEWAL 91015 150.00 80402 ELIZABETH SCHMIERER
8740 ACLS RENEWAL 90215 150.00 80476 MYRNA UBINA
8740 ACLS RENEWAL 82015 175.00 6595 AKID'ETTA
8740 PCCN COURSE 82015 200.00 12376 IMELDA A. GLEED
8740 PERIOP 101 93015 2,207.90 9999 JENNIFER STEPHENSON

**This report shows payments and/or reimbursements to employees and Board Members in the Education
& Travel expense category in excess of $100.00.
**Detailed backup is available from the Finance department upon request.

244



EVALUATION FORM

SEMINAR: GOVERNANCE FORUM
LOCATION: SACRAMENTO DATE: SEPTEMBER 23, 2015

REASON TO ATTEND: COMMITTEE MEMBER
IMPORTANT TOPICS:

Statewide, Behavioral Health issues continue to be a major problem and
concern. Judith Yates explained some of the steps taking place in San
Diego. In August, the county with HASDIC established a Behavioral Health
Continuum of Care Initiative Policy Committee. The committee is to
develop an operational vision and the current resource gaps to address the
needs of these individuals. The complexities of the problems from mental
health to substance abuse are huge. I did explain the re-arranging some of
the beds in the ER to separate these patients from the medically ill patients.
However the problem far exceeds the hospital as the community as a whole
needs to be involved. We were told that the Orange County Grand Jury this
summer issued a paper holding the Board of Supervisors accountable for
correcting the problem. As a result, the supervisors have created an Ad-Hoc
committee with supervisors actively involved to begin to address the
problem.

There was some discussion on “Business Imperatives Expanding Board
Oversight”. (see handout attached) Understanding population management
and the changes it brings will result in how health care is delivered, where
and by whom. See the other handouts on Population Management. CHA
has prepared videos with explanations. It can be purchased for viewing at
one site so it was suggested as many Board members and Administrators
select a date for viewing.

The last area of discussion was on “Equity of Care”. In that arena, hospitals
are urged to reduce disparities — it can be content discussion as part of
hospital orientation for employees to including diversity goals as part of the
strategic plan. The goal is enhanced performance excellence and improved
community health.

Larry W. Schallock

245



POPULATION
HEALTH

A comprehensive, five-part certificate program
for California hospital leaders

Webinar 1 Issue Brief:
A Framework for Population Health Management

April 28, 2015

B CALIFORNIA

778 HOSPITAL
'll”l ASSOCIATION Kdﬂfﬂ?&ﬂ”ﬂ”

246



P POPULATION HEALTH

- Webinar 1 Issue Brief:
ok A Framework for Population Health Management

Table of Contents

L= T o (o 1
From Providing Care to Managing Health. . . .........iiiiiiiniiiireee e erreannnns 2
Five Drivers of the Population Health Management Imperative ................ccovvuno oo, 2
The Rationale and Vision for Population Health Management. ..........c.uureeennnennnn 3
The Definition of Population Health Management . .. ... 3
Key ComPetenCies ..ottt ittt ittt e e e et s 4
Given Managed Care, PHM Prospects and Progressin California ..........cooveuevn.... 7
Types of Risk Assumed by Hospitals and Health Systems ... ... ... o, 7
Provider Organization Roles in Future PHM. ... ... ...coittiiiiiiireiennnreannns 10
Framework forthe Pursuit of PHM ... ....uiiiiiii ittt it e e e reeeeennnns 12
Level 1. Understand and Organize Around Population Health Management .. .................. 13
Level 2. Determine the Market's Stage and Pace of Change. . . .. ..o oo oee e 13
Level 3. Evaluate Organizational Position and Competence Gaps. . ... ....ovoveenen e, 14
Level 4. Identify PHM Market Segments and Opportunities. . . ... ..o oo 15
Level 5. Determine Scope and Scale of Required PHM Network. . . ...........o . 15
Level 6. Define a Contracting Strategy to Support PHM Opportunities . . . .............ooon. ... 16
Level 7. Identify the Appropriate PHM Path for the Organization — Build, Buy, or Partner. . ... ... .. 18
Implications for California Hospitals and Health Systems . ..............ccvvvevennnn.. 18
22 Te 4o 19
This publication is designed to produce aceurate and authontative California Hospital Association

information with regard to the subject matter covered. It 's sold with Education and Publishing Departrrien|

the understanding that CHA 's not engaged in rendenng legal service. 1215 K Street, Suite 800

flegal or other expert assistance is required. the services of a com- Sacramento. CA 95814

pstent professional person should be sought www calhospital.org

Pop Health M Program: A Fr k for

Population Health M t © 2015 by the California Hospital

Assoctation and Kautman, Hall & Assoctates. LLC All ights reserved

This document may be used by CHA hospital members for internal
purposes only. No part of this publication may be used for commercial
purposes.

247



April 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management

California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Assoclates, LLC 1

Introduction

Governance and leadership teams of California’s hospitals and health systems must have the
knowledge and skills needed to succeed under population health management (PHM). To help
ensure success, California Hospital Association, in collaboration with Kaufman, Hall & Associates,
LLC, is offering this five-part program titled “Population Health Management.” The program provides
participants with an understanding of the key components of PHM. Each module features an Issue
Brief and webinar for executives and professionals in a wide range of organizations.

This Issue Brief and its associated webinar launch the series. They provide an overview of PHM and a
framework for its pursuit by hospitals and health systems. Subsequent Issue Briefs and webinars will
offer detail on PHM business imperatives, clinical priorities, technology requirements, and leadership
roles, metrics, and structures.

For additional information about the program visit: www.calhospital.org/population-health-web.

For more information about this Issue Brief, please contact:

California Hospital Association
Anne McLeod, Senior Vice President, Heaith Policy and Innovation
amcleod@calhospital.org

Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC
Jody Hill-Mischel, Managing Director
jhilimischei@kaufmanhall.com

Mark E, Grubs, Managing Director
mgrube@kaufmanhall.com

248



April 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 2

Webinar 1 Issue Brief:
A Framework for Population Health Management

From Providing Care to Managing Health

A major transformation is underway in health care, as the nation moves to enhance patient care
quality, access, and experience, and reduce costs. Significant change is being driven by a variety

of forces, including nontraditional competitors,' increasing consumerism, innovative technology,
changing workforce demands, and intense pressures from employers and public and private payers,
which signal the unsustainability of health care's volume-based business model.?

The nature of such change is now mare revolutionary than evolutionary, threatening and transforming
business as usual for all participants. In particular, hospital-centric service delivery likely will not mest
the ease-of-access and lower-cost requirements of consumers who are shopping for health services
much as they would retail purchases. Such consumers, employers, and other stakeholders are moving
the health care marketplace with lightning speed from the patient sick-care model to a consumer- and
population health management-focused model.

The term “population health management” as used throughout this Issue Brief is defined on the
following page.

Five Drivers of the Population Health Management Imperative

€) Macroeconomic issues are driving real change: The long-run economic health of the nation
depends on having a less costly, and mors efficient and effective health care delivery system, Triple
Aim goals of achieving better care for individuals, better health for populations, and lower per capita
costs are front and center. Coordinated care management for identified populations has a proven track
record of meeting these goals.

Q Employer and insurance markets are transforming: Employers are moving employees from
defined benefit to defined contribution, high-deductible health plans (HDHPS); insurers are moving to
performance-based payment arrangements. Public exchanges, as mandated by the Affordable Care
Act, are accelerating the spread of HDHP-like plans.

© Consumerism is increasing: HDHPs put decisions regarding health care purchases firmly in the
consumer's court, effectively changing health care from a wholesale transaction to a retail transaction
in & more transparent market shaped to mest customer nesds. Employers, providers, payers, and
consumers are looking for improved health care value.

o Well-funded competitors are emerging: New and noniraditional entities are blurring the lines
and roles of industry stakeholders. Insurers and retail pharmacies are moving into the care-provision
space. Health systems are acquiring health plans or partnering to achieve insurance capabilties.
Vertical and horizontal consolidation is reshaping the industry, creating very large, weli-capitalized
entities that can organize care delivery for population health management.

9 Innovative technology is changing care delivery: Virtual/telehealth companies and mobile
apps are redefining access to the health care experience and its costs. Web, mobile, and other
technology-driven offerings shift health and care services from inpatient and outpatient facilities to
in-home “anywhere care and anywhere health.”

Source: Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC

249



April 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management

California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 3

The Rationale and Vision for Population Health Management

California is at the forefront of this transformation by virtue of its size and unique demographic

profile. The economic realities of these factors, coupled with the longstanding prevalence of health
maintenance organizations (HMOs), have spurred the state’s historical vanguard role in integrating the
delivery and financing of health care services. Key models that emerged over time include delegated
risk models for organizing care delivery, such as those led by large independent practice associations
{IPAs) comprised of individual and small-group physicians. Early development and sustained
prevalence of HMO insurance by Kaiser Permanente and other commercial insurers, as well as
managed care initiatives of large employers and CalPERS,? have spanned many decades.

Common payment systems in California — such as capitation and global budgeting — focus on
quality, access, and cost, thus aligning the systems with the emerging population health/value-based
care construct. Value-based arrangements, as pursued at the national and state level by public and
private payers, reward providers for meeting quality and outcome targets while lowering costs, and
penalize providers that don't meet such goals. The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services {CMS),
the nation’s largest payer whose payments constitute a significant portion of most hospital revenue
streams, aims to ensure that value-driven “alternative payment models" constitute 50 percent of its
payments by year-end 2018.* A consortium of major providers and commercial insurers recently
targeted an even higher goal of 75 percent by 2020.5

The Definition of Population Health Management

Population health management has many definitions, but the most succinct defines PHM as

an approach to improving health and the quality of care delivered while managing the cost of care.
Other definitions appearing in the professional literature address PHM's clinical and service-deslivery
considerations and can offer a helpful starting point for hospital positioning/repositioning strategies as
described in this Population Health Management program.

The clinically oriented definition: “PHM considers the health outcomes of a group of individuals,
including the distribution of such outcomes within the group.™ It encompasses the following:

e The identification and surveillance of individuals at risk of developing disease or those with chronic
diseases

¢ Interventions in early disease stages to improve health outcomes and reduce costs by preventing
iiness or slowing progression of chronic iliness o acute stages

The service delivery-oriented definition: “Population health management occurs when a health
care system or network of providers works in a coordinated manner to improve the overall heaith,
health outcomes, and well-being of patients across all defined care settings under risk-bearing
arrangements.™ The health care system or network of providers may work under contractual
arrangements with another entity, such as an insurer.

Three factors are critical to the success of the PHM model:

e A clinically integrated physician network
® |ncentive structures that reward high performance
* Risk contracts

This issue Brief provides detail on each factor.

Note. *How a “group of individuals” is identified varies based on whether a public health agency, provider organization, government
or commercial payer, or other stakeholder Is defining the “grouping.”

a Kindig, D., Stoddart, G.: “What Is Population Heakh?® Am J Public Health 93(3): 380-383, March 2003.
b -ill. G. Sarsfir, G.. Hagan, S. “Populaticn Health Maragement — Hill's Handoook to the Next Decade in Healthcars
Technology.” Citi Research, May 14, 2013.

250



April 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management

California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 4

Population health management thus is the business challenge and opportunity for tomorrow’s
hospitals and health systems, and the means to transform health care from a silo-like treatment of
services to coordinated care across the care continuum. PHM is the direction health care is moving,
so simply stated, if participating in Medicare or Medicaid, all hospitals and health systems in California
and nationwide are in the PHM business. Those that commit early to building the competencies and
infrastructure required to advance population health can position or reposition themselves to achieve
a sustainable role in this paradigm. Organizations that stand on the sidelines hoping that solely the
old mode! wilt endure will be excluded from delivery networks and/or contracts. Such organizations
are likely to find their financial and clinical strength — and their market presence — diminishing as
competitors reshape the delivery system in their communities.

Key Competencies

PHM has significant business and economic dimensions for hospitals and health systems.

These include responsibility for physician engagement; quality, access, and cost of care; incentive
structures that reward high performance related to these measures; and patient and family
education/engagement on healthy behaviors and lifestyle.

To meet and sustain PHM goals of coordinated and managed care across the continuum, hospitals
and health systems must have strong capabilities in nine areas. These areas are particularly important
to establishing the organization'’s value to consumers, payers, clinicians, employers, and other
stakeholders. A brief description of each follows.

* Network strength (development, configuration, and relevance): A robust network — with
hospitals, physicians, post-acute providers, and other providers — has an appropriate breadth of
specialist and primary care offerings, scope of geographic coverage, and overall accessibility.

¢ Clinical integration (Cl): Patient care services that are coordinated across people, functions,
activities, processes, and sites maximize the value of services delivered.® Clinical and economic
integration/alignment of physicians, nurses, and other providers across the care continuum furthers
organizational goals around quality improvement, cost reduction, and strategic and financial
sustainability. Cl typically is achieved through the use of strong incentive structures and contracting
mechanisms that reward improvements related to these metrics.

¢ Operational efficiency: Considerations include operating costs, structural costs, service
rationalization, and clinical variation.

e Clinical care management: This is characterized by team-based, coordinated care delivery
that includes utilization management, referral management, transitions of care, chronic disease
management programs, and use of evidence-based practices and protocals to better manage
patient care, especially for high-risk, high-use patients.

° Clinical and business intelligence: To set appropriate goals and intervention targsts, clinical and
business data must be collected, analyzed, and applied.

¢ Financial strength: Strong cash flows and a solid balance sheet enable organizations to invest in
what is needed to compete, while managing overall enterprise risk.

251



April 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management

California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 5

o Purchaser relationships (and managed care contracting): Considerations include size and
scope of arrangements, level of consumer engagement, strategic pricing, and ability to accept and
distribute risk, incentives, and prepaid claims.

» Customer service and consumer engagement: Differentiation and recognition in the market is
achieved through consumer engagement and strong brand presence.

* Leadership and governance: Deep bench strength of clinical, administrative, and governance
leadership drives operational, strategic, and cultural change.

Some of these functions historically have been “housed" in the provider domain, while insurers
traditionally managed other functions. Care management responsibilities often lie in batween the two
domains, historically resulting in fragmented care management capabiiities (Figure 1).

FIGURE 1: The Distinct Historic Competencies of Health Systems and Health Plans/insurers

Historic Health System Historic Insurer

Financing/Distribution
System Competencies

hysician integration and afignment
|+ Care coordination and management o
+ Information systems sophistication
"= Service distribution system
| © Cost management/cost structure
- Scale/essentiality !
-+ Brand identification :
* Payer relationships/contracts
"« Financial strength/capital capacity
' - Risk management 1 -

< Claims management

= Netwark management operations
* Product development

» Customer service and satisfaction
= Marketing and communications

* Regulatory readiness

= Actuarial services

* Business intelligence

= financial performance

Technology/infrastructure
ical records-focuseo

Sowrce: Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC

PHM changes the demands on, and the relationships between, traditional industry participants.
Comprehensive care management is required to meet PHM goals. This function spans the
development of healthy behaviors by populations in the community, management of chronic diseases
in home and community settings, treatment of acute illnesses in hospitals, and provision of services in
post-acute, ambulatory, and home settings.

252



—

April 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
California Hosprtal Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 6

Comprehensive care management has clinical components, such as use of evidence-based practices,
and claims and medical record management and analytics. The latter provides clinical decision
support related to quality, outcomes, cost, utilization, and other information critical to health and
healthy behaviors by defined populations in the community. Comprehensive care management also
includes business components, such as delivery network management and operations, business
intelligence and actuarial services, and contracting arrangements (Figure 2).

Ownership of these care management competencies historically has varied depending upon the
contractual arrangements and related level of performance and/or financial risk that the particular
insurer and health system chose to assume for the population served.

FYGURE 2: The Clinical and Business Components of Effective Care Management

Chronic Disease
Management and
Evidence-Based
Practices

Claims and EMR
Management/
Analytics

Care
Management Network
Management and

Operations

Business
Intelligence/
Actuarial Sciences

Contracting
Arrangements

Source. Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC

In some instances, physician organizations, including IPAs, have developed their own sophisticated
care management infrastructures as they assume responsibility for the total cost of care for a
population segment. In other instances, insurers have advanced their own care management
capabilities for specific populations, assuming full provider risk and insurance risk for doing so. See
“Types of Risk Assumed by Hospitals and Health Systems,” page 7.

For example, in California under the Coordinated Care Initiative, health plans are assuming insurance
risk (@and provider risk in those instances when there are not subcapitation arrangements with
providers) to provide dual eligibles and Medi-Cal beneficiaries with access to covered medical,
behavioral, and long-term care services.” The plans receive monthly capitation payments from CMS
and the state, but providers might be paid on a fee-for-service (FFS) or capitated basis.

Today, many sophisticated hospital systems that want to manage the total cost of delivered care are
developing or enhancing such capabilities through partnership or affiliation arrangements with a health
plan, a risk-bearing provider organization, and/or a managed care company. A Knox-Keene license® is
required of health systems to contract with California health plans and assume full delegated risk for
services.

253



Apnl 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 7

For example, Dignity Health Provider Resources, recently formed by Dignity Health, is seeking a
limited Knox-Keene license to contract with California health plans and assume delegated risk for
professional, hospital, and other covered services across the spectrum of a patient’s care.?

MemorialCare Health System, an integrated delivery system in Los Angeles and Orange Counties, with
six hospitals, robust physician and outpatient networks, and a Knox-Keene licensed health plan of its
own,'? has secured numerous partnerships with both insurers and providers. It is one of seven heatth
systems that have partnered with Anthem Blue Cross to launch Vivity, a fully insured HMO product for
the large-group market in Southern Callifornia. The hospitals receive discounted FFS payments from
Anthem, share financial gains and losses for the total cost of care through Vivity, and compensate
affiliated physicians through capitated payment arrangements. '

Given Managed Care, PHM Prospects and Progress in California

At what stage is California, its health care providers, and other stakeholders in managing population
health?

California has a long track record of providing “managed” health care that is more efficient and
coordinated than what occurs in the rest of the nation. Federal and state legislation — the HMO Act of
1973 and the Knox-Keene Health Care Service Plan Act of 1975 — encouraged risk-based models,
which involve health plans, physicians, hospitals, and other providers in active care management.
These models, the early presence of Kaiser Permanente,’? the development of large medical groups,
and the formation of integrated health care delivery systems hastened capabilities to manage the total
cost of care for specific populations.

Types of Risk Assumed by Hospitals and Health Systems

Risk in PHM contracting arrangements for hospitals and health systems falls into two categories:
* Provider risk is assumed by the entities delivering health care services, and includes two types:

- Clinical or performance risk, which is the ability to deliver patient care that exceeds the targets for
safety, quality, compliance, and other measures defined in the risk contract with the payer

- Utilization or financial risk, which is incurred by a provider organization through acceptance of
a fixed payment in exchange for the provision of care anticipated to have an expected level of
utilization and cost
¢ Insurance or plan risk is assumed by hospitals and health systemns that have their own insurance
plans, with “ownership” of the members and the overall cost of plan administration and/or care
delivery. Hospital- or insurer-owned plans that are contracting with providers for the provision of
cars under capitated arrangements are not technically taking on provider risk.

Source: Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC

“Many sophisticated hospital systems that want to manage the total cost of delivered

care are developing or enhancing care-management capabilities through partnership

or affiliation arrangements.”

=Rl aned i i Gk

254



April 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 8

Providers in California’s HMO/managed care system have used the delegated risk model to manage
and organize care for specific populations across the care continuum (Figure 3).

Historically, large physician organizations (IPAs and medical groups) and integrated health plans have
been the primary organizers in this model, with hospitals and health systems forming part of their
networks under FFS arrangements. Under this model, physicians and other provider organizations
are rewarded for efficient and effective care delivery, particularly the active management of chronic
disease and reduction of unnecessary utilization, as consistent with the PHM goals. The IPAs and
medical groups typically receive a capitated payment for professional and/or institutional services per
enrollee in exchange for the groups’ assumption of responsibility for downstream costs, utilization
management, and chronic disease care management for assigned enroliees. '

HMO enrollment has been relatively steady and strong in California. While nationwide HMO enroliment
of covered workers in employer-sponsored health plans declined to 13 percent in 2014 from a high

of 31 percent in 1996," HMOs remain more prevalent and have higher enroliment in California than

in other states.' HMOs currently capture 49 percent of commercial enroliment in the state,’® and a
similar percentage of combined commercial, Medi-Cal, Medicare/duals, and Healthy Family enroliment
(Figure 4).'" Recent high-deductible health plans and preferred provider organization (PPO) exchange
products are attracting employers and consumers nationwide, but managed care plans with Triple Aim
goals' aligned with PHM likely will remain a durable offering in California.

FIGURE 3: California’s Delegated Risk Model

Employers Government
~ =
| - <F i
4 Health Plan/ v
Commercial Third-Party Government
Enrollment Administrator Enroliment
1 1
\ P r * Claims
\ @ y * Benefit design
N | P * Network
~ A -, development
- Reporting S~ ~> 0 i b 2 %
* Utilization rganizing <
. apna!vs:sﬁ'. A — En_t'tv * Data
modeling Management @ a8 7 * Quality
* Technology Services * Protocols
Organization / . * Coordination
e Al 5 " * Utilization
g © @ O management

inpatient Care Physicians and

3,

Ancillary and Post-Acute and
Providers Outpatient Pharmacy Transitional Care
Providers Services Providers

Source. Kaufman, Hali & Associatss, LLC

255



Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
April 28, 2015 California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 9

FIGURE 4: HMO Enroliment and California Population, in Millions

379 38.3 72 37.4 373 376
I 189
; I ﬁ‘ I i I
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

2014

383

m HMO Enroliment 1 Total Population

Source. Dala from Cattanso & Stroud, inc.. Total of Medical Groups® HMO Enroliment by County with Business Lines (2004-2014).
wiww cattaneostroud.com/med_group_reports/10-Web.pdf

Managed care has maintained a strong presence in California for numerous reasons, including how
the market evolved under the state's corporate practice of medicine law. The law prohibits the direct
employment of physicians by hospitals and health systems. Hospitals established medical foundations
to more closely align clinically with physicians'® and physicians grouped into IPAs and other
organizations, gaining experience in managing care and assuming risk in HMO and other managed
care arrangements with insurers. PPOs did not gain as large a foothold in California as they did in the
rest of the nation, because the state had decades of experience with risk enabled HMOs that offered
employers and consumers competitive prices for coordinated care with sizeable IPA-driven physician
panels.

The long-standing and significant presence of managed care has contributed to California's success
in containing costs through the provision of coordinated care.?® Total health spending per capita in
California was 9 percent lower than U.S. spending ($6,238 vs. $6,815) in the most recently reported
year.2' California’s inpatient days per 1,000 population also was significantly below national and
regional averages under cormmercial HMO, Medicare HMO, and Medicare FFS plans (Figure 5). The
track record likely has resulted, at least in part, from tight utilization controls exerted by HMOs, and
the administrative and care management experience gained by providers (chiefly physician-driven
organizations) that assumed clinical and utilization/financial risk for patient care under HMO
capitation/delegated risk contracts.?

256



April 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
California Hosprtal Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 10

California’s health insurance and delivery markets will continue to evolve. Provider-sponsored HMOs or
other insurance products with similar benefit designs declined during the 1990s, but may re-emerge
as some sophisticated health systems move to access the full premium dollar while continuing to
coordinate care and manage the total cost of care. Given Medi-Cal expansion and continuing growth
of Medicare Advantage, HMO usage can be expected to increase for managed government products.
PPO products, especially those with HMO-like plan designs, may gain market penetration as
employers turn to self-funded PPOs with high deductibles and tiered networks to control their health
care expenditures.

On the delivery side, the growth of collaborations to form integrated delivery systems that assemble
acute care and other care continuum components with sophisticated and aligned physician
organizations under a PHM construct may dissolve the distinction between whether integrated health
systems or physician organizations are the organizers of care delivery.

FIGURE 5: Comprehensive Inpatient Days per Thousand by Select Product Type, CY 2011

1,780

Commercial HMO

Medicare HMO Medicare FFS

m California = New England = Southwest ~Us.

Source. Managed Care Digest Series California Health Care Data Summary 2013, 6th Edition

Provider Organization Roles in Future PHM

All new arrangements between hospitals, payers, physicians, and other health care entities in
California will need to focus on Triple Aim/PHM goals, emphasizing quality improvement and patient
experience in addition to financial efficiencies for specific population segments. As the ability to
continue to reduce utilization narrows, systems will compete based on the efficient provision of high
quality, accessible care for defined populations.

Different provider roles have emerged and likely will continue to emerge, with variations in capabilities
and functions in a PHM network. General categories reflect the organizations' ability to incur risk in
managing a specific segment of the population’s health — extending from no risk, as is common in a

FFS system, to the ability to assume full prepaid payments and/or capitated provider and/or plan risk
(Figure 6},

257



April 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC "

A limited number of sophisticated health systems likely will function as “population health managers”
to provide a full continuum of services across acuity levels at competitive prices for regional population
segments, either directly or through contracted relationships, and assume full provider risk for doing
s0. Some population health managers also will have a health plan and be able to strengthen their

strategic and financial performance by integrating health care financing and delivery, and assuming
plan risk.

A larger number of health systems — perhaps called “popuiation health comanagers” for comparative
purposes — will provide a clinically integrated delivery network of defined scope. They will assume
provider risk for the population segment covered by a network owned by another entity that is
receiving and administering the premium revenue. These organizations will manage the cost of
defined care and health of a population, but have more limited exposure to the financing and product
development/distribution risks of a health plan.

“Single product participant” and “multiproduct participant” roles in between will be assumed by
community hospitals and health systems that will work within a network managed by a population
health manager or comanager to efficiently provide a single service or a portfolio of services to a select
or broad group of patients.

Some providers, such as post-acute facilities and critical access hospitals, will be “contracted
participants,” that offer specified services to target population segments under contracts, working
within networks that are managed by larger entities.

Figure 7 summarizes the requirements of each provider role.

An organization's desired PHM role must be firmly grounded in its strategic-financial condition, its

organizational competencies, the readiness for PHM in its community, and the current and emerging
PHM environment. A key challenge for organizations will be aligning their service delivery model with
the insurance plan/product landscape to ensure access to current and future populations/members.

FIGURE 6: Provider Roles in Population Health Management

Prepaid

Future Payment Model
¥

Population Health Manager: Integrated delivery system and/or health plan with the
ability to provide and/or contract for a full continuum of services across all levels of acuity;
well positioned to develop own insurance products and/or manage full provider risi

Population Health Comanager: Regional provider organization, clinically integrated with
other organizations, that forms a value-based delivery system; well positioned to
participate in PHM and risk-bearing arrangements, in a delegated and/or direct fashion

Multiproduct Participant: Provider organization that works within a network(s}
managed by a Population Health Manager/Comanager to provide a defined set of
services for a broad population base comprised of both government and private-pay
patients; critical role in future delivery system

Single Product Participant: Provider organization working within a network managed by

= a Population Health Manager/Comanager, to provide specified and targeted services

and/or population; these organizations will be critical components of narrow networks

baee— Contracted Participant: Smaller niche providers, some of which may serve sural

communities, that provide population access peints under contractual arrangements;
they face significant risk of commoditization

Source Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC

258



Aprit 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 12

FIGURE 7: Summary of Provider Roles and Key Characteristics

Single i ; i o -
Characteristics Contracted I Product Multiproduct Population Population

Participant Participant Comanager Manager

| Participant |

Full or partial Full provider risk;
Risk/Payment WL Blgnd( Blend/episodic Provxder risk; may take health
payment episodic unlikely to assume .
. plan risk
health plan risk
Clinical Integration No Maybe Likely Yes Yes
Network Adequacy/ .
Market Essentiality tow Low Low to moderate Moderate High
Insurancg License No No No Maybe, !)ut not Lxmlte.d or regular
Ownership required license
Member§hlp No No No Mayh.e, but Yes
Ownership unlikely
* Critical access « Academic medical centers * Integrated delivery networks
hospitals . . . ©
.« Saf . « Children's hospitals (e.g., Kaiser}
Examples hj)se:iytar:: * Specialty hospitals ¢ IPAs (e.g., DaVita HealthCare Partners)
+ Community * Senior IPAs (e.g., CareMore) * Clinically integrated networks
hospitals » Community health systems {e.g., Dignity/UCSF/Hill)

Source Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC

Framework for the Pursuit of PHM

Moving toward PHM is a complex process. The challenge for hospital leadership teams is not to

determine if a hospital is going to participate in PHM and value-based care delivery, but rather where,
when, and how.

A seven-level framework provides detailed guidance on developing a financially sustainable role in
PHM through critical inter-related analyses and decisions (Figure 8). This process ensures that the
leadership team identifies the right PHM role, the night PHM market opportunity, the right scope of the
PHM delivery network achieved through building, buying, or partnering, and the right PHM contracting
strategy. For organizations that have started the journey, the framework helps their leaders determine
the next strategy(ies) to pursue.

Numerous activities described within this framework may be occurring simultaneously as an
organization pursues value-based PHM opportunities. Each level is described briefly here, but
subsequent Issue Briefs and webinars will address specific levels in greater depth.

FIGURE 8: The Framework for Pursuit of PHM Opportunities

5. Determine
Scope of PHM
Network/Role

7. Identify Path —
Build, Buy and/
or Partner

6. Define PHM
Contracting
Strategy

Context-Setfing The PHM Plan

Source Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC

259



Aprit 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 13

Level 1. Understand and Organize Around Population Health Management

During this context-setting stags, hospital and health system leadership teams gain a clear
understanding of what population health management is and of the care management imperative that
will drive the coordination and management of patient care across the continuum.

Additionally, leadership teams assess the PHM roles providers can play, as described in the previous
section, and identify the role or roles that should be explored further given the organization’s strengths
and weaknesses. There must be clear understanding that, as defined earlier, PHM means working

in a coordinated manner to improve the overall health, health outcomes, and well-being of a given
population across all defined care settings under risk-bearing arrangements.

Level 2. Determine the Market’s Stage and Pace of Change

Market readiness for PHM and how quickly the market is changing can be gauged through analysis of
seven characteristics:

* Level of organization among hospitals and physicians: Indicators of the level of organization in
a market area typically include the extent of hospital consolidation, physician group size, provider
network size, degree of clinical integration, and geographic coverage/number of covered lives by
specific entities.

¢ Employer health care benefits structure: The shifting of employees into high-deductible/
consumer-driven health plans that are available through traditional insurers and private exchanges is
boosting transparency, along with cost sensitivity. Quickly evolving markets have a high penetration
of consumer-driven health care purchasing.

¢ Enrolliment in exchanges and level of insurance product/network sophistication: Enroliment
in public and private exchanges and high deductibles available through tiered-benefit programs also
are increasing the level of consumerism and price sensitivity. In many regions, payers are forming
tiered or narrow networks for both exchange and traditional insurance offerings, with a focus on
lower costs and increased care management.

¢ Amount of vertical collaboration and new-entrant activity: Vertical networks that pair providers
and payers typically use integrated care models with new, value-based incentive structures for
financing, delivery, and clinical care management. Network inclusion or exclusion has or can have
major implications for hospitals and health systems in the covered area.

¢ Demand for services: Lower utilization of inpatient services, shifting demand for ambulatory
services, and the proliferation of web or mobile-based services will force providers to reposition
themselves. Notwithstanding population aging trends and the newly insured, considerable hospital
inpatient utilization is “vulnerable” — i.e., likely to decline further as health care costs are reduced.

¢ Supply of providers: f the number of hospitals, beds, and physicians in a region is too high,
providers will experience significant “pricing and/or reimbursement pressure” as utilization falls
and demand shifts to ambulatory settings and virtual care delivery. When there is an oversupply
of providers, pricing pressure also results from provider willingness to take on discounted FFS
arrangements in order to guarantee patient and referral volume.

¢ Regulatory environment: Federal and state legislation and regulations materially affect the way
providers conduct business, at times slowing the pace and degree of change. Providers operating
in localities where regulatory factors are more abundant and limiting often face challenges in building
the structures and relationships necessary to drive value-based care delivery.

The seven market elements described here need ot be warking at the same time to shift a market
rapidly for area providers. In some markets, initiatives by one type of stakeholder move the needle
significantly. In other areas, new market entrants or new regulations begin and accelerate the process.
A single decision by a physician group, payer, or employer can weaken or completely undercut

a health system’s efforts to gain market share through clinical network development, targeted
community outreach, or other initiatives.

260



Aprii 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 14

Level 3. Evaluate Organizational Position and Competence Gaps

Hospital and health system leadership teams should evaluate the organization's current position
relative to the nine critical capabilities described under “Key Competencies,” page 4. Identification
of appropriate opportunities to manage population health must be based on the organization’s
competitive strengths and weaknesses in each area.

For example, a multihospital system (MHS) with several physician networks believes that it might be
well-positioned as a population comanager in its highly competitive and rapidly developing market. In
the example diagramed below, an in-depth assessment compared the system's current performance

to that of the market leader along the nine competencies, using qualitative and quantitative measures
(Figure 9).

Leadership determined that it would not be realistic to try to develop all of the financing/distribution or
care management competencies, but that four areas of focus likely would be required to proactively
create new growth opportunities: network development and management; brand and customer
service and engagement; clinical and business intelligence capabilities; and purchaser relationships
(e.g., employer and payer).

Identification and analysis of potential opportunities to fill these competency gaps would need to
be extensive and include other health systems, physician networks, commercial health plans, and
seif-insured employers.

FIGURE 9: Sample Assessment of a Multihospital System’s (MHS) Current Readiness in Nine
Competency Areas

Traditional Organizations Value-Based Organizations

atl s bmitzdi ; ; e —_— : l Robust
Siloed | + § ‘—» + — Strong

L, .| Enterprise-
=1 0—=C e
tittle to | i - | oo
z None | |
Traditional | ; <2 - : I Integrated
. Chaftenged I + + + e"b———'—| Strong
Limited | ; Y | very
Essentiafity | S | Essential

Limited/ | . e G ’ .| strong/
tocs! | R § i | National
timited s D MD and
Depth/ % 2 ’ . e.( —-— ——.——! Amn/su'aonng
ABgrmant - Alighment

OMHS L Market Leader

Source. Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC

261



April 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 15

Level 4. identify PHM Market Segments and Opportunities

Identifying entry and/or expansion points into the PHM arena is complex and critical work. The
strongest organizations will be looking for opporiunities to operate a risk-bearing network that spans
delivery and financing/insurance plan functions across a care continuum. Most hospitals will be fooking
for PHM opportunities that will enable them to contract with another entity to provide services and
thus foster delivery system growth. Some hospitals will be looking for a mix of the two.

Key variables related to opportunities include:

* The specific patient population, which should be segmented and considered by how it is insured

o The overall insurance market, including available networks, product types, benefit designs,
enrolment, pricing, and other items

e The value proposition the organization would offer within its community based upon its unique mix
of access, service, quality, and cost

The organization's PHM strategy should be objectively defined within its integrated strategic-financial

plan so that risk is effectively managed as the organization transitions to new value-based payment
mechanisms.

Level 5. Determine Scope and Scale of Required PHM Network

Effective and sustainable PHM requires the design of a high-performance provider network covering
the care continuum (Figure 10). In moving away from FFS care delivery and financing models,
organizations must scrutinize their networks, or a network in which they participate, in a different light.

Many traditional criteria for a viable network still apply (e.g., access points, competitive position),
but the following four criteria also will need to be assessed on the basis of populations served and
insurance plan coverage:

* Network essentiality (size/scale): This often is tied to an organization's primary care network, and
measured based on the population that can be attributed to the provider network/delivery system.
(In fragmented hospital markets such as Los Angeles, health system-developed networks without
sufficient size may find health plans unwilling or unable to work with them to develop PHM models.)

¢ PHM care continuum (breadth/depth): Most hospitals and health systems will find it prohibitively
expensive to acquire capabilities across the full continuum of care settings; collaborative
partnerships and affiliations will be needed.

¢ Network performance and outcomes: Performance will be monitored against specific cost,
quality, and access targets in applicable risk contracts.

* Overall “network adequacy™: This refers to an entity's ability to deliver the benefits promised
under the contract terms by providing access in a service area to a sufficient number of in-network
physicians, and hospital and other services.

262



Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Healith Management
April 28, 2015 California Hospitat Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 16

FIGURE 10: Coordinating Care in the Continuum of PHM Settings

Wellhes.s

Medicine g
- Populationin
| the Community

Ambulatory Care Inpatient Care
: | ® Primary Carc /AR i 5 5
Y " | |
Behavioral [ : | H o
Health/Other. | v m# Population 1 :
Services :

N Specialist I Health !
Care i i Management i ;

Post Acute Care _

1 . BRSNS
T skilled Inpatient Long-Term Hospice and [
[ Hea"h. Paliative |

Source: Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC

Level 6. Define a Contracting Strategy to Support PHM Opportunities

The movement toward value-based care under a PHM construct is not a “one-size-fits-all” mandate.
Organizations can take and are taking incremental steps toward managing the total cost of care
(i-e., assuming full provider risk) in a “budgeted care” or “prepaid” contracting environment.

The spectrum of provider risk contracting options should be closely evaluated to ensure that the
risk model appropriately aligns with an organization's size, sophistication, PHM readiness, start and
desired end-point along the risk continuum, and the stage of transition toward value in its market.
Leadsrship teams must start moving their contracts to risk-based arrangements to gain critical
experience in meeting PHM objectives. Inaction or inadequate action could impair the organization's
ability to meet such objectives longer term.

Arrangements along the risk continuum (Figure 11) extend from no risk to full risk as follows:2

* Fee for Service (FFS): The predominant model historically, under FFS arrangements, providers
are paid for the quantity and intensity of care delivered. Because payment is not dependent upon
the quality or cost of care delivered, the provider has neither performance risk nor financial risk.
Providers benefit from increases in the number of patients seen and in the number of tests and
treatments provided to each patient.

* Pay for Performance (P4P): Hospitals, physicians, or other providers receive bonus payments to
their FFS reimbursement or have a portion of their pay withheld based on whether they meet preset

performance targets. Targets may relate to quality, cost effectiveness, efficiency of care, or other
factors.

* Shared Savings: The shared savings model offers incentives to reduce health care spending for
a defined patient population by giving providers a percentage of net savings realized as a result
of their efforts to decrease care costs. Over the long run, shared savings models are difficult to
sustain because the savings pool is finite and extracting incremental savings as care improves is
challenging.

263



Aprl 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 17

* Case Rate (Episode-of-Care or Bundled): Providers are paid a fixed amount for services required
by a patient for a specific procedure or condition, such as a total knee or hip replacement. Providers
benefit from the savings they generate through improved efficiencies in care delivery, but payers are
likely to provide lower upfront payments for each care episode as efficiencies improve. Providers are
at risk for the cost of care delivered if it exceeds the predetermined payment amount, but continue
to benefit from seeing a greater volume of patients.

o Partial Risk: Under partial capitation or partial risk, a provider typically takes on full financial and
clinical risk for a specified set of services (for example, acute care services, but not professional
services}, receiving a single fixed payment for those services.

* Shared Risk: Providers share with the payer both positive and negative financial risk depending on
whether the cost of care exceeds the pre-specified payment amount. The level of savings (or losses)
depends on the negotiated arrangement between the provider and the payer, and typically is a
percentage of the total premium dollar or a proportion of the cost overruns. Because providers
take on more downside risk in this model, various contracting mechanisms are often used to limit
the provider’s financial exposure. These include stop-loss insurance (provider pays a fixed fee to
another insurer to accept the risk beyond a specified amount), risk corridors that limit upside and
downside risk, and carve-outs for patient populations where the clinical risk may be more difficult for
the provider to manage.

e Full Risk: Under full-risk “capitation” arrangements, providers receive a single fixed amount per
patient per month, or periodically receive a predetermined percentage of the premiums that patients
pay to insurers. Providers are able to keep any savings if costs are below the capitated amounts,
but are responsible for any cost overruns. Global capitation payments cover all patient services,
while partial capitation payments cover only a specified portion of services. The entity contracting
with the payer must have downstream network contracts covering the specified continuum of care.
Cost savings, after administrative fees, can be distributed per contract agreement.

® Provider-Sponsored Insurance: With provider-sponsored insurance, the provider manages not
only the total cost of care (full provider risk) but 100 percent of the financial risk for insuring the
patient and controlling the full premium dollar. Provider-sponsored insurance represents the greatest
level of financial and clinical control because the provider organization controls the clinical aspects
of care and care financing and administration.

FIGURE 11: The Range of Contracting Arrangements on the Risk Continuum

rimnmaﬁummmm&" . o

S el e
Shared Partial S‘:)rg:;g‘ra:d
Savings Risk Insurance

Source: Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC

Hospitals and health systems need to be thoughtful and realistic about the skills and infrastructure
needed to manage different types of payment arrangements under PHM. An organization’s
risk-contracting strategy should be part of its comprehensive business plan, which provides the

documentation and analysis necessary to validate capital decision making related to risk contracting
and PHM scope.

264



April 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
California Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 18

Level 7. Identify the Appropriate PHM Path for the Organization — Build, Buy, or Partner

Hospitals and health systems should explore options for achieving PHM expertise, whether doing so
via one or more of the following means:

¢ Building competencies and capabilities internally

* Buying or purchasing access to certain competencies or services from another entity
¢ Partnering with another entity to gain access to required competences

To participate in PHM in a significant way, most hospitals and health systems will need to use the
latter two approaches. Whether building, acquiring, or partnering with another entity to develop
capabilities and network components, the decisions are complex, interrelated, and highly market- and

organization-specific. Key questions required to identify build, buy, or partnership objectives typically
include:

* Does the organization need health plan capabilities to achieve its vision?

* [f yes, does it need full or limited health plan capabilities?

° Which products should be the organization's focus?

¢ How broad doss the health plan coverage need to be and how broad is it today?

* |s the organization better off building, buying, or partnering to obtain the capabilities needed to
provide the product to the intended market?

Potential partners for hospitals and health systems could include many different types of entities,
including health plans, health systems, management services crganizations, and other types of
traditional and nontraditional service companies. As with merger/partnership arrangements in all
industries, the degree of integration desired by the partnering organizations has a broad spectrum.
This ranges from low (leveraging existing arrangements) to high (full sale to partner) with joint venture,
minority interest, and 50/50 partnerships in between.

Implications for California Hospitals and Health Systems

The nation is moving to a care delivery and payment model based on PHM. Hospitals and health
systerns must establish their vision for the future, and invest in the PHM model through a strategic and
planned approach, with awareness that a positive return on investment may take many years or even
decades to achieve. For most organizations, partnerships to cover new services and/or geographies
are required and must be secured during coming years.

An organization's pursuit of best-fit PHM opportunities for sustainable performance must be founded
on a thorough understanding of the PHM model and its implications for providers, payers, consumers,
and other stakeholders. Key requirements for California’s hospitals include leadership vision and
commitment, and the ability to manage the large-scale cultural and operational change needed for
rapid health care transformation in their regions. Stay tuned for the next Issue Brief and enjoy the
forthcoming webinar.

265



April 28, 2015

Webinar 1 Issue Brief: A Framework for Population Health Management
Callifornia Hospital Association and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC 19

Endnotes

10

11

13

14

16

16
17

18

19

20

21

22
23

For example, Walgreens, Whole Foods, and WebMD

For more information on these trends, see Grube, M.E., Kaufman, K.: “Inflection 2.0 — The Real Change
Begins.” Kaufman Hall Point of View, Aug. 2013. (www.kaufmanhall.com)

CalPERS (the California Public Employees' Retirement System) is the agency in the California executive branch
that manages health and pension benefits for the state's public employees, retirees, and their families.

U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services: “Better, Smarter, Healthier: In Historic Announcement HHS Sets
Clear Goals and Timeline for Shifting Medicare Reimbursements From Volume to Value.” Press Release,
Jan. 26, 2015.

Rappleye, E.: “20 Major Health Systems, Payers Pledge to Convert 75% of Business to Value-Based
Arrangements by 2020." Becker's Hospital CFO, Jan. 28, 2015.

Shortell, S.M., Gilles R.R., et. al.: Remaking Health Care in America: Building Organized Delivery Systems,
First Edition. Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1996.

State of California Dept. of Health Care Services: “Coordinated Care Initiative: Executive Summary.”
Fact Sheet, Updated March 2013.

The Knox-Keene Health Care Service Plan Act of 1975 is the statutory framework under which HMOs and
most managed care plans operate in California (Roth, D.L., Kelch, D.R.: "Making Sense of Managed Care
Regulation in California.” California HealthCare Foundation, Nov. 2001.

Evans, M.: “Dignity Health Will Seek License to Assume Financial Risk for Patients." Modemn Healthcare,
Feb. 27, 2015.

MemorialCare's Seaside Health Plan covers individuals with Medi-Cal, Medicare, or commercial coverage.
Seaside Health Plan website: “About Seaside Health Plan.” http://www.sshp.com/about-seaside-health-plan

Ginzinger, B., Priselac, T.M.: *“The Vivity Case Study: How Anthem Converted Adversaries Into Partners.”
Webinar, Feb. 11, 2015.

Founded in 1945, Kaiser Permanente is the nation’s largest HMO. It serves approximately 9.6 milion members
through 38 owned hospitals and more than 17,000 physicians organized in an exclusive group practice. This
exclusive arrangement contrasts with commercial insurance HMOs, which generally contract nonexclusively
with medical groups. Kaiser Permanente website: “Fast Facts About Kaiser Permanente.” http://share.
kaiserpermanente.org/article/fast-facts-about-kaiser-permanente/

Scheffler, R.M., Bowers, L.G.: A New Vision for California‘s Healthcare System: Integrated Care with Aligned
Incentives. Berkeley Forum and University of California, Berkeley School of Public Health, Feb. 2013.

Claxion, G., Rae, M., Panchal, N., et. al.: Employer Health Benefits, 2014 Annual Survey. Kaiser Family
Foundation and Health Research & Educational Trust, p. 77, 2014.

Kaiser Family Foundation: “Total HMO Enroliment.” July 2013. http:/kff.org/other/state-indicator/total-hmo-
enrollment/

Lewis, C.: “2013 Health Plan Analysis — California.” HealthLeaders InterStudy, March 2013.

Cattaneo & Stroud, Inc.: Total of Medical Groups’ HMO Enrollment by County with Business Lines
(2004-2014). www.cattaneostroud.com/med_group_reports/10-Web.pdf.

'

As defined by the Institute for Healthcare Improvement as improving the experience of care, improving
the health of populations, and reducing per capita costs of health care. www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/
Publications/TripleAimCareHealthandCost.aspx

Draper, D.A., Berenson, R.A., November, E.A.: A Tighter Bond: California Hospitals Seek Stronger Ties with
Physicians. California Health Care Aimanac Regional Markets Issue Brief, California HealthCare Foundation,
Dec. 2009.

Ginsburg, P.B., Christianson, J.B., et al.: Shifting Ground: Erosion of the Delegated Mode! in California.
California Health Care Almanac Regional Markets Issue Brief, California HealthCare Foundation, Dec. 2009.

Data for 2009 from Kaiser Family Foundation: Health Care Expenditures per Capita by State of Residence.
hitp://kff.org/other/state-indicator/health-spending-per-capita

Ginsburg, P.B., et al. (Dec. 2009).

For a full description of each, see Pizzo, J.J., Bohorquez, C., Cohen, A., et al.: Value-Based Contracting.
Health Research & Educational Trust and Kaufman, Hall & Associates, LLC, July 2013 (www.hpoe.org).

266



A comprehensive, five-part certificate program
for California hospital leaders

Webinar 1 — April 28, 2015

A Framework for Population Health Management
Webinar 2 — June 2, 2015

Business Imperatives of Population Health Management
Webinar 3 — July 14, 2015

Clinical Imperatives of Population Health Management

Webinar 4 — August 25, 2015
Technology for Population Health Management

Webinar 5 — October 6, 2015
Leadership and Talent for Population Health Management

Each webinar will be health from 9:30 am - 11:30 am PT

Individuals that participate in all five webinars can earn a Certificate of Population Health
Management. To earn a certificate, participants must:

* Register for the complete, five webinar series

¢ Fully participate in each webinar and attest to participation

* Complete a post-event survey

If you are not available on the day of a scheduled webinar and therefore cannot participate, you

may request access to the webinar recording, to be viewed at a later date. Requests to access the
recording will be limited to two webinars in the series.

www.calhospital.org/population-health-web
Or call CHA Education at (916) 552-7637

"% CALIFORNIA
Vi FO58NTAY  KaufmanHall

267



BB NE NOIIVIYOSS Y :
HEHUBWHIEY witason Wi

2
I N M IRV Ex-
v Wi a_ 1

s AR e 15 = et oA

S ————————

HLIVIH

268



Z sy i W

wINEALIIVY B

‘pPAeoq Uo 193

0) PIIU [[IM SIIP[OYIN®IS [[B PUE “SUIAOUL ST JABIYI[BIY
UOIDAIIP Y) SI SIY I, “SIS0d SUlseurlll [IYM I8 JO
Ayipenb pue ypeay suraoaduwr 0y yovoadde ue st A HJ

¢ Sl IBYM

nuawabeuey yijesaH uoijejndod

269



(LT RIRL A

a1

fionijep aieo Buibueyo si ABojouyos) anijeAouu| .
Buibiawo aie s10})i}odwod PSPUN-{IDA

Buisealoul S| WSUBWNSUO)

Buiwiojsuel) ale sjaxiew aoueinsul pue 1ohojdwy o
abueyo |eal BUIALID B8le SBNSS| OIWOUOJB0IOB

AEBR E B o o - S _,._ | 75
_:,_:_ _ _ | | @ d mJ.._._. W Lw FAY _..“__; _(m _
A W B N N /] a = .

NYW HLIVIH NOILYTNdOd

270



‘€102 "094 ‘esH a1jand Jo |[ooyos Asjexiag ‘eiuiojiie) Jo AlsioAun pue wnioH Asjexiag SeAiusau]

paubiy yum ased pajesbo)uf JWoJSAS a1eoyjied S,BILLIOJIBD 0 UOISIA MBN ¥ 'O 'S1amog “IN'Y ‘J81eyos :20nog

.V aggv. LU T EY “AlUo s s821M8s [euolssajoid jJdadoe siapinold yoiym
m'..:__mo uj Juawabuelie JuswAed e o] Siajal YSU |elUBE ‘S90S |B)IdSOY puB S93IAIaS [BuoisSajoid Yloq 1o} ysu jdaooe siapinoid

yoiym ul Juswabuewe JuawAed e 0} s1ajed YSU |BNP/|INS “Z “Sie|I0p Z1.0g W pauodal ale sajewnse ain)puadx3 "| :S8jON

(suoypiw ‘soA1Y) (suonnq ‘s)
24K yuowfey _ 1944 yuowmse g O
Jsu [enpying
sU [eed Aunpoddp Ol
99IA18S-10}-994 :
INHd - 0¢

ad/f} juswied

e ————
/ 0:572$ o

ZLoz ‘stejjoq G’
pue saAl1 Aq ‘elulojied + 0/
ui uonesboju| waysAg
Aiaaljag pue swisiueyday
juswied jo umopyealqg

HLITVIH NOILYVTINdOd

2n



wonbap)

INIWIDOYNYW HLATVIH NOILYINdOd

“SNAVWHDIH,

Aoeuneyd/SAD )
HLOV3H ™~
133road </

*19133q A1 ‘Aduow aAes

yewljep

272



g MeHueueY

NOMWL¥IJO0RSY

TYLIISOH

¥INNGEITIVD

suawabuely Buoenuo)

S92UBI0G |elen)oy
Jeouabijjeju] ssauisng

sjusuodwo)

ssaulsng

suoneladp
pue juswabeuepy YJ0MjON

sonAjeuyjuswabeuely
HN3 pue swie|)

saoljoeld paseg-eouaping
pue juswabeuep
aseasiq 2luoiyd

sjuauodwo)
jesiul|d

se r

JUD UL :m%é@%“ﬁ

273



L ey ey W

VINEORIIYD

UOIJEZIJIPOLILLIOD JO HsU Jueoyubis aoey Aay) w 44
‘sjuewabueLE |enjoeljuod Japun sjuiod ssadoe uohendod apinoid jey} ‘sapunwiwoD
|eJns an1es Aew yoiym Jo sawos ‘siapinoid aydiu Jsjlews nuedionied pejoeijuod

S)JOMJaU Molieu

JO sjusuodwod |eonuO 3q |IM suoieziueblo asay) ‘uonejndod Jo/pue sadines pajabie)
pue payioads apinoid o) ‘jabeuewo))/sebeuepy YjeaH uoneindod e Aq pabeuew
ylomiau e uiyym Bunjom uoneziuebio Japinoid auedionied yonpold ojbuls

wa)sAs Auanlep alniny

ul ajod |eonuo ‘sjuaned Aed-ajeaud pue Juswusanob yjoq Jo pasudwods aseq uolendod
pEolq B J0} SOOIAISS JO Jos paulep e apiroid o} Jabeuewon/1ebeuepy yjeaH uolnejndod e Aq
pabeuew (S)}JOM}aU B UIY)IM SHJOM Jey} uoleziuebio Jepinoid auedionied yonpoldyiniy

uolyse} 10a1p Jojpue pajebajep e ul ‘sjuswabuele buliesd-ysu pue NHd ul ajedioiued
o0} pauoiisod [jam ‘wasAs Aionijep paseg-anjeA e swlioj jey) ‘suoljeziueblo 1ayjo yjim
pajesbajui Ajjesiuld ‘uoneziuebio sepiroid [euoibay -19beuew-09 YyjjeaH uonejndod

|opO JuswiAed ainyng

ysi1 Japiaoud jny eBeuew Jo/pue sjonpoud aoueinsul umo dojansp 0} pauonisod jjom
‘A}INSE JO S|SA9| ||B SSOJOB SIDIAISS JO WINNUUOI |N} B O} JOBJUOD Jo/pue apinoid o} Ajjige
ay) ypm uejd yyeay Jojpue wajshs Aisniep pajesbajy| :10beuepy yjjeaH uoneindod

piedaid

o : ol | ]
i u _._ql...\,..ﬁ“..tu.\_.;.h &l

s

274



NOMLY¥IZIQNIY
g  Imuejoey aﬁ_._no__E

CinialiNvd

s|endsoy
swa)sAs yyesy Ajunwwio) . AT e

syiomjau pajesbajul Ajeouny . syd| Jouss . .m_muawos
svdl - sjeudsoy Ayeads . Jou a&mw . sa|dwex3

syJomyau Aianijap pajesbajul . slendsoy s,uapliyy sjendsoy

S19JU8J [EOIPAWI OIWAPBOY - [ _m.o Ty o
SOA Aj@yiiun Ing ‘aqhepn ON ON ON diysioumQ diysiaquiapy
asuaol| paiinbai ON ON ON diysisumQ
Jejnba. 1o paywi Jou Inq ‘aqhep 9SUd9I7 ddueInsu|
ajelapoLw Ayenuass3y 1oxiepy
ubiH SjeIapoin 0] MO7 Mo Mo JRoenbapy 3iomjeN
SOA SOA Ay aghepy ON uoneibajuj [eounD
ssu ysu ueid

‘ yjjesy sawnsse 0} uawAed

cw_a yyeay ayey} Aew Ajoxjjun ysul 18pinoid olposida/pusig olposida/pusig S| “BUON [oPON JusWwAedsty
Hysu Jepinoad [in4
leiyed Jo jing
juediol .
iabeuen Jabeuew juedionued 3 o:.o%nmn_ juediojied
uoneindoyd -09 uone|ndod j1onpoidiInin 12NPO4d pajoeliuon
10 SIIAS ANV

Vo4 |

o
E =

275



3 \i
6 My igiiey

LILTL-YIRE &

ao1dsoy-a(a3 40 9j0J ayj Buiuiwexa saajeniul MaN

"33 ‘s102030.d Juswabeuew

uled ‘sAemyjed ales pazijeldads ‘Aauiony JO S1amMOd pue SaAloallg
HUBAPY JO SUOIIEDIUNWWOD ]U04}I3]3 WO4) 1143usq siaalBaled pue sjualjed
sueloisAyd Ajiwey uo

uaping ayj aanpal pue siaalbales Ajjwey poddns ‘suonezijeyidsoy
Alessadauun ploAe ‘awoy Jiay) ul syuaijed daay 03 papasu SadlAlas //p2

[eanlo

1509 PUE S3WO0IIN0 JO SMaIA dAI3dIIOSaId puE dA1DIPAld
$930U WEa} 9480 0} UOIINGIIIU0D Jaquuial Afiie) pue jusiied xajdwon
suoiuaAlalul jo Buiyoesy pue 2

SMalAal pPajnpayds ‘asueldwod uonedIpaw iBujuue|d 21e2 WEea) papualxy ajdwis 21u0Iyy
Buliojuow aWoH ; :

‘218 quawabeuew JyBlam ‘|oJjuod ainssaid poojq TG
‘sajaqelpald saAneul dnosb pue Buiyoeod yijesy ‘uonedsnpa suljuo 1981S
10B3UO0D PAzZIUIINOI pue ® ASIY-IV

SuONE}IAUL 1X3] ‘S|i1eWa ‘s{jed pa}abie) ‘SjUsWISSIsSE YSIl YjjeaH

BuioB.] PUE M3IAB S}NS8L — SPJODaL 3jeay [euosiad pue sjepod juaned
SUOIJUAAISIUI BUIINOJ pue SS3298 Asea apinoid sadIAIaS Yijeaya(al

$901A195 BUIU83.DS J32UED pUE SAN-}I8YD SSAU||aM |enulie 10} SIapulWay AyljeaH
sSao1Aap

pajqeus-suoydiews ‘ajiqow ‘saibojouyda} Bulioliuow yijeay ajqelespy

sjusuubs

276



CiNEBEIIVY

O Howwewymay SRLSoN E

Jauyled 1o/pue
Ang ‘pling-
yied Ayzuap| L

ueld INHJ 24.L

Abajens
Bunyoeajuo)d
INHd ?ulyaqg 9

a|o¥/fI0oMIBN

WHd jo adoos
aulwdlaQg '

CeluupPeoy

uonisodor anjeA

___mm:__::to_n_ao

- epen
IWHd Amusp)

-

i HITV3IH NOILYINdOd

s

& m .mu.r,”. T Ty
DIDDALE

Sumeg-1xauo)

sdeg
pue uonisod

ajen|eag ‘¢

277



LI ewomanel 33ISoN E

VindnsITIYD

‘sayoeoidde om] 1ajje| ayj asn o}
paau [IM swajsAs Yjjeay pue sjejidsoy ysow

‘Aem jJuediiubis e ul NHd ut aredionued o

saouajadwod palinbai 0} ssaooe uieb o) Ajjus Jayjoue yum Jaujed

Aus Jayjoue
WwoJ} S2IAISS JO Saloua}adwod ulepad o) sseooe aseyolnd o Ang

Ajjewsaul sanijigedes pue sapuajedwod pling

jsulied Jo/pue ‘Ang ‘pjing — yyed Ajil

278



AN el Y ﬁs

INNOSITYD

1BYlO

lojeaouul pue Jaydope Aje3
saAljeniul buiobuo ui paAjoAu|
sjoolo.d 10jid Ul PaA|OAU|
Bunedionued 184 jou Inq ‘BuiApnis

. IWHd piemoy Aauinol ay) ui Aepo) uonjeziuebio inoA s| a1sypn

INFIWIOVNTW HLTVIH NOILYINdOd

o'

- e—

b

279



Back to Agenda

N e T N AN Sy e =y
———— B T T e el B e e el o N R

Six Business Imperatives Expand Board Oversight

BY MARK E. GRUBE, KAUFMAN, HALL & ASSOCIATES, LLC

ealthcare’s transition to a popula-
tion health model presents hospi-
tals and health systemns with sig-
nificant business opportunities
and challenges. Increasingly, organizations
will be responsible for providing defined
care to a specific population while managing
the population’s total cost of care.

The value-driven approach to care
delivery and financing focused on popula-
tion health management (PHM) alters the
established business fundamentals. To suc-
ceed, healthcare directors and executives
must rethink the scope of their enterprise,
including where, to whom, and how their
organizations provide services, and which
services are most appropriate given the
unique needs of the populations they serve.

Significant additional board knowledge
and oversight will be needed to arrive at
a sustainable “solution set” for managing
population health. Some organizations are
changing board composition to include
physicians and members with expertise in
quality improvement, risk management,
cost reduction, and other key PIIM areas;
other organizations need to move more
rapidly to gain needed experience.!

Addressed here are six business impera-
tives that should be front and center on
all board radar screens in developing and
implementing their PHM strategy. These
imperatives are interrelated and inter-
disciplinary, crossing strategic, financial,
clinical, operational, and capital manage-
ment domains.

Physician and Clinical Alignment

Improved economiic and clinical alignment

between hospitals and physicians will be

essential to:

o Change the way patient care is delivered.

e Enhance patient, family, and provider
satisfaction and engagement.

 Improve each element of the value
equation (i.e.. quality, access, patient
experience, and operating/capital
efficiency).

» Succeed under value- and/or risk-based
arrangements.

1 Kathryn C. Peisert, Governing the Value Journey:
A Profile of Structure, Culture, and Practices of
Boards in Transition, 2013 Biennial Survey of
Hospitals and Healthcare Systems, The Gover-
nance Institute.

16 RamvidRoeer Prove o AT031707 a0y

Koy Board Takeaways

Below are six business imperatives boards should focus on as they develop and implement their
population health management strategy, as well as questions to consider related to each:

1. Physician and clinical alignment:

» How do we ensure alignment with employed and independent physicians?
» What incentives are available for physicians? Do contractual arrangements clearly delineate
the criteria for incentives? How do we address physicians not performing up to defined

standards?

» How is leakage of paticnts to non-network physicians prevented? Do physicians clearly

understand how attribution works?
2. Contracting stratagy:

» What's our plan for gaining experience in managing risk through contracting arrangements?
» What's our s*sategy to ensure inclusion in key networks forrring in our community?

3. Network optimization:

» What role will our organization play in a care delivery network? How are we determining the
best combination and location of services and programs?
» How are we learning about consumer preferences and purchasing behavior?

4. Operational efficiency:

» How are we working with physician practices, post-acute, home care, and other providers to

ensure fficiency and deliver value?

» What can we do to transform our cost structure to a much lower level?

5. Enabling infrastructure:

» Which means are we considering—building, buying, partnering—to gain needed infrastruc-

ture quickly?

» What process are we using to make capital investment decisions that support the organiza-
tion’s role in PHM? What return do we expect from these investments?

6. Clinical management:

» How do/will we prioritize PHM efforts across patient health-risk categories?
» What interventions will we develop and implemant? How do/will we evaluate the success of
these interventions and ensure improvement on an ongoing basis?

Developing a solid hospital-physician
alignment plan involves recognizing that
one strategy will not be appropriate for all
physicians, and that hospitals should offer
physicians multiple options.

Finding the right incentives to motivate
physicians is vital. Incentives should cover
dimensions including financial, access,
competition and recognition (e.g.. qual-
ity ranking scores), and patient care (e.g.,
improved health outcomes). The most
important principle is to develop uniform,
readily quantifiable, consensus-driven
incentive standards and metrics that have
a consistent application across clinicians,
locations, and specialties.

As health systems start building their
physician networks, they typically have
more relaxed (or lower threshold) perfor-
mance criteria. As their experience grows,
they tighten the criteria and are able to be

more selective with physician participation.

Physicians not performing up to defined

standards often opt out or are not allowed
to continue to participate in the network’s
value-based contracts.

For success with PHM contracting
arrangements, a hospital or health system
must have an integrated network of primary
care physicians and must ensure accurate
attribution of the targeted population
segment(s) to this network. Attribution in
PHM programs is the assignment of an indi-
vidual to a specific primary care provider,
typically based on past medical claims.

Contracting Strategy

Contracting is fundamental to PHM pro-

grams as it is the vehicle to delineate what

payers or other purchasers and providers

will be accountable for. Organizational

and market nuances dictate the types of

contracting arrangements pursued for

targeted population segments, and how far
continued on page 15

9 990

L e | ZURY 3.2 S —



Back to Agenda

jix Business Imperatives...
continued from page 16

and quickly an organization moves toward
full risk models.

Hospitals and health systems can par-
ticipate in a variety of value-based or risk
contracts, ranging from fee-for-service with
incentives {e.g., gain sharing and pay-for-
performance) to partial or full risk models
(e-g.. global payment, partial capitation,
or full capitation), Fully integrated health
systems will be able to use all types of
contracting arrangements that tie payment
to performance and outcomes, while small
providers will be more limited in the types
of arrangements they can secure.

Contracting for PHM will require con-
sideration of the risks and opportunities
related to the health/risk characteristics
of the populations served by specific
insurance products, design of HMO, PPO,
and employer-directed plans, contract
terms and conditions, narrow and tiered
networks requirements, and partnership
opportunities related to specific networks,
products, and plans.

Hospitals that do not pursue PHM

ntracting with purchasers soon may
find themselves excluded from key net-
works in their region or may be relegated
to the role of a discounted vendor of acute
care services.

Network Optimization

Effective and sustainable PHM requires

the design and continuance of a high-per-

formance delivery network. This network

must cover the care continuum under an
optimized contracting strategy, and apply
effective approaches to engaging stakehold-
ers, including patients, families, employers,
and others. Sophisticated organizations
will be developing an optimized network;
other organizations will look to partici-
pate in an optimized network provided by
another entity. To optimize networks, lead-
ers consider:

« Essentiality and adequacy: The breadth
and depth of care desired by the pur-
chaser, and the ability to handle the
projected volume of patients across the
defined care settings

» Service distribution right-sizing: The
elimination of duplication by reconfigur-

ng the network to be highly efficient,
Aeliver consistent quality across all sites,
and manage patients in the least-inten-
sive setting possible while still providing
the necessary level of care

Cavernancolnatitnte ram

» Network growth strategy: The ability to
grow the attributed or accessible
managed populations to support
organizational infrastructure and
associated costs

Consumer engagement ensures both the
clinical and business success of managing
a population’s health within a network.
Effective consumer engagement enables an
organization to help shape healthy behav-
iors, achieve the right level of utilization,
and steer individuals to the best site of care.

Operational Efficiency

As an organization's sphere of influence
widens in a value-based environment,

its cost/efficiency focus shifts from the
traditional view, involving inpatient and
physician-centric entities, to a population
health view, involving a broader scope of
the care continuum.

Broad strategic thinking about the care
patients receive after they leave the hospi-
tal's four walls is required of leadership to
ensure the right care in the right place, at
lower costs and better quality.

Enabling Infrastructure

Managing population health involves

major clinical and organizational trans-

formation made possible by investment in
areas including:

o Management and governance structures
that include a high level of physician
involvement and cover contracting, risk
assessment, clinical, and operational
decision making

e Adelivery network of sufficient size
and scope

« IT systems that are able to support
clinical care management processes,
common electronic health record
systems, clinical and predictive analytics,
and business functions

o Care management and coordination tools
and protocols tied to an enterprise-wide
decision support and reporting function

o Contracting and risk assessment and
management capabilities

« Patient engagement programs to build
loyalty and “stickiness”

PHM will require leaders to rethink their
infrastructure needs and invest and orga-
nize in a way that supports the organi-
zation's role and key initiatives in PHM
going forward.

Clinical Management

Three clinical imperatives apply to all hos-

pitals and health systems, however large or

small a role they play in PHM:

« Identify, stratify, and prioritize the
patient population along the health-
risk continuum: Organizations identify
the geography they serve and the
coatracting arrangements for the patient
populations within this geography. They
then prioritize their PHM efforts for
efficiency and effectiveness across patient
health-risk categories.

o Develop and implement interventions
to improve health, access, and out-
comes, and to reduce costs: Hospitals
understand the impact of technology and
care settings, and recognize the impor-
tance of consumer engagement, new
provider types, collaborative practice,
and evidence-based medicine. They then
design and implement prevention
initiatives based on population health
risk categories, spanning wellness, care
transitions, disease management, care
coordination, care navigation, and end of
life, as appropriate.

o Evaluate and refine the approaches
and interventions: Hospitals and health
systems understand the big-picture
objectives of performance improvement
and the on-the-ground challenges of
selecting and implementing appropriate
measures of PHM progress. They select
their targets and start moving toward the
end goals of effective and efficient PHM.

The degree and pace at which organiza-
tions pursue the six business imperatives
described here will depend on a variety of
internal and external forces. These include
organizational readiness with new com-
petencies required for value-based care,
overall stage of market evolution, verti-

cal collaboration across health plans and
provider organizations, and existing risk
contracts and relationships. But population
health management is the way U.S. care
delivery is going, so all healthcare boards
and management teams must work to
develop the knowledge and skills to move
their organizations in the right direction. &

The Goversiciice Institute thanks Mark F,
Grube, Managing Director, Kaufman, Hall &
Associates, LLC, and Governance Institite
Advisar, for contributing this article, He can
be reached at mgrube@kaufmanhall.com.

CNANTET anr e . DenedDenas Panan e



	board.packet.october.1
	board.packet.october.2
	board.packet.october.3.

